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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat on March 1, 2017,
from9:28 a.m to 5:18 p.m, |, Karen L. Shelton, a
Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of
Texas, appeared at Allied Pilots Association, 14600
Trinity Boul evard, Suite 500, in the Gty of Fort
Wrth, County of Tarrant, State of Texas, whereupon

the foll ow ng proceedi ngs were had:
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REPORTER S NOTE:

gJotation mar ks are used for clarity and
0 not necessarily reflect a direct quote.
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PROCEEDI NGS
(March 1, 2017, 9:28 a.m)

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: So let's get this appeal
board hearing. M. Meadows brought Article VII
charges agai nst Pam Torell, our secretary-treasurer.
We have -- you have the attendance |ist. W have
Captain Rob Sproc in attendance. He's the chairnman
of the appeal board.

MR. SPROC. First officer.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Can we just submt that
the charges are on the record, or would you like ne
to read then? Does anybody have an obj ection one
way or the other?

MR. MEADOAS: Yeah, |'d like to read them
Into the record, please.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. So let's -- so it
doesn't get lost in the shuffle, et ne start with
Captain Wlson's sixth charge which we agreed to
defer to this appeal board hearing --

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- which is -- the sixth
charge in the WIlson Meadows Article VII hearing
was, Charge 6: "Finally, the APA president has
failed to enforce the APA Constitution and Bylaws in
violation of C& Article IV, Section 8. A 3.
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Specifically, he failed to enforce Article Il1,
Section 4 which requires the APA secretary-treasurer
| ssue nmenbership cards to active nenbers in good
standi ng or special nmenbership cards to inactive
menbers. M certified request for a nenbership card
has been ignored."”

So that was the one we chose to defer.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Actual ly, nore accurately,
that was the one that both this appeal board and you
agreed to defer.

And now the charges in regard to Meadows
Torell are, Charge 1. "First Oficer Torel
violated Article 111, Section 4 which requires APA
secretary-treasurer to sign and i ssue nenbership
cards to active nenbers in good standing or speci al
menbership cards to active -- excuse ne, to inactive
menbers whereby she ignored and failed to honor ny
reasonabl e certified request for personal issuance
such APA nenbership card.”

Second charge, "F. O Torell, acting in her
capacity as APA secretary-treasurer, unilaterally
anmended APA's proof of claimwthout authorization
or notice to nenbers affected and specifically

excl uded Meadows Gi evance 12-011 whi ch cont ai ned
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renedi es valued at $5.6 mllion by an economc
expert report in violation fiduciary responsibility
under C& Article X. C and m sappropriating noney or
property of the association in direct violation of
Article VII.A 4."

Third charge: "As a result of the above
violations, F.O Torell also violated C&B Article
VII.A 7. by commtting an acts contrary to the best
interests of the APA as an institution or its
menbership as a whole, first by aiding and abetting
deni al of nyself and 233 MDD nenbers right of access
of to union neetings and, second, by stripping away
nmy val uabl e grievance from APA's proof of claim
8331, thereby shifting the substantial financial
burden of that grievance" -- excuse ne -- "of that
grievance's renedies valued at 5.6 mllion fromthe
conpany directly onto the association."”

Fourth charge: "As a result of all of the
above violations, the F.O Torell also violated C&B
Article VI1.A 2. by commtting wllful violations of
this APA Constitution and Byl aws. "

Charge 5. "Here F.O Torell has wllfully
abstracted or converted property and assets
contained in APA's proof of claimwhereby

m sappropriating noney or property of the

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700
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association in violation of Article VII.A 4."
So those are the charges. And | was going
to just let M. Meadows go, but | hear you have an

openi ng st atenent.

MR. THURSTIN. | have an opening
obj ection, yes, I'd like to read for the record.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So -- well, it's all on
the record, but -- so let himnmake an opening
statenent, and then we'll |et you go.

MR. MEADOWNS: |If we're going to nake
objections, 1'd like to open and nmake ny objections

and then let himdo it.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: |'msorry. Say again?

MR. MEADOAS: | have objections I'd |ike
to lodge also, so | think I should be permtted to
go first.

CHAl RMAN HEPP:  You know, it's basically a

flip of the coin.

MR. MEADOAS: |'mthe noving party, |
t hi nk, so --
CHAl RMAN HEPP: |'m sorry?
MR. MEADOAS: |'mthe noving party, so |

should be allowed to go first.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Any obj ection?
MR. THURSTIN.  No.
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MR. MEADOA5: |'mjust going to get -- I'm
just trying to keep this in order.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: | nean, your opening

statenent's going to be?

MR. THURSTIN. This is opening objections.
This is not the statenent, actually an openi ng
statement .

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | can't hear you. [|'m
sorry.

MR. THURSTIN. This is opening
obj ections --

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. -- not the actual opening
st at enent .

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Ch, okay. Al right. And
how | ong -- and you --

MR. THURSTIN. This only takes a couple
m nutes, four itens.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  And, Larry, you have?

MR. MEADOWAS: Three m nutes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. Fine. So, Larry,
why don't you go ahead.

ACCUSER S OBJECTI ONS
MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Al right. Yeah,

just -- we discussed this off the record earlier,

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700
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but | just want to | odge a couple objections for
housekeepi ng pur poses.

First, as | explained earlier, | have
concerns about your participation as a materi al
Wi tness in the proceedi ngs of Meadows versus APA
when you filed two decl arations on behalf of forner
general counsel Steve Hoffman. So | think that
makes you conflicted, and |'ve noved to recuse you,
whi ch you refuse to do. | understand the BOD had
passed a resolution that the board would stay intact
for these proceedings, but | disagree with that one.
| | odge an objection on that basis.

Secondly, | filed a notion to -- for
sunmary judgnent on the first charge, and that was
I gnored, | guess, so | object to that not being
heard because the facts in evidence in the record
show t hat Pam Torell absolutely viol ated Charge 1.
And that's it. | only have two objections.

ACCUSED S OBJECTI ONS

MR. THURSTIN: Board nenbers, on behal f of
Pam Torell, we have a few additional objections to
put on the record before we begin the hearing.

For the reasons stated in Captain Torell's
February 2nd, 2017, letter, this board shoul d

dism ss the charges in their entirety. M. Madows

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700
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does not have standing to file an Article VII
charge. According to Arbitrator Val verde's recent
deci sion, an inactive nenber is neither a nenber in
good standi ng or bad standi ng but sinply an inactive
menber. Only nenbers in good standing can file
Article VIl charges according to the C&B.
M. Meadows does not have standing. W therefore
ask the board to dism ss the charges w thout the
need for -- to proceed further.

Two, Captain Torell would also like to
object to the extent that any APA appeal board
menber, including those appeal board nenbers not
sitting here today, has had substantive
comuni cations directly wth M. Meadows about an
ongoing case. It is inappropriate for an appeal
board nmenber to have ex parte discussions with
M. Meadows.

In M. Meadows' recent second notion for
reconsi deration of Torell Exhibit No. 11,

M. Meadows provides an extensive summary of his
conversations with F.O Rob Sproc, the current
appeal board chair, about several issues including
how the entire Article VII process appears corrupt
and rigged and about the specific issue of inactive
APA menber shi p.
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The communi cations are i nappropriate. As
a sitting board nmenber, even the chair, F.O Rob
Sproc, should cease any communication with a pil ot
who has open appeal board cases and recuse hinself
for any cases related to M. Meadows.

Further, nunber three, further,

M. Meadows describes in his February 19, 2017,
e-mai |l that Captain Torell was suddenly unavail abl e
on February 28th and only avail able on March 1st and
2nd. Captain Torell was never avail able on February
28t h and never indicated that she was available. W
obj ect to the characterization.

Nunmber four, additionally, Captain Torel
points out for the nenbers that M. Meadows has
ongoi ng litigation and has threatened additional
litigation against the APA. The APAis not a party
here. They have called Captain Torell to answer
guestions limted to the scope of the hearing. W
wi |l not answer questions that may assi st
M. Meadows in his | awsuit agai nst APA.

That concl udes our openi ng objections.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Thank you.

MR. MEADOWAS: | fully object to each and
every objection they raised.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So noted. M. Meadows.

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700
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MR. MEADOWS: Yes, sir.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You have the floor.

ACCUSER S OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR. MEADOWS: |'Il |l keep the opening brief.

We're basically here -- | know there's
probably a level of frustration on Pam Torell's
part. This isn't personal aninus agai nst her, just
trying to hold her accountable for her actions,

The reason we're in the Article VI
proceedi ngs i s because the former general counsel,
Steve Hoffman, he argued to the federal court in
Utah that | should not be allowed to pursue ny LNMRDA
clainms and nust first exhaust ny internal union
remedies. Got an order to that effect. So we are
now her e.

Now, obviously |I can't address LNMRDA
| ssues and charges in this proceedi ng, but what |
can do is hold Pam Torell accountable for her
violations of the C&, which is the purpose of these
hearings. But if not for M. Hoffman's
| nappropriate action, this matter woul d have been
resolved in federal court |ong ago. But now here we
are and we're expending a lot of tinme and resources
to the association which | think are unnecessary,

but this is a very inportant issue.
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I n conjunction with Captain WIlson --
well, the entire association's | ocking us out of C&R
in April of 2014, the MDD pil ots were deprived
access to the virtual union hall. And overl apping

that, Captain Torell refused to i ssue us speci al
menbershi p cards, which would not allow us into
domcile neetings. There was a nmandate issued in
the sane tine franme that you nust show a nenbership
card to enter the neeting. So effectively MDD
pilots were | ocked out of the physical and virtual
uni on hall during the nost crucial tinme of our
careers when the JCBA was getting negotiated and the
| SL was getting negoti at ed.

As a result, we could not defend our
i nterests or clains or voice our concerns in these
hearings. And | think the fact -- after-the-fact
results speak for thenselves. 1In the ISL
proceedi ngs, out of the 239 MDD pilots Iike nyself,
11 are on the list. There's been no expl anati on why
there's been disparate treatnent between and anpngst
the | egacy AA disabled pilots.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: |I'msorry. Can you cl ear
that point up? | didn't --

MR. MEADOWS: Yes. There was 239 | egacy
Anerican Airlines MDD pilots been on disability

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700
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greater than five years. For sone reason, 11 of
them are on the | SL.

M5. FLETCHER: On the what?

MR. MEADOWNS: The integrated seniority
list. So 11 are on the list. The other 228
i ncl udi ng nyself are not. And that was one of the
nost inportant issues we couldn't raise or argue at
the domcile neetings or BOD neetings during that
time frame. So it's been a pretty significant harm

In addition, there is disparate treatnent
bet ween and anongst the | egacy US Airways pilots who
were all out nore than five years and they remai ned
on the list, all the east guys. And all the west
guys, they were out between five and ei ght years and
remai ned on the list. So that was one of the nost
crucial issues, that we did not get a chance to
participate in the negotiations or the argunents and
di scussi ons thereof.

Secondly, Captain Torell signed an anended
proof of claimin Arerican Airlines' bankruptcy
proceedi ngs on March 7, 2014, and in so doing she
uni laterally noved ny Gievance No. 12-011. And she
never notified ne. But she -- APA was notified that
| was going to pursue all ny legal renedies prior to

her taking that action. | actually sued in federal

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

20
court to conpel arbitration of that grievance, and
she still chose to unilaterally dispose of ny
grievance off the proof of claim which is a big
probl em She di sposed of ny grievance by
unilaterally excluding it fromthe anended proof of
claim That grievance has been val ued at
$5.6 mllion.

Now | ' m under an injunction by Judge Lane
ever since | spoke to M. Parker at the sharehol der
neeting. They cane after it, and | got an
I njunction. | amenjoined fromtaking any ot her
action against Arerican Airlines relating to ny
term nation renoval other than Gievance 12-011.
That was a big problem Gievance 12-011 is going
to nove forward. And if | prevail, APA has taken ny
grievance off the proof of claim and APA will be
liable for all the damages. So, it could be
amended, but Captain Torell has refused to anend it
and add it back in.

And that's it. |'msuffering pretty
severe harmpersonally. | think the entire group of
MDD pil ots has been treated disgracefully in blatant
violation of the C& and | ocked out of union, and
that's no snmall matter. And when this matter goes

to federal court, it'll be really clear APA, who was

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

21
enbarrassed in West Pal m Beach when a judge rul ed
that the AUP is unlawful and a violation of freedom
of speech. But there's a whole host of other
violations that are going to be addressed with
respect to Captain Torell's actions. And it's
unnecessary and unneeded. These things were asked
to be resol ved via correspondence.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl 1, you've covered a | ot
of ground. What's unnecessary and --

MR. MEADOWS: The whol e nonkey notion of
| ocki ng us out of C&R, costing the association
substanti al expense.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You know, that's not part
of this.

MR. MEADOAS: No, but |I'msaying --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Go ahead.

MR. MEADOWS: It is part of it.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Go ahead.

MR. MEADOWNS: So that -- she participated
inthis wwth Captain Wlson. The overall goa
seened to be to keep us out of the union hall in any
shape or form And | don't know what the goal was,
but the facts speak for thenselves. As a result,
APA has |ost their E&O i nsurance. Forner genera

counsel was term nated after 20 sone years. Forner
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I n-house | egal director was term nated after 20 sone
years. A lot of bad, fatally flawed | egal deci sions
made that have exposed the association. And Captain
Torell has willingly participated in those deci sions
by effectuating themand refusing to uphold her
duties under the C&B. That's all | have.
ACCUSED S OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR. THURSTIN. Qur opening statenent is we
are here today because M. Lawence Meadows filed
five separate Article VIl charges agai nst Captain
Pam Torell on April 14, 2016. It is inportant to
note that these charges are | evied against Captain
Torell for actions taken, and | quote from
M. Meadows' charge, "while acting in your capacity
as APA secretary-treasurer."”

MR. MEADOAS: Let ne clarify.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Pl ease, Larry. Larry.

MR. MEADOAS: | was witing -- no, | was
witing her --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry.

MR. MEADOWAS: -- in her --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry, Larry.
MR. MEADOWS: Well, it's a

m schar acteri zati on.
CHAI RMVAN HEPP: No one -- no one
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interrupted. He did not interrupt.

MR. MEADOANS: Well, | object to the
m scharacteri zati on of ny statenent.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: No one's i nterrupted.

MR. MEADOWS: | object though.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Not everything you said
was, you know, nice and friendly.

MR. MEADOWS: It's not nice. It's just a
m scharacterization. But |I'll et himfinish, and
"1l clear it up at the back end.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You can al ways obj ect
af t erwar ds.

MR. MEADOWS: Thank you.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Just take notes.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  Thank you. Pl ease.

MR. THURSTIN: As | go through ny opening,
"1l refer to certain exhibits to be introduced to
conserve tinme, expedite this process. This opening
w Il serve as both an opening statenent and
presentation. The panel is asked to accept the
exhibits, which I've laid on the table, included in
a binder marked "Torell Exhibits."

M. Meadows spent a great deal of tine

di scussi ng his nenbership status. He has asserted
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in various forns that he is an active nenber and
sonetimes asserts that he is an inactive nenber. In
sone court pleadings he all eges APA has |ied about
his nenbership status by calling hima nenber. In
t hose cases he seens to be inferring that he is not
a menber at all. A sinple review of the facts is in
or der.

M. Meadows was hired at Anmerican Airlines
on or about October 1991. He last flew on or about
April 2003, and his disability benefits were
approved around May 2004. M. Meadows dropped off
the seniority list on or about Novenber of 2011 as a
result of provisions contained in the collective
bar gai ning agreenent. He is no |onger a pil ot
enpl oyed of -- enployee of Anmerican Airlines.

A summary of M. Meadows' status with
Anmerican Airlines is included as Torell Exhibit 15.
This summary was pulled fromthe nonthly Status 1
report received fromthe conpany and was provided to
M. Meadows in 2013 during the equity distribution
arbitration.

The APA Constitution and Byl aws states
t hat inactive nenbers who are on nedical | eave of
absence fromthe conpany for nore than 12 nonths

becone i nacti ve menbers. In 2011 under the contract
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at that tinme, both Section 11.D and Suppl enent F
dictated that a pilot who is out on unpaid sick or
disability for five years is dropped fromthe
seniority list and no |onger a pilot enployee of
Anerican Airlines. For internal purposes, APA codes
these pilots as MDD, nedical disability dropped.

| understand M. Meadows contests the
contractual provisions that dropped himfromthe
seniority list. He has filed grievance protesting
bei ng dropped fromthe seniority list. One of those
gri evances, Gievance No. 12-011, was the subject of
hi s charge against Captain Torell related to the
bankruptcy proof of claim That grievance, al ong
with a letter fromCaptain Keith WIlson, an APA
president, to M. Meadows expl ai ni ng why he did not
advance the grievance to the systemboard is
I ncl uded as Torell Exhibit No. 5.

A second grievance, Gievance No. 13-064,
along with a letter fromCaptain Keith Wlson, is
I ncluded as Torell Exhibit No. 6. The APA president
chose not to advance M. Meadows' grievance to the
system board. As a result, M. Meadows sued APA in
the U S. Dstrict Court in Utah, trying to force APA
to nove his grievance to the systemboard. His

| awsuit was di sm ssed and i s now on appeal .
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Captain Torell was not involved in the
di scussion leading up to Captain W1 son's deci sion.
Various court docunents, filings, including the --
and filings, including the court order dism ssed by
M. Meadows' case, are included as Torell Exhibits
12 and 13.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  When you' re referencing,
you' re referencing the tabs?

MR. THURSTI N. Correct.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. So Tab 12 and 137

MR. THURSTI N. Correct.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. As a side note, now the
five-year rule under Supplenent F has since been
deleted fromthe contract by letter of agreenent
effective Septenber 30, 2016. But the LOCA
application was not nade retroactive and did not
| npact any of the fornmer pilots already dropped from
the seniority list.

This forumis not the place to relitigate
M. Meadows' lawsuit or to review those contractua
provisions. This panel is not the body to interpret
the contract. For purposes of today, M. Meadows'
status with the APA remains MDD. And, as nentioned,

havi ng been on disability nore than 12 nont hs, MDD
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pilots are inactive pilots,

Captain Keith WIlson, as APA president,
| ssued a presidential interpretation on June 30,
2016, confirmng that MDD pilots are inactive
menbers. This interpretation is included as Torell
Exhibit 7. Regardless of this interpretation, APA
has considered M. Meadows an inactive nenber
t hroughout Captain Torell's tenure as
secretary-treasurer.

That may be enough background to now
briefly outline Captain Torell's argunents which are
also briefly outlined in Torell's Exhibits 2 and 3,
Captain Torell's prior correspondence to the appeal
boar d.

As nentioned at the beginning of this
hearing, Captain Torell argues that M. Madows does
not have standing to file Article VIl charges. To
quote Arbitrator Valverde, the C&B specifically
states that only a nenber in good standing can file
a charge agai nst any other nmenber, Article VII.B. 1.
Here, the arbitrator has made a prelimnary finding
t hat Meadows, an inactive nenber, does not enjoy
menber in good standing status. Thus, he
technically does not have the authority to file

char ges agai nst a nenber.
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Al t hough Val verde conti nued and nade his
ruling on several additional grounds, because
Captain Wl son did not argue the standi ng position,
Captain Torell specifically now argues this position
and asserts M. Meadows has no standing to file
Article VIl charges. This concept is not a new
concept and was argued by F.O Rob Sproc in his own
speci al appeal board case in 2013 when he argued
that Joe Barkate, an inactive nenber, was neither in
good or bad standing as an inactive nenber according
to the C&B and therefore did not enjoy the
privileges associated with being a nenber in good
standing. The relevant position of F.QO Sproc's
brief presenting this argunent included -- is
I ncl uded as Torell Exhibit 16. Arbitrator
Val verde's decisions are included as Torell Exhibits
9 and 10.

For a conpletely separate and di stinct
reason, these charges are not cogni zabl e because
they are not institutional conplaints agai nst APA
Captain Torell recognizes that national officers are
subject to Article VII for personal actions.

However, in this case the charges are
against the institution and APA rather than agai nst

I ndi vi dual action. For exanple, M. Madows all eges
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in his charges that as APA secretary-treasurer,
Captain Torell violated the LMRDA. This is an
i nstitutional charge against the APA. As anot her
exanpl e, M. Meadows has pending litigation or
threatened litigation agai nst APA regardi ng these
char ges.

Addi tionally, the requested renedy is not
appropriate. M. Madows asked the appeal board to
direct the secretary-treasurer to i ssue Meadows and
all MDD pilots APA nenbership cards, and he asked
that the appeal board direct Captain Torell to anmend
APA' s proof of claimin the bankruptcy court. These
requested renedi es are beyond the jurisdiction and
authority of the appeal board. Assum ng the appeal
board goes -- gets to the nerits of this case, the
board may only decide if APA discipline is
appropriate for any substanti ated m sdeeds.

| would like to briefly review each of
t hese charges listed in page 12 of M. Madows'
charges. As to Charge 1, Captain Torell, acting in
her capacity as secretary-treasurer, referencing
M. Meadows' request for a union card to counsel.
She did this because M. Meadows had ongoi ng
litigation against the APA. Her actions were

appropriate for the situation. M. Meadows' suit
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was di sm ssed by the trial court. The case is
currently on appeal .

O interest, the C&B does specify a tine
or frequency -- correction -- does not specify a
time or frequency for issuing ID cards. It is
I nportant to note that APA subsequently issued
I nactive ID cards to all inactive nenbers, including
M. Meadows, in Decenber of 2016. Even if the board
had authority to direct the secretary-treasurer to
I ssue an I D card, this issue is noot.

As relating to Charges 2, 3, 4, and 5
related to the bankruptcy proof of claim even if
t he board considers these charges cogni zabl e and
appropriate for review by the appeal board, there is
absol utely no evidence that Captain Torell has
willfully abstracted or converted mllions of
dol l ars of association property and assets for her
own use or the use of another, nor is there any
evi dence that Captain Torell has m sappropriated APA
noney or property.

M. Meadows' defamatory allegations are
basel ess. Renoving his grievance from APA' s
bankruptcy proof of claimdid not prevent
M. Meadows from pursuing those clains agai nst
Anrerican Airlines. In Torell Exhibit 13, Judge Lane
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of the bankruptcy court explains in detail these
clains and their status, none of which were affected
by APA's renoval of the grievance fromits own proof
of claim

Renmovi ng the grievance from APA's proof of
claimdid nothing to enrich Captain Torell or any
other pilot as M. Meadows alleges. Torel
Exhibit 17 explains that any future equity
distribution of pilots will consist of 13.5 percent
of settled disputed clains. APA does not receive
any percentage of clains not settled or wthdrawn.

Further, Captain Torell was acting purely
In her mnisterial capacity of secretary-treasurer
I n signing the proof of claim Such activity and
action is not cogni zable under Article VII. The
decision to nove the grievance to the system board
was a deci sion nade by the president under his
authority. APA C& Article IV, Section 8 states,
"The president shall conduct the affairs of APA
consistent with the Constitution and Bylaws and with
the policy and directives set by the board of
directors. The president's actions shall be
presuned valid unless the board of directors elects
to review and di sapproves a particular action taken

by the president."”
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President WIlson acted within his
aut hority when he decided not to advance the
grievance. His action is presuned valid. After
several individual, separate clains were resolved or
ot herw se cl osed, APA anended its proof of claim
Captain Torell signed that claim She commtted no
violation of the C& in doing so.

As to Charge 3 related to aiding and
abetting denial of M. Meadows and others access to
uni on neetings, there is absolutely no evidence that
M. Meadows or any other MDD pilot for that natter
were deni ed access to union neetings or that their
right to attend was hindered or restricted.

Needl ess to say, there is no evidence that -- then
that Captain Torell aided or abetted any restriction
of this right.

Finally, the charges related to the
bankruptcy proof of claimwere not tinely fil ed.
Even if the board decides the charges related to the
bankrupt cy proof of claimmght present a cognizable
| ssue and that M. Meadows has standing to bring
Article VIl charges, these charges should be
di sm ssed because these charges were not tinely
filed.

Article VIl, Section B.2 requires charges
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be filed within one year. Specifically, the C&B
reads, "Except for charges filed in accordance with
Section A.1 and A 8 of this article, charges nust be
filed wthin one year after the all eged offense.”

M. Meadows' charges do not all ege
of fenses under Sections A1 or A.8. O Iinportant
note, M. Meadows filed his charges on April 14,
2015. Captain Torell signed the proof of claimon
March 4, 2014. M. Meadows was aware of this proof
of claimin March of 2014. He objected to the proof
of claimto both Captain Wl son and Captain Torell.
M. Meadows' original charges against Captain Torel
are included as Torell Exhibit 3.

Exhibit 4 to M. Meadows' original charges
agai nst Captain Torell is a letter dated March 25,
2014, to Captain WIson protesting renoval of
Gi evance 12-011 from APA's proof of claim
Exhi bit 6, Meadows' charges, which is al so included
as Torell Exhibit 4, is an e-mail to Captain Torel
fromM. Meadows dated April 1, 2014. He was aware
of the proof of claimbefore March 25, 2014, and
failed to file an Article VII1 until alnobst 13 nonths
| ater on April 14, 2014.

Article VIl under the C&B is clear.

Charges nust be filed within one year. M. Meadows'
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charges are untinely and nust be dism ssed. For al
t he above reasons, M. Madows' charges shoul d be
dismssed in their entirety.

Captain Torell would |ike to introduce the
exhibits contained in the binders. She has no
W tnesses to call and rests her case. She reserves
her right to file post-hearing briefs in lieu of
cl osing argunents. W rest.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Can we take ten?

MR. MEADOAS: | have a question.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Pl ease.

MR. MEADOWAS: M. Thurstin never
identified hinself. Are you a nenber in good
st andi ng of the APA?

MR, THURSTIN. | am but I'mnot on trial
her e.

MR. MEADOAS: No, but --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: He's just referencing --

MR. MEADOAS: |'mjust curious. You never
I ntroduced yourself, so | just was wondering what

your status was.
MR. THURSTIN. |'ma nenber in good
st andi ng.
MR. MEADOW5S: Are you an attorney?
MR THURSTIN. | am not.
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MR. MEADOWS: (Good thing, because you' d be
in contenpt of court. But we'll address that.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Fortunately, we're not in
a courtroom

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, there's several --
there's at |east 14 m srepresentations of fact that
are contradi cted by record evi dence.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  And you'll have your --

MR. MEADOWNS: |'Ill raise them-- |'I|
rai se themwhen | testify.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And you'll have your
opportunity. Can we take ten, please?

MR. THURSTIN:. Yes.

(Recess from9:59 to 10:03)

CHAI RVAN HEPP: M. Meadows.

MR. MEADOWS: Yes, sir.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You're up.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. 1'd like to cal
Captain Torell as the first w tness.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Let nme make one poi nt
t hough. Before we broke, you tal ked about whet her
M. Thurstin, Captain Thurstin was a | awer, and
that's -- just renenber where we are, you know?
W're --

MR. MEADOAS: No, | was just asking

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

36
because he didn't introduce hinself, and he's --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, Larry, allow ne --

MR. MEADOWNS: He's know edgable. He
sounds like a lawer. |'mjust curious.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: | heard your comments. |
heard your comments. M point is that, you know,
the reasoning behind this was to give you your
opportunity.

MR. MEADOWS: Right.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay? And | think given
what we did with Wl son, you know we bent over --
you didn't agree with our decision, but we bent over
backwards to allow you to go as far as you wanted to
go and put in as nmuch as you wanted to put in. And
you're going to have that sane opportunity here, but
there's no reason -- you know, let's try to, you
know, no gl oves getting thrown down on the ice. W
don't have to start throwi ng, you know, fists or
claimng who's a | awer or not or whether this is
appropriate for a court of |aw because that's not
where we are.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So if we could just do
wi t hout any of that, that would be hel pful.

MR. MEADOWS: Under st ood.
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CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ckay? Thank you.
M. Meadows.
MR. MEADOWNS: Okay. As ny first wtness
|'d like to call Captain Torell.
CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You just can do -- do you
want to do it fromthere? Are you okay right there?
MR. THURSTIN Let's stow all this stuff
here out of the way.
(Wtness sworn by the reporter)
PAM TORELL,
havi ng been duly sworn, testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Good norni ng, Captain Torell.

A Good nor ni ng.

Q Coul d you pl ease state your full nane and
address for the record.

A Absolutely. It's Captain Pam Torell,
Allied Pilots Association secretary-treasurer, 14600
Trinity Boul evard, Suite 500, Fort Wrth, Texas
76155.

Q Ckay. And do you have any inpairnents
that woul d prevent you fromtestifying truthfully
t oday?

A Ckay. Larry, I'magoing to nmake sure
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hear all your questions correctly.

Q Do you have any inpairnents that woul d
prevent you fromtestifying truthfully today?

A No, sir.

Q Are you on any drugs or nedication that
woul d prevent you fromtestifying truthfully?

A No, sir.

Q Ckay. Have you ever been deposed before,

testified under oath before?

A Yes, | have.

Q | n what proceedi ngs?

A | was deposed with Kathy Meadows.
Q Emery?

A Kat hy Enery. What a slip. Enery.
Q kay. Just the one tine?

A Yes, sSir.

Q kay. In your whole life?

A Yes.

Q Real | y?

A Yes.

Q Al right. GCkay. So what did you do

today to prepare for this hearing?
A Captain Thurstin and | reviewed the
docunents, prepared the exhibits.

Q And did you seek the advice of |egal
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counsel prior to com ng today?
A. No, sir.
Q Have you consulted with any attorneys
prior to com ng today?
A No, sir.
MR. THURSTIN. | object to that in respect

that we're getting kind of in the client-attorney --
client -- client-attorney --

MR MEADOWS: No, we're not.

M5. TORELL: Attorney-client privilege.

MR. MEADOWS: Only the content of
di scussions you tal k about.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, Larry, please. It
was directed to the --

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: -- to the group. He
hasn't -- all he's asked is whether you have had any
comuni cations. He's not specifically asked about
speci fic comruni cati ons.

MR THURSTI N: Correct.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: That woul d be
attorney-client, and | would expect you to say
exactly what you just said if he does that, to
obj ect under attorney-client privilege.

M5. TORELL: Exactly. And it would be
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under attorney-client privileges. | have contact
with APA | egal probably on a daily basis.

BY VMR NEADOWE:
Q Yeah, but we're only speaki ng about these

proceedi ngs. So who prepared your exhibit |ist
today and your exhibits?

A Captain Thurstin.

Q He did it entirely on his own without any
assi stance from APA | egal ?

A To the best of ny know edge.

Q Did he have any assi stance from APA | egal ?

A To the best of ny know edge, Captain
Thurstin prepared the exhibits.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, can | -- can | ask
just where this is going?

MR. MEADOWS: Because APA | egal has been
advi sing her and witing docunents and letters for
her. And she's not -- she -- she herself in her
openi ng statenent said she's not -- and | can't
bring charges against her in an official capacity,
yet she's using the resources of the association in
an individual capacity.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, that's what your --
so that's what your questions are trying to surm se?

MR. MEADOWS: | think there's
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comuni cati ons between general counsel and in-house
counsel regarding these proceedings, which is
| nappropri ate, because she's here as an individual,
not as the secretary-treasurer.,

CHAI RVAN HEPP: |I'mnot sure |'d agree
with that, but go ahead. At least | -- at |east |
understand where you're going. | just wanted to
understand where you're going. |I'msure | -- |I'm
not sure | --

MR. MEADOWS: Well, let ne clarify because
there was a question raised that | said | was
bringi ng charges again her in her capacity as
secretary-treasurer. Wat ny statenent, charge
statenent says is I'mwiting to her in her capacity
as secretary-treasurer because it's unusual in this
ci rcunst ance because she is the individual getting
charged. She's also the clerk of court for the APA
So |l was witing to her in her official capacity as
t he person who accepts Article VII charges. She
just happened to be accepting it for herself.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Wl |, that nmay be.

MR. MEADOAS: But | just want to clarify.
| never had any intention of charging her as
secretary-treasurer. |'mcharging her for her

I ndi vi dual conduct.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Well, just -- but just to
be cl ear, your charges specifically state "requires
the secretary-treasurer." Charge 2 specifically
states "APA secretary-treasurer."”

MR. MEADOWS: | understand, but --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: "Acting in her capacity as
secretary-treasurer,”

MR. MEADOWNS: But she did it as an
I ndi vi dual .

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | nean, just, you know,

you've got to stay with the charges that you

SO --

br ought .

MR. MEADOWS: (Ckay. But she -- under
Article VI1 |'mcharging her as an individual
menber. |t doesn't prevent ne from chargi ng an
officer of the union as an individual. And she just
happens to be the secretary-treasurer, and she is
responsi bl e for her actions individually as
secretary-treasurer. There can't be an i mmuni zed
class of elected officials at APA. They are just as
| i abl e and cul pabl e for individual charges as anyone
el se.

MR. THURSTIN. Part of the charges that
you' ve brought also contains a significant nonetary

j udgnent agai nst the APA as part of these charges
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you have brought, a possibility of a significant
nonetary judgnent. That judgnent is -- has to be
considered in sone of these proceedi ngs and where
you're going with it in the Uah appellate court at
this tine. So that's why we're kind of concerned
about where you're going with sone of the charges or
sone of the questioning on this.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Wl |, you have the right
to object. You know, that's your job. Hs job is
to try and do the best he can for hinself.

MR. THURSTIN: | understand.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Qur job is just to make
sure he stays on the charges that he brought and not
expand upon those now.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: That's ny issue.
Everything that you've nentioned up till -- relates
to her position as the secretary-treasurer. So |
woul d ask that you confine your questions to that.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Does that sound
reasonabl e?

MR. MEADOAS: Yes, that's reasonable.

BY MR NEADOWE:

Q So did you get any |egal advice from Janes
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& Hof f man regardi ng either the nmenbership card issue
or the C&R | ockout issue?

A Before | answer any of these questions, |
need to verify how I' mansweri ng.

Q | "' m not aski ng what advice you got. |I'm
just asking if and when you got it.

A | am here as Pam Torel |, APA
secretary-treasurer and ny roles and duties in that
position as the funds and the records and the
bookkeepi ng of the association, not as Pam Torell as
a menber in good standing.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: | under -- | under --
okay. So | get that.

M5. TORELL: Are we in agreenent?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Wl l, | think that's what
we just -- | think that's what we just cane to.

M5. TORELL: W did clarify that.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: We just clarified --

MR. MEADOWAS: Well, I'mnot |eaving ny --
| mean, ny intent was to charge her individually.
She just happens to be secretary-treasurer. You
can't decouple the two.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, but you've -- you've
al ready charged her, Larry. | nean, your --

MR. MEADOWAS: | know | charged her, and
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CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Your Article VIl charges
are al ready here.

MR. MEADOWS: |'mcharging as an
I ndi vi dual nenber in her capacity as
secretary-treasurer.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But that's not what
they -- that's what not --

MR. MEADOWNS: What does it say?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: It says, "Torell violated
Article Ill, Section 4 which requires" --

MR. MEADOWS: That's right.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: -- "her to be
secretary-treasurer."”

MR. MEADOWS: | ' m chargi ng her
Individually. |'mnot barred from bringi ng charges
agai nst an elected official of the union.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Let's try this. Ask your
guestion again. Ask it to ne.

MR. MEADOAS: The question was, did she
recei ve any | egal advice from Janes & Hof f man
regardi ng either the nenbership card issue or the
C&R | ockout i ssue.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. And if | were the

secretary-treasurer, | would say that that would be
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and Byl aws nean.

MR. MEADOWS: | just want a yes or no
answer. It's a yes or no answer.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  No, no, | understand. |'m
just trying to -- | nean, obviously they think
there's sonething nore to that. |I'mtrying to get
an answer. |I'mtrying to figure out. So -- and

your objection is?

M5. TORELL: | am not objecting as
necessarily as mnmuch as clarifying.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: Is it a yes --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So as a nenber in good
standi ng, you'd be unable to pick up the phone and
talk to | egal counsel about interpretations of the
C&B.

M5. TORELL: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You don't have that
access.

M5. TORELL: Thank you, Chairman.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: As the
secretary-treasurer, you certainly have that
opportunity.

M5. TORELL: Thank you.

46
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CHAI RMAN HEPP:  So under that notion --

MR. MEADOAS. Are any association
resources bei ng expended in your defense in these
proceedi ngs?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: |'msorry. Say that one

nore timne.

MR. MEADOAS: Are any associ ation
resources bei ng expended in your defense in these
proceedi ngs?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Are any associ ation
resources?

MR. MEADOWS: Bei ng expended.

CHAl RMAN HEPP:  Well, we're all on union
| eave, Larry.

MR. MEADOWAS: | don't nean -- | don't nean
to paddle. | nean, is M. Thurstin getting paid by
APA for union | eave today?

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Well, that's the only --
mean, she has a right to a fair representation.

MR. MEADOWS: She doesn't have a right to
a paid representation. She has a right to
representation by a nenber in good standing.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Yes, but it doesn't
specifically prevent.

MR. MEADOWNS: So ny question is, is
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M. Thurstin on paid union | eave today?
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, wait, wait, wait,
wait. Hold on. | want to be perfect -- okay. Your

position here at APA is representing Pam Tor el
t oday.

MR. THURSTIN. That's correct.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Are you on any conmittees
with the Allied Pilots Association?

MR. THURSTIN. |I'malso on the -- a nenber
at large for the ad hoc conpensation commttee.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Okay. As a nenber of the
ad hoc conpensation commttee, does that require
uni on | eave?

MR. THURSTIN:. It does.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Are you presently on union
| eave because of those commttee issues?

MR. THURSTIN. | have been, yes, sir.

M5. TORELL: But today?

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  How about today?

MR. THURSTIN. Today |'m specifically for
t hi s proceedi ng.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So today you're
here specifically for this proceeding. You had --
were you granted union | eave specifically for this

proceedi ng?
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MR. THURSTI N.  Yes.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: And | don't think there's
anyt hi ng i nappropri at e.

MR. MEADOWS: Really? So |I'm bringing
I ndi vi dual charges, and the association is spending
resources defending the individual. [nappropriate.
Whatever. It's just -- again, it's answered. Ckay.
BY MR NEADOWS.

Q Has Mark Myers or anyone else in APA | ega
witten any docunents or letters for you in these
proceedings or in the WIlson proceedings? 1"l
clarify it.

On February 2nd you sent a letter to
Captai n Hepp asking to have these proceedi ngs
di sm ssed based on the Valverde decision. D d you

wite that |letter yoursel f?

A |f the letter's signed by ne, the letter
was witten by ne.

Q You wote all the words in that letter?

A |f the letter is signed by ne, it's ny
docunent .

Q Did you have any assi stance --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, | think the
guestion is asked and answer ed.
BY MR. MEADOWS:
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Q Did you have any assi stance preparing the
| etter?
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Well, okay. Wit a
second. Question's asked and answer ed.
MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: Right? She signed the
letter. She wote the letter.
BY MR NEADOWS.
Q In that letter you had attachnents. How

did you learn of the Val verde deci sion?

A It was e-mailed to ne.

Q Ckay. And you concl uded that that was a
bi ndi ng precedent in the association?

A That's speculative. |'mhere for the
factual nerits only.

Q | "' m asking you -- well, you relied upon
It. You feel like you can dism ss these proceedi ngs
based on Val verde's decision, correct?

A | am here for factual information only.

Q Do you -- okay. Did you or did you not
assert that | don't have standing based on
Val verde' s deci si on?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Stand -- no, no,

no. No. Larry, that's up to us. She is just |ike

we have granted you --
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MR MEADOWS:  No, no, no.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Wait a second. No, no,
Larry, no. W have granted you wide latitude in
putting in whatever you've wanted to put in, and we
have given you that |atitude under Wl son and we've
given you that |atitude under this. And by the way,
we asked for those docunents seven days in advance.
And | understand you're busy and they didn't do it
either. So, both sides. But the bottomline is
we're letting both sides do it. But we' ve given
everyone wde |atitude on this.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (kay? So they have a
right to make their claim |It's up to us to nake
t hat deci si on.

MR. MEADOWS: | got it.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: CQbviously they put it in
because they decided it's relevant to their case.

MR. MEADOWS: | got it.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: But we're the ones that

are going to nake the deci sion.

MR. MEADOWAS: | understand, but --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  You don't -- | don't want
to know whet her she thinks it's relevant. | nean,
to nme just -- | obviously think they think it's
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rel evant, or they would not have included it.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: \Whether it's relevant to
us is what matters. So, no, I'mgoing to -- |I'm
going to object to that question.

MR. MEADOAS: Ckay. And | just want to
clarify. [|I'mjust trying to establish a foundation
because we're going to get into ny standi ng and what
Ms. Torell believes ny standing was or wasn't at
various periods in tinme. So that's part of it. But
that's what I'"'mtrying to get at. | can get to it
| at er .

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Well, they put it in,
Larry, so obviously they think there nust be
sonething to it.

MR. MEADOAS: 'l get to it later in
anot her line of questioning. Ckay.

BY MR NEADOWE:

Q Al right. If you could just real briefly
post - hi gh school, could you just give nme a
description of your education experience and flight
trai ning experience prior to getting hired at
Anerican Airlines?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Wat rel evance does

that have to do with this?
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MR. MEADOAS: |'d like to know if she has
any financial training or education or credentials.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: I f she has any what ?

MR. MEADOWS: Financi al training,
education or credentials. She's secretary-treasurer
of the association. [|I'mjust curious if she has any
formal training, her education in finance.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: That's up to you.

But just to be clear, Larry, we've elected
a lot of secretary-treasurers that have no financi al
background when they becone secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOWS: | understand, but it goes to
nmy claim

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: | --

M5. TORELL: In the essence of tinme, |'m
goi ng to pass.

MR MEADOWS: You can't pass.

M5. TORELL: | defer to the chair.
MR. THURSTIN. | object.
BY MR NMEADOWS:
Q Are you a |licensed --

MR. THURSTIN. It's not relevant.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Are you a |licensed CPA?
MR. THURSTIN. It's not relevant to
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Article VII.
BY MR MEADOWS:

Q Are you a licensed CPA? |'m asking the
gquestion of you, Ms. Torell. Are you a licensed
CPA?

MR. THURSTIN. | object to this because
it's not a rel evant question.

MR. MEADOAS: [t's rel evant because she's
signing proofs of clainms for billions of dollars,
and she needs to have sone financial know edge. So
nmy questionis, is it on-the-job training, or is it
formal education and experience? |It's relevant.

MR, THURSTIN | still object.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Larry, I'msorry. | don't
see the rel evance.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Fine. W'IlIl nove on.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: G ven the fact that this
associ ati on has el ected nunerous people that have
had no financial training or -- in various positions
Wi thin the union.

MR. MEADOAS: Ckay. So what are the --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Stand by one.

(Of record from10: 36 to 10: 37)

CHAl RMAN HEPP: So |'m going to object.

am going to object to this Iine of questioning
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because there's nothing in the Constitution and
Byl aws that places any requirenents on this position
in terms of financial background.
MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Fine.
BY MR MEADOWS:

Q When did you first serve in an official
capacity for APA? O bDbriefly describe what jobs or
positions you' ve held in APA

A Si nce 19987

Q Si nce whenever you were hired.

A All right. Since 1998 various commttees.
| could provide a list of them but there are
various conmttees as in --

Q Can you list them off?

A Aero Med, Fam |y Awareness, Professional
St andar ds.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You don't have to --
doesn't have to be conprehensi ve.

A Safety training. Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think we get the point.
M5. TORELL: Thank you. Thank you.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You' ve done vari ous.
BY MR MEADOWS:
Q When were you el ected sect -- thank you

for your service, but when were you elected for the
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secretary-treasurer position?

A July 1, 2013.

Q So you' ve got extensive experience in the
APA.

A. (Wtness nods head.)

Q And do you have a strong worKking
know edge - -

A It could be your understandi ng.

Q -- of the C&B?

A Say again?

Q Do you have a strong wor ki ng knowl edge of
t he C&B t hen?

A | do ny best with the C&B, yes.

Q Do you have a strong worki ng knowl edge of
t he LMRDA?

A | do ny best with it. | do not have it
menorized, but | reference it frequently.

Q Aren't you bound under federal |law to be
obligated to conduct yourself in accordance with the
LMRDA and t he C&B?

A. | believe so. I'mnot sure if that's a
stipulation, but | always try.

Q Are you aware of the fiduciary duties that
are attached to your position as APA

secretary-treasurer?
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A | believe so.

Q And what are they?

A My fiduciary responsibilities?

Q Yeah.

A. The responsibility of the books, the
funds, and the records of the association.

Q And filing reports?

A As --

Q Do you sign federal tax returns?

A. Yeah. | serve as APA secretary-treasurer

along with an accounting staff.

Q So are you responsible for al
representations nade on IRS filings that are signed
by you?

MR. THURSTIN. Can | ask where we're going
wth this? This is kind of a -- IRS is way outside
the scope of Article VII.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Can you read the | ast
guesti on back, please?

(Request ed text was read)

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So, Larry, | guess what
we're doing, what road you're trying to go down is
you're trying to do your best to attach her to the
$5.6 million claim

MR. MEADOAS:.  No.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: (Ckay. So where are you
goi ng?
MR. MEADOWNS: Well, | nmean, | think she's
doing -- she's taken certain actions in violation of

the C&B, which she should be well aware of that
they're in violation of nunmerous federal |aws, not
to nention the C&B. So ny question is what makes
her think she can do them

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, | think she's nade
that plain in her side of her opening statenent.
Yes?

M5. TORELL: Yes, sir.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And they're in the
affirmative.

Can you read that question one nore tine,
pl ease?

(Request ed text was read)
CHAI RMAN HEPP: And you're objecting to

MR, THURSTIN. |'m objecting to that
because it's outside the scope of the charges.
We're way outside the scope of the charges.

MR MEADOWS: No, we're not.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, | nean, it does --

MR. MEADOWS: She just said she's here as

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

59
the secretary-treasurer.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Larry, please. Thank you.
He is trying to establish how nmuch invol venent Pam
has with the $5.6 mllion claimagainst the
bankr upt cy.

MR. THURSTIN. Right. W're concerned
about that from APA's | egal standpoint, though, that
that is a claimthat is -- we don't want discovery
heari ngs.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Stand by.

MR. MEADOWS: | object. You are not
representing APA and APA | egal has no role in these
proceedi ngs and you just spilled beans right there.
You have no -- | nean, this is -- really.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: St and by.

(Of record from10:41 to 10:43)
(Mark Myers joins the hearing)

M5. HELLER: Larry, just wanted to clarify
sonet hi ng.

MR MEADOWS:  Sure.

M5. HELLER: There was a di scussion, and
It'"s just left alittle bit unclear as to whether
you are bringing charges against Pamin her
I ndi vi dual capacity or as -- in her capacity as

secretary-treasurer.
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MR. MEADOWNSG: Well, under Article VII I'm
required to bring them agai nst individual nmenbers.
She just happens to be the secretary-treasurer. And
her actions were taken individually and in her role
as secretary-treasurer. And | think the appeal
board had a nmanual in 2009 that never got published,
but it basically said part of the new rul es were
there's not an inmuni zed cl ass of elected officials.

M5. HELLER:  Correct.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: That's absol utely right.

MR. MEADOWAS: There used to be.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Right. And that's since
been changed. | guess -- | guess where I'm-- to
speak towards Lisa's issue, are you teeing up a
| awsui t agai nst her that you haven't yet brought?

MR. MEADOWS: No, |'mcom ng back to work.
"Il be back to work in three nonths.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Congr at ul ati ons.

MR. MEADOAS: Yeah, |'mnedically
qual i fied now.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: All right. So can you go
back three, say three or four questions and just can
you read the questions and responses?

My fear is that now we're starting to

tread into responsibilities of APA. And so |'ve
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asked for in-house counsel to be present because he
has an interest in protecting the association in
regard to this Q%A, | think. And so | just want
your opinion, Mark, as to where -- as to where we
are given the |last series of questions we've gotten.

So could you go back three or four
gquestions, please.

(Request ed text was read)

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: So | guess -- and you' ve
obj ect ed.

MR. THURSTIN. |'ve objected.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Because you believe that
IS not rel evant.

MR. THURSTIN. It's outside of the scope
of the charges, in ny opinion.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: And | just want to be --
before we rule on that, I'mjust -- I'malittle
unconfortable in -- when soneone runs for
secretary-treasurer, they don't ask that person
whet her they have any financial background
what soever .

And | understand Larry's issue of the
bankruptcy clai mand having the grievance renoved.
| totally get that. My issue is that whenever you

do uni on business, you rely on advice from many
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sources, and you just do the best job you can trying
to nmake the decision given the tinme crunch that
we're always in and the resources that you have
avai | abl e.

And | just want to nmake sure that the
position of secretary-treasurer is not conprom sed
given the fact that we do have people who walk in
the door with zero experience on nmany conmmttee
positions and many national officer positions.

Am | off base? | nean, do you think that
that's -- do | need you here?

MR MYERS. Well, if you' d |ike to have a
conversation off the record, the board and | can
chat. The question, | guess, is --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Wl |, stand by one. Can
we have a conversation off the record?

MR. MEADOWNS: Before we go off, | just
want to clarify. The reason Mark's in here nowis
because M. Thurstin said he's objecting on the
basis of APA legal and the institution. So | don't
know if he's a pilot --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  No, no. Let's be clear.

MR. MEADOWAS: That's what he said. W can
go back and read it.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: It doesn't -- Mark is not
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I n here because of anything that Jeff said other
t han he obj ects.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, he objected on behalf
of APA |l egal is what he said.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: That -- that -- that is
not --

MR. THURSTIN. No, | did not say on behal f
of APA | egal .

MR. MEADOWS: Can we go back into the
record?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Jeff, please. Jeff, stop.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Look, Mark is here because
| " ve asked himto be here because | have issues
I nvolving the protection of this institution, and
what are the roles and responsibilities given that
| aymen wal k of f the street and take commttee
posi ti ons.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  And national officers
positions. That's why he's here. Not because of
anyt hi ng that he added other than the fact that he
obj ect ed.

MR. MEADOWS: Maybe this will help you
guys out. |I'mlooking at IRS Form 990, the return
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of organi zation exenpt fromfederal inconme tax dated
2014, signed by Pam Torell on February 8th, 2016.

And in part 3, paragraph 4A, it talKks
about the responsibilities of the association. It
says protection of the individual and collective
rights of the nmenbers of the APA in pronotion of
their professional interest. Part 3 of Form 990,
par agraph 4A, states protection of the individual
and collective rights of the nenbers of the APA in
pronotion of their professional interest, collective
bar gai ni ng and negoti ati on on behalf of the pilots
of American Airlines, including but not limted to
wor k agreenents, rates of pay, and rules and worKking
condi ti ons.

So ny point is, the association via Pam
Torell is representing to the federal governnent
that their role, their being for being a nonprofit
organi zation is protecting the individual and
collective rights of the nenbers of APA, not the
I nstitution.

|"'msick and tired of this crap where al
t hese decisions are made by Bennett and Janes &
Hof f man to protect the institution at the expense of
people like ne. This institution doesn't exist for

t he purpose of protecting itself. It exists for the
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pur pose of protecting the nenbers.

|"msorry, Mark. You work for ne and
every other pilot at Anerican Airlines, just |ike
Bennett and Janes & Hof f man were supposed to. And
|"'mgetting a little pissed off because who gives a
fuck about the APA when the nenbers are getting
screwed over and they're telling the federal
governnment that their role is to represent the
I ndi vi dual and collective rights of the nenbers, and
that's not happening. It's not happeni ng here
today. And I'msorry. But it's a pretty sensitive
I ssue, and |I've had this discussion wwth M. Buckl ey
a coupl e weeks ago and he made it really clear that
fromhere on going forward, it's all about the
menbers, not the institution. So that's a big
pr obl em

And it's basically tax fraud, Pam You're
lying to the federal governnent.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And | guess what | woul d
say is that the reason you' re here, even though we
have had a president state that you're an inactive
menber and we've had an arbitrator, for what that's
worth, and |I'm not --

MR. MEADOAS: No stare decisis val ue.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- | give it no
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credence -- that state that you're an inactive
nmenber. It's because we are trying to give you your
opportunity.

MR. MEADOAS: | appreciate that.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think that we have bent

over backwards to provide you with every opportunity
to make your clains on questionable Constitution and
Byl aws grounds. This board here has worked hard to
gi ve you that opportunity, as you say, because we
have -- we also believe that it is -- whatever cl ass
of menber you are, you have that opportunity.

So | understand you're mad. | understand
that -- | want you to understand that | think we
have represented ourselves in the protection of your
menbership status, which is still in question. But
we have bent over backwards to try and give you that
opportunity. So | understand that you' re angry, but
| don't think you're giving this institution its

just due with that conment.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, | believe you guys --
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  And | understand t hat
we'll just have to agree to disagree.

MR. MEADOWA5S: Fine. And | don't -- no
slight intended against the board. The executive

board has been very fair.
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CHAI RVAN HEPP:  You' ve slighted ne many
tinmes, Larry.

MR. MEADOWNS: Yeah, but it's not --

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You don't -- you don't
have to --

MR. MEADOWS: It's just business here.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: | get that.

MR. MEADOWNS: | believe -- but | truly
bel i eve you, despite ny accusations about having --
trying to recuse you, have been fair and sincere,
and F.O Heller and Fl etcher have as well. The
problem | have is, how fair and sincere can you be
to overcone the fact that you're being | ed and
gui ded by Steve Hof fran? That's a problem Because
St eve Hof f man, he should have no role in this, and
especi ally because I'm charging himwth
m srepresentation to a federal |udge.

So that's the problem But | don't -- |
think the board's -- through the constraints of what
they're being told by |egal counsel, | think the
board's doing the best they can do, but | think
there's too nmuch interference fromthe | egal
departnent. This is supposed to be individual
charges. And if the institution is exposed and nade

| i abl e because one of their officers screwed up, so
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be it. That's the cost of doing business. You

can't sit here and try to cover up unlawful acts.
And violations of the C& are unlawful acts, not to
mention the unlawful violations of the LMRDA and the
| RS code.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, Larry, now |I've
gotten you to again have an opportunity to talk
about unlawful acts, which we will deci de whet her
there is in fact or not lawful or unlawful acts.

As far as the influence on the -- this
board -- and obviously this is inside baseball now,
nmy apologies -- we have tried to take advice from
many different sources. | think that's our job. |
think that our | ast decision shows that we were fair
and as fair as we possibly could be, not only in

hearing your claimbut in deciding your claim

Now, | obviously understand that you
didn't think it went your way. | understand that
now you' Il have your opportunity to go back to a

Utah court. Al good. You know, you're doing the
best you can. | totally get that. But as | said, |
think this notion that there is sone outside
I nfl uence to this board is just w ong.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And we'll just have to
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agree to disagree on that.
MR. MEADOWS: For future reference, |
think it would be appropriate if the board had
| ndependent counsel .
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Well, that's sonething

you'll -- hopefully you'll get your job back.
Hopefully you'll be a voting nmenber of this union
and you'll have your opportunities to nmake those

clainms and run for office and so on and so forth and
make that a change. But all we can do right nowis
go under the present Constitution and Byl aws and the
pol i cy manual .

MR. MEADOWAS: (Ckay. Under st ood.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That's our charge. So
now, getting back to the point at hand, sorry about
that fol ks, because | didn't think that should go
unchal | enged.

Mark, to get back to you, | don't want
this proceeding -- because you're wong, Larry.

This is not about APA. This is about the next
secretary-treasurer. This is about the next nenber
who chooses to run for that position. | don't want
the next person in that seat to be burdened by your
guestions and answers as far as what their

responsibilities are in regard to the LMRDA, the
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|RS, and the C&B. That's a big nouthful for soneone
who's just walking in the door to do this job.

And so | think that if Mark -- if |'m
right and Mark Myers thinks that we need to have a
di scussion on this off the record, because | don't
want to hinder soneone else's ability to take this
j ob because they're scared away by all of these now
newf ound responsibilities that aren't listed in the
Constitution to becone the next secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOWAS: But the Constitution is
under Robert's Rules which in turn are hierarchy
laws. It falls under the LMRDA. You can't -- she
fills out LM 2 reports for the LMRDA all the tine,
so she's bound. | nean, the C&B by extension has to
i ncorporate the LMRDA. It can't exist in a vacuum

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  Am | just going down a
rabbit hol e here?

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Thank you, Larry.

Can we go off the record for a bit?

(Mark Myers | eaves the hearing)
(Recess from 10:57 to 11:25)

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Back on the record. Ckay.
Let's see if we can't break the | ogjamhere. First
off, fromthe APA Appeal Board Committee Manual
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dated the fall of 2016, becane effective as of
Sept enber 15, 2016, if you'll |ook on page 8. And
we'll get you a copy of this if you' d like. It's
| eave policy. "Flight pay loss wll be available to
appeal board nenbers in accordance with the APA
policy manual. Flight pay loss will be available to
principal participants only, i.e., accusers,
accused, and their designated representatives."

So that should answer the question as far
as Jeff. W provide union |eave for pil ot
representatives.

MR. MEADOWS:  You do.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Do you want nme to read the
sent ence agai n?

MR. MEADOWS: But that wasn't in effect
for this proceeding.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, this was effective
as of Septenber --

MR. MEADOWS: | know, but this
proceedi ng's been pending |ong before that. So
you're saying this is applying retroactive to this
proceedi ng?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: No. | think that's -- had
It been -- so your contention is because you brought

t hese charges in 2015, we're supposed to be using
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t he 2015 appeal board manual ?

MR. MEADOWS: Probably, yeah.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Well, okay. So --
all right. So that's that.

MR. MEADOWAS: | think it wasn't addressed
before, correct? It wasn't -- it didn't specify it
one way or the other.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Under the ol d?

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, under the ol d.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think the old one said

you didn't.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah. That's what | thought
t 0o.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But -- yeah, and |'mj ust
trying to clarify --

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- what your -- your issue
as far as --

MR. MEADOWAS: Well, he's here and he's
going to go forward and represent her. |'m not
trying to deprive her of representation. |'mjust
saying | think it's a conflict for the association
to be paying, but I'mnot trying to --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, we woul d have paid

for yours.
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MR. MEADOA5S: No one told ne that.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: So - -

MR. MEADOWS: Actually Keith WI son
obj ected at the AAA. Ed Sicher showed up, ny M am
base rep.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | don't -- | don't know
about your -- the arbitration.

MR. MEADOAS: No, no, but |I'm saying that
he showed up and paid union | eave because Dan Carey
authorized it, but Wlson was all tied up in a knot
over it, thought it was i nappropriate.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ch, well.

MR. MEADOWNS: (Okay. So, just so you know.
It's not just nme nmaking that kind of --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, | understand. No, |'m
just trying to clear up the point.

MR. MEADOWS: All right.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ckay? Now let's talk
about your questions in ternms of the IRS and
bri ngi ng your charges. This board is |ooking at
your charges as they regard the secretary-treasurer
of this association. That's what your charges say.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think now -- | feel like

now you're trying to open it up as an individua
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claim so you're adding on to that.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, it is an individual
cl ai m

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | would dis -- we are
going -- this board is looking at this. Wen she
steps into this building, she is doing the duties of
the secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. But | just don't want
to be knocked --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: |'m not here to argue.
|'"'m hearing to tell -- I"'mhere to tell you our
situation, so please.

MR. MEADOAS: |'m asking a question
though. Can | clarify?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That the -- yes.

MR MEADOAS: |'mjust -- so if you're
saying she's secretary-treasurer, | don't want to be
knocked out of the box saying that these charges are
I nval i d because she's not an individual. That's
where that leads nme. 1'll acknow edge she's
secretary-treasurer and she conmtted a | ot of these
actions while secretary-treasurer.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Wl l, she commtted al
t hese actions as the secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, but |'m bringing the
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charges agai nst her individually.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: But you didn't. Your
Article VIl charges --

MR. MEADOWS: No, | brought -- | brought
agai nst her.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: -- are her actions as the
secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOWAS: | brought them agai nst Pam

Torell who happens to be the secretary-treasurer.
You can't decouple the two. Can't be one or the
other. It's the sanme thing.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But, Larry, she's the
secretary-treasurer. Her actions -- she would not
have done anything wthin -- the charges that you
br ought she woul d have nothing to do with were she
not the secretary-treasurer of this association.
She woul dn't have been involved in the bankruptcy.
She woul dn't have been involved in the --

MR. MEADOWS: Right, right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- nenbership card issue.
She woul dn't have been involved with your other
charges invol ved.

MR. MEADOWS: So are you saying that
because she was secretary-treasurer she's inmmune

fromArticle VII charges?
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CHAI RVAN HEPP:

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:

| ooki ng at her actions --

MR MEADOWS: F

CHAI RMAN HEPP:
secretary-treasurer of thi
secretary-treasurer --

MR MEADOWS:  Fi

CHAI RMAN HEPP:

MR MEADOWS: F

CHAI RVAN HEPP:

two, our

| understand that you have,

into the record, and |
part of your evidence,

statute that you just

not the charge of the appeal

board's charge is the operations of the

institution --
MR MEADOWS: |
CHAI RVAN HEPP:;
C&B and the policy manual.

MR. MEADOWS:  What

it's rel evant.

purviewis the C& and the policy manual.
assune that's going to be

the LMRDA and your

read previously, but that's

She's representing that her --

76
No.
But |'m saying that we are
ne.
as the

S -- as the duties of the
ne.
of this associ ati on.

ne, fine.

That's nunber one. Nunber

you know, you're reading

| RS

board. The appeal

get it.

as it works under the

|"'mtrying to get at,

or
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the APA, their charge is to represent the collective
and individual interests of the nenbers. Because
it's going to becone relevant later when | get to a
nmenber question, you know, where is she beholden, is
she beholden to the institution or the nenbers. And
that's why | was using that docunent.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, let's worry about
t hat nmenbershi p i ssue when that cones up.

MR. MEADOWS: Al right. 1'mal nost done.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: But ny point is, Larry, is
t hat any ot her questions involving the LMRDA are
| nappropriate. Any other questions involving IRS
statutes are i nappropri ate.

MR. MEADOWAS: Well, no, | don't --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Her responsibilities as
far as, you know, as this board, this board is going
to rule on her duties and, you know, and your
charges as it relates to her duties under the
Constitution and Byl aws and the policy manual .

MR. MEADOWNS: | understand, but | would
obj ect because under the LMRDA there was a
definition of nenber in good standi ng which
contradi cts what she and APA has been saying. And
It can't be both ways. So it is relevant.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Well, | would say to that,
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when Enery brought the case in Florida -- let ne
backtrack. When we nmade a decision on the AUP as an
appeal board, our Constitution said that MDD pilots
were excluded from C&R. That's our charge --

MR. MEADOAS: It didn't say that.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: -- is to | ook at the AUP
and how it applies to nenbership status.

MR. MEADOWAS: My nenbership status has
never been fully addressed by this board yet, and
that's where we get to today.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: The -- your i ndividual
nmenbership status, yes, but as a collective it did.
So we | ooked specifically at the C& and the policy
manual .  Now, when Enery brought her case in
Fl orida, they |ooked at it under the confines of the
LMRDA. That's not our charge. That's why -- when
you go back to Utah and appeal, if you' d like to
depose Ms. Torell in regards to IRS statutes and the
LMRDA, | totally get that. But that is not the
purvi ew of the appeal board.

MR. MEADOWS: But do you think it's not
relevant if APA's C& and definitions of certain
status of nenbership conpletely contradict the
LMRDA? You don't think that's rel evant.

M5. HELLER: It's not our position, it's
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not our purviewto interpret the LMRDA. That's a
court of |aw

MR. MEADOAS: |'mnot asking you to
interpret it.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: But you are.

MR MEADOWS: No, |'m not.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: But to rule on it, we have

to.

MR MEADOWS: Well --

M5. HELLER: W have to apply it. W have
to --

MR. MEADOAS: | do want to get a record at
one point, |I'lIl ask a question, but I amunder the
LMRDA. |'ma nenber in good standing. So if the

APA wants to sit here in a little kangaroo world and
say |I'mnot a nenber in good standing, they can do
It, but it's just going to be rammed right up their
ass in federal -- I'msorry -- in federal court. |
mean, it's just the reality.

But it's just relevant because you can't
sit here and make up rul es because you're bound by
the LMRDA as a | abor organization. So you can't say
it's not relevant to this because it is. Because
|'"'ma nenber in good standi ng under the LMRDA,

there's no way | cannot be a nenber in good standing
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under the C&. And there's no definition in the C&B
of a nmenber in good standing. There is arbitration
deci sions which say a nenber in good standing is
soneone who's paid all their financial obligations
that were owed to the associ ati on.

The appeal board, it was m scharacterized
I n the opening statenent in Sproc. Sproc argued
t hat Bar kate was not a nenber.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But, Larry, stick to
the --

MR. MEADOWNS: Okay. Well --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Look, you're going to have
t hese argunents, but ny point is, is that | think
that the Enery case in Florida and the AUP issue, |
think those two are a perfect representati on of what
those two bodies are for, the appeal board being one
and the court system bei ng anot her.

MR. MEADOWAS: And | understand. |'m not
here voluntarily. | was forced here by a federal
judge at the behest of Steve Hoffman --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | -- I'm --

MR. MEADOWS: -- for LMRDA charges that
had to be brought under the auspices of the C&B.

So this is where we are, so -- and if | don't

exhaust this, their argunent in federal court is
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going to be I didn't exhaust ny internal renedy. So
| have no choice but to go forward and diligently

pursue this to the nth degree.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And | -- and, Larry, have
| done anything to stop you from doing that?
MR. NMEADOWS:  No, no, no. 'l -- |ooKk,

"1 --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Has this board done
anything to stop you from doi ng that?

MR. MEADOAS: |'Ill agree not to --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: | woul d appreciate an
answer yes or no on that.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yes, | think you guys have.
|"mjust going to say, I'd like -- I'Il agree not to
ask any questions under the LMRDA and the IRS so
|l ong as we get to the standing issue. | want to
refer to the definition of good standing in the
LMRDA because it's relevant. So | think it's
rel evant for the board to know that if APA s saying
this is what good standing is and the arbitrators
say this is what good standing is and the LMRDA says
this is what it is, you guys need to know t hat
because the definition -- it's a definition. |[It's
not interpretation. It's a definition under the
LMRDA, Section 401.
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CHAl RMAN HEPP: And to be clear, | have

never stopped you from putting anything on the

record.

MR MEADOWS: Just I'I1 -- I"Il ask
perm ssion before | ask a question |ater.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And | wll -- and | wll

tell you right now that's fine.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: If you want to read the
LMRDA definition of a nenber in good standing,
that's totally acceptable. But to talk about, you
know, I RS statutes and her responsibilities under
those IRS statutes, Larry, | think we're just
getting into the --

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think we're getting into
the weeds. And | think you'll -- and | think, as I
said, | think you'll have that opportunity when
you - -

MR. MEADOWS: Fine, fine.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- go back to Ut ah.

MR. MEADOWS: Fine. Hopefully I'll be
back before we ever get back to Ut ah.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That woul d be ni ce.

MR. MEADOWS: | f soneone in APA | ega
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conmes to their senses.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: You can fly with ne
anytine, Larry.

MR. MEADOAS: You didn't say that | ast
tinme,

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think that's w ong.

MR. MEADOWS: |'mgoing to go back to
triple 7, so, yeah, you need a little renedi a
trai ni ng.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: The -- well, I'mon the
seven six, so you'll have to take a pay cut.

MR. MEADOWS: | thought you were on triple
7.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: | was, but |'m not
anynore. Al right. So back on -- so we've been on

the record this whole tine, correct? So you were

gquestioning Ms. Torell. And we're done with IRS
guestions and LMRDAs and duties and responsibilities
and - -

MR. MEADOAS: | had a coupl e of
prelimnary questions and we'll get right to the

menber shi p i ssue.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Well, let's see
where we go.
BY MR NMEADOWS:
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Q Ckay. Captain Torell, so I'mlooking at
your exhibit list, and you have sone correspondence
to ne. Have you kept a record of all comrunications
bet ween nyself and you?
A Yes, | have, sir. Yes, sir.
Q Have you del eted any of the e-mails?
A No, sir.
Q No, sir? Wy not?
CHAl RMAN HEPP:  Ch, cone on, Larry.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Do you have -- does APA have a docunent
retention policy?
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Is it relevant if she says
she's kept everything fromyou?
MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, because nmaybe she
hasn't.
MR. THURSTIN. (Qbject to the fact she's
al ready answered the questi on.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: She's under oath. | nean,
If you're going to lie, Larry, at |east give her
credit for --
BY MR MEADOWS:
Q Does APA have a docunent retention policy?
A | believe so. | believe APA | egal does,

yes.
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MR. MEADOWAS: (Okay. And again, on the IRS
Form 990 she signed, one of the disclosures that she
made to the RS is that APA does have a docunent
di scl osure policy. That's all.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, cone on, please.

MR. MEADOAS: It's inportant. You know
what? It's relevant because she's naking these
representations to the federal governnent. They're
bi ndi ng here. | nean, she's representing to the
federal governnment certain things that she's got to
be bound by it here.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, you're going to
scare off every other person who wants to be a
national officer in this institution because --

MR. MEADOWS: Maybe we shoul dn't have --
maybe the secretary-treasurer should be a licensed
CPA.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: That's -- that's not the
purvi ew of --

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Fine.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- the appeal board,
nor -- get your job back, get a notion, get elected,
make the changes.

BY MR NEADOWE:

Q To that end, what are the annual revenues
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of APA?
A The annual revenues? W bring in --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Okay. \What rel evance is
that? First off, we're a 504, right? W're
nonprofit. So are they consi dered revenues?

MR. MEADOWS: Dues.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: |I'msorry. | got off the
rails there. What's the relevance of -- would you
mnd -- do you have a problem answering that?

M5. TORELL: | don't have a problem

because that is all posted for the nenbership to
see.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Right. That's what |'m
saying, it's all public.

M5. TORELL: So he can | ook for hinself.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Right. That's why --

M5. TORELL: The record speaks for itself.

MR. MEADOA5S: |'mjust trying to get at
the fact that, okay, look, this -- what is it, 40,
50, 60 mllion dollars in assets, sonething |ike
that. It varies over tine. It's a lot of noney.
It's like a national corporation. | nean, we have
menbers, a publicly-traded conpany, as sharehol ders,
but it's a big operation, big organization. |In sone

respects it would be nultinational because we have a
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| ot of nenbers that reside outside the country. And
it seenms crazy that we have a secretary-treasurer
that's not qualified or licensed to be handling --

MR. THURSTIN:. | object.

MR. MEADOWS: -- or managing that sort of
revenue. No, in a corporate entity, there's no way
soneone w thout any type of credentials would be
able to be in a secretary-treasurer position.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, you've made t hat
point, and it's a justifiable objection from Captain
Thurstin over there.

MR. MEADOWAS: Because Pam Torell's --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: But the bottomline is,
Larry, again, asked and answered, for gosh sakes.

We have -- there are no responsibilities listed
under the secretary-treasurer. You obviously
di sagree with that. W get that. Can we pl ease get
back on point.
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Ckay. Captain Torell, what are your

primary responsibilities as secretary-treasurer?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: | think she's asked and
answer ed that questi on.
MR NMEADOWS: | don't renenber nowit's

been so far off track.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: Wel |, you can read the

transcri pt and get us back.
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Ckay. |In your duties as
secretary-treasurer, are you representing the
i nterests of the association or the nenbers?

A | am responsible to the nenbers who
el ected nme for ny second term

Q And all the actions you take, do you take
t hem on behalf of the institution or the nenbers?

A | take them on behalf of the nmenbership
that | represent that elected ne on a second term

Q And do you have any conflicts, business
conflicts with the APA?

A Absolutely not. And conflict of interest
forns are signed as soon as we enter the door.

Q Don't get offended. |'mjust asking. |
don't know.

A No, absolutely not, sir.

Q So you have no business relationship
conflicts with APA?
A. No, sir.
Q Do you have any personal associations wth
anybody i n APA?
CHAI RMVAN HEPP: |'msorry. | don't
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under st and.
MR. THURSTIN. | object. Wat is the
rel evance?
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yeah, | don't understand
t hat either.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Do you socialize with any of the officers
of the union outside of the union?
CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Cone on, Larry.
MR. THURSTIN. | object.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Cone on, please.
MR. MEADOAG: It's inportant.
CHAI RVAN HEPP:  \Why?
MR. MEADOWS: It ties her to other people.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: And, | nean, | think we
can presune that she's been with -- you know, had
di nner and had conversations and --
MR. MEADOWS: That's not what | neant,
but --
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, then please, tell ne
what it 1s you're trying to get at so | can
under stand t he questi on.
MR. MEADOANS: We can go to it later. 'l
just go and -- 1'll keep you happy. |I|'Il go to the
menbership questions. GCkay. So I'Il try and keep
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this focused on nenbership i ssues for now, and then
we'll nove into the Gievance 12-011 issues for
t hose char ges.

BY MR NEADOWE:

Q Ckay. Captain Torell, what type of nenber
am | at APA?

A Si nce the beginning of ny term you have
been -- | consider and treat you as a MDD inactive
menber .

Q Si nce the beginning of your ternf? And

when did that -- that started in June of 20137
A Yes.
Q Ckay.
A It's actually July 1.

Q And so you don't agree with the directive
I ssued by Rusty MDaniels during the special BOD
meeting on April 23rd, 2014, that MDD pilots are not
menbers and not entitled to any rights or

privil eges?

A. | amnot famliar with that directive.

Q You're not? Really? GCkay. 1'd like
to -- | think I only have one copy, but I'Il give it
to you.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Do we have it, Larry?
MR. MEADOWS: It's in the record already
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in the WIson docunents.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but | don't have it.
Can | get a copy so we understand where you're
goi ng?

MR. MEADOWS: It's a copy of the board of
directors mnutes for that neeting.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: \WWhat year was that?

MR. MEADOWS: April 23rd, 2014. | think
it's Exhibit 64 in the WIson book.

M5. HELLER:  Your request for judicial
notice?

MR. MEADOAS: Yeah. It's one of the
exhibits attached in there. |If you go back to
page -- to Exhibit A and B.

MR. THURSTIN. Can we take a look at it?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Do you not have a copy?

M5. HELLER: This is the exhibit book --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Gve ne it. Gdve it to
nme. Let ne just burn sone copies so everybody
can --

M5. HELLER: -- fromthe Keith WI son
heari ng.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, | didn't intend to use
this. Sorry about that.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So which -- so what do you
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want? Do you want all of this?

MR MEADOWS: Just --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: All this copied?

MR. MEADOWNS: Do you want -- | nean, all |
really need is that one and that one. Just the
exhibits. Just one copy.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: One copy? All right. So
you guys don't have copi es?

MR THURSTIN. W do not.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: So one, two, three, four,
five. Larry, you're getting this back, right?

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, | don't need it, but
that's fine. W can call it LM32, 32 and 33.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. W can go off the
record to get this.

(Recess from 11:43 to 11:59)

BY MR NMEADOWS.

Q Al'l right, Captain Torell, please | ook at
Exhi bit LM32.

A. Yes, sir.

Q Coul d you identify that docunent?

A This appears to be a partial copy of the
mnutes fromthe April 22 to 24, '14. Not all pages
are here. It's not conplete.

Q Ckay. Wuldn't you agree that this is a
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conpl ete copy of the April 22nd official mnutes of
t he special board of directors neeting for
April 22nd?

A | would -- the docunent that | would say
I's the actual docunent is the one that is posted on
the website. | amnot going to verify -- agree with
t hat necessarily.

Q You can take nmy word. That's what it is.
Ckay.
Pl ease | ook at page 1.
Yes, sir.
| s that your signature?
Yes, it is.
Ckay. Please go to page 3.
Uh- huh.
Q Di sregard. Skip to page 4. Ckay. This

> o >0 >» O »

Is the mnutes for the portion of the neeting on
April 22nd, 2014. Can you tell ne what national

officers were present?

A The national officers present --
Q Yes.
A -- were -- | recall the neeting, this day.

| actually recall April 22nd. And the nationa
of ficers that presided over the neeting was Captain
Keith Wl son, chairman, and First O ficer Nei
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Roghair as vice president. And as is stated in the
roll call, "Since First Oficer -- Since
Secretary-Treasurer First Oficer Torell was
nonitoring the referendum counting process."

And then it's also restated on page 5,
President's Report, President Captain Keith WI son,
"Secretary-Treasurer First Oficer Pam Torell was
noni toring the referendum ball ot counting process."
And that's true.

Q kay. And under Board of Directors, for
DFW do you agree that Captain MDaniels was
present ?

A | was not in attendance at this neeting.

| was nonitoring the referendum counting process.

Q You were not present?
A | was in the building.
Q Ckay. Can you read --
CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. |I'msorry. Just --

you were in the building, and what were you doi ng?
M5. TORELL: Mon -- there was a referendum
that was -- the nenbership actually voted upon.
CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.
M5. TORELL: And the ballots were in
the -- the roomwas back in the old SBC room and the

bal l ots were being counted. So as with an el ection,
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that was ny priority.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You were present during
t hat .
M5. TORELL: | was present for that whole

r ef erendum counti ng.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: So were you in the neeting
at all during the 22nd? Wre you gone?
M5. TORELL: Not that | recall.
CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Ckay. Al right.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Al right. Go ahead and now read ne the
par agraph under the heading Roll Call, please.
A Repeat it?
Q Yeah. Read it.
A The record speaks for itself, Larry. |
can read it.
Q | "' m asking you to read it.
A "Since Secretary-Treasurer First Oficer
Pam Torell was nonitoring the referendum counting
process, President Keith WIlson took the roll with
the follow ng national officers, board nenbers,
Invited commttee nmenbers, guests and APA enpl oyees
present.”
Q Ckay. So this docunent is not accurate

then. You're saying you -- it says you were present

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

96
as a national officer, but you were not.

A | was present in the building, and that's
what the board --

Q So you were not present at the neeting?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think she's established
that, Larry. Asked and answered.
BY MR NEADOWE:

Q So you signed this docunent saying that
you were present at the neeting. O it says right
there, Pam Torell, secretary-treasurer, present for
roll call.

A Larry, roll call is taken one tine, and
that's at the begi nning of the neeting.

Q At 1:00 in the afternoon.

A Approxi mately, but that's yes. At this
case it was taken at 1300.

Q So were you in the roomfor the roll call?

A If I -- | don't recall those exact -- |
don't recall if | was actually in nmy seat at 1300.

Q Wll, that's what the docunent says.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, please.
MR. MEADOAS: Well, | nean, she's got to
be truthful here.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You're maki ng your point.
BY MR NMEADOWS:
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Q Were you or were you not in that neeting
at any point in tine? Do you agree, are these
docunents accurate in your opinion?

A Yes, these docunents are accurate.

Q Ckay. |If you signed them they're
accurate. Okay. Fine.

A Yes, they're accurate.

Q Ckay. \Who was there representing general
counsel, according to your docunent?

A | would not rely on ny nenory. You' d have
to check the docunent.

Q | ' m aski ng you, according to the docunent
who was there representing --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, just read the
docunent, who was there, please.
BY MR NMEADOWS.

Q Do you agree that general counsel was
represented by M. Ed Janes at the neeting?

A According to the docunent, the m nutes
that were posted on the website, if this is the
exact copy of it, it would appear that the general
counsel board support would be M. Ed Janes.

Q Well, you signed and affirnmed that, didn't
you?

A | amreferencing this paper with your
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trust that this is an accurate docunent that was
post ed.

Q It is from-- this was given to ne by APA
| egal at the | ast proceeding, this docunent, as it
IS, no other pages. So are you saying -- is this
docunent accurate?

A Yes, this docunent's accurate.

Q So since -- during that neeting there was
an e-mail directive issued. They call it a BOD

directive. Look at LM33, please. And do you agree
that this is an e-nmail from Rusty MDani el s, DFW BOD
chai rman, dated 22/2014 at 3:47 p.m?

A Again, I'mgoing to have to say, Larry,
t he docunent speaks for itself.

Q Ckay. Can you read the text in the

docunent, please, starting "Per conversation."

A Say that again. |'msorry.

Q Read the text of the docunent, please.

A Read the text?

Q Yeah, "Per conversation."” Read that.

A. "Per conversation -- Per conversation with

the board in the SBOD neeting on 4/22/14 renove MDD
pilot's access to the APA website. These pilots are
not nenbers of APA, are not on the seniority |ist

and do not have access to APA benefits. Captain
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Rusty McDaniels, IT Steering Conmttee Chairnan,
817" --

Q All right. You don't have to read al
that. Thank you. D d you receive a copy of that
e-mail ?

A According to this docunent, | was copied
on it.

Q Ckay. So you have know edge, personal
knowl edge then that the BOD issued a directive that
MDD pilots are not nenbers on April 22nd, 2014,

correct?

A | was not part of any discussion that
I ncl uded - -
Q |'"'masking if you see this letter. Dd

you get this letter on April 22nd saying MDD pil ots

are not nenbers? Yes or no?

A | was copied on it.

Q Did you read it?

A Larry, April -- excuse nme. M. Meadows,
April 22nd, 2014, likely, but I do not recall.

Q So do you read all your e-mails?

A. Yes, | do.

Q Ckay. So | got to assunme you read it

because this is an official e-mail.

So you got this information on April 22nd.
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Whet her you were in the roomor not, you had fornal
notice froma BCD officer that MDD pil ots were not
nmenbers. Did that strike you as odd?
A Larry, | was not part of this
conver sati on.
Q Does it strike you as odd that a BOD

menber - -

MR, THURSTIN. WAt a mnute. | object.
M5. TORELL: Qnjecti on.
MR. THURSTIN. | object right here

because, Larry, raising your voice and being
argunentative is not hel ping.

MR. MEADOWS: |'mnot being argunentative.
| "' m aski ng a questi on.

MR. THURSTIN: |'mjust saying.

MR. MEADOWS: Just shut up and let ne
speak.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Hey, hey, hey. Ckay.
Let's -- let's -- hey.

MR. MEADOWS: He doesn't object to ne. He
obj ects to you, nunber one. And he's not part of
the conversation. Direct your objections to the
chair.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, | ook.

MR. MEADOWAS: This is bullshit. Frankly,
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Chuck, it's bullshit. She can just answer yes or no
and stop being so evasive, just |ike you were in the
Emery deposition. Anmateur hour over here, being
trained by attorneys how to avoid questions |ike an
amateur. The question is --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry.

MR MEADOWS.  Yes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Look. \When he objects,
t hat neans you're not supposed to talk.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Can he object -- he's
objecting to ne though. He was talking to ne.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | can hear him Larry.
Where he's | ooking, | don't care.

MR. MEADOAS: All right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay? The issue is, let's
have a little civility.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay? "Shut up" doesn't
hel p.

MR. MEADOWS: | apol ogi ze. That was not
appropri ate.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: And do we need five
mnutes to calmdown a little bit?

MR. MEADOA5S: No, |'mgood. |'m good.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: How about you guys?
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MR. MEADOAS: | would just |Iike answers to
t he questions | ask.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Yeah, but, Larry, her
name's on the e-nmail. GOkay? She said she read the
e-mail .

MR. MEADOWAS: Ckay. Can | finish ny
chain --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: The -- yes.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Let's see where you go.
MR. MEADOWNS: Captain Torell --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Can we be | ess

argunent ati ve?

MR. MEADOWAS: Yes, we can be -- I'IlIl be
| ess argunentati ve.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: | nean, | think if you

want sonething read into the record, you can do
t hat .

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. |I'Ill do it. Fine,.
But then it raises the question they're not going to
vouch to the authenticity. But | wll say all these
docunents | handed you were given to ne by APA | ega
at the | ast appeal board hearing. So they're
of ficial docunents from APA legal. They're not ny

docunent s.
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CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Wel |, Larry, obviously
it's an e-mail from Rusty.

MR. MEADOAS: Right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: W treaded through this.
BY MR MEADOWS:

Q Ckay. So did you -- as

secretary-treasurer, did you call Captain MDaniels
after you read that e-nmail and tell himthat that's

not correct, that MDD pilots are in fact inactive

menber s?
A | do not recall.
Q You don't recall?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She doesn't recall, Larry.
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q So you accepted, you acqui esced to a BOD
directive that MDD pilots are not nenbers?

MR. THURSTIN. | object to that. That's
not a binding directive when it conmes froma board
menber .

MR. MEADOWS: Well, in proceedings --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And, Larry, we've had the
di scussi on.

MR. MEADOWS: | n proceedings you weren't
privy to --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry.
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MR. MEADOWNS: -- they said it was
different in the | ast proceeding.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: One at a tinme. Ckay.

This is an e-mail -- we've been through this
testinony. This is an e-mail from Rusty who was the
chai rman of the nenbership conmttee who -- wth a
di scussion. There's no resolution that | know of.
There -- so let's be clear on what it is.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay? It wasn't -- this
wasn't -- this wasn't voted upon. This is -- this
Is an e-nmail froma particular chairman of the
commttee. Certainly carries weight.

MR. MEADOAS: |t was couched as a
directive in the last proceeding by M. MDaniels
hi nsel f.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: The - -

MR. MEADOWAS: They directed Captain W1 son
to enforce the AUP based on that directive.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Then first off explain it

as such --

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- instead of |eaping so
we can all -- so they can run -- you have to

remenber, we were all supposed to have these
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docunents seven days ahead. They're | ooking at
these for the first tine. You ve got to give
t hem - -

MR. MEADOWAS: She's seen these docunents

before in her deposition testinony.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Maybe -- | don't know
t hat .

MR. MEADOWS: | do, and that's why I'ma
little frustrated because she's playing dunb and
she's --

MR, THURSTI N:  No.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Now, wait a second. Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN:. That's --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Karen, obviously you can't
strike that, I'mgoing to assune, right?

Larry, cone on.

MR. MEADOWS: All right.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Can we just --

MR MEADOWG:  Yes.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: However you want to --
however you feel |ike these -- and your frustration
| evel , ook, we're all frustrated. Gkay? But
let's -- she's under oath, she's answering the

guestions, and --
MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.
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BY MR NEADOWE:

Q Captain Torell, do you agree with Captain
McDani el s' contention that MDD pilots were not
nmenbers of APA at that point in tinme, in April 20147

A. |'"d ask you to state the question one nore
tine.

Q Based on Captain MDaniels' e-mail, which
was used for purposes of enforcing the AUP and
| ocking MDD pilots out of C&R, do you agree with the
statenent that MDD pilots were not nenbers of APA on
April 22nd, 20147

A Larry, that's speculation. | was not --
Q Specul ation? | asked a questi on.
A | was not part of this decision.

Q Do you agree with that, that statenent?
Do you agree, yes or no?
A This is --
Q Do you agree, yes or no?
A. -- 2014,
CHAI RMAN HEPP: Hey, Larry.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Wl |, answer the question.
A | don't even --
CHAIl RVAN HEPP: She's trying to answer the

guestion. You may just not be getting the answer
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you want.
A |"'mnot sure | even understand what you're
sayi ng.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Al right. Tinme out,
please. | amtired of cross-tal k. Look, you guys,

| understand you're trying to answer the question.
Fine. | get it.

Larry, ask your question, and then give
her the opportunity to answer. After she says three
wor ds doesn't nean you badger her.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay? Ask your questi on.
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Captain Torell, do you agree or disagree
with Captain MDaniels' statenent that MDD pilots
are not nmenbers of APA as of April 22nd, 20147

A MDD pilots are inactive pilots according
to the Constitution and Byl aws. That's what |

bel i eve.
Q As of April 22nd, 20147
A MDD pilots are inactive pilots according

to the Constitution and Bylaws. Larry, that's what
| believe.
Q And you previously testified you believed

t hat since the inception.
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A Since ny term start ed.

Q Ckay. So once you received this letter
and the MDD pilots -- you're aware that the MDD
pilots were | ocked out of C&R because they weren't
menbers, correct?

A In the past?

Q No, on April 22nd, 2014.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Wait, wait, wait. Which
guestion are you asking? Are they not nenbers --
BY MR NEADOWE:

Q On April 22nd, 2014 --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- or are they | ocked out?
BY MR NMEADOWS:
Q -- are you aware that MDD pilots were

| ocked out of C&R based on the fact that they
weren't nenbers, the AUP was enforced, they were not
menber s?

MR. THURSTIN. Can | object? Is it
possi bl e, Chuck?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Wuld you pl ease
read the question back, Karen?

(Request ed text was read)
CHAl RVAN HEPP: And you're objecting?
MR. THURSTIN: |'m objecting because it

was covered in Captain Wlson, and that's his --
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that was his purview as the president on the board
of directors. It was not under the purview of
Secretary Torell to make that decision.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry?

MR. MEADOWS: (Ckay. Because he was not
here and wasn't privy to our |ast proceeding, the
Wl son charge related to nenbership cards was carved
out and I was not allowed to ask any questions
related to ny nenbership status at those
proceedi ngs.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You were not allowed to
answer any questi ons.

MR. MEADOAS: And it was deferred to this
proceeding. This proceeding is all about nenbership
and grievance, and | can ask any questions rel evant
to ny nenbership. And |I'm asking questions right
now as to what she believed ny nenbership status was
on April 22nd, 2014.

MR. THURSTIN. | believe she's already
answer ed t hat.

MR. MEADOA5: She has. So the other
gquestion was, did you -- do you agree or disagree
with Captain MDaniels' representation that MDD
pilots were not nenbers.

MR. THURSTIN. And | object. | think she
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al ready answered that as well.
MR. MEADOWS: No, she didn't.
MR. THURSTIN:. Yes, she did.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: What was her answer? Read
It back for the record, please, for ne.
(Request ed text was read)
MR. MEADOAG: Let ne -- I'd like to
restate the question.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Captain Torell, do you agree or disagree
with Captain MDaniels' representation that MDD
pilots were not nenbers as of April 22nd, 20147
MR. THURSTIN. | believe that question was
answer ed when she said MDD pilots are inactive
menbers according to the policy manual .
MR. MEADOWS: That's not the answer. It's
a yes or no answer.
MR. THURSTIN. That's not a -- your
guestion is a question.
MR. MEADOWS: Seriously?
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, ask your questi on.
BY MR MEADOWS:
Q Do you agree or disagree with Captain

McDani el s' statenent that MDD pil ots were not
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menbers as of April 22nd, 2014, yes or no?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. But then she
nmentioned -- she stated clearly that they're
| nactive nenbers.

MR. MEADOWS: | asked the question.
asked for a yes or no answer. Do you agree or
di sagree?

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, wait a second.
Larry, wait a second. First off, you can't even do
that in a court of |aw.

MR. MEADOWS: Yes, you can.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She has a right to comment
on hers, and this is not that.

MR. MEADOAS: Well, she's not answeri ng
t he question. | asked --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She just stated that
they're inactive nenbers.

MR. MEADOWAS: | ask the panel to direct
her to answer if she agrees or disagrees with that
statenent by Captain MDani el s.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Let nme ask you
this. Let's say | think that they're inactive
menbers. Ckay? Wat effectively does that do?
She's still -- her job is to carry out the policy of

the board as stated within the Constitution.
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Whet her she agrees with that position or not --
|l et's say she says she deserves a 10 percent bigger
pay raise in her category of flying.

MR. MEADOWNS: (Ckay. Let's stop.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  No, she -- wait, wait,
wai t .

MR. MEADOWS: 1'll end run this. This is
bul I shit. Let nme just get to the neat of it.
Pl ease | ook at Tab 1.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Tab where? Tab 17

MR. MEADOWN5S: Tab 1, which is the APA C&B.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Al l right. Hang on.

M5. HELLER: I n your exhibit book?

MR. MEADOWS: Page 9, section 5, paragraph
F. Please read the first sentence of paragraph F,
Captain Torell.

MR. THURSTIN. First may | bring a point?
The -- this book is not current. |Is that --

MR. MEADOWAS: |t was current at the tine
of the event.

MR. THURSTIN. kay. That's what | wanted
to bring out.

M5. TORELL: For the record.

MR. MEADOWS: Just |ike when there's an

Incident in an aircraft, you use the manual s and FAA
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regul ations that were in place at the tinme of the
I nci dent .

CHAl RVAN HEPP: They wanted to make sure,
Larry, that's all.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. | feel like |I'm being
obstructed left and right. You guys are wasting a
lot of tinme. And I'mgoing to say right now, if |
need anot her day, we're going to have to cone back
for anot her day because this is taking twice as |ong
or three tines as long as it should take.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, we're here for the
durati on.

MR. MEADOWAS: All right.

MR. THURSTIN. |I'd |like to object to the
fact that Larry consistently nmakes comments about
Captain Torell and nyself in regard to this
proceedi ng which are not called for.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Look, | agree.

| think, Larry, we did this in a nuch nore
civilized manner with W1 son.

MR. MEADOWS: Because W /I son was actually
forthcom ng and was not evasive at all. He was very
honest .

CHAI RMAN HEPP: |'m not going to -- Larry,

she's under oath. And again, that's exactly what
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t hey' re conpl ai ni ng about.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: You may not be getting the
answers that you w sh, but a decision's going to be
made about your nenbership status in this
proceedi ng.

MR. MEADOWS:  Fi ne.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And it's not just going to
be based on the Q%A of her testinony.

MR. MEADOAS: | guess what |I'mtrying to
avoid is | shouldn't be forced to draw i nferences
and tell you that because she says |I'minactive, she
must di sagree with Captain MDani el s when she coul d
just answer that. But now |l'mgoing to be forced to
draw an inference, and there's not a hard fact in
the record whether she agrees or disagrees. And it
can't be both ways.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  But what ny point woul d be
Is that honestly, as a nenber of the board, your
menbership status, I'mnot sure it matters what her
opi ni on, her specific opinion.

MR. MEADOA5S: No, it does matter.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She's one of nmny
secretary-treasurers that are going to cone through
this building --
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MR. MEADOWS:  Fi ne.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- who are either --

MR. MEADOAS: |'Ill get to howit matters.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: |'m sorry?

MR MEADOAS: |'Il get to howit matters.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: | would Iove -- | would
| ove for that. That would be fantastic. |In fact,
maybe if you started there and we coul d go back.

MR. MEADOWNS: All right. Please read
section --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Maybe -- naybe we coul d
get sonewhere.

MR. MEADOWS: Okay. Al right, Captain
Torell, please read paragraph F, the first sentence.

M5. TORELL: Section --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | " msorry. But, Larry, a

little nore civility.

MR MEADOWS:  Sure.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Pl ease.

MR. MEADOWS: Just all | ask is to be
forthcom ng and not as evasive. She's a very
Intelligent woman. She's not stupid. She doesn't
have ammesia. She's already testified she's not
under the influence of any substance or drugs that

woul d i npair her reasoning, so there should be no
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reason as secretary-treasurer that she can't snap to
answers on nenbershi p, because that is her job.
That's her primary responsibility is nmenbership and
fi nance.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, there has to be a
| evel of civility. There has to be.

MR. MEADOWS: Yes, sir.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ckay? We do not use
br oadswords anynore to nmake our point. Okay?

MR. MEADOWS: Al right.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: That's why we're in this
room

MR. MEADOWS: |1'mgoing to try to keep the
focus narrow to the docunents.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  And whet her you |i ke her
answers or not, I'mgoing to take a wld ass guess
that you're going to try -- you're going to
arbitrate this decision anyway, so we're going to be
back here or they're going to be back here anyway
and doing this all over again. And then it wll be
the arbitrator's decision to decide whether she's
bei ng evasive or not. But you certainly don't need
to lecture this conmmittee --

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- as who she is or what
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she is. W can hear just as well as you can.
MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. It's not ny intent to
| ecture the commttee. Sorry.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease, go on.
BY MR MEADOWS:
Q Again, Captain Torell, please read the
first sentence of paragraph F.
A Section 5, Menbership Status --

Q Yes.
A -- just for clarification. Section 5,
Menmbership Status, F. "The secretary-treasurer

shal |l keep an account for all nenbers in good
standi ng, nenbers in bad standi ng, non-nenbers,
retired nenbers, inactive nenbers, et cetera."

Q Ckay. Now, you've testified that -- well,
| et me back up. So you agree then that you're, as
secretary-treasurer, responsible for having proper
accounting of each type and category of nenbership,
correct?

A Yes.

Q And | think you testified that | was an
I nactive nmenber in your opinion since you becane
secretary-treasurer.

A | testified that you are an inactive

menber according to the Constitution and Byl aws of
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t he APA.
Q kay. Am 1| a non-nenber?
A. You are an inactive nenber.

Q So then Captain MDaniels' statenent was
I ncorrect.

MR. THURSTIN: You're draw ng inference.
BY MR NEADOWE:

Q | "' m aski ng, do you agree --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, cone on.

MR. MEADOWS: This is ridicul ous.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: We can connect -- Larry,
cone on. W're not stupid. W can connect the
dot s.

BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q What types of standing are there? |I'm
just sayi ng general nenbership standi ng, what types
of standing are there?

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Larry, please. Just tell
us what you got.

MR. MEADOWAS: No, |'m asking the question.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  And | don't -- but | don't
even understand the questi on.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. |It's paragraph F.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: We're trying to get to it.

M5. TORELL: |'msorry.
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MR. MEADOWS:  Par agr aph F.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease, Larry, just state
your claim
BY MR MEADOWS:

Q It says you need to account for nmenbers in
good standi ng and bad standing. |s there any other
types of standing?

A Non- nenbers -- and conti nue, non-nenbers,

retired nenbers, inactive nenbers, et cetera.

Q Those are statuses. |Is there any types
of -- how many types of standing are there?
A An active nenber can be in good standing

or bad standi ng.

Q | ' m aski ng, how many types of standing are
there for nenbers? It says good and bad. |Is there
sonet hi ng besi des good and bad?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Make -- Larry, what's your
poi nt, please?
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Wll, ny question is, is what types of
standi ng are nenbership statuses -- no matter what
your status is, there's a standing, correct? |If
you're active or inactive, you can be in good
standi ng or bad standing, correct?

A Say -- Larry, | believe that you're asking
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ne to interpret the C&B, and --

Q | "' m not asking you -- |isten.

A And there's only one person that can do
that, and that's actually the president of the APA

Q | "' m not asking you to interpret it. |
asked you to read it and do your j ob.

A kay. | read it. | read it for you.

Q So according to the C&B, what types of
menbership standing are there? Standing. Wat
types?

MR. THURSTIN. | object to this question.
W' ve al ready answered the question.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. Captain Torell as
secretary-treasurer does not interpret the policy
manual .  She --

MR. MEADOWS:  Joke.

MR. THURSTIN. -- takes the guidance of
the board of directors and the president of this
uni on and executes their directives. That's her
pur vi ew.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: All right. Let nme -- let
me try to break the logjam So | think what you're
trying to say, Larry, is that there are nenbers in

good standi ng and nenbers in bad standing. There's
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two st andi ngs.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, is there -- is there
anot her standing is ny question.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: | -- honestly, you know - -

MR. MEADOWS: According to -- according
to --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: |'mnot -- | --

MR. MEADOWS: | can ask the question.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: W' ve been spendi ng nont hs
and nonths, this commttee, on this nmenbership
issue. And | don't know -- is there an inactive
nmenber -- let's say -- so let's -- if you're a
non- nenber, are you a non-nmenber in good standing or
bad standi ng?

MR. MEADOWS: Any standing. You're not a
menber .

CHAl RMAN HEPP: But it's part of the
par agraph that tal ks about whether you' re a nmenber

I n good standi ng or bad standing. So now -- soO
let's say --

M5. FLETCHER It's not an all-inclusive
| ist though. It says "et cetera."”

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Well, that's true too.
M5. FLETCHER  So it could include other
things. And | think they're m xing standing with
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status with types and --

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, yeah. So that's ny
gquesti on.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: SO -- so -- but let's --
let's go with that. So just state your --
W t hout --

MR. MEADOWS: Captain Torell, to your
know edge - -

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Larry, | ook at ne, please.
Wth | ess antagoni sm - -

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- can you just tell ne
the point you're trying to nake.
MR. MEADOWNS: |'mtrying to determne if

there's anot her type of standing besi des good or bad
because it does say et cetera. So |I'm asking
Captain Torell as the secretary-treasurer, as a
menber ship expert of the association.

MR. THURSTIN. And |I'm objecting to that
because the policy manual is a product of the board
of directors and it's not under her purview

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, okay. You're
referencing the Constitution and Byl aws.

MS. TORELL: C&B.

MR THURSTIN  C&B, | nean.
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CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Yeah. No, I'mwth you.
| under st and.
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Captain Torell, are you obligated to
adhere to the Constitution and Byl aws as
secretary-treasurer?

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: All right. Let's --
MR. MEADOWS: That's a sinple question.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but, Larry, | think

what's happened is in fairness -- first off, they're
back on their heels. Ckay? Because -- and what
"' m - -

MR. MEADOWS: Because they're going to get
caught in a lie and they're going to be in contenpt
of federal court is why they're back on their heels.
Let's take a break, please.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Well, we are going to --

MR. MEADOWS: Because |'m about ready to
throw stuff and I can't take it.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Good.

MR. MEADOWAS: | can't take the
di si ngenuousness of the association's
secretary-treasurer.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: Don't forget |I'mon C&R now
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and the nmenbership will be aware.
(Recess from 12: 27 to 12: 36)

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So did you talk to Mark?

MR. THURSTIN. Yes, | went to talk to Mark
to see how nuch of |eeway that M. Meadows had in
regards to just kind of yelling at us, so to speak,
because | wanted to nake sure that we were giving
himall the latitude that we possibly could in
regards to your statenent earlier.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but that still
doesn't allow for incivility, so -- okay. So -- but
you're -- you are where you are with Mark, right?

MR. THURSTIN:. Yeah.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: |Is there anything you want
to -- okay.

MR. THURSTIN. No, we're fine right now.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Ckay. Larry, | guess |
just have to go back to the notion that we're not
stupid up here. ay? You're asking your
guestions. She's answering the questions. Her QA
certainly has an effect on the interpretation of the
Issue. | won't deny that. That's inportant.

Her -- you know, we're well aware of credibility. |
mean, you know, we're not stupid. W get it. You

know, we read the sane docunents you read and she
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reads, right, and cone up with our own notion of how
many statuses there are, how many standings there
ar e.

You don't need to -- either one of two
things. You're not going to browbeat her out of an
answer. (Ckay? It's just -- it's not going to
happen. She's under oath. She's answering to the
best of her abilities. You give her -- we give her
credit for answering the questions as she's
answering them Okay? W get it. Al right?

And our rulings are going to be based not
just on testinony but on the docunents at hand that
you submt, she submts, that the union has. So, as
| said, give the board credit that we're capabl e of
figuring this out. GCkay?

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And if we can stay on that
path, then | think we can get back control of this
and keep noving forward. Do you understand?

MR. MEADOWNS: Yes, sSir.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: So, with that, where are
we?

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Al right, Captain Torell, am| now or
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have | ever been a nmenber in bad standi ng?
A | would have to actually go back to
your -- the Status 1 that we have, | believe it's in
here, just to verify. | would check that.
Q The Status 17
A. VWll, it's a --
Q | s that an APA docunent ?
CHAl RVAN HEPP: WAit, wait, wait. Stop.
A. It's Exhibit 13,

tinme.
M5. TORELL: Right.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Answer the questi on.
A. Exhibit 15 in our book.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: In all fairness, Pam --
M5. TORELL: Yeah.
CHAl RMVAN HEPP: -- you know, you haven't
seen all of these.
M5. TORELL: Right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wait a second. Take your

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | get it. But do ne a
favor. This is obviously relevant for Larry. |[It's
a big-- it's inportant to him Take your tine. |If
you need an hour, take an hour. |f you need two
hours, take two hours. If you need until tonorrow,
take tonorrow and we' Il just press on, but -- wth
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what ever else we can do, if that's okay wth Larry.

If not, we'll wait for the answer. But --
BY MR NMEADOWS:
Q So you can't answer that question?
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry.
MR. MEADOAS: |'masking. | just -- can
she not --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: |I'mtrying to get her to

answer the question, so just rel ax.
MR. NMEADOWS: Ckay.

A. Qut of over 14,000 nenbers, | don't want
to speak that you have not been in good standing or
bad standing during ny term so | would like to
accurately reflect -- go to the records and check.
BY MR NEADOWEG:

Q Ckay. How about we go to Exhibit 8 of ny
book.

A Your book. Got it.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Are we trying to go

anot her path to answer this question?

MR. MEADOAS: Yeah. | can nake this easy
for her to answer because it's in the docunent.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Very good. I'mall for

t hat .
BY MR NEADOWG:
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Q kay. Exhibit 8 is the activity profile
dat ed 8/ 20/ 2015 provided by you at the request of
Captain Hepp in the Meadows versus WI son
proceedi ng. Do you recognize that docunent?

A. Just for the record, we're | ooking at
activity profile as of 8/20/2015?

Q Correct?

A Ckay. Do | recognize this particular
docunent ?

Q This type of docunent.

A Yes. It's an activity profile, yes.

Q Can you gl ance through that and tell ne if

It looks like |I've ever been in bad standi ng?

A This -- this activity profile is famliar
to ne on the first -- the top section, your infor --
your profile. The actual bottomactivity, |I am not

famliar with this type of report and this --
Q Real | y? Because it was provided by you.
A. | do this --
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, please.
MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. Look, do you want
to take an hour to figure out whether he's a nenber
I n good standing or bad standing, have ever been? |

mean, it's just a matter of going over to
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accounting, you know. | nean --

M5. HELLER: Is it something you can
determ ne fromyour exhibit, Exhibit 157

M5. TORELL: | would actually go to our
records that are --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Do you want to take the
time to do that?

M5. TORELL: But | have one question --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease.

M5. TORELL: -- | have to ask ny
representative.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry.

M5. HELLER: Can we clarify sonething on
this docunent that we're referring to? Exhibit 8
that we're | ooking at says nenber profile as of
July 23rd, 2015.

MR. MEADOWAS: Right. As you recall,
asked for this information in the WIson proceedi ng.

M5. HELLER: Correct. And this was given
to you by Mark Mers.

MR. MEADOAS: You sent ne a bunch of
docunents, Captain Hepp did, and this was one of the
attached that was sent to ne based on ny request to
figure out ny nenbership status in terns of

financial obligations. And this is what was given
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to ne.

M5. FLETCHER  But that canme from Mark
Myers.

MR. MEADOWS: Mark Myers, yeah.

M5. FLETCHER  Not from Pam Torell.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, it was provided by the
secretary-treasurer's office.

M5. FLETCHER  Not necessarily.

MR. MEADOWS: Because | nmade a request.

M5. FLETCHER  Not necessarily. Mark
Myers --

MR. MEADOAS: Do you renenber the big
| ssue was | ast year Pam Torell could not be
avai |l abl e for the proceedi ng when in fact she was in
the building hiding in her office?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Larry, please.

M5. FLETCHER: That's not the issue here.

MR. MEADOWAS: And she would not let ne
| nspect the books and records. So this all stens
fromthe fact that |'ve made nunerous attenpts in
good faith under federal law to inspect ny
nmenber shi p books and records, and she refused to
provide them She cones to this neeting today
unprepared w thout the nost basic information. |If

she can't answer what type of nenber | am
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sonet hi ng' s wrong.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ch, for God's sakes.

M5. TORELL: To the chair, please.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, we're trying to --
hold on, please. Al right. First off, I'm
breaking for lunch. That's nunber one. Nunber two,
do you think -- do you think we could have an answer
on his nenbershi p standi ng, whether he's in good or

bad st andi ng?

M5. TORELL: | would like to have one
comrent before | answer that question.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: |'m sorry?

M5. TORELL: 1'd |like one comment before |

answer that question.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease.

M5. TORELL: Larry, | amhere to help you.

MR. MEADOWS: Doesn't seemlike it.

M5. TORELL: And I'musing -- | know |
know. | get that. And this is the sane thing with
Kathy Enery. |I'mhere to help you and | want this
to work. | amhere to nmake this process work.
Believe ne, | am

MR. MEADOAS: Do we go to lunch and take
extra tinme and you can --

M5. TORELL: Yes, but --
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MR. MEADOWNS: -- tell ne if I'ma nenber
I n good standing, what ny status is, and if | have
any financial obligations due and owing to the
associ ation, if 1've ever been suspended or expelled
fromthe uni on?

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Well, | think --

M5. TORELL: M attitude is going to
change if | --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: \Whoa, whoa, whoa, whoa.
Hol d on. Look, nunber one --

M5. TORELL: Why am | consistently --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: |'m sorry?

M5. TORELL: Why am | consistently
I nt errupt ed?

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Well, | think I'm
I nterrupting both sides.

M5. TORELL: That's fine.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So I'mtrying to be
equally fair in interrupting because, first off, as
I S supposed to happen is the comments are supposed
to be directed to the chair. Now, neither side is
doi ng that.

M5. TORELL: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You're talking to him
He's talking to you. He's talking to him He's
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talking to him That's not how this process is
supposed to work, so |I'mfrustrated.

M5. TORELL: So may | continue?

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Yes. And then | --

M5. TORELL: Directed to the chair.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yes, pl ease.

M5. TORELL: | amhere to nake this
process work. | amhere to be honest, and | am here
to see a decision under his Article VII charges,
sincerely. Wth that, | cannot -- | have a list of
six itens that were disrespectful and
unprofessional. That's not ny protocol. That's not

how | work at this union. That's not how | serve
t he menber shi p.
One nore time, and | think I'mnot going

to be sitting in this seat. And | ask that you

respect nmy decision. It's -- | want this to happen,
but I -- it needs to be done in a professional
manner .

CHAI RVMAN HEPP: | would -- | woul d hope
you'd stay through the -- until the end. | hope you
feel Iike you' ve been treated professionally by this
commttee, and -- but if it does cone to bl ows and
you choose -- if you feel |like you need to go

permanently, can we expect your rep to stay, or is
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he goi ng al so?

MR. THURSTIN. We'll have to discuss that
over the |unch break.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (kay. Because it's a
little hard -- you know, | -- it would be -- these
are public proceedings, and | think whether you stay
or not, you'd be shortchangi ng yourself given your
service to the nenbership, which is never easy, to
just have a one-sided conversation. And | think
you -- as frustrating as the day has been so far, |
t hi nk you woul d be doing yourself a disservice to
not answer, have soneone here to answer.

M5. TORELL: | will take that into
consi deration. | understand.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And - -

MR. MEADONS: And if that's the case,
wi Il nove forward and nove for default judgnent, but
that's her choice. | will -- I wll strive to be
nore professional.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: | apol ogi ze, but |I'mgetting
very frustrated. Maybe after |unch she can cone
back armed with a little bit of information.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Larry, Larry. Okay. Now,

as far as your standing, she's going to cone back as
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to whether you're in good or bad standing. She's
answered the status that you're inactive, according
to her. So you' ve already answered the status
gquestion. He's inactive.

M5. TORELL: Uh- huh.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Then you want ed whet her
you' ve ever m ssed a dues paynent.

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah. Am 1| -- am| ow ng
any financial obligations to the association.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Are you in arrears.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, or have | ever been or

am | now.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

M5. TORELL: Ever.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Ever.

MR. MEADOAS: Have | ever w thdrawn or
expel | ed.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  And have you -- and then
the | ast question is wthdrawn or expelled, which I
assunme we can already answer, right?

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think under the
Wl son --

MR. MEADOWS: To ny know edge, no, but --

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You' ve never been
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expel | ed.

MR. NMEADOWS:  No.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And you' ve never resigned.

MR. NMEADOWS:  No.

CHAl RMAN HEPP:  So | think we answered
t hat one.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, | want to get
confirmation fromher as secretary-treasurer.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Well, | mean, cone on,
Larry. | think -- you know - -

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, Rusty McDaniels said |
wasn't a nmenber for purposes of |ocking ne out of
C&R. So there's problens here. The association has
to get their story straight on whether |I'm a nenber.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, but again, don't
take -- you are taking -- Rusty is the chairmn of
the nmenbership commttee.

MR. MEADOWS: But based on his
representation, I'mnot a nenber. M rights to C&R
were stripped away. Three nonths later in federal
court, Steve Hoffnman went to the judge and said |I am
a nmenber for purposes of stripping away ny
grievance. So what is it? That's all | want is a
trut hful answer.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And, Larry, you've made
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that point in the Wlson arbitration.

MR. MEADOWS: | know.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And you're going to submt
on this one either. But, you know, you're not going
to browbeat anybody into clearing that up. It's
going to have to be cleared -- and you know it's
going to be cleared up with an arbitrator because
you're going to go to arbitration after this.

MR. MEADOWS: For the record, | guess one
thing 1'"'mgoing to ask before the concl usi on of
t hese proceedings, | want to physically inspect the
books and records as is ny right under the C& and
the LMRDA before this proceeding' s closed at sone
point in time today or tonorrow.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Now, you have to be an
active nenber in good standing for that, if |I'mnot
m st aken.

MR. MEADOAS: No, a nenber. A nenber. W
can go -- we can goto Tab 1. 1'Ill find it.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: All right. Which book are
we in?

MR. MEADOWS: Tab 1, the APA C&B.

M5. FLETCHER "A nenber may inspect his
records or account at any tine at his request during

nor mal busi ness hours. ™
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MR. MEADOWS: I n accordance with federa
| aw.
M5. FLETCHER That is page 15. | don't
know if | have -- this is effective 12/26 under

secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, under ny version it's
page 16, paragraph 2, which is on Tab 1. Tab 1,
page 16, paragraph 2. Says, "The books and records
of secretary-treasurer shall be" --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Hold on, Larry. Pl ease
direct ne to where you are. |'min page 16.

MR. MEADOWS: Tab 1, page 16, paragraph 2,
first sentence.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: All right. First off --

M5. HELLER: You're in the ol der version.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: So you're in the 2014 C&B.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, I'min the version
that was current at the tine of the incident.

M5. HELLER: The 8 -- August 2nd, 2014,
and you sai d page 167

MR, MEADOWE:  Yes.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: " The books and records of
the secretary-treasurer shall be accessible to any
menber or group of nenbers in good standing in

accordance with federal law " GOkay. And what is it
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now you're -- and so --
MR. MEADOWAS: | have a right to inspect
t he books and records, and |'ve been deprived of
that right every tine |'ve asked. And this -- it
says in accordance with federal law. If you go to

the LMRDA, there's no inactive, active, good
standi ng, bad standing. It's nenber, period.

M5. FLETCHER No, that's not true.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, it is.

M5. FLETCHER: It says nenber or nmenber in
good st andi ng.

MR. MEADOAS: No, under the LMRDA.

M5. FLETCHER: It says nenber or nenber in
good st andi ng.

MR. MEADOAS: And under the LMRDA, that's
what | was contending earlier. |'ma nenber in good
st andi ng under the LMRDA. Wen you get the records,
|'ve paid all ny dues and assessnents to the
associ ation. 1've never been expelled. |'ve never
wi t hdrawn. And under the LMRDA |'m a nenber in good
st andi ng.

M5. FLETCHER: We're not -- we're not --
we're not here to rule on the LVMRDA

MR. MEADOAS: | understand, but |'m saying

the C& itself is reaching out to federal |aw
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because what it really is, is the C& is
regurgitating nmy right under the LMRDA to | ook at
t he books and records.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So -- okay. You have your
marching orders. Al right. Wat tine do you want
to be back?

M5. TORELL: It's your call.

M5. HELLER: How | ong do you need to --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Can we be off the record
to di scuss |unch?

(Recess from 12:51 to 2:17)

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Let's go back on record.
Bef ore we get those questions answered, | assune
you' re ready.

M5. TORELL: Yes.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Ckay. Let's see if we
can't get back on the rails here. Couple of things.
Nunber one, | kept referring to -- this is for you.
| kept referring to Rusty McDani el as the chairnman
of the nmenbership commttee. That's incorrect. The
reference should have been the chairman of the IT
steering commttee. And that's nunber one. So |I'd
like to correct that m stake.

|f we could try and start out again with

directing your comments to the chair. And if we get
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back into a tussle with Q%A, maybe you'll ask ne the
guestion and |I'll ask her the question and then
she' Il respond back. But we have to figure out a

way that allows people to get through their points
W t hout being interrupted wth the next question.

So you keep -- you have brought up, you
know, how it would go in court. And | think it
woul d be inportant to note that, you know, telling
soneone to shut up or dropping a couple of F-bonbs,
you know, you probably wouldn't be -- the judge
woul dn't be | ooking at you too kindly either. So we
all -- let's see if we can just w pe the slate clean
and start fresh, if we can try to do that.

But before -- again, | guess to try and
get us back on the rails, we're tal king about the
menbership issue. So, Larry, | have a question or
two for you.

MR MEADOWS:  Sure.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You now have your card.

It took you awhile to get it, but you now have your
card. So that's your -- that's the first charge.
So where are we goi ng?

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, | guess she belatedly

I ssued the card at the eve of the Enery tri al

because they knew they were going to | ose that
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i ssue. It doesn't undo the fact that she didn't
uphol d her obligation to issue the card when she was
supposed to two and a half years prior. And as a
result, we were not able to get into union neetings,
because | have docunents that wll show that a card
I's mandatory for entrance into a uni on neeting,
whi ch was a change after the -- was never enforced,
but it was changed after the C&R | ockout.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Wl l, let ne ask you this
then. Have -- you went out in '03. You becane

i nactive 12 nonths | ater, ' 04.

MR. MEADOWS: | dispute that too, but --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Wl I, but -- | nean,
forget about what -- okay. Twelve nonths |[ater --

MR. MEADOWNS: Disability.
CHAl RMAN HEPP: Right. So did you ever
try to attend any uni on neetings between '04 and

when you, you know, when we went through that

bankruptcy? | nean, just --
MR. MEADOAS: Yeah. Way back when, and |
was actually allowed inin "'04. But in -- in 2014

Kat hy Enery, she'll testify she appeared at the
Mam neeting and they said she wasn't a nenber and
t hey woul dn't recogni ze her to speak. And then they

tried -- she got into the neeting, but she wasn't
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supposed to be in there. She didn't have a
nmenber shi p card.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Yeah, ny understanding is
she did speak actually.

MR. MEADOWAS: She wasn't properly
recogni zed.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Wl |, she --

MR. MEADOWAS: But the bottomline is that
the policy of the union was that nenbership cards
are mandatory for entrance into BOD and domcile
neetings after the C&R | ockout. |[|'ve got ny ID card
i n my pocket. It's stuck.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Do what ?

MR. MEADOWNS: Won't cone out of ny pocket.

CHAI RVMAN HEPP: Is it a special issuance,
or isit --

MR. MEADOAS: | have both. | have an
active and speci al .

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Wl l, which one is --

MR. MEADOWAS: The one | have now is
| nactive.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: There's a date on the
cards, right?

MR. MEADOAS: No. Inactive cards are not
dat ed.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Wat's the date on
the active card?

MR. MEADOWAS: Through 2012.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So you now have your card.
You weren't allowed into the neeting.

MR. THURSTIN. Could | -- | don't believe
that he ever stipulated that he was not allowed in.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Were you allowed in? Did
| m scharacterize your comments?

MR. MEADOWS: After the C&R | ockout, no,
was not .

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Did you try to get in?

MR. MEADOAG: Yes, | tried to get in a
neeting and | was not all owed, yes.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: So you tried to get into a
domcile neeting and --

MR. MEADOWNS: Yes, in the summer of 2014.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Sunmmer of 20147

MR. THURSTIN. Can we find out --

Decenber - -

MR. MEADOWAS: Summer of 2014. You can
check the sign-in logs. Sumrer or fall, sonmewhere
in there, | don't know It was a few nonths after
t he C&R | ockout .

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: |I'msorry. It was what?
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MR. MEADOWAS: |t was after Kathy tried to
get in.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So Kathy tried to
get in, didn't get in.

M5. HELLER: She did, but --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, yeah, did get in
and - -

MR. MEADOWS: But she wasn't supposed to
be, and Keith Wl son said publicly she was not a
menber .

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, but either way, it's
just -- Larry, it's just like this. You know, we
haven't deci ded your nenbership status, but we're
giving you wide latitude to present your case. So,
you know, no one's trying to turn people away, and
everybody's trying to give every -- you know, we get
enough raw deals from those asshol es across the
street. W try to not do that to people who have
been associated with APA or this board certainly.
think the institution, in nmy opinion, tries not to
turn peopl e away.

So now you've got -- so the contract's
signed. You have a nenbership card. You're allowed
to attend domcile neetings. Have you tried to

attend any domcile neetings since you got a card?
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MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, been to a couple.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Have you been to a coupl e?

MR. MEADOWS: Been to neet-and-greets and
domcile neetings, yeah, you bet. Been three tines.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So | guess what |'mtrying
to say is, where -- so where are -- | nean, are we
just trying to extract a pound of flesh or --

MR. MEADOWS: No, not really. Because,

nmean - -
M5. FLETCHER  Renedy.
CHAl RMAN HEPP: |'m sorry?
M5. FLETCHER: Renedy.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: | nean, are we trying to
cone up with a renedy or --
MR. MEADOAS: | think she should be -- it

shoul d be a known fact that as secretary-treasurer
she refused to conply with the C&, which is a big
deal to nenbership. Had the nenbership known that
prior to the election in June of 2016, she likely
woul d not have been reel ected because she ran on the

platformof truth and transparency.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Well, let's | eave -- but
again, that doesn't tell ne where we're going.
MR. MEADOWS: Well, | guess the harnmis --

you can't undo the harm The harm has occurred.
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CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: But it doesn't change the
fact that she's guilty of the charge. |[|'m not
seeking any fine against her or expulsion fromthe
union, but |I think it should be recorded that she
acted in breach of the C&B. The nenbership should
be aware so they can act accordingly at the ball ot
box next tine.

MR. THURSTIN.  Chuck, may | point out

t hat --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, just hold on,
pl ease. Let ne digest that for a second. Because
you obviously dis -- | get the fact that you dispute
t hat .

MR. THURSTIN: No, | haven't disputed it.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You put paperwork in that
di sputes that.

MR. THURSTIN:. |'mnot disputing anything
at this point. I'mjust -- |I'mpointing out the
fact that in Novenber, approxinmately, of 2014
M. Meadows filed in the U S Dstrict Court of Utah
agai nst APA regarding this particular issue. And at
that tine we were waiting for the judgnent of that
| ssue.

MR. MEADOWAS: February of 2014.
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MR. THURSTIN. Pardon ne?

MR. MEADOWAS: |t was February.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: That's fine. W' re just
m nci ng words. And pl ease direct your conments to
me. Thank you.

MR. THURSTIN. So there was a concern.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  No, | understand. That's
I n your opening statenent. | get that. Like | say,
|"mjust -- this obviously has been our contentious

I ssue, and this is where we seemto be hitting --

MR. MEADOAS: | guess the point --

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: We're hitting a third
round. Hang on, please. | tell you what. Can
you -- can you give us ten? | don't nean to -- |

know we just got in, but can you guys, can we
just --
(Recess from 2:25 to 2:30)

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Back on the record.

So your notion is just get it out there.
And obvi ously they have --

MR. MEADOWAS: The nenbership deserves to
know if there was a violation of that magnitude
because, like | say, truthfully, if |I had C&R access
in April and May, she would never have been el ected

in June, because we woul d have had - -
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CHAl RMAN HEPP: That's a bit of a --
that's a bit of a --

MR. MEADONS: Well, we would have nade --
we woul d have canpai gned aggressively to not have
her reelected for various reasons based on these
I ssues. | think the nmenbership deserve to know.
This stuff's in a black hole. Mst nenbers don't
even know what Article VIl is. They don't even know
what the tab is. They don't know to go | ook at
these things. | didn't know what it was until | was
ordered to do it by the court. So that's a problem

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: So | think -- not to punish
Pam Like | say, |I'mnot seeking to fire her or
expul sion or anything like that, but | think the
menber shi p needs to know and they can make their own
judgnent at the ballot box in the future, if she
runs agai n.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You had a comment ?

MR, THURSTIN. Well, during that tine
frame, you know, that the [awsuit was going on,
Captain Torell had tal ked to her counsel at the tine
and was working wth her counsel who was working to
try to resolve this issue. And while the litigation

was going on, his concern was he was exposing the
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APA to the judgnent which could have cone down from
the Utah court based on what M. Meadows had put
down.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. So there was a | ot going on
during that tinme franme. |It's not sinply as cut and
dried as Pamjust nade -- all of a sudden nade a
deci sion she wasn't going to do this.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Never is.

MR. MEADOWE: Wl --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Hang on, please. Pl ease,
Larry, let's not go down that train again, first
off. Anything el se?

MR. THURSTIN: No, sir.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Al'l right. So that being
said --

MR. MEADOAS: Can | just interject? Under
the LMRDA is the union nenber bill of rights, and
one of themis equal participation in union
activities. The other one is freedom of speech.

And the third and inportant one here is protection
of right to sue.

So I'mstill a nmenber of the union. Just
because |' m suing the union shouldn't nean that |

get treated disparately or not communicated with or
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not have actions taken on ny behalf as a nenber.
And that's a problem It's an LMRD -- that is an
LMRDA violation, but I want to make it cl ear that
there's really no valid justification for her not to
acknow edge ny request for nenbership cards or --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry, I'mwell aware that
you don't believe that there's a valid
justification. The board will deci de whet her
there's a valid justification --

MR. NMEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- based on the docunents.

So | think again, you know, the process is both

sides cone to the board, nmake their -- make their
clainms, put in their -- the docunentation, and the
board will decide. And then you obviously have not

just the recourse of arbitration within the union
rules, but then you'll have the opportunity in a
Utah court. So it's not |like we're -- whichever way
this goes you don't have opportunities.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So you had sone answers
for us as far as --

MR. THURSTIN. Can | pass these out?

M5. TORELL: Yes, please.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Do you have enough for
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ever ybody?

MR. THURSTIN. | have docunentation. |
conducted a fairly exhaustive search during the
break, which | wll give to each one of the nenbers.
Menber Profile Information one is titled, and the
other -- as of 3/1/2017, and | have a second one as
of 8/20/15. | don't know why one's in color and
one's in black and white. | assune that's just how

they were printed.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Do we need to put a nunber
on these to keep it organi zed? Your next tabs.

MR. THURSTIN. | believe it will be -- |et
me make sure before | speak out of school here.
Tab 18 for the 2015 docunent.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: So why don't we call this
PT18 so we know it canme from you guys.

MR. THURSTIN.  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And that's for the 2015

one?

MR. THURSTIN. Yeah. And we'll call the
next one 19, PT19. |Is that acceptabl e?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: It is for nme. If it stops
us fromcalling each other nanes, I'mall for it.

So what am | | ooking at?
MR. THURSTIN. Wat we're looking at is
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t he nmenber profile as researched by the budget
departnent in APA which gives M. Madows' status as
of the two dates. And there also is a fairly
| engt hy | ook back on his dues paynent on the '15
docunent all the way back to -- and | believe this
Is a new format fromthe | T departnent, this blue
and white with his enpl oyee nunber on it.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: VWi ch one is that now? |Is
that 187

MR. THURSTIN. This is the '15 docunent.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. 2015. PT18?

MR. THURSTIN. It's the col or one, yeah,
It's the only col or one.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN:  Which gives a significant
amount of information referencing M. Meadows.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. And | believe that he's
al ready received this docunent in the previous
arbitration with Captain Wlson, | believe. |
wasn't there, so | can't speak authoritatively.

MR. MEADOAS: | think it's -- it |ooks
simlar to Exhibit 8 in ny tab.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So in regards to

the questions M. Meadows had, is this -- does this
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answer those questions?

M5. TORELL: The PT19 is a docunent that
was actually extracted today fromthe accounting
departnent, and | believe it answers his questions.
The back three pages are the dues record. They go
back to 1998, and of that tinme all dues were paid,
yes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So he's never been in
arrears.

M5. TORELL: Correct.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So does that make
hi m a menber in good standing, bad standi ng? Were
are --

M5. TORELL: That he retains his active --
excuse ne, his inactive nenbership. He is an
I nactive nenber.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

M5. TORELL: Per the Constitution and
Byl aws.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. How about -- well,
t he ot her question was standing. W have good
standi ng and bad standing. Does it answer that
gquestion?

M5. TORELL: Constitution and Byl aws does

not define the two. The Constitution and Byl aws
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does not define good standing and bad standi ng for
I nactive nenbers. Question -- that was the second
guestion that was added, right?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. All right. So --
okay. So he's never m ssed a paynent. He is an
I nactive nenber is his status. He's neither good
nor bad standi ng.

M5. TORELL: There's no description in the
C&B to define that.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. MEADOWS: | object to that. There
actually is a description on bad standing that's
def i ned.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You'll have your
opportunity, please.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think the other ones we
had, right? | nean, he's never been -- you've never
been expell ed, never resigned, right? So |I think
your questions are -- the questions you asked are
answer ed.

MR. MEADOWS: No, because she's not
telling me if I'ma nmenber in good standing or bad
st andi ng.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, she answered the
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guestion. It's just not to your satisfaction.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So -- okay. So you say
that the C& has a definition of bad standi ng?

MR, MEADOWE:  Yes.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: By all neans.

MR. MEADOANS: On -- in ny book, Tab 1,
page 9, Section 5.B, second sentence, it says --
wel |, actually the first sentence, "A nenber in good

standing shall remain in good standing as |ong as
such nmenber has paid current dues, assessnents and
ot her financial obligations to the association.”

So if | understand Captain Torel
correctly, |I've never been in arrears. | have no
dues, assessnents, or financial obligations owng to
t he associ ati on.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Correct. She sti pul ated
t hat .

MR. MEADOAS: And | was in good standing

when | went on disability, so | should remain in

good standing, | would argue. The second --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think we can all accept
that he was a nenber in good standing while he was
an active nenber with the APA? |Is that -- can we
all --
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M5. TORELL: Yes.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- agree to that? Ckay.

MR. MEADOWAS: And then the second part of
It goes, "The Secretary-Treasurer shall transfer a
menber from good to bad standing if such nenber
shall be delinquent in either dues, assessnents or
ot her financial obligations due to the Association."”

And Captain WIson has testified
previously that the only reason a nenber is
transferred fromgood to bad standing is for
del i nquency and dues.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Do you have t hat
paper wor k?

MR. MEADOWNS: His testinony? | can get it

for you. | can pull it up at the next break.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Wy don't you.
MR. MEADOAS: | will.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: So we have an open
guestion on standing fromthe APA. |'m al nost

afraid to ask, but do you guys have a comment on
that, or are we just, you know, we can agree to
di sagree and --

MR. THURSTIN. | think we're going to have
to agree to disagree because the C&B is what we use

as the guidelines that Captain Torell has to go by.
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CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. And the C&B says there is
no such thing as a good or bad standing for an
| nactive nenber, which M. Meadows becane sonetine
in 2005.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Okay. I|I'msorry. Could
you pl ease repeat that one nore tine slowy for ne.

MR. THURSTIN. The C&B does not define
| nactive nenber as good or bad. The C&B does not.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. M. Meadows becane an
I nactive nmenber sonetinme in 2005, which was
approximately 12 nonths after his nedical
di squal i fication.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. So at that point he was a
menber -- he was an inactive nenber at that point.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. And by the C&B, there is no
good or bad standing at that point. Previous to
that, we could then, yeah, he was a nenber in good
st andi ng.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Menber in good standing,

an active nenber in good standi ng.
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MR. MEADOWAS: | disagree. They're
m scharacteri zing --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: |'mjust -- | understand

your argunment. You're going to provide ne with
Captain W1l son's testinony.

MR. MEADOWAS: Right, but |'mjust
saying the C&B says --

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  You' ve read ne the C&B.

MR. MEADOWS: -- a nenber in good standing
remai ns in good standi ng, period.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And we're not going to
deci de that issue --

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: -- at this nonent.
just -- |I'm happy we now understand both sides, and
it'lIl be up to us to -- to adjudicate that. But at

| east we were able to do that civilly.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Which is certainly a step
in the right direction.

So you guys have anything to add? Katy,
Li sa?

M5. HELLER:  No.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No? Katy? You good,
Katy? Al right. Were to now?
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MR. MEADOWNS: (Ckay. Captain Torell, other

than the C&B - -
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Do ne a favor. Ask

MR. MEADOWS: Ask you?

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yes.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. O her than the C&B,
does the secretary-treasurer for the APA | ook to any
ot her precedent or docunents for gui dance on
nmenber ship status?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ms. Torell ?

M5. TORELL: | -- the primary docunent is
the Constitution and Bylaws of the Allied Pilots
Associ ati on.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Okay?

MR. MEADOWNS: So | guess what she's
sayi ng, so what -- the decision under Valverde, a
AAA arbitration, is irrelevant. She doesn't foll ow
that. She only follows the C&B?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: No, don't -- don't --

MR. MEADOWS: Well, it's inportant. Let
me go where |' m going.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. | understand that,
but that's what -- you're going to nake a witten
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subm ssion as to why that is or is not.
MR. MEADOWS: Al right. Let's --
CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Now - -
MR. MEADOAS: | can go forward with the
questions. |'ll just keep it straightforward.
CHAl RMVAN HEPP: | know. | want to -- give

me a m nute.
(Of record from2:43 to 2:44)

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Because ny under st andi ng
of Val verde was as nuch as he commrented on your
status, he didn't rule on your status.

MR. MEADOAS: | think he did.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: To go to page 13 in the
Val ver de decision --

MR. MEADOAS: He's saying |'mnot a nenber
I n good standi ng.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Well, what | -- well, I'm
just referencing the footnote. Were does it say
that he doesn't reference you as a nenber in good
st andi ng?

MR. MEADOWS: Page 14, second paragraph.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: " According to nenbership
status provisions of the C&B, a nenber in good
standing retains that status as long as he or she is

current on dues, assessnents. Dues and assessnents
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are paid, are to be paid. Since Meadows has not
recei ved wages fromthe enpl oyer since 2004, he's

not payi ng any dues. The C&B does not provide for

paynent of dues in any other manner." So where are
you, Katy?

M5. FLETCHER  Ri ght here.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  "However" -- okay. So |I'm

sorry. The first paragraph, "There is no dispute
that during the tinme Meadows was an active nenber,
he was a nenber in good standing. However, was --
however, was his good standi ng affected when he
becane an inactive nenber? The arbitrator finds

t hat once he becane an inactive nenber, this also
changed his nenber in good standing status for the
follow ng reasons.” Ckay. See, on the previous
page | was referencing the footnote.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, go to page 15, the
first paragraph.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ch, stand by. On page 13
in the -- because this is what | -- this to ne, In
footnote 6 -- you guys up? Second sentence,
"Further, it appears that the matter of Meadows'
menbership status is to be fully addressed in a
subsequent arbitration involving the issue of

menbership cards. Accordingly, the accuser's
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menbership status will be addressed only to the
extent necessary to resolve the issues in this
case."

So he didn't necessarily -- he didn't
necessarily reach a conclusion --

MR. MEADOAS: He did though.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- on your nenbership
st at us.

MR. MEADOWNS: Go to page 15, the first
paragraph. He does. He's contradicting hinself,
basically | eaving the door open for these
proceedings to decide it, but he's already deci ded
It. Look at page 15.

M5. FLETCHER: Starting with where?

MR. MEADOWS: "Accordingly."” It's in the
first paragraph, the third sentence, "Accordingly."

M5. FLETCHER  Okay. Yeah.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  So could you -- would you
read that, please?

M5. FLETCHER: "Accordingly, the
arbitrator finds that when Meadows becane an
| nactive nenber, he |ost his good standi ng status
Wi thin the Association.”

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: So - -

MR. MEADOWAS: | don't dispute that |I'm not
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an inactive but an active nenber besides all this,
so, | nmean, this is just the standing issue. But I
don't concur with the active versus inactive either.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So we're -- if |'m using
Val verde, then it doesn't | ook good.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. So that was ny
gquestion. Does -- Pam Torell has relied on Val verde
in an attenpt to dism ss these charges. Gkay? So |
asked if she's bound by anythi ng outside the C&B.
She said no, she focuses only on the C&B for
nmenbership i ssues. Now she's saying she's going to
take an outside arbitration decision from an
arbitration that has no stare decisis val ue, which
neans it has no | egal precedent, won't uphold in a
court of [|aw.

So that's the question. |If she's going to
defer to that, then I'mgoing to defer to the Wlitz
deci sion in 2005 in Annabl e versus Wssing which
says a nmenber in good standing is soneone who's paid
all their dues and net all their financial
obligations, which is ne.

And then the Sproc case, you know, Sproc
argued that Barkate was not a nenber in good
st andi ng because he was in inactive disability

st at us.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: He was MDI. He wasn't

VDD.

MR. MEADOWN5S: He's MDD, but he's inactive,
disability, so -- and said based on not paying
dues --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But even the C&B breaks
that down into two --

MR. MEADOWS: But the appeal board --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- as does the contract.

MR. MEADOWAS: But the appeal board in that
case went on to say that Barkate was in fact a
nmenber in good standi ng because he net all his

financial obligations and dues at the tinme they were

OW ng.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That nay be, but first off
he was sitting on the board as opposed to -- they
were -- Rob --

MR. MEADOWAS: They concl uded he was a
menber in good standing is the point. They
concl uded he was a nmenber in good standing.

CHAI RMAN HEPP; Well, but it's --

MR. MEADOAS: He's situated exactly |ike

CHAl RVAN HEPP: As is always, there's nore

to it than just the sinple yea or nay.
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MR. MEADOWAS: He's inactive on disability
status not payi ng dues.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Because he was not -- he
was not on trial at the tine. He was not -- he had
not -- he was not the one facing Article VII
charges. He was sitting on the board.

MR. MEADOWS: | get that.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: And it was a matter of
whet her it was appropriate for himto be sitting on
t he board.

MR. MEADOWAS: But the institution --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: That's not the issue
t hat --

MR. MEADOAS: But the institution nade a
decision that this is how we handle -- because good
standing, as Arbitrator Wlitz said, is not defined
in the C&B. He defined it. The appeal board in
Sproc adopted that decision. So they nade an
I nstitutional decision this is how we handl e peopl e
| i ke Barkate or people |Iike ne.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, you are different.
No, you're under a different --

MR. MEADOA5S: How am | different than
Bar kat e?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, you're MDD --
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MR MEADOWS: Doesn't matter --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- versus Ml .

MR. MEADOAN5S: No, the basis is that he's
I nactive and not paying dues. That was the basis,
not MDD versus -- that's semantics. Those are APA
I nternal codes that are neani ngl ess. They're not
even in the C&B. |If you want to tal k about codes --

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Yeah, but it's also -- no,
because it's a contractual issue.

MR. MEADOAS: MDD is not in the C&. It's
not in the C&B.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  No, | under -- | know
t hat .

MR. MEADOAS: Those are internal status
codes (unintelligible).

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And | understand t hat
they're internal --

THE REPORTER: You know what? Y all are
going to have to sl ow down and not tal k over each
ot her.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Sorry. W're both from
New York. You'll just have to excuse us. W'd
never survive at the dinner table if we weren't
tal ki ng over one anot her.

But, Larry, it still falls under a
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different contractual issue. GCkay? As sonmeone over
five years in the contract, you are in a different
status as Barkate.

MR. MEADOAS: Well, we haven't gotten
there yet. And I'lIl prove in their opening
statenent that everything they said was false wth
respect to -- | aman enployee. | have continuous
credited service fromthe day | was hired, which was
restored by the pension benefits commttee. |
receive W2 active enployee wages. | receive active
pilot benefits, nedical, dental, life insurance,
pension. And under the ternms of the 2004 pil ot
| ong-termdisability plan, which is governed by
letter KK of the C&B, ny collectively bargai ned
wel fare benefits define ne as a pilot enpl oyee under
the ternms of the plan. So to say |I'mnot an
enpl oyee i s an absolute Ilie.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: But again, we're back to
the sane thing wwth Wl son again. Now we're using
an insurance policy to decide what the C&B says.
That's not appropriate.

MR. MEADOWAS: No, no, no. Well, | nean,
what are you guys -- so the C&B -- the C&B cannot
operate exclusive of the collective bargaining

agreenent and the federal statutes because it is
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subordinate to, and that's what Valverde ruled in
Sproc, that the C& cannot preclude the Railway
Labor Act, cannot preclude the LVMRDA, cannot
preclude the I RS or any ot her federal statute.

It's just a fucking M ckey Muse d ub.
|"msorry. It's like a Mckey Muse C ub.
Constitution is for the APA, but it can't reign
superior over federal statutes. |It's actually under
Robert's Rul es under parlianentary |aw, you're
required to adhere to the hierarchy of |aws under
Robert's Rules. So these federal |aws do govern the
C&B indirectly. They have to. And they're |inked
toit for the parlianentary law. And Valverde is a
very extensive ruling. [It's in one of ny exhibits.
| can show you.

So ny point is, it's not fair to reach
outside of the C& for purposes of saying |'mnot a

menber in good standi ng based on Val verde's

deci si on.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Which -- which -- if |I'm
not putting words in your nouth, you said you
weren't --

MR. MEADOWS:  She was.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- reaching outside the
C&B.
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MR. MEADOWAS: She's | ooking to the
Val verde decision to dismss these proceedi ngs
because |'m not in good standing.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, she just gave
testinony that said she uses the Constitution and
Byl aws.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | understand her opening
statenent. | have her opening statenent too. | get

it.

MR. MEADOWAE: It |eaves ne a question.
Does she follow the sanme Constitution and Byl aws as
Keith WIson?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Stand by. Again, | don't
want to -- we're not -- let's not get off the rails.
| just wanted to point out with Valverde that if
we're using this particular arbitration decision,
then he -- in ny opinion, the footnote says he's not
ruling on the issue.

MR. MEADOWAS: That's correct. His
deci si on speaks to both sides of the issue and it's
wong. |It's contradictory. |It's unclear. And I
guess in a case of being unclear, you should --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: That's what --

MR. MEADOWS: -- favor the noving party,
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meaning ne. It should be -- that's howit's done in
court. Mowving party gets nore favorabl e treat nent
In a notion to dismss.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, Larry, | think we've
gi ven you favorable treatnent.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, ny point is, | nean,
are you going to focus within the C& only? If you
are, Val verde's decision's neaningless. It neans
not hi ng.

MR. THURSTIN. Can | object?

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Yes, you can.

MR. MEADOAS: And it doesn't bind the
association. It was against ne and Keith WI son,
not against the APA. So it doesn't change anyt hi ng
as far as the APA conducts busi ness.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Now | think you're just --

MR MEADOWS: No, |'m not.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Now I think you're just --

now you're just mncing words. And | understand why

you're doing it. | just don't agree with it.
MR. MEADOAS: (Ckay.
MR. THURSTIN. | object in respect -- the

reason we're here today is to deci de whet her or not
there's any kind of disciplinary action as to

whet her Pam Torell acted within the Constitution --
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CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Tr ue.

MR. THURSTIN. -- and Byl aws of the APA

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Yes.

MR. THURSTIN. This is not part of that.

MR. MEADOWNS: Disagree. |'mjust --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Pl ease, Larry.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. In respect that the only
person that can bring that Val verde decision, the
only people that can bring the Val verde deci si on
into the Constitution and Bylaws is the board of
directors or the president of the APA. Pam Tor el
cannot decide on her own that she should incorporate
t he Val verde decision into the C&B.

MR. MEADOWAS: But she --

MR. THURSTIN. She cannot.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Hang on. Anything el se?

MR THURSTIN. That's it, sir.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | know what you're going
to -- | get it.

MR. MEADOAS: In her letter to you, she
said the Val verde deci si on.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: I n the opening statenent,
yes. | understand.

MR. MEADOWS: | guess ny question is, is
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she or is she not relying on the Val verde deci sion
for ny standi ng?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think that was asked and
answer ed.

MR. MEADOWAS: | don't --

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You asked is she | ooking
at anything other than the C&, and she said --

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: -- no, she was | ooking at
t he C&B.

MR. MEADOWNS: (Ckay. GCkay. Then the
C&B - -

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So -- okay. Next
gquesti on.

MR. MEADOAS: So under the C&B, the
accepted policy of the APA has been that nenbers,
I nactive nenbers remain in good standing, and it's
been deci ded by the appeal board institutionally
that Joe Barkate as an inactive di sabl ed nenber who
had not paid dues renmined in good standing. So
if --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Wl l, now, wait a second.
Now, ny understanding wth Barkate is that was Rob's
arbitra -- Rob took the decision to arbitration and

t hen conpl ai ned about Joe.
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MR. MEADOAS: No, he conpl ained -- he
conpl ai ned right out of the gate at the appeal.
He tried to get himexcluded at the opening of the
appeal board proceedings. And they said, no, he's a
menber in good standing and we're relying upon the
Wbl itz deci sion.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Then why di d Val verde say

that you shoul d have brought it up at the original

heari ng?

MR. MEADOWS:  \Who?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Val verde' s opi ni on.

MR. MEADOWAS: Valverde is wong. He's
I gnoring --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: But that's what he said.
MR. MEADOAS: He's ignoring -- he's

i gnoring Arbitrator Wilitz's decision. He's wong.

He's been talking to Steve Hoffman. Sorry. | nean,
he really -- he's crooked. | nean, he really is.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: | don't --
MR. MEADOWS: | have proof of that. Maybe

we could ask Steve today |later.
CHAI RMAN HEPP; Al right. So --
MR. THURSTIN. Can we comment, Chuck?
M5. HELLER: Sorry. Just let ne respond

to you. You said if you want to ask Steve. Hi's
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wi ndow of availability is just about to cl ose.
MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, | don't know if |
really want to talk to him to be honest, because
it'"lIl do nme no good. He has everything to gain by

being able to testify.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So -- okay. So your
gquestion -- I'msorry. You had a coment.

MR. THURSTIN. Yeah. 1In regards to Panis
ability to reinterpret the C&, we've already nade
that very clear. The Val verde deci sion, reason why
we suggested this be dism ssed based on the Val verde
deci sion, because it kind of reinforced what was
already in the policy or in the C&B.

MR. MEADOWAS: | disagree because it says a
menber in good standing --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Pl ease. Jesus.

MR. THURSTIN. So we're not using them
together. W're using them as separate entities in
t hi s di scussi on.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. So ny question is,
did she or did she not --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Hang on, hang on.

MR. MEADOAS: -- reference the Val verde --
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: Let ne think about what
t he gentl eman sai d, please.

Can you clear up -- | don't -- I'"'min a
fog here. Wiy do you say it's a separate --

MR. THURSTIN. W' re saying that Pam can't
change the Constitution and Byl aws.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. Al right? That's a fact.
The Val verde decision pretty nuch stated the sane
thing that |'ve stated all along, that an inactive
nmenber does not have a good or bad standi ng.

MR. MEADOAS: It doesn't say that in the
C&B.

MR, THURSTIN It just said inactive
menber .

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Actually it says, from
what we read, he's |ost his good standing.

MR. THURSTI N. Correct.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So - -

MR. THURSTIN. Well, you could -- you
could infer that. You just don't have -- in the
Constitution and Byl aws you do not have a standing.
You're just an inactive nenber, period.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: COkay. So -- okay. So |

guess what |'mhearing is, to try and bring peace in
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our time, is that you -- we didn't have the Val verde
deci sion two years ago when this issue cane up or
back in 2012, and -- so we didn't have that as a
ref erence.

MR, THURSTI N: Correct.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Al right. \Were
to now, Larry?

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, | nean, they're
totally tal king around paragraph 5B. It doesn't --
it's totally nonsensical what he's saying.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wy -- okay. \Were --
give ne a question, Larry. W have -- Panis on the
st and.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She's still sworn in.

G ve ne a question.

MR. MEADOWS: | f | was in good standing
prior to ny date of disability and then becane
I nactive and stopped paying dues, do | remain in
good st andi ng?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Do you renain in good
standing? | think she's answered that. | got over
here that she says when she tal ked about --

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, the question is, the
C&B says a nenber --
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CHAl RVAN HEPP: She said the C&B --
pl ease -- does not define good or bad standing in
regard to inactive nenber.

MR. MEADOWS: But she acknow edged | was
I n good standing, and the C& says | remain in good
standing. As long as | don't owe any financi al
obligations. And I'mnot owi ng any financi al
obl i gati ons.

Here's a question. Does Pam Torell pay
dues?

CHAI RMVMAN HEPP: Well, | think the answer
tothat is -- well, actually, now that you're
secretary-treasurer --

M5. TORELL: It changed.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: |'m sorry?

M5. TORELL: It's been changed.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Onh, are you back to paying
dues agai n?

M5. TORELL: About two and a half years
ago. Yes.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So you' re payi ng dues.

M5. TORELL: Yes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She's payi ng dues.

MR. MEADOAG: As of what date?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: It doesn't matter.
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MR. MEADOWAS: Well, it does, because this
Is April 2014, three years ago.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. When did you start
payi ng dues?

M5. TORELL: | would have to look it up.

It was --

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Coupl e years ago?

M5. TORELL: Probably a couple. It was --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: All right. So it's 2017,
so we're tal king March, February --

M5. TORELL: Probably ' 15.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- 2015. So where are we?

MR. MEADOAS: My point is tosay if I'm
not in good standing, then the national officers
woul dn't be in good standing either under the old
policy.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, because there was --
ny understanding is there was a specific exclusion
witten in the policy nmanual that allowed if you
were a -- if you were a --

MR. MEADOAS: | understand, but they're
trying to say because | don't pay dues that |'m not
a nmenber in good standing, and that's not true. |I'm
not required to pay dues because dues cone out of

flight pay loss. And if the union wanted nme to pay
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dues --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Dues cone out of flight
pay.

MR. MEADOWS: Flight -- they cone out of
flight pay, which | don't get.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ri ght.

MR. MEADOWS: But if the union wanted to,
there's nothing in federal |law that bars them from
requiring ne to pay a mai ntenance fee or a due. UPS
drivers pay it under disability.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Do what now?

MR. MEADOWS: UPS drivers under disability
pay a mai ntenance fee in dues. They pay dues.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, non-nenbers pay a
mai nt enance fee.

MR. MEADOWS: But in federal court APA has
consistently tried to make ne and Kathy Enery out to
be |i ke deadbeats, |ike we're non-dues paying
nmenbers. And we're not non-dues payi ng nenbers. W
just aren't required to pay dues anynore. Keith
Wl son says it's out of the goodness of the
associ ation's heart because we're already getting a
shitty deal anyway as a result of being on
disability. And the association's trying to give
hi mthe benefit of the doubt.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: | don't think if Keith was
here he'd agree with that.

MR. MEADOWS: That's what he said.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: That - -

MR. THURSTIN. | object to this.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease, just stand --
you' Il have an opportunity.

Like | say, Larry, | can't help but go
back to the fact that we put a ot of tine and
effort to give you this opportunity. | don't see
how t hat makes us think you' re a deadbeat or --

MR. MEADOWS: Wiy does -- why doesn't --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But wait, wait. Larry,
hol d on, pl ease.

MR. MEADOAS: |'mjust trying to nove it

al ong.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but they have an
opportunity too.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And we're trying to do
this wthout a lack of civility. So let's keep the
train on the track.

Pl ease, you had a comment ?

MR. THURSTIN.  Yes, sir. Under Article
|11 of the Constitution and Byl aws, Section 2.C,
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| nacti ve Menber shi p.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Ckay. |I'msorry. Article
1117

MR. THURSTIN. Article Ill, Section 2,
Cl asses of Menbershi p.

MR. MEADOAS: Wait a second. See, this --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Larry, please.

MR. MEADOWAS: Ckay. Well, we're going on
the wong track here. M whole question --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: WAit a second.

MR. MEADOAS: -- is getting hijacked.
CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, no. Stop.
MR. MEADOWAS: | object to the fact that

he's hijacking nmy |line of questioning.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: And -- and | amtrying --
| ook, Larry, the line of questioning that was
happeni ng before was not working. Okay? People
were getting angry. People were saying things they
didn't nean, | think. Gving everybody the benefit
of the doubt. So I'mtrying to figure out a way to
keep this on the track. And this seens to be
wor ki ng, but, in fact, we're all |earning sonething
here with this -- with what's transpiring right now.
So allow himthe opportunity so maybe we can keep

the train on the track.
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So you were at Article Ill, Section 2.

MR. THURSTIN. C, Inactive nenbership.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: I nactive nenbershi p.

MR. THURSTIN. And shall | read it, or do
you want to just --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, pl ease, go ahead.

MR. THURSTIN: "I nactive nenbership shal
be assigned to flight deck operating crew nenbers,
I ncl udi ng check airnmen, who have conpl eted the
probationary period and neet the qualifications set
forth in Article Ill, Section 1.A upon application
and approval. Pilots in the foll ow ng enpl oynent
statuses shall be eligible for inactive nmenbership."”

| n the paragraph bel ow, nunber 2, it
clarifies nedical or personal |eaves of absence. In
the followng witten | anguage, it says | nactive
Menmber. A nenber in good standing shal
automatically be transferred to inactive nmenbership
status upon being on | eave of absence fromthe
Conpany 12 nonths after the expiration of paid sick
| eave or being in the mlitary -- |I'm
par aphrasing -- being on active flying status with
AA, pil ot owes back dues.

THE REPORTER: |'msorry. Being --

MR. THURSTIN. Active duty in the arned
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forces, continuous active duty in excess of 60
nonths. Larry's status changed because he was out
for nore than 12 nonths. Has nothing to do with his
dues paynents. It has to do that he was out for
nore than 12 nonths on nedical disability per the
C&B.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Well, let's -- on the
prem se or the assunption that nedical disability is
a | eave of absence, which it is not, Anerican
Airlines has testified that disability is not a
| eave of absence. It's a status change. It used to
be under Supplenent F of the retirenent plan, when
you notice on the seniority list it's under NDSB.
Sick | eave of absence, injuries on duties, |eaves of
absence all are -- IDLOA, SLOA, personal |eave of
absence, PLOA, mlitary leave, MLOA. Disability is
not a | eave of absence. And | would contend that

| ' ve been treated as an active nenber until 2012

until Pam Torell cane in office. | had an acti ve
nmenbership card. There's docunments I'Ill present
| ater that --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: And what was the date --
what was the date of the |ast nenbership card,
active?

MR. MEADOWAS: Card -- it was issued --
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well, it says valid through Septenber 30 of 2012.
MR. THURSTIN. | object.
MR. MEADOWS: Signed by Keith. [t's on
Exhibit -- let's see. It's sonewhere in here, this
big exhibit. 1'll find it. But anyway, | have an

active nmenbership card, it's Exhibit 4, until 2012.

And then there's -- if you | ook at
docunent 5, this APA group termlife and voluntary
| nsurance and di snmenbernent plan effective January
1, 2013, for active nenbers. |If you go to the | ast
page, in footnote 1 it says, "Disabled nenbers are
consi dered active until age 65 or retirenent."”

So for purposes of certain benefit plans,
APA was treating disabled nenbers as active. And
argued that we -- it was a m stake that we were on
C&R for alnost 15 or 20 years. We were being
treated as active. Today, as it stands, | amon C&R
and the APA only provides for active, retired, or
furl oughed, and I'mnot retired or furloughed, so --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Yeah, but you're still --
you're still connecting the dots, Larry.

MR. MEADOAS: |'mjust trying -- |'mjust
trying --

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  You're back on C&R because

Ms. Enmery won in a federal court --
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MR. MEADOA5S: |I'mtrying to say, this is
an argument --
CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- not because -- not

because of your, quote, your nenbership status. The
judge found it a free speech issue.

MR. MEADOWAS: No, no, no. Judge said that
she needed to be treated as an active nenber for
pur poses of access to C&R  Based on that, Captain
Carey --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: W' Il have to agree to
di sagree because | also read it.

MR. MEADOWS: Captain Carey put us back
on, but her decision was not a class action. It
wasn't bindi ng.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: And it was al so specific
to her, if | don't recall.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, it wasn't binding.

Dan didn't have to put us back onto the C&R

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ri ght.

MR. MEADOAS: So ny point is --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So | think there's nore to
It than just what that -- the insurance disability.

MR. MEADOAS: There is. This whole
t hi ng' s convol ut ed.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: It is very convol ut ed.
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MR. MEADOWS: Because |I'mjust trying to
say that based on APA' s practices, there's argunent
to be nade that they treated us as active nenbers
for certain reasons for C&R and benefit plans. They
treated us as active. And also --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But, Larry, how do you get
over -- well, hang on a second.

MR. MEADOAS: No, |'m saying but we're not
| nactive because we're not really on a | eave of
absence so we're not -- let nme just --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. MEADOWNS: We're not really on a | eave
of absence --

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  All right.

MR. MEADOWS: -- okay, nunber two. And |
want to nmake one ot her conment.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: All right. Well, while
you're thinking of that, Jeff, I'"msorry, you had --
| know you wanted to object.

MR. THURSTIN. Yes. The 2012 nenbership
card Larry received, M. Madows received was an
error. It was an error due to technical changes
within the APA and he was not supposed to receive
it.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Because?

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

188
MR. THURSTIN. Because he was on MDD as an
I nactive nenber. During that transitionary period

on the Status 1 report, they --

MR. MEADOAS: | wasn't MDD t hough.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Hang on, Larry.

MR. MEADOAS: | was still on the seniority
| ist.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, Pl ease.

MR. THURSTIN. Wen they changed it over,
t he conputer read everybody who was -- it changed
status during that period, i.e., tothe -- was it
MDD, Panf

M5. TORELL: Paid sick |eave.

MR. THURSTIN. On paid sick |eave, and
they read them as com ng back.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN: And they sent himin error.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Do you have paperwork to
t hat ?

M5. TORELL: Yes.

MR. THURSTIN:. Yes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Okay. |Is that part of
your exhibits?

MR. THURSTIN. | believe it is. It's in

Tab 15 which shows the changeover portion.
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MR. MEADOWNS: Did they ever notify any of
t he MDD nenbers of that error?
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease direct your

comments to the chair, for God's sakes.

MR. MEADOAS: |I'mtalking to you. I'm
| ooki ng right at you.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: | can't think and wite at

the sane tine.

MR. THURSTIN. The active Status 1
reports, you'll notice a break on page 3. And
during that tine period -- subsequent to that tine
period there were cards that were sent out to the
menbers.

M5. FLETCHER: That's 2008.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: 2008. Looks like it ends
in"'"11, '08 to '11?

MR. THURSTI N. Correct.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOWS: Are you guys going to -- is
Captain Torell going to verify the authenticity of
this docunent? Because it's been proven --

M5. HELLER: This is her exhibit.

MR. MEADOAS: It's been proven to be
I naccurate in the equity proceedings. | was

actually never with an undefined period or on unpaid
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sick | eave of absence. |[|'ve been continuously on
MDSB and LTD with no breaks in service. 1've been
continuously on either MDSB or LTD with no breaks in
service since the day | was hired. And it was in
the Wl son docunents in a pension statenent because
t he pension benefits commttee gave ne a full
retroactive award. And it's as if |'ve never been
on an unpai d sick | eave of absence, ever. 1've
al ways been on a disability, MDSB or LTD st atus.

And that's --
MR. THURSTIN. We'Il happily verify this

docunent.

MR. MEADOAS:  Well, this docunent is a
handover from Anerican. It's not even a rea
docunent. It's -- APA takes this data from

Anerican's Status 1 reports and nmakes this report.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ri ght.

MR. MEADOAS: And they were all erroneous
in the equity proceedings. Al nost every one of them
had errors init. They're just not accurate
docunents. So |I'mgoing to object to the
aut henticity of the docunent.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Well, but let's be clear.
This is what she's going on, right?

MR. MEADOWS: No, | don't think so.
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CHAI RVAN HEPP: | nean, when you're trying
to decide who gets a ballot, when you're trying to
deci de who gets a willingness to serve.

MR. MEADOWNG: Well, if she's going on
t hese --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, please, one at a
time. And since |I'mthe chairman, | get to talk
first.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So, you know, when the
secretary-treasurer is trying to decide, nmiling out
ballots to vote for national office of domcile,
wi I lingness to serve, they're using the Status 1
docunents. So, inaccurate or not, that's what she's
using to --

MR. MEADOWAS: And | understand. M status
I s unusual because a deli berate decision was nmade at
the conpany level to | eave ne on the seniority |ist.
That's why |'m back on disability today because they
term nated ny benefits and left nme out to dry, but
they did not take ne off the seniority list at the
five-year point. They did not take nme off at all
until | nade the whistleblower conplaint. But at
that point | had reapplied for disability, which
they said | couldn't do.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: Larry, we know all that
stuff.
MR. MEADOWS: But Anerican's records show
nme as being on active duty in Cctober of 2011, I|ine
status. It's right here in the APA's report. In

LMB4, if you look at the AA status, |ine.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, where are you so |
can foll ow you?

MR. MEADOWS: LM34, one of those docunents
we copied earlier.

MR. THURSTIN. Is that one of the ones you
passed?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Yeah, that's one of the
ones he passed out.

MR. THURSTIN.  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So you were on,
okay, status, |ine, MDD

MR. MEADOW5S: So it goes -- if you read
across, AA status was line. The AA status date was
9/ 3/2008. So, in other words, the conpany showed ne
as being on active duty which is why | was able to
reapply for disability because | was active, because
| never cane back to active duty.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. MEADOWS: It was a total screwup on
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their part, but it was a | egal maneuver. They were
afraid of a wongful termnation suit, so they left
me on the seniority list as part of their legal --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Can we just -- can we
| eave the conjecture out and just give ne the facts?

MR. MEADOWS: |'mjust trying to give sone
background because ny situationis a little
different.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Larry, you know we're
famliar wth your background.

MR. MEADOWNS: Captain Torell obviously
isn't, and her representative is not. And |I'm not
faulting him but he didn't have the benefit of

sitting through these | ast proceedings, so there's

no continuity for him Anyway, | nean, | --

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Since he's not ruling on
the issue, I"'mnot sure that's rel evant.

MR. MEADOWAS: So if you want, I'Il just go
to straightforward questions, but, | nean --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ckay. That would -- let's
try that then. And we'll see if we can't break new
ground. I'msorry. Hold on.

MR. THURSTIN. | had one objection. Larry

kind of made ny point for nme in the respect that

there was sone problens with the data. But the fact
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that -- that's not in dispute here is that
M. Meadows went out on nedical in 2004 and becane
an inactive nenber in 2005.

MR. MEADOA5S: No. | remained active until
| went back on the new disability plan. It's a
whole -- | --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: But, Larry, again, | think
what |'m hearing is you're quoting American Airlines
status. You're quoting --

MR. MEADOWAS: Well, that's what matters
here. The Status 1 reports are driven by Anmerican
Airlines.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: The -- but there's also
the Constitution and Byl aws.

MR. MEADOWS: But APA doesn't get to nmake
up ny status. They have to foll ow what Anerican
gives them \Wat Anerican says is what | am APA
doesn't decide what | am It's what happened in the
equity. They decided you shouldn't really get four
sil os because you were on disability in 2004.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But that's why you get to
go to an arbitrator and soneone gets to be a neutral
and deci de.

MR. MEADOWS: Al right. "Il just stick

to questions.
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CHAl RMAN HEPP: Let's try -- yeah, let's
see how this goes.

MR. MEADOWS: All right. 1'll just go
t hrough the exhibits. So Tab 1, let's go to page
11, Section 7.B.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: So you're in the C&B.

MR. MEADOWS: Right.

M5. HELLER: I'msorry. Say it again?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Page 11.

MR. MEADOWNS: Tab 1, page 11, Section 7,
par agr aph B.

M5. HELLER:  Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Oh, okay. Menbership
right and obligati ons.
BY MR NEADOWEG:

Q So ny question is, Captain Torell, she's
al ready conceded |I'm an inactive nenber, so am |l
entitled to all rights, all benefits of active
menber ship except for privileges of voting, holding

office, and participation in association-sponsored

prograns?
A | believe you read Section 7.B.
Q Yes.
A Correct?
Q Yeah.
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A That's the Constitution and Byl aws we
foll ow, yes.
Q So you agree that I'mentitled to al
rights and privil eges and benefits of active
menber shi p?
A | believe it says -- it doesn't say rights

and privileges. It says benefits of active
menber shi p except privileges of voting and hol di ng.
And then you should go on into C. Do you want ne to
go on into C and read that?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Yeah. Can -- let nme do
it. Let ne read this so we're all on the sane page.
Ckay? "Apprentice and inactive nenbers shall enjoy
all the benefits of active nenbership except the
privileges of voting, holding elected office, and
participation in association sponsored prograns
where specific requirenents prohibit such
participation.”

Now, did you want to go sonewhere el se
after that?

MR. MEADOAS: Yeah. So right above that,
paragraph A, it says a nenber in good standing is
entitled to participate actively in all APA
activities and is entitled to all of the rights and

privileges and benefits of APA nenbership.
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So it seens |like inactive nmenbers have to
be in good standi ng because they're enjoying the
sane things as nmenbers in good standing.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ckay. | think that's
asked and answered though. She's already -- she's
gi ven her answer --

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- as far as your
st andi ng.

MR. MEADOWS: Al right. So --

M5. FLETCHER: | disagree. | think we're,
you know, splitting hairs here and | ooki ng at words.
B says benefits. A says rights, privileges, and
benefits. | don't think that's the sane.

MR. MEADOWS: It says benefits except the
privileges of voting. This thing is witten really
badly. You're right though. It inplies you have
privileges other than voting and hol ding of fice.

M5. FLETCHER It does.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: It inplies what? |'m
sorry. | mssed that.

MR. MEADOWS: Paragraph Binplies -- it
basically nmentions privileges, but it inplies you
have the privil eges except for voting and hol di ng

of fice.
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M5. FLETCHER: But there's also rights.
MR. MEADOAS: Right. It doesn't say you
have rights, so it doesn't nmake sense. Ckay.
That's confusing nme now.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Thank you, Larry. Wl cone

to the club. 1It's nice to have you aboard.
MR. MEADOWNS: (Okay. So, Captain Torell,
as an individual nenber, do you -- are you obligated

to conply with the Constitution and Byl aws?

MR. THURSTIN. | object. W' ve already
answer ed t hat.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think that's asked and

answer ed.
MR. MEADOWS: As a secretary-treasurer is
she obligated to conply with the Constitution and

Byl aws?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think that's al so asked
and answer ed.

MR. MEADOAS: | don't think so.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She's here doi ng her job.
She's trying to conply with the rules of the road.
MR. MEADOWS: Captain Torell, can you
pl ease read --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think that -- | think

we're just getting back to argunent.
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MR. MEADOWAS: This is inportant. [It's
going to lead to nmy next question.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, but ny point is,
Larry, is | just don't want to get back into an
argunentative state, and | think those are obvious
asked and answered questions. You' ve asked them |
think -- | think let's call it a rhetori cal
guesti on.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. |'ll leave this to ny
next question then. GCkay. On Tab 1, page 12,
Section 7.E, this is ny first part of ny question.
"Menbers of the Association shall accept and
agree" --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  Hol d on, hold on. [|'m not
with you. Were are you?

MR. MEADOWS: Page 12, Section 7,
par agr aph E.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  "Menbers of the
Associ ation shall accept and agree to abide by the
Constitution and Byl aws of the APA as they are in
force or as they may be anended, changed, or
nodi fied in accordance with the provisions of this
Constitution and Byl aws. "

MR MEADOWS: Correct.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.
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MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. So ny question is,
given that, did you conply with Section 4 of the C&B
with respect to MDD pil ots?

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: I n regards to what?

MR. MEADOWS: MDD pil ots.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, but you're asking did
she comply with the C&B, and conply as to what? Her
menber ship cards, her --

MR. MEADOWS: | ssui nhg nenbership cards,
Section 4. Did you conply with your obligation to
| ssue nmenbership cards?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, | think -- again,
|"'msorry. | mean, again, I'mtrying to prevent

what happened earlier. And | think her point is --

and don't let nme put words in your nouth -- is that
because of a lawsuit, she, |I'mimagining | egal
advi ce --

MR. THURSTIN. On the advice of counsel.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- on the advice of
counsel was to wi thhold nmenbership cards.

MR MEADOWS: So --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Wbul d that be accurate?

M5. TORELL: Ckay. | would like to say
that to be fiduciarily responsible with the

menbershi p's noney as well as secretary-treasurer,
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seek | egal counsel to do the best with their noney
and their dues, and that's what | was told to do.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Qovi ousl y.

M5. TORELL: Thank you. Appreciate it.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: That's just part of the
j ob.

M5. TORELL: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: But so --

MR. MEADOWS: Okay. So ny question is,
were you advised by |egal counsel to violate the
C&B?

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Now, Larry.

MR. MEADOWNS: No, that's the question.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think the question woul d
be -- | think the question would be were you advi sed
by counsel --

MR. MEADOWS: Not to uphol d your

obl i gati on.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- to w thhold nenbership
cards until the lawsuit was answered. | think -- |
think -- because cone on, Larry. Now you're just --
you're just -- you're throw ng a grenade in the

room
MR. MEADOWS: Captain Torell, did you --

were you advised to not conply with Section 4 of the
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C&B and w t hhol d i ssuance of special nenbership
cards to MDD pilots? That's the question.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So read that again,
pl ease.

(Request ed text was read)

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  How about | -- let ne ask
t he questi on.

Were you asked to w thhold nmenbership

cards from MDD pilots during the |awsuit?

M5. TORELL: | followed | egal's advice.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wi ch was?

M5. TORELL: | would have to go back and
find sonething in witing, but | know | just took

t hei r advi ce.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So --

M5. TORELL: And followed it.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP:  No, | understand. Ckay.
So do you have -- | nean, is it ane-mail? Is it a
conversation? Is it a-- | nmean, ny point -- |
guess ny point is, Larry's got a justified point.
He sent a letter asking for a nenbership card,
what ever that happened to be, inactive --

MR. MEADOWS: On April 4, 2014.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- active, speci al

menbership. | nean, even in his charge he states
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he's willing to accept either an active nenbership
card or a special nenbership card showi ng his
I nactive status. He's asking for one or the other.
And | think it's a justified question given the
proceedi ngs, you know. You know, your statenent has
been you were given | egal advice.

M5. HELLER: Stop for a second.

(Of record from 3:22 to 3:23)

M5. HELLER: | think, if | understand
Captain Torell's statenent, in doing her duties she
has followed the direction of counsel. And as to
what that advice given by counsel was, | think that
may fall under privileged conmuni cati on.

MR. THURSTIN.  Exactly. That was ny next
poi nt .

M5. TORELL: Attorney-client privilege.
Thank you.

M5. HELLER: So | think that it is on the
record that you conplied with your duties and
foll owed the advice of counsel in so doing.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

M5. HELLER: | don't think we can ask you
as to what that advice was specifically.

MR. MEADOWS: Al right. So --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: My apol ogi es.
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MR. MEADOA5: So given that the first
request for nenbership cards or when it was disputed
in the tinme frane of the C&R | ockout -- so on or
around April 2014 is when the litigation was
I mMm nent or starting. | think you testified
earlier, when did you first take office? Was it
June of 20137

| ' m aski ng when she first took -- |'m
supposed to ask you.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Do you renenber? June?

M5. TORELL: July 1.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  July 2013.

BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Ckay. So when you took office July 2013,
there was no litigation regarding MDD pilots. So
did you at that point in tinme uphold your
obligation -- let ne restate it.

I n your prior testinony you stated that
fromthe day you took office in June of 2013, you
bel i eved MDD pilots were always inactive. So at the
time you took office, did you conply with your
obl i gati ons under the C&B and i ssue nenbershi p cards
to MDD pilots in June of 20137

A According to the Constitution and Byl aws,

there are no specific dates or tines or expiration
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dates on a special nenbership card. So, yes, | did
conpl y.
Q Really? | didn't have a nmenbership card.
| had a nenbership card when Scott Shankl and was in
office and | didn't have one when you cane in

office, so why is that?

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Well -- okay. So --
MR. MEADOAS: Can you explain why --
CHAI RMAN HEPP: WAit a second. | want to

be clear. So you had a special nenbership card with
Scott Shankl and.

MR. MEADOWS: | had an active card until
Sept enber 2012, six nonths before she cane in
of fice.

MS. HELLER  So --

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: | know. We've got the
obj ection on that. Under st ood.

M5. HELLER: So from Septenber of 2012
forward, you had no nmenbership card, but she wasn't
in office until July of 2013. Is that correct?

MR MEADOWS: Correct.

M5. HELLER: So there was a --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So there's a gap of --

M5. HELLER: -- ten-nonth period or so

where you had no nenbership card prior to her taking
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office? Is that correct?
MR MEADOWG:  Yes.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Okay. So -- okay.
MR. MEADOA5S: So it sounds to ne --
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, let nme ask you this.
So when did you send your first letter asking for a

menber shi p card?

MR. MEADOAS: |'m | ooking at ny records
right now. | have one August 3rd, 2015, | believe,
which is a year after the C&R | ockout. | think

there's one prior, but | can't find it. That's al
| have.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Al right. So --

MR. MEADOAS: So | guess ny point is --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, hang on. So | ast
active was 2012, is 2012. And it was what,
August 20127 |s that what you sai d?

MR. MEADOWS:  August 3rd, 2015.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  No, no, no, no, no. Wen
you had an active nenbership card was August --

MR. MEADOWS: Septenber 30th, 2012.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Septenber 2012. And then
Pam t ook office July 1, 2013. And then you wote --
so then you wote your letter August 3rd, 2015,

asking for a nmenbership card.
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MR. MEADOAS: No, | take that back. That
was a final demand. The first request for a
nmenber ship card was Decenber 4 of 2014.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: \Where do we have that in
your exhibits?

MR MEADOWS: Tab 10.

MR, THURSTIN. It's in our Tab 3,
Exhi bit 2.

M5. HELLER: Oh, wait. This is which
group of exhibits?

MR. MEADOWS: My book, Meadows.

M5. HELLER: The new book? Not the old
one.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, the new one. Yeah, we
won't be using the old book.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Tab 3?

MR. MEADOWS: Tab 10.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Tab 10. Al right. Tab
10 | have -- oh, certified |letter Decenber 4. Kkay.
So -- okay. So now with that, w thout asking what
advi ce, when did you -- when was the -- so when was
the lawsuit that triggered the |egal advice?

MR. THURSTIN:. | have Docunent 35 filed on
11/ 3/ 14, Novenber '14, in the United States District

Court for the District of Uah, Lawence Madows,
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plaintiff, versus Allied Pilots Associ ati on.

MR. MEADOWS: \What docunent is that?

MR, THURSTIN:. It is our Tab 12, first
docunent.

M5. HELLER: Docunent 35. That was
Novenber of 2014.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: 11/3/14, yeah. kay. All
right. So, hey. GCetting alittle clarity here.
Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: | believe that, yeah, the
| awsuit only was in reference to the C&R | ockout.

It had nothing to do wth the nenbership card
| ssuance, so that was not disputed at that tine.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Well, |I'mnot going to ask
her --

MR. MEADOAS: No, |'m saying the LVMRDA
claimwas only with regards to the C&R | ockout, so
there was no pending litigation regardi ng nmenbership
cards at the tinme she says she was advised not to
| ssue them

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. | understand.

MR. MEADOWS: This is a --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But obviously you're --
don't have -- so obviously we need to reread the

Utah | awsuit now. But either way, her testinony
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is -- again, don't let nme put words in your nmouth --
Is that because of that |itigation, you were advi sed
not to issue --

MR. THURSTIN. | don't knowif | would say
that, Chuck. |'d say she consulted with her
att orney.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Okay. Al right.

MR. MEADOWS: So basically, based on | ega
advice, she failed to conply with the C&. Doesn't
matter if it was approved by | awers. Steve Hoffnman
I's not bound by the C&B. He's not going to be
sitting in here. She is. She is the individual
t hat took the action.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And | understand your
cl ai m

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Ckay? So where to?

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, let's go to LM35.

It's the | oose docunent that was issued earlier.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. So that was
Wl son's testinony?

MR. MEADOWS: Correct.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: And this is the evidentiary
hearing transcript dated 9/27/2016. Please go to
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what ?

excer pt.

VR.
read lines 2 to 7 on page 178.
MR. THURSTI N:

copy of this transcript. Al | have is this

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Yeah.
MR, THURSTI N:

out what exactly is going on.

page 178 and read line 2 to 6.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. 178. Read line

VEADOWE:

MR. MEADOWNS: 1'Ill certify for the record
that it's an exact copy of the --

M5. HELLER: This is Keith Wlson's
testi nony.

MR MEADOWG.  Yes.

M5. HELLER: And you want Captain
Torell --

MR MEADOWG:  Yes.

M5. HELLER: -- to read Keith Wlson's
testi nony?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think what | woul d say

Is that this is what post briefs are for. You
shoul d be asking for a copy of the full transcript.
MR. THURSTI N:

210

|'d like Captain Torell to

| don't have a conplete

It's kind of hard to figure

W will.
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CHAl RVAN HEPP: And - -
MR. MEADOWAS: | can turn this into a
sinple question, if | nay.
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Well, | think give her an

opportunity to read the --

MR. MEADOWA5: She can read it to herself.
| don't have to --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So if you've read it,
pl ease | et me know when you're ready for a question.
Just the highlighted is what he's referring to.

M5. TORELL: |'mready.
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Ckay. What's the date of that docunent?

A The top right corner is Septenber 27th,
2016.

Q Ckay. So Captain WIlson has testified
under sworn testinony that a disabled pilot's
current in dues and disability is in good standing
prior to disability remains in good standing.

THE REPORTER. |'msorry. Could you say
t hat again, a disabled pilot who --
BY MR MEADOWS:

Q Ckay. So this is quote from Captain

Wlson. "Ckay. So if a disabled pilot is current

i n his dues and goes disability, so he's on good
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standing prior to going to disability, does he
remai n a nenber in good standing?" Captain WIlson's
answer, "He's a nenber in good standing. He's not
an active nenber."

So can you explain why Captain WI son
seens to think that pilots on disability for nore
than five years -- do you want to answer the
gquestion?

MR, THURSTIN. Can | answer it?

MR. MEADOA5S: No. |'m asking the wtness.
You're not a w tness.

M5. FLETCHER: |I'mquite sure that Captain
Torell cannot answer what Keith W1 son thinks.

MR. MEADOWS: | want her to explain why

she has a different opinion than him
M5. FLETCHER: Then ask her that.

BY MR NMEADOWS.

Q Captain Torell, | would like to know why,
despite Captain WIlson's sworn testinony that
di sabled pilots that were current in dues when they
went on disability remain in good standi ng, why you
di sagree with him

A | would reference Article IIl of the
menber -- of the Constitution and Byl aws,

Menmber shi p, Section 2, and continuing on into
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Section -- conplete Section 2 and the definition of
| nactive.
Q So you think Captain WIson was w ong?
A | can't speak for Captain W] son.
Q Well, do you disagree wwth his statenent?
A | was not in attendance at this hearing.

| do not have a --

Q Let's go to --

A -- conpl ete docunent.
Q You don't need it.
A | don't feel at this tine | can --
Q Let's go to the next page, page 198,
pl ease.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: But, Larry, please give
her the opportunity -- if you're going to ask her

t he question, please give her the courtesy of
answeri ng.
MR. MEADOWS: ['Il go to the next one.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, cone on. G ve her
an opportunity to answer the question, please.
MR. MEADOAS: All right.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Al right, Captain Torell, next question
on the next page, 198, Captain WI son was asked,

"Okay. Since |'mcurrent in dues, you agree |I'ma
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menber in good standing, then?" Answer, "Yes."

So do you disagree with Captain Wlson's
testinony that Lawence Meadows is a nenber in good
st andi ng?

A. | am going to go back to ny interpretation
and nmy understandi ng of your status since | have
been in ny termthat you are an inactive nenber.

Q Are you authorized to interpret the C&B?

A | -- okay. Then | would reject the word
"interpret." That was an i nproper use. You're
right. According to the C&B, you are an inactive
menber .

Q Then why woul d Captain WIlson say | am an
active nenber?

A | would not -- I'"'mnot able to speak for
Captain W1 son.

Q Did Captain WIlson issue an interpretation
on nenbership status for MDD pilots?

A. Yes.

Q So woul dn't you agree that he -- he's the
authority, and if Captain WIlson says |I'm an
I nactive nenber in good standing, that nust be ny
status? Are you overriding the --

MR. THURSTIN. | object to this |ine of

guestioning. Captain WIlson --
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MR. MEADOWAS: So | guess ny question is,
who is calling the shots here? Captain WIlson's
| ssued an interpretation. He's further clarified
the interpretation in sworn testinony that |'m not
only an inactive nenber, |I'man inactive nenber in
good standing. Do you disagree with that?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So where -- can we just
read his declaration so we can get a clear idea?
What tab is that?

M5. FLETCHER It's Tab 7 under --

MR. MEADOWNS: Tab 12.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Tab 12.

MR. MEADOAS: And if you want to take a
mnute to read through that, it's two pages.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Let nme know when you guys
are ready.

M5. TORELL: We're ready.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So there seens to be a
conflict between his testinony and his presidenti al
constitutional interpretation.

MR. MEADOWNS: What conflict do you see?

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Wl 1, he nentions in his
testinony that you're a nenber in good standing.

MR. MEADOA5S: He wasn't clear. He was

clarifying his interpretation in that |ine of
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qguesti oni ng.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: Does he remain a nenber --
well, | don't have all of the testinony --
MR. MEADOAS: We can get it.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- so | don't know if it

was a clarification or not. But the fact is, what |
see, and obviously we can work this through post
brief, he's saying in his testinony a nenber in good
standing, but in his presidential interpretation he
doesn't nmenber -- he doesn't nention whether you're
I n good standing or not in good standing. He just
nmentions that you are an inactive APA nenber.

MR. MEADOAS: He doesn't, because the C&B
says a nenber in good standing remains in good
standing. It was required, but | clarified that.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Again, | think that's --
don't know what he was sayi ng.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. But his testinony
speaks for itself.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And you have that and
you' ve asked that question and it's been answered.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. Now |'m going to bl ow
your m nd.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl 1, can you -- before

you do that, can | get ten m nutes? Because | just
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need to -- | need --

MR. MEADOWS:  All right.

(Recess from 3:39 to 3:46)

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Back on the record.
M. Meadows.

MR. MEADOWS:  All right. Let's go to Tab
1, page 5, paragraph B.

MR. THURSTIN: Paragraph D or --

MR. MEADOWNS: B. Article 2, paragraph B.

MR. THURSTIN. Article 2? kay.

MR. MEADOAS: And this is sonething |
brought up earlier. This was actually reqgurgitated
verbatimin the | RS docunent. But one of the prine
obj ectives of APAis to protect the individual and
collective rights of the nenbers of the APA and to
pronote their professional interest including tinmely
prosecution of individual and collective grievances.

So when you were taking your |egal advice

not to issue nenbership cards, do you believe --

MR. THURSTIN. | object to that.
MR. MEADOWNS: -- that protected the
I ndi vidual and collective rights of the nenbers?
MR. THURSTIN. | object. He's nmaking a
stipulation that -- of what was said in a

confidential conversation between the attorney and
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his client.

MR. MEADOWE: |'m not sayi ng what was
said. |'msaying she's adnmtted that she's been
advised legally not to issue the cards, that's why
she didn't conply with the C&B.

MR. THURSTIN. No, she did not.

MR. MEADOWS: So you just did not conply
with the C&. |Is that your testinony now?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: WAit, wait, wait, wait,
wait. Let's not travel too far afield here. Ckay.
So --

(Of record from 3:48 to 3:50)

CHAI RVAN HEPP: All right. So where are
we going, Larry? | nmean, | think what you're trying
to get Pamto admt is that because of |egal advice
she violated the Constitution and Byl aws.

MR. MEADOAS: Did she not issue the

menber ship cards based on | egal advice | guess is

the question. | think she said that. D d you? |
coul d ask the question.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: I'mjust -- |'mjust
trying to figure out -- is that a violation of

attorney-client privilege?
M5. HELLER: | think she said --
MR. MEADOWAS: She's piercing it by raising
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: Hang on, hang on.
M5. HELLER: She said that -- we can't ask
her as to the nature of the | egal advice she

received. She has said that she did receive | ega

advice. And that's -- we can't ask as to the
content of that or -- you can nmake your inferences.
MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. | have a better way

to ask it. Captain Torell --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. D d you have a
conment ?

MR. MEADOAS: -- was it your sole --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Hol d on, hold on.

MR. THURSTIN. One point that Captain
Torell's been on the sonewhat stand, so to speak,
for over four hours. |'d like to know how | ong
we're going to continue until we nmake the case.

MR. MEADOWAS: You can go seven hours in a
court of |aw

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Yeah, but that's not --
cone on, Larry. W're not --

MR. MEADOWS: Well, | nean, she's been so
evasive it's really slowed things dowmm. W lost a
| ot of time this norning.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Let's -- let's -- she
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knows where you're going. GCkay. Wat is she going
to do if she doesn't answer the question unti
tonorrow norni ng? Wat are you worried about?

MR. MEADOAS: Are we going to have an
extra day then?

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Maybe. |I'mnot thrilled
wth the idea, but if that's what it takes, that's
what it takes.

MR MEADOWS: As long as we get an extra
day if we need it.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Can we get an extra day?
Can we get Friday?

M5. TORELL: As | went back, they are in a
board neeting right now, weekly update. Yes.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  \Who?

M5. TORELL: The board. W have weekly
updat es every Wednesday and they are in it right
now, so | amhere instead of that. And from what |
confer as when | was back there, they will have a
voting conference call on Friday.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So that neans you can't
del egate that responsibility to soneone el se and be
here? When is the conference call? Wat tine is
the call?

M5. TORELL: | don't know the dates -- |
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don't know the tinme yet. | just know that it's
Friday. |t does involve financial issues.

O herwi se, | could understand del egati ng that
authority.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, let nme -- so can you
get a tinme?

M5. TORELL: Yes, | can get a tine. |
will. As soon as | have it, | wll provide that to

you.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So do you think you'l
know t his afternoon, or you won't know unti |l
t onor r ow?

M5. TORELL: No, they wll know within
probabl y anot her 30 m nutes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. So would you m nd
I f we went another 30 mnutes and then we'll call it
a day and --

MR. THURSTIN. Let's see where we're at in
30 m nut es.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: That's 4:20 anyway.

MR. MEADOAS: We're not even through the
menbership i ssue, and we have to get to the
gri evance part.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | totally -- Larry, I'm

right there with you, but |'mrunning out of steam
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MR. MEADOWS: | get it.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You know, |I'm an ol d nan,
now, Larry, and you've added a few gray hairs.
MR. MEADOAS: Not under Part 117. You can

give nme up to 18 hours, | think, or sonething.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Do what? Three-nman crew?
Yeah, but | get breaks. | haven't gotten any
breaks. There's no rest seat. | need a footrest.

M5. HELLER: |s your preference to end
earlier today rather than continue?

M5. TORELL: No, | would rather go on
t oday.

M5. HELLER: Rather go | onger today?

M5. TORELL: Exactly.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. We'd rather wap this up as
qui ckly as possible. W'd just |like M. Madows to
make his case.

MR. MEADOWS: [t's going to be awhile.
We're probably |ike halfway through the testinony.
So if you want to go faster, I'd like your client to
testify alittle bit nore --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, conme on, Larry.
We're trying to keep this civil, and so far we've

done okay for the |ast few hours.

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

223

MR. MEADOAS: So |'m confused.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: But to get back on point,
| think where you're driving is you're trying to get
her to say that she's violated the C& because she
did not give out nenbership cards based on a | awsuit
t hat was brought by you in Ut ah.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, but there's no
provision in the C& for litigation hold. And the

litigation hold anobunts to a violation of ny right

to sue, basically. It's like a formof retaliation.
BY MR MEADOWS:
Q | guess ny question is, do you concede

that Section 4 of the C&B requires you to issue MDD
pilots special nenbership cards? Do you --

A Say -- go ahead.

Q Captain Torell, do you concede that
Section 4 of the C&B requires you to issue MDD
pilots, as inactive nenbers, special nenbership
cards?

A. Article Ill, Section 4 states, as we spoke
bef ore, honorary nenbers, apprentice nenbers,
retired nmenbers, and inactive --

Q | didn't ask you to read it. | just asked
you to answer the question.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  She's answering the
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guesti on.
A | am
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Pl ease.
A | amsorry. Honorary nenbers, apprentice

menbers, retired nenbers, and inactive nenbers shal
recei ve speci al nenbership cards. | believe that
answers your question?

BY MR NEADOWS.

Q Ckay. And did you issue speci al
nmenber shi p cards when you becanme secretary-treasurer
to inactive nenbers?

A There's no stipulation in the Constitution
and Byl aws.

Q Just yes or no?

A That -- there is no stipulation in the
Constitution and Byl aws, and there is no expiration
date on a special nenbership card.

Q When you were given witten request by ne
for special nmenbership cards via certified nmail and
e-mail, did you issue a nenbership card to nme based
on ny witten request?

A Agai n, attorney-client privilege.

Q No. This is not attorney-client
privilege. |'masking --

A I ndirectly.
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Q No, it's not indirectly. The question
is --
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Don't talk -- okay. So --
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Here's the question. | nade two witten

requests upon you via certified mail to issue a
speci al nenbership card. D d you or did you not

| ssue nme a nenbership card based on those requests?

A We al ready answered this question.
MR. MEADOWAS: bject. That's not an
answer. | need to know -- | don't care if she's
told by the |lawers or whatever. | want to know if

she issued it or not.

M5. FLETCHER: Wen did you get your
speci al nmenbershi p card?

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Wl I, | think you know t he
answer to that, Larry. Wen did you get your
speci al nenbership card?

MS. HELLER: 2016, correct?

MR. MEADOWS: Decenber 2016 sonetine. The
| etter was undat ed.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Okay. So did you get it
prior to that tine?

MR, MEADOWS: No.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Any ot her MDD pilots you
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know got special nenbership cards prior to that
tine?

MR. MEADOAS: Did you -- did you receive
any requests in the last tw years from ot her MDD
pilots for special nenbership cards?

CHAl RMAN HEPP:  No, that's not -- |'m not
asking her. |'masking you. Do you know anybody
who had received any other --

MR. MEADOWS: | know ot her pilots that

made written requests and did not receive cards,

yes.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. So you're not the
only one.

MR. MEADOWS: |'mnot the only one.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: And did they receive them
in 20167

MR. MEADOAS: |In 2016, two years after
t hey asked for them

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So you now have your tine
line. Okay? W've got the -- we've got your | ast
active in 2012. Pam becane secretary-treasurer
July 1, 2013. You wote your first letter August 3,
2015.

MR, MEADOWS: No.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, |'m sorry, Decenber 4,
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2014. Excuse ne. And we have a lawsuit in U ah
11/ 3/ 2014, and she's claimng attorney-client
I nvol vi ng your question about the issuing of cards.
And now you' ve gone to one --

MR. MEADOAS: |'mjust asking her to
acknowl edge -- okay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But, Larry, it's rote.
Ckay? The dates, the facts that are in place answer
t he question. So what nore are you trying to draw?

M5. HELLER: | think maybe can we
stipulate that you requested it in --

MR. MEADOWS: Decenber 4 of 2014.

M5. HELLER: -- 2014. You received it --
you received a special nenbership card --

MR. MEADOWS: Two years |ater.

M5. HELLER: -- two years |later.
That's --
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q Can you give ne an explanation for the
t wo-year delay? Captain Torell, can you pl ease give

me an explanation as to why it took you two years to
| ssue a speci al nenbership card based on ny request
dat ed Decenber 4 of 20147

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You guys can huddle up if

you want .
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M5. TORELL: Yeah.
CHAl RMAN HEPP: It's okay. That's what
he's there for.
(Di scussi on between Ms. Torell and
M. Thurstin)

A Ckay. Exactly. Probably as |I've stated
previously, at the advice -- |'ve had -- obviously
went to general counsel, and that again is
attorney-client privilege. That's what they told ne
how to handle it.

BY MR MEADOWS:

Q Ckay. Do you think, know ng what you know
now, was that decision to delay issuance of
nmenbership card in the best interest of the
associ ation?

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: \WWhat rel evance does t hat

have on the bearing of charges?

MR. MEADONE: Well, it's one of the
violations of Article VII. She acted against the
best interest of -- I'Il get it right here.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  No, | understand what
Article VIl states.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, we've got to establish
two things. Her failure to i ssue nenbership cards

i n conpliance with Section 4, was it willful. She's
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just acknowl edged it was because she did not do it
at the advice of counsel. And nunber two, the other
thing | want to establish is --

M5. FLETCHER  That's not willful.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, sure it is. She nmade
a deli berate decision not to issue it.

M5. FLETCHER: On advice of counsel.

MR. MEADOWS: But the C&B doesn't provide
for advice of counsel.

M5. FLETCHER Well, that's still not
willful. WIIful would be they said do it and she

said no. That's wllful.

MR. MEADOW5S: | said do it and she said
no. | said do it and she said nothing for two
years. So that's wllful. [|'ma nenber. She works

for me, not the other way around.

MR. THURSTIN. | object.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, she's --

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Not ed.

MR. MEADOAS: -- tasked with serving the
nmenbership, not the institution, not Steve Hoffman.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. Let's get back --
|l et's get back on track.

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Ckay? You've --
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MR. MEADOAS: So do you believe that your
decision --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, stand by one. D d
you have anything to add to your objection?

MR. THURSTIN. My objection was that, you
know, he keeps making the statenent he's a nenber.
He's an inactive nenber.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | --

MR. THURSTIN. If we understand that.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Jeff, that's all -- that's
all post --

MR. THURSTIN. Very good.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, that'll all be post
brief. And, you know, just |ike, you know, [|'ve
done a couple arbitrations when you feel |ike you've

said the wong thing and you wish you'd said it a
little differently, that's what post briefs do.
They explain, as |"msure Capt -- or Larry WIson or
Larry --

MR. MEADOWS: Larry W/ son.

MR. THURSTIN:. You are tired.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: | know. |It's getting to
be a |ong day for ne.

MR. MEADOWAS: Kat hy Meadows. Kat hy
Meadows, ny wfe.
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M5. TORELL: Kathy Meadows.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: Yeah, there you go.
MR. MEADOWS: That woul d be bad. Ckay.
CHAl RMAN HEPP:  You said it, not ne.
MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.
M5. TORELL: | said it.
MR. MEADOWS: Tab 16. Let's go to Tab 16,
the fourth page in, paragraph O
M5. HELLER: Is this the LMRDA?
MR. MEADOAS: Yes. This is the LMRDA
29 U.S. C. 401, paragraph O
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Captain Torell, can you pl ease read
paragraph O for ne.

A Paragraph O. "Quote, Menber, quote, or,
quote, nenber in good standing, end of quote, when
used in reference to a | abor organi zation, includes
any person who has fulfilled the requirenents for
nmenbership in such organi zati on and who neither has
voluntarily withdrawn from nenbership nor has been
expel | ed or suspended from nmenbership after
appropri ate proceedi ngs consistent with | awful
provi sions of the Constitution and Byl aws of such
organi zation."

Q Ckay. So ny first question is, have |
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fulfilled all the requirenents for nmenbership in the
associ ati on?

A This references a nenber in good standing,

and you are an inactive nenber.

Q You can't interpret the LMRDA. |'msorry.

You can only read between the four corners of that
docunent .

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Okay. Again, please allow
me - -

MR. MEADOWAS: Ckay. All right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- to pretend to be --

MR. MEADOWAS: Well, it's the four corners
of a federal --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- the chairman while
you're in the room

MR. MEADOAG: |'msorry.

CHAIl RMAN HEPP: That's okay. So where are
we goi ng now, Larry?

MR. MEADOWS: | object, Captain Hepp. She
has to confine her testinony to the four corners of
this federal docunent. And it's relevant because
it's referenced in the C&B.

CHAI RVMAN HEPP; Okay. So -- well, but
again, Larry, we're not a court of law. You're

going to wite a brief to us --
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MR. MEADOAS: | want to ask these three --
CHAl RMAN HEPP: -- that says that --
MR. MEADOWS: These three specific --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: -- the LMRDA nakes the

claimthat you' re a nenber in good standing based on
t hi s docunent.

MR. MEADOWS: Yes. MWy --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | haven't had the

opportunity to read the whole docunent, so | have no

| dea - -

MR. MEADOAS: But there's three
requi renments, and | just want to know if | neet them
or not.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: But wait a second. First
of f, again, these docunents shoul d have been
exchanged seven days ahead so everyone had an
opportunity to |l ook at them

MR. MEADOAS: Not required though.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Pl ease, Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: She didn't give ne hers.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And don't get ne w ong.
| "' m not happy about that either. This thing would
be going along nuch faster had we. So we are where
we are, but again --

MR. MEADOWS: |'ll nove on. | --
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CHAIl RVAN HEPP: -- just as we are trying
to be fair to you, we are also fair to Ms. Torell.
And you're asking her to read one paragraph of a
docunent and then nake a judgnent w thout actually
havi ng the opportunity to read the entire docunent.
And by God, it's the LMRDA. You know, it would seem
| i ke she could use a little advice, |egal advice on
the issue as to whether this stipulates -- where
this stipulates your case. You know, it's --
there's got to be an el enent of fairness here.

M5. HELLER: And | think --

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, | think --

M5. HELLER: | think also for the sake of
argunent, if the C&B is in violation of the LMRDA
this is not the forumfor it.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, no, it is because the
C&B is specifically -- it refers to the federal
statutes, the right to inspect records and stuff.
It's clearly speaking to the LMRDA. So the C&B i s
citing authority to the LVMRDA --

M5. HELLER:  Correct.

MR. MEADOWAS: -- for the nenbership
| ssues.

M5. HELLER: But let's say the whole C&B
Is in violation of the LMRDA.
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MR. MEADOA5S: And it is. For exanple --
M5. HELLER: May or may not be.
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Just let --
MR. MEADOAS: | just want to make it --
M5. HELLER: But to play devil's

advocate --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Let Ms. Heller finish her
poi nt .

M5. HELLER: -- let's say that it is in
violation. W as the board, that's not our role.

MR. MEADOWS: | got it.

M5. HELLER: W're ruling within --

MR. MEADOWS: | got it.

M5. HELLER: -- the C&. The federal

courts are the ones who are going to say, hey, the
APA - -

MR. MEADOWS: No, | understand.

M5. HELLER: -- and C& is conpletely --

MR. MEADOWNS: And honestly, | --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And | think -- and | think
the issue --

MR. MEADOWS: But for general counsel's
decision, | would have been in federal court
resolving this. I'msorry | have to spare you this.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: The Enery case | think is
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a perfect exanple of the difference between what
we're asked to do and what the federal courts are
asked to do. So | think if you're going to ask her
gquestions on a conplicated docunent as this, you've
got to at |east give her the opportunity --
MR. MEADOWNS: We'll go to tonorrow, but

the point -- | want to understand, just --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So can you guys -- 1S
It -- can you guys work through this between now
and -- | nean, it's a nouthful.

MR. THURSTIN. | think that in deference

to what Ms. Heller said, is this wthin the scope of
t he board, of the appeal board?

MR. MEADOWS: It's within the scope of the
C&B.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Personally, | nean, that's

one of the things we're going to have to westle

wth as a board as to -- but, | nean --
MR. THURSTI N: Pam Torell follows --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: | don't want to say it

W t hout getting --
(Of record from4:07 to 4:08)
CHAIl RVAN HEPP: We're all on the sane page
here and, yes, Ms. Heller is correct. This just is

not the forumfor an interpretation of the LMRDA.
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MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: | don't have the -- |
don't have the wherewithal to come up, nunber one.
They don't -- haven't seen the docunent up unti
this point, two, and they should have the
opportunity to work through it to at least get up to
sone | evel of expertise. You've obviously had anple
opportunity.

MR, MEADOAS: |'mjust trying to use that
definition, but | guess --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And | think, if you'l
allow ne to finish, you're going to have your
opportunity when you go back to Ut ah.

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but | shouldn't have
to. And | guess ny point is this. [I'd like just to
make a comment to Captain Torell and to the board.

It's within the power of the APAto fix a
| ot of these issues. | don't know why they want to
go to federal court and be found out that there
can't be such a thing as active or inactive nenbers
and the fact that people |ike ne cannot vote,
because we're nenbers in good standing under the
LMRDA and we're entitled to all rights and
privileges. And it's going to cost the association

hundr eds of thousands and all kinds of resources.

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

238
They already | ost their E&  policy. They already
| ost nunerous counsel over these issues.
| nmean, it's been -- | can't use the word,
but it's been a CF. |It's a total screw job for the

union. And Keith Wlson testified what a nightnmare
It was after C&R | ockout trying to effectuate,

I npl enent all the progranm ng changes to | ock out a
smal |l group of pilots. What did they acconplish?
What were they afraid of? | was going to spill the
beans on their failure with Western Medical ? So
what ? The nenbership has got to know.

And |'m not here to punish Pam Torell or
make it personal. |'mjust here to get ny job back.
And | bear responsibility to all the MDD pil ots.
Because of ne, everyone was | ocked out of C&R

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, thanks to Ms. Enery
and Dan Carey, they're back on.

MR. MEADOAS: | know, but |I'msaying this

not in good standing issue is lingering, and | have

an obligation to fix that. I'mjust trying to
make -- |'mcom ng back here. I'mtrying to nmake it
better.

And | think the one takeaway from here,
Pam has the power, Dan has the power, and |'ve

tal ked to them about it, they really need to issue a
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proper interpretation because the interpretation
t hat everyone's relying on now, this Keith WIson
interpretation, is void and unenforceable on its
face because he's interpreting the CBA in addition
to the C&B which he has no authority for. So that
whol e interpretation has been -- | talked to a | abor
attorney. It's invalid. Only a system board can
interpret the terns of the CBA

And there's all this big fallacy that APA
has gone into the record in the Enery litigation how
pilots like ne are term nated under Section 11 and
renmoved fromthe list. There's no such thing. You
sinply cease to retain and accrue your relative
seniority as was basically upheld by the testinony
of Scott Hansen and Ji m Anderson in the Enery
deposi ti on.

So there's a lot of things that should be

fixed, but it's just -- so | guess it goes back to
nmy question was, was this all in the best interest
of the association? | nmean, that's nmy question.

Because it's cost a |lot of noney and a |ot of tine
and resources and a |ot of frustration, a ot of
pi ssed off people, and it's just -- | don't know why
we're doing it.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, | would -- again,
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| ook. Not everything you say is wong. Wen the
board sits and passes -- every tine the board sits,
it's a constitutional convention. You know? And
that's unusual for our union. That nornally
doesn't -- it's not that way. Nornmally you have
particular tinmes of the year or you have particul ar
years where you can nake alterations to a
constitution, but that's not true with our union.
Every tine they sit, they can pass whatever
resolution they want to alter the Constitution and
Byl aws. That's just the rules of the road that we
live by, Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: Right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: \When probl ens cone up, you
know, people sit around that table who don't have a
| ot of experience but are trying to do what they
think is in the best interest of the nenbership to
fix whatever those problens cone up with, just |ike
now that all the MDD pilots are back on C&R and now
there's an agreenent to not have people drop off the
seniority list in five years. Things generally --
It's like watching glaciers nelt. | nean, it just
happens sl owy.

MR. MEADOWS: Those are hard fought

| ssues. That's the issue |'ve been fighting for the
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whol e ti ne.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: But the -- this board,
appeal board isn't -- has to stick within the
confines of what we're given, and we're given the
constitution and the policy manual. And it's not a
perfect docunent, | agree. But that's -- those are
the cards that we're dealt. And we're just trying
to do the best that we can given the situation we're
in. And that's just where we are.

MR. NMEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So it's not a perfect
docunent. Yes, |I'd like to -- there are a |ot of
people in this building that have been working to
try and get this fixed, but there never seens to be
enough tinme. You know, there never seens to be room
on the agenda to talk about constitutiona
menbership issues and try to fix them

MR. MEADOWA5S: But it's costing the
associ ation a | ot of noney.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  |'m sorry?

MR. MEADOWAS: It's costing the association
a |l ot of noney because --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Mbost definitely.

MR. MEADOWS: How can you not have --

perfectly define what a nenber in good standing is?
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That's just ridicul ous.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Well, to not comment -- to
not agree or disagree, it's just this is where we
ar e.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. And unfortunately,
the only way -- you're right -- is if the
associ ation and the BOD, they got nore inportant
shit to worry about, so it's not going to get fixed.
And it's going to take a federal court ruling at a
great expense of tinme and aggravation. And | don't
really relish doing it, but I'"'mgoing to have to do
It, you know.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Well, | nean, it worked
for Ms. Enery.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, well, the LMRDA is a
very powerful renedy.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And | think if you | ook,
it noved the ball forward.

MR. MEADOAS: And APA is enbl ematic of
APA' s associ ation being in flagrant violation of the
LMRDA across the board on a |lot of issues, and it's
bad. Pam Torell, she's the one filing the LM 2
reports of the LMRDA.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: To keep it at 30, 000 feet

I nstead of casting stones down here --
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MR. MEADOWAS: |'m not casting stones, but
| nmean --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- | would just say that,
you know, there's always nore fires than there are
firemen. | nean, you just can't put all the fires
out. And we're just trying to do -- look, like I
say, Larry, | think we worked hard to give you your
fair day, as stipulated by the judge in Utah and
stipulated by the conscience of this board. So,
sorry, sorry. So where are we goi ng?

MR. MEADOAS: (Okay. | guess | wanted to
ask a question. Was the decision to delay issuance
of special nmenbership cards in the best interest of
t he association in your opinion?

MR. THURSTIN:. It's already answered.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: |'m sorry?
MR, THURSTIN. | say | object. It's
al ready answer ed.
MR. MEADOWAS: [t's not answered. | don't

know t he answer to that. What did she say? It's
not clear to ne.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Yeah, honestly, | nean,
you may have answered. Do you want to roll up
again? Because |I'mnot sure -- did he ask that

previously? | got so lost in --
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THE REPORTER: | don't know. |'d have to
| ook.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Woul d you, pl ease?

THE REPORTER. This is going to take ne
just a bit though.

Question was asked and there was a | ot of
colloquy afterwards and | don't see an answer.

There was a lot of colloquy and back and forth and
y'all went into private discussion, and | don't see
an answer .

CHAl RVAN HEPP: \What was your question
again, Larry?

MR. MEADOWS: (Question was, do you believe
that your decision to delay the issuance of speci al
menbership cards for sone two years after ny first
witten request was in the best interest of the
associ ati on?

M5. TORELL: Larry, all --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: There is one -- oh, |I'm
sorry. | didn't nean to interrupt.

M5. TORELL: No. Were you speaki ng?

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  No, no.

M5. TORELL: GCkay. To the chair? Al ny
actions and duties as secretary-treasurer are to the

best interest of the nmenbership. That is what |
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prom sed them and that's what | try to do.

MR. MEADOWS: |'m not asking generalities.
| "' m aski ng very specifically if she feels |like the
decision --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | think that's asked and
answer ed.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. So -- okay. Do you
know what it cost the association in |legal fees for
the Enery and Meadows litigation related to the C&R

| ockout and the nenbership card issue --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. |I'mgoing to --
MR. MEADOWS: -- including the --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: 1'm going to have to

obj ect to that.

MR. MEADOWS: Why? [t's public know edge.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Wl l, then -- but ny point
Is, it'"'s not -- it's not relevant to the
proceedi ngs.

MR. MEADOAS: It's relevant to if it was
in the best interest of the association. | want to
know what was spent and if there was a cost-benefit
anal ysi s done.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But, Larry, |'m going
to -- again, I'mjust -- that's |ike saying when we

go into negotiations, you know, the board goes into
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private caucus and they're trying to decide, you
know, is it better to get |anguage in a hotel
section versus, you know, disability versus -- |
nmean, it's -- you do the -- it's --

MR. MEADOWAS: | guess was there any
cost-benefit analysis -- Captain Torell, was there
any cost-benefit analysis done in consideration of
t he nmenbership card i ssue, whether to issue it or
not? Was cost and risk of litigation taken into
account ?

MR. THURSTIN. | object because | think
this has already been answered. She did the best
she could at the tinme based on counsel and
everything el se.

M5. FLETCHER  He's asking though. He's
asking i f anybody | ooked at the cost of this issue.
| think that's different. She may not know the
answer, but he's asking. Are you aware of any
cost-benefit analysis that was conpl eted at APA
related to the nmenbership card issue?

MR. THURSTIN. The only thing |I have issue
wthit is we don't know what -- because | do
anal ysis when |'mnot screwing around with this
stuff, so to speak. But we have no idea of what is

comng in regards to litigation, how nmany appeal s
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are going to go on. You could say, yeah, we did a

cursory analysis, but it would not be anywhere near

close to what the actual cost will be.

M5. FLETCHER: | think he just wants to
know i f anyt hi ng was done.

M5. TORELL: | don't know. | cannot
answer that. To the best of ny know edge, | don't
know.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, so that brings ne to a
guestion. | nean, you' ve already admtted that you

did not conply with C& on the advice of | egal
counsel for purposes of delaying the issuance of
speci al nmenbershi p cards.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: He's tired, so |'m goi ng
to object for Jeff.

MR. MEADOWS: Real ly? \Why?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl |, because, again,
you're trying to link her --

MR. MEADOAS: Do you think you got good
| egal advice on that decision? |'mnot asking what
it was. Do you think it was good?

MR. THURSTIN. | object. | object to
t hat .

M5. TORELL: Thank you.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, please. | nean --
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MR. MEADOWS: Do you know why -- Captain
Torell, do you know why Janes & Hoffrman was fired as
general counsel ?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Larry --

MR. MEADOWNS: That's a rel evant question.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- woul d you pl ease direct
your comrents to nme --

MR. MEADOWS: Yes, sir.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- because we're getting
back --

MR. MEADOWS: (Ckay, M. Captain Torell.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Thank you.

MR. MEADOWS: Captain Torell, do you know

why Janes & Hof fman was term nated as general

counsel ?
CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Yes.
MR. MEADOAS:  You do? \Why?
CHAI RMAN HEPP: Yeah. That's -- |I'm
keepi ng that one to nyself.
MR. MEADOWS: |'mactually asking her.
CHAl RMAN HEPP: | understand, but it's

conjecture. You're looking at 20 years. You know,
you' re going back to Slikkerveer, Sovich and Hunter
when they were the president. And the union, you

know, picked Janes & Hoffman to be | egal counsel.
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And then all of the, you know, think of all the crap

t hat happened between the tinme they were hired and
the tine they were fired.

| think it's -- | don't think you can sit
there and | ook at one particular incident and say
this is why they were hired or fired. It's a

accunul ati on of, you know, 15 years' worth of

having -- and, Larry, having been personally in a
| ot of those fights, | can tell you, it's not just
one i ssue.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Havi ng been there. And |
think it's -- again, | just think it's unfair to ask
Pam She hasn't been around. She hasn't seen
enough.

MR. MEADOAS: Al right. Well, Captain
Torell --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: That's deep water you're
treading in.

MR. MEADOAS: Was the E&O insurance
termnated as a result of the litigation related to
Emery and Meadows and the C&R | ockout and the
failure to i ssue nenbership cards?

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Can you explain to

me what E&O i nsurance iSs?
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MR. MEADOWS: Errors and om ssions
| nsur ance.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: It's like directors and
of ficers insurance --
MR. MEADOWS: Professional liability

I nsur ance.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: -- kind of thing?

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: \WWhat rel evance does t hat
have in --

MR. MEADOWS: A |lot. Because her
decisions clearly couldn't be in the best interest
of the association if it resulted in blowng up the
E&O policy and | eave the nenbershi p exposed and
vul nerabl e and uni nsured, which it did, because
there's so many cl ai ns agai nst the insurance policy
In Enmery and Meadows litigation, anong ot her things.
So that's ny question. | nean, these decisions to
not follow the C& have consequences.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease, Larry, make your
st at enent .

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. So ny question is --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: No, no, no. Larry, you've
got sonething you want to say.

MR NMEADOWS: No, no. | --
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CHAI RVAN HEPP: Just say it.

MR. MEADOAS: | want to know if that's why
the E&O policy was canceled. Wy was it cancel ed?
It's public knowl edge. Dan Carey said it was
cancel ed at the BOD neeting in August of 2015.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR MEADOWS: O ' 16.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So, again, we're back to a
situation where it's public know edge.

MR. MEADOAS: No, but not as to why it was
cancel ed, only that it was.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. But again --

MR. MEADOWAS: |t was cancel ed
Sept enber 2015, and it was disclosed to the
menbership in the BOD m nutes in August of 2016.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Here's what | am heari ng.
So forget about the -- am| going too far? Do you
guys want to just answer this or --

M5. TORELL: I'mfine with what you're --
"' m fine.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Answering it?

MR. THURSTIN.  You know, we're asking Pam
to get ahead of the decision-nmaking process that she
was not decider on. | don't believe Pam Torell nmade

a deci sion on whether or not to get rid of the
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Il nsurance, retain Janes & Hoffrman, get rid of Janes
& Hof fman. Those deci si ons were nmade above her. So
| don't understand where the relevance or what he
thinks he's going to get out of this.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, is Captain Torell, is
she or is she not responsible for the financial
affairs of the association?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But that doesn't nean she
does the hiring and the firing.

MR. MEADOWNS: No, it's got to do with she
shoul d act to nmake sure our E&O i nsurance i s not
termnated as a result of unlawful acts or actions
of the officers of the association.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Yeah, but you don't
know -- an insurance conpany never tells you if you
have one nore accident |I'mgoing to cancel your car
| Nnsur ance.

MR. MEADOAS: |'m asking her why. Yeah,

t hey do.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: M ne doesn't.

MR. MEADOWAS: They said that they woul d
reinsure APA until the Enery and Meadows litigation
were concluded. That's what they were told.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Wl |, then there you go.

MR. MEADOWS: But | want to know what she
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felt because I'mtrying to establish if she knew
that she was acting in the best interest of the
association or not. And clearly she wasn't, but |'m
trying to prove that. | need to prove that in order
to establish ny charge under Article VII.

| basically assert that her decision was
not in the best interest of the association, but I
need her answers to help prove that. | want to know
what she did and didn't do. Cdearly, it sounds like
she did nothing and just was ignorant to everything
bl ow ng up around her and didn't take any -- well,
she's not testified to the contrary. She's not
def endi ng hersel f.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wel |, but again, under her
right or responsibilities, she just wites the
checks. She doesn't decide the hiring and the
firing. She doesn't decide the legal matters or
what directions the union goes. | nean, that's --
those are -- these are board decisions. These are
presi dent's deci sions.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. So --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: When | was on the -- when
| was on the board, these are the things that cone
up that are part of strategy and generally --

MR. MEADOWS: | guess that's the question.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- unfortunately, conme up
i n closed session.
MR. MEADOWNS: 1'Ill help clarify it. Dd
the board -- who term nated Janes & Hoffman? Did
the board term nate Janes & Hof fman, or was it
of ficers of the association?
CHAI RVAN HEPP: | don't know. | know who
didit.
MR. MEADOAS: |'m asking Pam Torell.
CHAI RMAN HEPP: |I'msorry. Ckay.

deci si on.

> O > O

know who term nated Janmes & Hof f man?

term nated Janes & Hof f man?

or was it the president?

BY MR MEADOWG:

MR. MEADOWNS: Captain Torell --
CHAI RVAN HEPP: Do you know who -- do you

MR. MEADOWAS: -- do you know who

CHAl RMAN HEPP: WAs it a board deci si on,

M5. TORELL: It was the president's

And were you consul t ed?

No.

You were not consulted?

No.

And did you have an opinion of the
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deci si on once you heard about it?
A | rrel evant.
Q VWll, it's relevant if you thought it was

either detrinmental and prejudicial to the
association, it's rel evant.
Who' s tasked with nmaki ng sure we have

I nsurance? |Is that your job? Meaning E&O

| nsur ance.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Boy, you're getting a |ot
of | eeway because | -- | ook, |ook, Larry, |'ve got
to tell you. 1've known Dan for a |ot of years, and

there's been a fire built under getting rid of J&H,
you know, for a long tine. So | got to tell you, to
sit --

MR. MEADOWS: |'ve got as nuch information
as | could.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: I f you want to sit here --
|'mgoing to tell you right now, if Pam Torell wants

to call nme during the arbitration and tal k about

aninosity between the national off -- the president
and J&H, I'1l be happy to testify because there's
al ways been. This is like -- you tal k about public

know edge, holy shit.
MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, but she's taken advice
fromthem She's admtted that she didn't conply
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with the C& because she took the advice of the

fl awed general counsel.

MR. THURSTIN. (bj ect.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | don't think that's what
she adm tted, nunber one. And nunber two, that's
not where we are right now \Were we are right now
I S who decided to cancel -- who decided to fire
Janes & Hoffrman and did it relate to the insurance
| ssue.

MR MEADOWG:  Yes.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: And nunber one, | don't
t hi nk Dan cares about whether it had anything to do
Wi th the insurance issue. | think Dan wanted new
blood in the |l egal departnent. And so he was -- you
know, we had a conversation before he was el ected as
to what -- as to his opinions about Janes & Hof f man
and it hasn't changed.

(Tal ki ng si nul t aneousl y)

MR. MEADOWNS: He was on C&R three years
before saying they should be fired. That's no
secret.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Exactly. So | don't
understand. So where do you think you're going? |
mean, to sit -- now you're sitting here trying to

pick nits that --
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MR. MEADOWS: Because she's taking advice
fromthese people. Janes & Hoffman, for all the
good stuff they've ever done, has led this
associ ati on down a prinrose path. And you guys are
going to be paying, witing checks for years to cone
unl ess sone of these issues are resolved. And she's
following their advice to violate the C&B. So she
needs to be held accountable for that failure to
fol |l ow C&B.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ceez Louise. So what are
we going to do, Larry? Are we going to file Article
VI| charges about every nenber that has taken advice
from Janes & Hof f man?

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: | nean, are we on that
kind of a witch-hunt?

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, the path we're on is
every time that sonething -- APA does sonething
wrong and soneone goes to sue them Janes & Hoffman

go argue to the judge you have to cone back here and

file Article VII. So that's why |I'm here today.

| "' m not here because | want to be.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, | got to tell you --
MR. MEADOWAS: |'d rather be in court.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, | get that. 1'd
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rather you be in court. But you can't -- no, |'m
going to rule these questions out of order because
there's just way too nmuch history between Dan and
Janes & Hof f man and, you know, what Janes & Hof f man
has or hasn't done and the conjecture involved and
the facts of what advice they've given this
I nstitution over the years. And to sit here and say
that this is the particular decision that knocked
them-- got them you know, got themtaken out to
t he woodshed and fired, that's just ridicul ous.
| ' ve been here too | ong and seen too nmuch --

MR. MEADOWS: |'m just asking.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: -- shit going on. And |I'm
answering it for you because | can tell you she
hasn't been here | ong enough to know.

MR. MEADOWS: She's been here for two
terms. She's seen enough.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: And let ne tell you, and
you can go a hell of a l|ot further back in C&R and
read Dan's comments about Janes & Hoffrman that she
probably has no know edge of.

MR. MEADOAS: So you' re naking nmy point.
They're a flawed entity and they're making fl awed
decisions. And there was a lot of acrinony to them

but yet she chose to blindly follow their advice and
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not follow her obligations under the C&B and the
LMRDA, which she's the one who's going to get sued
in federal court, not Steve Hoffman. |It's fucking
crazy.

M5. HELLER: But, Larry, they were general
counsel at the tinme. What were her options? She
couldn't go seek --

MR. MEADOWS: Her option is to followthe
C&B. Counsel cannot advise her to break the suprene
| aw of the union, which is what she admtted to.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And that's what your --
and | understand that's your position.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay? So that's the point.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | get it.

MR. MEADOAS: | don't care what |egal --
| awyers can give you all the advice they want, but
I f they advise you to break the |law -- because she
was advi sed not to follow the C&B, the suprene | aw
of the union, so someone's got to pay the price, and
unfortunately it's the nenbership. So what | woul d
|l i ke to come out of this is the nenbership is aware
that she -- yeah, she's issued nenbership cards
after they were basically brought to the threshold
of federal court knowi ng they were going to |ose

t heir ass.
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MR. THURSTIN:. | object.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, it's a fact.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And | have to say | do
t 0o.

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. Well, then why
weren't they issued before that?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Look --

MR. MEADOWS: That judge spent four days
on a non-nonetary claimbecause it's so egregious
with the LMRDA i ssue. And he just couldn't believe
t hat APA forged ahead and spent all that tine and
noney, four wtnesses and three attorneys for four
days in West Pal m Beach for what? Over no noney.
Emery | ost the nonetary clains all over the stupid
C&R i ssue which could have been fixed over the
menbership card issue.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: But again, let's go back
to the inpetus. This was a resol ution passed by the
board of directors, not --

MR. MEADOAS: At the advice of Janes &

Hof fman. | nean, they're --
CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Whoa, whoa, whoa. No.
|"'mgoing to claimbullshit to that. | don't -- ny

menory, God knows, is not the best in the world, but
| don't think J&H had any input other than the fact
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that the board said this is what we want, how do we
do it.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And they followed -- they
asked -- and I'm not even sure they asked. | don't
know who wote the AUP. | can't renenber who wote
the AUP. But | got to tell you --

MR. MEADOWS: They enforced it. But the
point is they enforced it. They took the position
that we're not nenbers.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: It's the position of the
uni on, Larry.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, but Pam Torell sat
there blindly, she sat idly by while --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ch, for God's sakes.

Wuld you quit it wth the gosh darn --

MR. MEADOWS: No, she got an e-nmmil saying
that we're not nenbers of the union for purposes of
| ocking us out of C&R  She testified she --

(Tal ki ng si mul t aneousl y)

MR. MEADOAS: -- we were inactive.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: And again, Larry, her job
Is to follow the direction of the board.

MR. MEADOWNS: Even if it's unlawful ?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Her job -- well, unlawful,
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that's what court --

MR. MEADOWAS: She's --

CHAl RMAN HEPP: That's what courts --

MR. MEADOWS: She's in charge of counting
t he nmenbershi p status.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: And that's what courts are
for.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. But she's in charge
of menbership status. So if she knows that Captain
McDani el s' directive that MDD pilots were
non- nenbers was wong, why would she not intervene?
It's her duty as the secretary-treasurer. | can't
-- you know, I'"'mgoing to end this questioning
because you won't let nme get where | need to be. |
nmean - -

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, wait a second.
Larry, if you --

MR. MEADOWAS: On the nenbership issue.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: |If you want to get --
| ook, if you want to get off James & Hoffnman and get
back on point, I'mall for it.

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, | feel like |I've
been --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: But to sit here and talk
about, you know, why Janes & Hoffnman got fired and
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does she know why Janes, was she consul ted, |
nean - -

MR. MEADOWS: | think it's rel evant
because she relied --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Thi s has been a tenpest
that's been going on for 10, 15 years, shit.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, but she relied on
advice to the point of violating the C&B.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Spell that in capital
|l etters, by the way.

MR. THURSTIN. Can | interject sonething
her e?

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  No.

MR. THURSTIN. Thank you.

MR. MEADOWS: That's ny point. | nean,
can't get ny questions answered directly. She's
bei ng evasive. But the bottomline is she didn't
followthe C&, and | think that's pretty clear.

And maybe it's because of general counsel's advi ce,
but that does not excuse her from her obligation
under the C&. I|I'msorry. And | have all | need to
make ny case.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: And, Larry, if you'l
allow us to be the deciders in that, | would greatly

appreciate it. You've obviously cone to your own
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concl usi on, obviously, or you wouldn't be here.

MR. MEADOWS: The record evidence will
prove that case. The only thing that's hard to
prove is was it in the best interest of the
association or not. And | want to know what -- |
don't really have her justification why she did
t hese t hings.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, as | said, Larry,
every tinme the board sits, they're a constitutiona
body. And it's the national officers' job to follow
the board of directors' directives. So --

MR. MEADOWS: The board of directors'
directives were we were not nenbers, so she
shoul dn't have issued nenbership cards. That's the
| ast directive fromthe BOD, that MDD pilots are
non- nenbers, yet she issued the nenbership card
contrary to the BOD policy. Really? Fact.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So did she do the right
thing, putting out those, even though it was agai nst
the directive of the board?

MR. MEADOWAS: | think she had to do it
because they were going to get sanctioned by the
federal court if they didn't.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Ckay. So she went
beyond -- and |I'mnot saying this is what you did,
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but I"mjust -- just to go to your |ogical
concl usi on, what you're saying is she did in fact
over|l ook direction of the board and she did in fact
try to do the right thing by issuing nenbership
cards. |s that what you're saying?

MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Ckay. Then did she act in
the best interest of the nenbership when she issued
t hose nenbership cards?

MR. NMEADOAS:.  No.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: But she issued them

MR. MEADOWAS: She shoul d have issued them
two years before.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So it's a timng issue.

MR. MEADOWNS: O course it is. For those
two and a half years, | could not go to BCOD or
domcile neetings. | couldn't go in C&R
Meanwhi l e, the JCBA was getting negotiated. M
rights under the I SL were getting bl own away. And
there's no explanation why 11 people just |ike ne
were on the | SL and the other 220 MDD pilots were
not .

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That has nothing to do
with your Article VIl charge.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, it's got -- if | would
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have been able to participate in union activities,
but --

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You think that woul d have
had sonme effect on these 11 pilots?

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, why were 11 pilots
I ncluded in the | SL?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: | have no i dea.

MR. MEADOWS: That's right.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  But | know one t hing.

Your ability to go to a domcile neeting --

MR. MEADOA5S: | was treated as --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: -- is not going to have
any effect on whether those 11 pilots are on the
seniority |ist.

MR. MEADOWAS: But Janes & Hof fman said |
had no standing and | wasn't a nenber, they didn't
owe ne representational duties.

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Well, now you're junping
agai n.

MR. MEADOAN5S: No, no, no, but this is
because the association is not doing the right thing
via their secretary-treasurer in upholding the C&B
and declaring that we are nenbers and i ssuing us
menber shi p cards.

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Yeah, but you've just said
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that's a timng issue. She -- according to what you
just said, she did go beyond the directive of the
board. She did issue those nenbership cards.

MR. MEADOAS: At the advice of |egal
counsel .

CHAl RVAN HEPP: She just didn't do it two
years earlier.

MR. MEADOWS: She didn't do it out of the
goodness of her heart. She was advised to do it by
St eve Hof f man.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | think we're going to
have to -- because, again, conjecture on --

MR. MEADOWNS: Ckay. |'Il ask a question.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Hang on a second. Wit a
second. I'msorry. | didn't nean to shut you down.

You had sonet hing you wanted to say?

MR, THURSTIN. Well, | had a couple
guestions. He keeps referring back to Rusty
McDaniels' e-mail. Pamtook no action on that
e-mail. Even though Rusty MDaniels said that they
were not nenbers, she took no action. She didn't
| ock them out.

MR. MEADOWS: She shoul d have though. She
sat idly by and let --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, you've had your
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tinme.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease, go ahead.

MR. THURSTIN. So | don't see what the
rel evance is. Larry's nmade nunerous responses that
he's been -- he was deni ed access to the union, and
we have no proof of that. W challenge himto show
us days, dates, when he was there, who he spoke to
to prove that point that he was actually denied
entrance into a union neeting.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay.

MR. THURSTIN. W have no -- absolutely

MR. MEADOAS: And | don't need to prove
that. Al | need to prove is that Pam Torell
violated the C&B. Ckay?

MR. THURSTIN. Well, you made the
statement .

MR. MEADOWS: This isn't your trial. This
IS mne.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Stand by. W're
getting back to where we're throw ng darts agai n.
We've actually done pretty good the |ast couple
hour s.

MR. MEADOWS: So here's ny --
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MR. THURSTIN. WAit a mnute. | still
have the fl oor.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. Very good.

MR. THURSTIN. He nmade statenents that he
had tried to attend. W're asking for the proof.
Show it to us.

MR. MEADOWAS:  You have it.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, please. Allow him
to finish. Cone on. W're doing -- we've been
doi ng good up until this point.

MR. THURSTIN. That's what we'd like to
see to make sure that that is in fact true. W're
not disputing it. And the fact that if he did try
to do it, we would like to know W would like to
rectify that situation. But we would like to know
I f it actually did happen.

M5. HELLER: | have a question.

MR. THURSTI N.  Yes.

M5. HELLER: The record, | believe, shows
that Keith Wlson -- | believe it was Keith WI son
| ssued a directive that nenbers -- that you were
required to show your nenbership card to enter
nmeetings. |s that correct?

MR. MEADOWNS: It's Exhibit 9, yes.

M5. HELLER: As of 2014 at sone point.
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2014, ' 157

MR. MEADOWAS: 2015. WMay of 2015 was the
first tine.

M5. HELLER: Ckay. So that's part of the
record. And we have also as part of the record that
you had no nenbership card from when your active
menbership card expired in 2012 until you were given
an inactive nenbership card in 20167

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, but |'d asked for it
prior to the -- in 2014 | asked for a nmenbership
card, in Decenber 2014 and August 2015 again. But
I n between there is when they changed the mandat e.
In Exhibit 9 there's a Mam domcile rem nder, and
It says you have to bring your ID. That was never a
requi renment before. They just |let anybody in that
showed up.

M5. HELLER: Right. So | guess ny
guestion to you is, what is the rel evance --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Hold on.

MR. NMEADOWS: May 24t h.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: \What now?

M5. FLETCHER: May 20t h what year?

MR. MEADOWAS:  2015.

M5. FLETCHER M am domcil e?

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, for the Mam domcile
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they started having a requirenent that they had
soneone sitting at the door signing people in which
had never occurred before. That's the standard
policy now.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That has happened in the
past .

MR. MEADOWS: It shoul d have been done
that way all these years, but it was just ignored
and it was basically --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, it's happened in '09,
It happened in "03, it happened in "97. It
general |y happens in the heat of contract
negotiations. That's kind of what happens.

M5. HELLER So you -- | want to -- you
want evi dence that he was deni ed access, and |'m not
sure of the relevance of that evidence if in fact
there is a presidential directive requiring that
that is in the record. And we know al so that he
didn't have a card. |Is that correct?

M5. TORELL: And when you say presidenti al
record, we're referring to the Mam domcile
neeting rem nder of -- need ny gl asses -- posted on
July 217

MR, THURSTIN. Tab 9.

M5. TORELL: Tab 9.
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MR. MEADOWAS: Yes. That was the first
tinme they required a nenbership card, they enforced
it.
M5. TORELL: To read that, it says,

"Pl ease RSVP to reserve a neal. Doors wll open at
0930. Please bring your APA ID."
MR. MEADOWS: | could print out all these

domcile remnders prior to this. They never had
the IDrequirenent in there. And it was -- it was
designed to not let people in |ike ne.

M5. TORELL: | can --

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Well, | think it was
designed to let people in like the press and --

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, that's probably true.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You know, |'m not going to
deny whether it was or was not, you know, to excl ude
MDD pilots, but --

MR. MEADOWAS: | think it's a good policy,
but the point was we couldn't get into the union
neeting. | think it's always been a policy
probably, but --

M5. TORELL: 1've been to nunerous
domcile neetings, many, especially pretty nuch all
the Mam, and the IDis not a requirenent that does

not let you in the door. They appreciate you

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

273
bringing the ID because we've used a scanner if it's
avai l able. But nobst of the tinme the scanner doesn't
work, so we | ook your nane up and let you go on in.
| have not seen anyone denied access. And | don't
believe that was the intent of this e-mail.

MR. MEADOAS: Do you recall --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: | will have to say, like |
said, a lot of tinmes in the heat of contract
negoti ati ons --

M5. TORELL: True.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- we've asked -- we've
asked -- we've done nenbership card or we've
excluded -- sonetines we've even excluded w ves, |
nmean - -

M5. TORELL: | can see that.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: -- just because it was in
the heat of -- | nean, but whether it's directed
particularly at this issue of MDD, | think it's nore

just a general we have infornmation that we don't
want out and the |l ess people -- you're directing it
to a particular audience, and that's the pilots.
M5. FLETCHER: WAs there a directive hy
Presi dent W1l son that nenbership cards had to be
shown to enter a union neeting?
MR. MEADOWNS: | don't know if there was
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official directive. There was testinony. |'Il have
to call Enmery tonight. Maybe we can get her
transcri pt.

M5. HELLER: That's sort of ny question.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Do you know where that is,
what he just said?

MR. MEADOWS: |'mgoing to try to get it
from-- | think Enmery has sone information to that.
She was arguing it nore extensively than | was in
federal court.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Can you find out what tine

the conference call is on Friday?
M5. TORELL: Yes, absolutely. Five?
CHAI RVAN HEPP:  |'m sorry?

M5. TORELL: Can we take five?
CHAl RVAN HEPP: Five m nutes? Sure.
(Recess from4:42 to 4:49)

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Back on the record? Ckay.
So how nmuch further do we have on the nenbership
| ssue, Larry?

MR. MEADOWS: | think given how you' ve
reined me in in respect for what you don't want ne
to ask, I'mdone with the nenbership questions.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay. So now to --

MR. MEADOWS: Gievance iSssues.
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CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOWAS: Do you want to start that
now or tonorrow?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Are you guys ready for
grievance, or do you want to -- now, is this still
with Torell on the stand?

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah. |'Il finish that and
"Il probably do ny --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: It's your call. | nmean,
you guys, if you want a break -- and | guess, what,
we'll start maybe -- how s 8:30 tonmorrow? Can we do

that? |Is that all right?

M5. HELLER: That's fi ne.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: |Is that okay, 8:307

MR. THURSTIN. The question fromus w |
be if we start at 8:30, can we finish it tonorrow by
4.00 or do we have to go | onger?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: How | ong are we going to

go?

MR. MEADOWAS: | don't know. |t depends
how direct the answers are. | could ask yes or no
questions. If | get yes or no answers, it'll go

qui ck. Today, unlike last tine, it seens to have
devol ved into the sane thing, but | really was just

trying to ask yes or no questions. But instead
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of -- and | didn't do the big opening, all that
crap.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Let's start. Can we
start? Is that all right? It's up to you because
you guys -- you've been on the stand for --

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Al right. Here we
go.

MR. MEADOWS: Do you want to go agai n?

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Charge 2.

MR. MEADOWNS: All right. Charge 2. Ckay.
Let's go to Tab 19, pl ease.

M5. TORELL: 187

MR. NMEADOWS:  19.

MS. TORELL: 109.

MR. MEADOWS:  All right. You guys ready?

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Yeah. So this is Meadows
gri evance, Meadows 332713 grievance, proof of claim

MR. MEADOAS: \Where does it say that?

M5. TORELL: On the e-mail, subject.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: At the top of 19 on an
e-mail .

MR. MEADOWAS: Yes. Yeah, but the second
page. My first question, |I'd like to ask Captain

Torell just to read that nessage fromthe fell ow
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pilots down through the second highlighted
par agr aph.

M5. TORELL: To the -- mne isn't
hi ghl i ghted, so first and second paragraph?

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, just that's fine.

M5. TORELL: Gkay. So this would be a
blast from-- a nessage fromthe APA
secretary-treasurer, First Oficer Scott Shankl and,
dated July 5th, 2012. "Fellow pilots, back in late
May all of you received an official-looking nailer
fromAnerican Airlines containing a proof of claim
form The proof of claimformshould be used to
assert your rights to any debt or other liability
that you feel Anerican owes you that is not being
covered by clains -- by the clains being filed on
behal f of all pilots by union counsel. APA wll be
preparing and submtting any clains for any changes
to or rejections of the contract for any changes or
termnations to pilot pension plans and for all
out st andi ng and ongoi ng gri evances that APA was
pursuing prior to the bankruptcy. You do not need
to file your own claimfor any of these issues, and
t hese APA submitted clains should cover the vast
majority of pilots."” Continue?

MR. MEADOWAS: No, that's good. Ckay.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: So just to be clear, this
was witten by Scott Shankl and - -

MR. MEADOWS: Scott Shankl and.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: -- who then was
secretary-treasurer.

MR. MEADOAS: So ny question is, | know
this was witten by Scott, but |'msure you
I nherited a | ot of the carryover fromthis, so do
you fully understand the intent of this letter to
the APA basically to protect all pilots' clains
except for individual business and LTD cl ai s,
general | y?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Sorry. Could you pl ease
repeat that one nore tine?

MR. MEADOWS: My question is, | know this
was witten by Scott Shankland, but is it Captain
Torell's understandi ng that APA was in fact -- did
she assunme as secretary-treasurer her obligation was
in fact to preserve all pilot clains except for LTD
and personal business clains?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Her job was to --

MR. MEADOWS: Well, the
secretary-treasurer's job.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Ri ght,

secretary-treasurer. Your stipulation is that
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secretary-treasurer's job is to preserve all clains
in regard to the bankruptcy.

MR. MEADOAS: Yeah. |t says unless you
have an unresol ved worknen's conpensati on claim or
disability denial or a business relationship with
AMR outside of being a pilot. So |I'mjust asking in
general ternms if she understands what APA s doi ng
here in terns of preservation of pilot clains.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So where does it say that
APA is going to preserve all clains? It says -- it
| ooks like you're filling out a proof of claimform

MR. MEADOWS: It says the APA w il be
preparing and submtting clains for any changes to
or rejections of the contract, for any changes or
termnations to pilot pension plans, and for al
out st andi ng and ongoi ng gri evances.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Right. So --

MR. MEADOWAS: Do you agree with that,
Captain Torel|?

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So | think what you're
asking is, is APA's the collection agency for these
cl ai ns.

MR. MEADOWS: Does she concede that the
APA secretary-treasurer had an obligation to

preserve proofs of clains for pilots with
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out st andi ng gri evances.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Ckay. Cone here.

(Of record from4:55 to 4:56)

CHAl RVAN HEPP: We're just checking on the
accuracy of your question. Al right. Ask your
gquestion -- I'msorry. Can you read his question
agai n, please?

MR. MEADOWAS: |'mjust trying -- |I'm
trying to establish that Captain Torell is aware of
t he obligations of which she inherited, that
Secretary-Treasurer Shankl and basically prom sed
t hat he woul d preserve the outstanding grievance
claims of our nenbers in the APA proof of claimand
pretty much cover everything for pilots with the
exception of LTD, worknen's conp, and persona

busi ness cl ai ns.

M5. HELLER: | think the promse to
preserve --

MR. MEADOWAS: That's what he said he's
goi ng to do.

M5. HELLER: -- is a little bit of a leap
t hat you' re maki ng.

MR. MEADOAS: |'mnot trying to nake a
| eap.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: | don't see the -- | nean,
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it said "APA will be preparing and submtting."
kay. So we're the collection agency. W'Ill be
wor ki ng - -

MR. MEADOAS: So |'m asking Captain Torel
I f she understands what Captain Shankl and i s saying
her e.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, |'mnot -- again,
|"mtrying to figure out what Captain Shankland is
sayi ng.

MR. MEADOAS: He's saying APA will be
preparing and submtting clains for any pilots --
for any changes to the contract --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: \Who are pursui ng?

MR. MEADOWNS: -- and it goes on to say
"and ongoi ng grievances that APA was pursuing prior
to bankruptcy."

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ri ght.

MR. MEADOWAS: So do you concede or concur,
Captain Torell, do you concur that APA agreed to
preserve or file a proof of claimfor any ongoing
gri evances for individual pilots?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, that's two separate
gquesti ons.

MR. MEADOWS: | thought it was one.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Are they going to file a
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proof of claimand are they going to preserve that
cl ai m

MR. MEADONS: Well, it's the sane thing.
When you file a proof of claim you' re preserving
the claim

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Well, ny interpretation of
preserve -- so maybe that's the problem Mybe |I'm
not understandi ng the definition of preserve,
because --

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, proof of claim
preserves your claimin a bankruptcy estate.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: \When sonmeone says |'m

going to preserve your claim that neans |'m going

togotothe -- I"'mgoing to take it to the end.

And, you know, |I'mgoing -- but there were a | ot

of -- | nean, you know, there were other things that
dropped off the table. |1'mseeing the preparing and
submtting. So, like | said, if a pilot has a
claim - -

BY MR NEADOWE:

Q Ckay. Captain Torell, do you agree that
Secretary Shankl and agreed that APA would file proof
of claimfornms for nenbers who had ongoi ng
grievances prior to bankruptcy?

A That they would file -- they would file --
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repeat that one nore tine?

MR. MEADOWNS: Can you reread it back?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Woul d you pl ease read the
| ast questi on.

(Request ed text was read)
A No, | do not agree.
BY MR NEADOWE:
Q You don't. Really? Wy do you not -- why
do you not agree?

MR. THURSTIN. Could | -- state the reason
why you think that she shoul d agree.

MR. MEADOWS: Because she's the secretary.
She inherited his responsibility.

MR. THURSTIN. No, |I'mnot talking about
t he docunent. Can you tell ne why you think in the
docunent it says that she should agree to this?

MR. MEADOWS: Because Captai n Shankl and
made a comm tnent on behalf of the institution to
the menbers. And by assum ng the role of
secretary-treasurer, Captain Torell in turn
i nherited that conmtnent. Al | wanted was a
sinple yes or no answer that she understands what's
In here and agrees wth it, because we can't
establish that ny grievance was supposed to be

preserved in a proof of claimto begin wwth if she
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doesn't.

MR. THURSTIN. Wiat | see in here, if you
decide to file an individual claim conplete the
proof of claimform

MR. MEADOAS: No. Go to the mddle of
paragraph, first paragraph. It says, "APA w |l be
preparing and submtting any clains for any ongoi ng
gri evances that APA was pursuing prior to
bankruptcy. You do not need to file your own claim
for any of these issues.”

So do you agree that APA had an obligation
to incorporate ny personal grievance, nunber 12-011
Into the APA proof of clain? It's areally sinple

question. This is why it's going to take an extra

day.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Larry, please.

MR. MEADOWS: |'mjust telling you.

CHAl RMAN HEPP:  We'l|l be here until --
we'll be here until the end, so just --

M5. TORELL: | retain ny answer, no, for
the reason is "dash,” in the last state -- part of

the | ast sentence, "submtted clains should cover
the vast majority of pilots.”

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Ckay. So you do not need
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to file your own claimfor any of the -- and these
APA- subm tted should cover the vast nmajority of
pilots. Ckay.

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. |'mgoing to object
because this evasiveness is what's going to del ay
t hese proceedings. Let's just flip forward one page
to page 1 of that exhibit, please.

And, Captain Torell, can you please read
the subject line, the to and from and the content
of that e-nmail.

MR. THURSTIN. There's two e-mails. \Wich
one?

MR. MEADOAS: You can start with the
bottom actually start at the bottom one, please,
and work your way to the top one. They're in
reverse order.

M5. TORELL: Ckay. So this is from
Lawr ence Meadows sent on Monday, July 9, 2012, at
10: 35 p.m to Chuck Hairston, APA |egal, Bennett
Boggess, director of |egal; subject, Meadows nunber
332713 grievance, forward proof of claimformfiling
deadl i ne approaching. "Hello, Charles, | amwiting
to seek confirmation that you (APA) is filing proof
of claimon ny behalf for ny outstanding grievance.

Pl ease advise ASAP. Sincerely, First Oficer Larry
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Meadows. "

And the top e-mail says subject regarding
Meadows nunber 33217 grievance, forward proof of
claimformfiling deadline approaching from Chuck
Hai rston at Allied Pilots dot org to Law ence
Meadows. And | believe that woul d be al so director
of legal Allied Pilots dot org. Date, Tuesday,
July 10, the follow ng day, 2012, 7:35 am "W are
filing a proof of claimfor your grievance. Charles
R Hairston, staff attorney, Allied Pilots
Associ ation. "
BY MR NMEADOWS:

Q Ckay. So do you now agree that APA had an
obligation and agreed to file ny proof of clainf

A | don't -- by looking at these two e-mails
today for the first tinme, | would not state that
that stipulates themto a --

(Di scussi on between Ms. Torell and
M. Thurstin)

A. Yes, and Jeff nade the -- and Captain
Thurstin made the point | wasn't in office at this
time. But ny interpretation at this tinme does not
forman object -- does not forma stipulation, just
that basically we are filing accordi ng to Chuck.

Q Seriously? Ckay.
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A | don't see that as a --

CHAI RMAN HEPP: Asked and answer ed,
pl ease, Captain Meadows.

MR. MEADOWNS: Really? This is a -- this
Is what |'mtal king about. You guys can tolerate
this?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, Larry, Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: You're going to tolerate

this is what I'masking. | want as nuch tine as |
need. If it takes four days, | want as nuch tinme as
| need. 1'll be patient and calm but it's going to

take tinme because she's a difficult w tness and
evasi ve.

CHAI RVMAN HEPP:  Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: And it's not well taken.
Wy don't we break for tonorrow, please, because
this is not -- it's just a waste of ny tine today.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  You're going to ask these
sane questions tonorrow.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, | know, but, | nean,
don't have the patience to sit here with her being
evasi ve because it's a fact in record that APA filed
my proof of claim Al I'mtrying to establish is
t hat she understands her predecessor preserved ny

proof of claim agreed to do it, didit. And in
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turn, as the secretary-treasurer, she inherited the
obligation to shepherd that proof of claimthrough
t he bankruptcy process.

She couldn't just disavow any know edge of
It because her predecessor didit. She inherited
that obligation, and I'mjust trying to establish so
there's no legal roomhere that it's very clear what
APA prom sed to do and what they did for ne and that
she's aware of it so | can go forward with ny |ine
of questioning. This is just trying to set the
table for the next 50 questi ons.

M5. HELLER: Can you ask maybe a broader
guestion as to what her know edge was as to your
proof of claimor --

MR. MEADOWS: Captain Torell, is it your
under st andi ng t hat APA preserved Law ence Meadows'
grievance, nunber 12-011, on its initial proof of
claimin the American Airlines bankruptcy
proceedi ngs?

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Can you just define for ne
preserve?

MR. MEADOWAS: Preserve neans APA files a
general proof of claimand a |ist specifically that
I ndi vi dual grievances were preserved in that proof

of claim and m ne was one of them
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CHAI RMVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: And | guess one of the
guestions maybe you could have Captain Torell -- |
woul d request you order her to produce the initial
proof of claimtonorrow. It's a |engthy docunent.
They could print it out in the norning. But that
woul d be hel pful to have because she's not going
to -- | don't have that one.

CHAl RMAN HEPP: Larry, please. Let ne
pretend to be the chairman.

MR. MEADOAS: |'mjust saying, SO --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | get it, | get it, but --

MR. MEADOWS: If it hel ps her
recol | ection, maybe we shoul d have the | egal
departnent print the proof of claim

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  But ny point is, Larry,
here's what | know about this topic given this
e-mail. You wote an e-mail to M. Hairston. He
responded that they'|ll be filing a claim Doesn't

| ook like it went through the secretary-treasurer's
of fice other than the fact --

MR. MEADOWS: Secretary-treasurer signed
the proof of claim

CHAl RMAN HEPP:  But ny point is that --

but | don't know that yet. You haven't produced
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t hat docunent yet. M point is, is that Scott
Shankl and sent out a nessage to the nenbership
saying that they're preparing and submtting. GCkay?
And then you sent an e-nmail to Hairston, and he
responded that he'll be submtting your claim

MR. MEADOWS:  Ckay.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: That's what he says, we're
filing a proof of claim

MR. MEADOWNS:  All right. Here's ny
guesti on.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: So let's just keep it
si npl e.

MR. MEADOWNS: (Ckay. Captain Torell, do
you understand that you had an obligation to uphold
the prom ses of Scott Shankland with respect to
preserving individual grievances and proofs of
cl ai nf

MR. THURSTIN:. (bjection.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: By preserving you nean
filing those clains?

MR. MEADOWS: Filing it on a proof of
claim That is preserving it, yes. Al preserving
nmeans is that you're putting it in the record to the
bankruptcy court so that the claimis acknow edged,

noticed to the debtor. That's all.

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

291

CHAl RVAN HEPP: So | guess ny --
guess - -

MR. MEADOWAS: Doesn't nmean it's going to
get arbitrated. Al it nmeans is preserved, that
claimis preserved.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  All it neans is it's being
fol | oned.

MR. MEADOWS: Yes. And |'mjust trying to
get her to acknow edge that sinple fact so we can
nmove forward. And if she doesn't want to do that,
|"'mgoing to ask --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Wl l, just hang on a
second. And it falls under the purview of the
secretary-treasurer because?

MR. MEADOWS: The secretary-treasurer
signs the proof of claim

CHAl RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOWAS: That initial proof of claim
was signed by Scott Shankland. So |I'mgetting
her -- | would Iike to get her to acknow edge t hat
even though it was signed by Scott Shankl and, she
I nherited the responsibility of managing that proof
of clai mthroughout the bankruptcy proceedi ngs
because it required periodic anmendnents, and it was

amended thereafter by Captain Torell.
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CHAI RMAN HEPP: Well, that's sonething we
have yet to --

MR. MEADOWNS: Well, we're going to get
there, but it's hard for ne to --

CHAI RVAN HEPP: | get it.

MR. MEADOWS: |'ve got to establish it.
| f she's shruggi ng her shoul ders and says she has
nothing to do with it, this was Scott Shankl and,
then we' ve got probl ens.

CHAI RMAN HEPP: So this initial -- so --
yes.

MR. THURSTIN. Can | -- for the sake of
nmoving things forward, there is a proof of claim
listed in Tab 3, Exhibit 3 of our docunentation.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: \Wher e?

MR, THURSTIN. Tab 3.

MR. MEADOWS: That's the wong one.
That's the anended proof of claim W're talking
about the original proof of claim

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Let himfinish, please,
Larry.

MR. THURSTIN. Let ne finish.

MR. MEADOWS: Well, that's -- it's ny line
of questioning though. This is where things are

goi ng si deways.
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MR. THURSTIN: The anended proof of claim
in this particular instance that we have here was
filed I think about 11 or 12, 13 days too |late to be
within the one-year limtation for this proof of
cl ai mon the anmendnent.

MR. MEADOWS: What are you tal king about ?

MR. THURSTIN. It was not tinely.

MR. MEADOWS: Are you tal king about ny
charge wasn't tinely? |'mgoing to object. Wat
he's trying to say is | didn't file wwthin a year.
He is wong.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, Larry, wait,
pl ease. Jesus. God, you're driving ne nuts.

MR. MEADOWS: That's not an answer to ny
fucki ng questi on.

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Look, he --

MR. MEADOWS: Ckay. | can fix this one.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, Larry, stop.

MR. MEADOWS:  All right.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: (Okay. Pam do you think

that -- you signed -- you signed the proof of
clains. Yes? No?
M5. TORELL: | signed the proof of claim

from March 4, 2014.
CHAl RMAN HEPP: Did you sign other proofs
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of clains? | nean, not necessarily for Meadows,
just for anybody, any -- any -- you know, as Scott
tal ks about, any clains involving pay, contract,
outstandi ng gri evances? | nean, did you sign or did
Scott handle all of that?

M5. TORELL: 1|'d have to go back and

check. | nean, we're tal king about how many years
ago now?

MR. MEADOWNS: To clarify, there's a naster
docunent .

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Pl ease, Larry.

MR. MEADONS: Ckay. |I'mtrying to nake it
easy for you.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Wl l, so far that hasn't
hel ped.

MR. MEADOWS: Wl |, thank you for
Ms. Torell's testinony, |ack thereof.

CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but, Larry,
badgering the witness is not going to hel p.

And so do you see it as your job to sign
t hose proof of clains? Ws that your responsibility
as the secretary-treasurer?

M5. TORELL: | have been advised from
counsel that it can be any national officer. And as

| reviewed the Constitution and Byl aws of the duties

STRYKER REPORTING SERVICES (817) 494-0700



© 00 N oo o B~ w N P

N DD D DD NMDN P P P PP PP P PP
o b~ W N b O © 00 N O O M W N B+, O

Article VIl Hearing 3/ 1/ 2017

295
of the national officers, it's not explicitly stated
i n there.

Sol'mat alittle bit of a -- it can be

any national officer is the bottomline.
BY MR MEADOWS:

Q Ckay. | guess ny question is, what
officers can sign a nonetary instrunent for
$5,000 or nore? And whose signature is required on
every transaction greater than $5, 000?

A It takes two signatures above 5,000 or

5,000 or greater, and --

Q The secretary-treasurer nust sign above
5,000. Is that correct?

A. Uh- huh.

Q Take that as a yes?

A. Yes.

MR. MEADOWS: Okay. So, Captain Hepp,
what | was trying to clarify is there's not nmultiple
proofs of claim Proof of claimis one giant,
massi ve docunent that contains all the individua
proofs of claim--

CHAI RVAN HEPP:  Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: -- in an addendum on the
back. So to ny know edge Scott Shankl and signed one
in July of 2012, and | think it was only anended
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once by Pam Torell.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Ckay.

MR. MEADOAS: All I'mtrying to
establish -- this isn't even ny question. |'mjust
trying to establish that she's aware that an
I nstitutional conmtnent by the
secretary-treasurer's office was nade to preserve
the proofs of claim the | egal departnent
acknow edged it, they did in fact preserve ny
grievance in the APA proof of claim

And what you'll see that we're wasting al
this tine, it's going to be so clear that the
gri evance was preserved by APA in the bankruptcy
settlenent agreenent. But | can't even get past
square one to get her to admt that the
secretary-treasurer's office did in fact have this
obligation and upheld it.

M5. HELLER: So just to clarify, it was
preserved in the July 2012 Scott Shankl and proof of
cl ai n®?

MR. THURSTIN:. Yes.

MR. MEADOWAS: Yeah, there was a bar date.
The bar date |I think was July 12th, 2012. And so
all proofs of clains were filed by that date.

M5. HELLER: And then the nodified one?
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| s that what we would call it --
MR. MEADOWS: Right.
M5. HELLER: -- that was done in March of

2014 that Captain Torell said she signed?

MR, MEADOWS: Correct.

M5. HELLER: Was it in that?

MR. MEADOAS: No. It was excl uded.
That's the fornmer grievance. And that brings ne to
a question. They're using this argunent that it

wasn't tinmely, which --

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Well, let's get to that in
the future.

MR. MEADOAS: | do have a question. \Wen
you anmended the proof of claimin April -- in
March - -

CHAI RVAN HEPP: Can we keep to your
time -- | want to keep to your tine line on the
guesti ons.

MR. MEADOANS: Well, I'mgetting derailed
here, and this is what's making it hard. But |
would Iike to go to Tab 26.

MR. THURSTIN. It's the sane one.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, this is GCG proof of
cl ai m nunber 7654080 filed by the Allied Pilots
Association. And if you go to page 2, do you
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acknow edge that that was signed by you on March 4,
2014, Captain Torell?

The question is, does Captain Torel
acknow edge that that's her signature on that
docunent ?

MR. THURSTIN. Can | interject for a
nonment, object? Captain Torell at this tinme -- this
I s the docunent we just | ooked at a m nute ago, sane
docunent, two different places. Captain Torel
signed this docunent. | think she already answered
t hat .

MR. MEADOWS: She did not answer it. W
haven't even got to this docunent.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, please.

MR. MEADOAS: |' m goi ng hone.

CHAl RMVAN HEPP: Larry, you can't
I nterrupt.

MR. MEADOAS: |'mgoing hone. This is
ridi cul ous.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, you have to let the
man tal k. You couldn't do this in a court of |aw
ei t her.

MR. MEADOAS:  Yeah, | coul d.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: No, you can't.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, | could. Well, they
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woul d never get away with any of the shit they're
pulling right now, ever. So |I'msorry. Go ahead.
You guys run it the way you want to run it.

MR. THURSTIN. Captain or First Oficer
Shankl and signed the first proof of claim
docunentation. That's not in question that he
signed it. |If you're asking when his proof of claim
was renoved, we don't have that information. W
don't know if it was under Captain Torell's tine as
the secretary-treasurer. Al we know is that she
signed the docunent. It was not there at that tine.
MR. MEADOWS: | object. This is totally
wayl aying ny |line of questioning.
CHAl RVAN HEPP: He asked the question --
M. Meadows asked the question is this Pam s
signature on this docunent, Tab 26.
BY MR NMEADOWS.
Q Did you sign that docunent, Captain
Torell, on March 4t h?
CHAI RMAN HEPP:  Yes or no?
A Yes.
BY MR MEADOWS:
Q Did you file that docunent on March 4th?
Yes or no?

A The actual docunent was filed by |egal.
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Q But was it filed after you signed it?
A The actual docunent was filed by |egal.
Q Ckay. And did you notify any of the
I ndi vi dual pilots whose grievances were renoved from

t hat proof of clainf? Yes or no?

A | mnot going to answer that with a yes or
a no. | would go back and check to see what | had
to do. | amnot going to answer that --

Q Did you notify -- well, | can tell you

didn't. You did not notify --
A Larry, you're not going to raise your
voi ce, or |I'mwal ki ng out.

CHAI RMVAN HEPP: Whoa, whoa, whoa. Al
right. W're done. GCkay? W've been doing good so
far, but we can either do ten m nutes and cone back
or we just call it a day because we can't have this.
Ckay? Again, you guys are cross-talking. Larry, |
understand - -

MR. MEADOWS: She's not answering the

guestions. |'masking yes or no questions. |I'm
trying to keep it sinple. I|I'mtrying to uphold ny
end, and all | get is these -- | don't get

objections. He's not entitled to ask questi ons.
And this whol e concept of ne going through you is

bul I shit. Let nme ask her questions directly, yes or
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no. Let her answer them

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Look, Larry.

MR. MEADOWS: It's not working, Chuck.
|"'msorry. It's just not.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: Larry, look. [It's up to
you. We're here because you wanted to be here.
Now - -

MR. MEADOAS: |'m here because | have to
be here. And frankly, this was not personal, but at
the end of this proceeding Pam Torell is getting
sued for everything she has in federal court because
she' s bei ng nonevasi ve and uncooperati ve.

And this could be resolved right here and
now, Pam But you know what? You bought yourself a
| ot of trouble. And you don't even understand
what's com ng your way fromnot just ne but many
ot her nenbers.

CHAIl RVAN HEPP: Al right. W' re done for

t oday.

MR. MEADOWS: Yeah, that's right. She's
done.

CHAl RVAN HEPP: See you at 8:30 in the
nor ni ng.

(Proceedings adjourned at 5:18 p.m)
-000-
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STATE OF TEXAS )

COUNTY OF TARRANT)

This is to certify that |, Karen L. Shelton,
Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of
Texas, reported in shorthand the proceedi ngs had at
the tine and place set forth in the caption hereof,
and that to the best of ny ability, the above and
f oregoi ng pages contain a full, true, and correct

transcript of said proceedi ngs.

Certified to on the 8th day of March, 2017.
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KAREN L. SHELTON, CSR No. 7050
Stryker Reporting
1452 Hughes Road
Suite 200
G apevi ne, Texas 76051
817) 494-0700
Irm Regi stration No. 806

My CSR conmi ssion expires: 12/31/18
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        1   In the Matter Between:    *

                                      *

        2   LAWRENCE M. MEADOWS,      * BEFORE THE

                                      *

        3                Accuser,     *

                                      *

        4                vs.          * ALLIED PILOTS ASSOCIATION

                                      * APPEALS BOARD

        5   ALLIED PILOTS ASSOCIATION *

            SECRETARY-TREASURER PAM   *

        6   TORELL,                   *

                                      *

        7               Accused.      *



        8



        9       ------------------------------------------



       10                   ARTICLE VII HEARING



       11                         VOLUME 1



       12                      MARCH 1, 2017



       13                      Testimony of:



       14                        Pam Torell



       15       ------------------------------------------



       16



       17



       18             BE IT REMEMBERED that on March 1, 2017,



       19   from 9:28 a.m. to 5:18 p.m., I, Karen L. Shelton, a



       20   Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of



       21   Texas, appeared at Allied Pilots Association, 14600



       22   Trinity Boulevard, Suite 500, in the City of Fort



       23   Worth, County of Tarrant, State of Texas, whereupon



       24   the following proceedings were had:



       25
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        1                   A P P E A R A N C E S



        2



        3   APPEALS BOARD MEMBERS:



        4        Mr. Chuck Hepp, Chairman



        5        Ms. Kate Fletcher



        6        Ms. Lisa Heller



        7

            THE ACCUSER:

        8

                 Mr. Lawrence M. Meadows

        9



       10   REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE ACCUSED:



       11        Mr. Jeff Thurstin



       12

            THE ACCUSED:

       13

                 Secretary-Treasurer Pam Torell

       14



       15   ALSO PRESENT:



       16        Robert Sproc - present for morning session



       17        Mark Myers - present for morning session where

                              indicated

       18
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       20   REPORTER'S NOTE:



       21        Quotation marks are used for clarity and

                 do not necessarily reflect a direct quote.

       22



       23



       24



       25
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        1                    P R O C E E D I N G S



        2                (March 1, 2017, 9:28 a.m.)



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So let's get this appeal



        4   board hearing.  Mr. Meadows brought Article VII



        5   charges against Pam Torell, our secretary-treasurer.



        6   We have -- you have the attendance list.  We have



        7   Captain Rob Sproc in attendance.  He's the chairman



        8   of the appeal board.



        9             MR. SPROC:  First officer.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we just submit that



       11   the charges are on the record, or would you like me



       12   to read them?  Does anybody have an objection one



       13   way or the other?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I'd like to read them



       15   into the record, please.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So let's -- so it



       17   doesn't get lost in the shuffle, let me start with



       18   Captain Wilson's sixth charge which we agreed to



       19   defer to this appeal board hearing --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- which is -- the sixth



       22   charge in the Wilson Meadows Article VII hearing



       23   was, Charge 6:  "Finally, the APA president has



       24   failed to enforce the APA Constitution and Bylaws in



       25   violation of C&B Article IV, Section 8.A.3.
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        1   Specifically, he failed to enforce Article III,



        2   Section 4 which requires the APA secretary-treasurer



        3   issue membership cards to active members in good



        4   standing or special membership cards to inactive



        5   members.  My certified request for a membership card



        6   has been ignored."



        7             So that was the one we chose to defer.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Actually, more accurately,



       10   that was the one that both this appeal board and you



       11   agreed to defer.



       12             And now the charges in regard to Meadows



       13   Torell are, Charge 1:  "First Officer Torell



       14   violated Article III, Section 4 which requires APA



       15   secretary-treasurer to sign and issue membership



       16   cards to active members in good standing or special



       17   membership cards to active -- excuse me, to inactive



       18   members whereby she ignored and failed to honor my



       19   reasonable certified request for personal issuance



       20   such APA membership card."



       21             Second charge, "F.O. Torell, acting in her



       22   capacity as APA secretary-treasurer, unilaterally



       23   amended APA's proof of claim without authorization



       24   or notice to members affected and specifically



       25   excluded Meadows Grievance 12-011 which contained
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        1   remedies valued at $5.6 million by an economic



        2   expert report in violation fiduciary responsibility



        3   under C&B Article X.C and misappropriating money or



        4   property of the association in direct violation of



        5   Article VII.A.4."



        6             Third charge:  "As a result of the above



        7   violations, F.O. Torell also violated C&B Article



        8   VII.A.7. by committing an acts contrary to the best



        9   interests of the APA as an institution or its



       10   membership as a whole, first by aiding and abetting



       11   denial of myself and 233 MDD members right of access



       12   of to union meetings and, second, by stripping away



       13   my valuable grievance from APA's proof of claim



       14   8331, thereby shifting the substantial financial



       15   burden of that grievance" -- excuse me -- "of that



       16   grievance's remedies valued at 5.6 million from the



       17   company directly onto the association."



       18             Fourth charge:  "As a result of all of the



       19   above violations, the F.O. Torell also violated C&B



       20   Article VII.A.2. by committing willful violations of



       21   this APA Constitution and Bylaws."



       22             Charge 5:  "Here F.O. Torell has willfully



       23   abstracted or converted property and assets



       24   contained in APA's proof of claim whereby



       25   misappropriating money or property of the
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        1   association in violation of Article VII.A.4."



        2             So those are the charges.  And I was going



        3   to just let Mr. Meadows go, but I hear you have an



        4   opening statement.



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  I have an opening



        6   objection, yes, I'd like to read for the record.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So -- well, it's all on



        8   the record, but -- so let him make an opening



        9   statement, and then we'll let you go.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  If we're going to make



       11   objections, I'd like to open and make my objections



       12   and then let him do it.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  Say again?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  I have objections I'd like



       15   to lodge also, so I think I should be permitted to



       16   go first.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You know, it's basically a



       18   flip of the coin.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm the moving party, I



       20   think, so --



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm the moving party, so I



       23   should be allowed to go first.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Any objection?



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  No.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just going to get -- I'm



        2   just trying to keep this in order.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I mean, your opening



        4   statement's going to be?



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  This is opening objections.



        6   This is not the statement, actually an opening



        7   statement.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I can't hear you.  I'm



        9   sorry.



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  This is opening



       11   objections --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       13             MR. THURSTIN:  -- not the actual opening



       14   statement.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, okay.  All right.  And



       16   how long -- and you --



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  This only takes a couple



       18   minutes, four items.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And, Larry, you have?



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Three minutes.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Fine.  So, Larry,



       22   why don't you go ahead.



       23                   ACCUSER'S OBJECTIONS



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  All right.  Yeah, I



       25   just -- we discussed this off the record earlier,
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        1   but I just want to lodge a couple objections for



        2   housekeeping purposes.



        3             First, as I explained earlier, I have



        4   concerns about your participation as a material



        5   witness in the proceedings of Meadows versus APA



        6   when you filed two declarations on behalf of former



        7   general counsel Steve Hoffman.  So I think that



        8   makes you conflicted, and I've moved to recuse you,



        9   which you refuse to do.  I understand the BOD had



       10   passed a resolution that the board would stay intact



       11   for these proceedings, but I disagree with that one.



       12   I lodge an objection on that basis.



       13             Secondly, I filed a motion to -- for



       14   summary judgment on the first charge, and that was



       15   ignored, I guess, so I object to that not being



       16   heard because the facts in evidence in the record



       17   show that Pam Torell absolutely violated Charge 1.



       18   And that's it.  I only have two objections.



       19                   ACCUSED'S OBJECTIONS



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Board members, on behalf of



       21   Pam Torell, we have a few additional objections to



       22   put on the record before we begin the hearing.



       23             For the reasons stated in Captain Torell's



       24   February 2nd, 2017, letter, this board should



       25   dismiss the charges in their entirety.  Mr. Meadows
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        1   does not have standing to file an Article VII



        2   charge.  According to Arbitrator Valverde's recent



        3   decision, an inactive member is neither a member in



        4   good standing or bad standing but simply an inactive



        5   member.  Only members in good standing can file



        6   Article VII charges according to the C&B.



        7   Mr. Meadows does not have standing.  We therefore



        8   ask the board to dismiss the charges without the



        9   need for -- to proceed further.



       10             Two, Captain Torell would also like to



       11   object to the extent that any APA appeal board



       12   member, including those appeal board members not



       13   sitting here today, has had substantive



       14   communications directly with Mr. Meadows about an



       15   ongoing case.  It is inappropriate for an appeal



       16   board member to have ex parte discussions with



       17   Mr. Meadows.



       18             In Mr. Meadows' recent second motion for



       19   reconsideration of Torell Exhibit No. 11,



       20   Mr. Meadows provides an extensive summary of his



       21   conversations with F.O. Rob Sproc, the current



       22   appeal board chair, about several issues including



       23   how the entire Article VII process appears corrupt



       24   and rigged and about the specific issue of inactive



       25   APA membership.
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        1             The communications are inappropriate.  As



        2   a sitting board member, even the chair, F.O. Rob



        3   Sproc, should cease any communication with a pilot



        4   who has open appeal board cases and recuse himself



        5   for any cases related to Mr. Meadows.



        6             Further, number three, further,



        7   Mr. Meadows describes in his February 19, 2017,



        8   e-mail that Captain Torell was suddenly unavailable



        9   on February 28th and only available on March 1st and



       10   2nd.  Captain Torell was never available on February



       11   28th and never indicated that she was available.  We



       12   object to the characterization.



       13             Number four, additionally, Captain Torell



       14   points out for the members that Mr. Meadows has



       15   ongoing litigation and has threatened additional



       16   litigation against the APA.  The APA is not a party



       17   here.  They have called Captain Torell to answer



       18   questions limited to the scope of the hearing.  We



       19   will not answer questions that may assist



       20   Mr. Meadows in his lawsuit against APA.



       21             That concludes our opening objections.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Thank you.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  I fully object to each and



       24   every objection they raised.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So noted.  Mr. Meadows.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You have the floor.



        3               ACCUSER'S OPENING STATEMENT



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll keep the opening brief.



        5             We're basically here -- I know there's



        6   probably a level of frustration on Pam Torell's



        7   part.  This isn't personal animus against her, just



        8   trying to hold her accountable for her actions.



        9             The reason we're in the Article VII



       10   proceedings is because the former general counsel,



       11   Steve Hoffman, he argued to the federal court in



       12   Utah that I should not be allowed to pursue my LMRDA



       13   claims and must first exhaust my internal union



       14   remedies.  Got an order to that effect.  So we are



       15   now here.



       16             Now, obviously I can't address LMRDA



       17   issues and charges in this proceeding, but what I



       18   can do is hold Pam Torell accountable for her



       19   violations of the C&B, which is the purpose of these



       20   hearings.  But if not for Mr. Hoffman's



       21   inappropriate action, this matter would have been



       22   resolved in federal court long ago.  But now here we



       23   are and we're expending a lot of time and resources



       24   to the association which I think are unnecessary,



       25   but this is a very important issue.
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        1             In conjunction with Captain Wilson --



        2   well, the entire association's locking us out of C&R



        3   in April of 2014, the MDD pilots were deprived



        4   access to the virtual union hall.  And overlapping



        5   that, Captain Torell refused to issue us special



        6   membership cards, which would not allow us into



        7   domicile meetings.  There was a mandate issued in



        8   the same time frame that you must show a membership



        9   card to enter the meeting.  So effectively MDD



       10   pilots were locked out of the physical and virtual



       11   union hall during the most crucial time of our



       12   careers when the JCBA was getting negotiated and the



       13   ISL was getting negotiated.



       14             As a result, we could not defend our



       15   interests or claims or voice our concerns in these



       16   hearings.  And I think the fact -- after-the-fact



       17   results speak for themselves.  In the ISL



       18   proceedings, out of the 239 MDD pilots like myself,



       19   11 are on the list.  There's been no explanation why



       20   there's been disparate treatment between and amongst



       21   the legacy AA disabled pilots.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  Can you clear



       23   that point up?  I didn't --



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.  There was 239 legacy



       25   American Airlines MDD pilots been on disability
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        1   greater than five years.  For some reason, 11 of



        2   them are on the ISL.



        3             MS. FLETCHER:  On the what?



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  The integrated seniority



        5   list.  So 11 are on the list.  The other 228



        6   including myself are not.  And that was one of the



        7   most important issues we couldn't raise or argue at



        8   the domicile meetings or BOD meetings during that



        9   time frame.  So it's been a pretty significant harm.



       10             In addition, there is disparate treatment



       11   between and amongst the legacy US Airways pilots who



       12   were all out more than five years and they remained



       13   on the list, all the east guys.  And all the west



       14   guys, they were out between five and eight years and



       15   remained on the list.  So that was one of the most



       16   crucial issues, that we did not get a chance to



       17   participate in the negotiations or the arguments and



       18   discussions thereof.



       19             Secondly, Captain Torell signed an amended



       20   proof of claim in American Airlines' bankruptcy



       21   proceedings on March 7, 2014, and in so doing she



       22   unilaterally moved my Grievance No. 12-011.  And she



       23   never notified me.  But she -- APA was notified that



       24   I was going to pursue all my legal remedies prior to



       25   her taking that action.  I actually sued in federal
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        1   court to compel arbitration of that grievance, and



        2   she still chose to unilaterally dispose of my



        3   grievance off the proof of claim, which is a big



        4   problem.  She disposed of my grievance by



        5   unilaterally excluding it from the amended proof of



        6   claim.  That grievance has been valued at



        7   $5.6 million.



        8             Now I'm under an injunction by Judge Lane



        9   ever since I spoke to Mr. Parker at the shareholder



       10   meeting.  They came after it, and I got an



       11   injunction.  I am enjoined from taking any other



       12   action against American Airlines relating to my



       13   termination removal other than Grievance 12-011.



       14   That was a big problem.  Grievance 12-011 is going



       15   to move forward.  And if I prevail, APA has taken my



       16   grievance off the proof of claim, and APA will be



       17   liable for all the damages.  So, it could be



       18   amended, but Captain Torell has refused to amend it



       19   and add it back in.



       20             And that's it.  I'm suffering pretty



       21   severe harm personally.  I think the entire group of



       22   MDD pilots has been treated disgracefully in blatant



       23   violation of the C&B and locked out of union, and



       24   that's no small matter.  And when this matter goes



       25   to federal court, it'll be really clear APA, who was
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        1   embarrassed in West Palm Beach when a judge ruled



        2   that the AUP is unlawful and a violation of freedom



        3   of speech.  But there's a whole host of other



        4   violations that are going to be addressed with



        5   respect to Captain Torell's actions.  And it's



        6   unnecessary and unneeded.  These things were asked



        7   to be resolved via correspondence.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, you've covered a lot



        9   of ground.  What's unnecessary and --



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  The whole monkey motion of



       11   locking us out of C&R, costing the association



       12   substantial expense.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You know, that's not part



       14   of this.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  No, but I'm saying --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Go ahead.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  It is part of it.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Go ahead.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  So that -- she participated



       20   in this with Captain Wilson.  The overall goal



       21   seemed to be to keep us out of the union hall in any



       22   shape or form.  And I don't know what the goal was,



       23   but the facts speak for themselves.  As a result,



       24   APA has lost their E&O insurance.  Former general



       25   counsel was terminated after 20 some years.  Former
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        1   in-house legal director was terminated after 20 some



        2   years.  A lot of bad, fatally flawed legal decisions



        3   made that have exposed the association.  And Captain



        4   Torell has willingly participated in those decisions



        5   by effectuating them and refusing to uphold her



        6   duties under the C&B.  That's all I have.



        7               ACCUSED'S OPENING STATEMENT



        8             MR. THURSTIN:  Our opening statement is we



        9   are here today because Mr. Lawrence Meadows filed



       10   five separate Article VII charges against Captain



       11   Pam Torell on April 14, 2016.  It is important to



       12   note that these charges are levied against Captain



       13   Torell for actions taken, and I quote from



       14   Mr. Meadows' charge, "while acting in your capacity



       15   as APA secretary-treasurer."



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Let me clarify.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, Larry.  Larry.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I was writing -- no, I was



       19   writing her --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  -- in her --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Larry.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's a



       24   mischaracterization.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No one -- no one
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        1   interrupted.  He did not interrupt.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I object to the



        3   mischaracterization of my statement.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No one's interrupted.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I object though.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Not everything you said



        7   was, you know, nice and friendly.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  It's not nice.  It's just a



        9   mischaracterization.  But I'll let him finish, and



       10   I'll clear it up at the back end.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You can always object



       12   afterwards.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Thank you.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Just take notes.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Thank you.  Please.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  As I go through my opening,



       18   I'll refer to certain exhibits to be introduced to



       19   conserve time, expedite this process.  This opening



       20   will serve as both an opening statement and



       21   presentation.  The panel is asked to accept the



       22   exhibits, which I've laid on the table, included in



       23   a binder marked "Torell Exhibits."



       24             Mr. Meadows spent a great deal of time



       25   discussing his membership status.  He has asserted
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        1   in various forms that he is an active member and



        2   sometimes asserts that he is an inactive member.  In



        3   some court pleadings he alleges APA has lied about



        4   his membership status by calling him a member.  In



        5   those cases he seems to be inferring that he is not



        6   a member at all.  A simple review of the facts is in



        7   order.



        8             Mr. Meadows was hired at American Airlines



        9   on or about October 1991.  He last flew on or about



       10   April 2003, and his disability benefits were



       11   approved around May 2004.  Mr. Meadows dropped off



       12   the seniority list on or about November of 2011 as a



       13   result of provisions contained in the collective



       14   bargaining agreement.  He is no longer a pilot



       15   employed of -- employee of American Airlines.



       16             A summary of Mr. Meadows' status with



       17   American Airlines is included as Torell Exhibit 15.



       18   This summary was pulled from the monthly Status 1



       19   report received from the company and was provided to



       20   Mr. Meadows in 2013 during the equity distribution



       21   arbitration.



       22             The APA Constitution and Bylaws states



       23   that inactive members who are on medical leave of



       24   absence from the company for more than 12 months



       25   become inactive members.  In 2011 under the contract
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        1   at that time, both Section 11.D and Supplement F



        2   dictated that a pilot who is out on unpaid sick or



        3   disability for five years is dropped from the



        4   seniority list and no longer a pilot employee of



        5   American Airlines.  For internal purposes, APA codes



        6   these pilots as MDD, medical disability dropped.



        7             I understand Mr. Meadows contests the



        8   contractual provisions that dropped him from the



        9   seniority list.  He has filed grievance protesting



       10   being dropped from the seniority list.  One of those



       11   grievances, Grievance No. 12-011, was the subject of



       12   his charge against Captain Torell related to the



       13   bankruptcy proof of claim.  That grievance, along



       14   with a letter from Captain Keith Wilson, an APA



       15   president, to Mr. Meadows explaining why he did not



       16   advance the grievance to the system board is



       17   included as Torell Exhibit No. 5.



       18             A second grievance, Grievance No. 13-064,



       19   along with a letter from Captain Keith Wilson, is



       20   included as Torell Exhibit No. 6.  The APA president



       21   chose not to advance Mr. Meadows' grievance to the



       22   system board.  As a result, Mr. Meadows sued APA in



       23   the U.S. District Court in Utah, trying to force APA



       24   to move his grievance to the system board.  His



       25   lawsuit was dismissed and is now on appeal.
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        1             Captain Torell was not involved in the



        2   discussion leading up to Captain Wilson's decision.



        3   Various court documents, filings, including the --



        4   and filings, including the court order dismissed by



        5   Mr. Meadows' case, are included as Torell Exhibits



        6   12 and 13.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  When you're referencing,



        8   you're referencing the tabs?



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  Correct.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So Tab 12 and 13?



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  Correct.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       13             MR. THURSTIN:  As a side note, now the



       14   five-year rule under Supplement F has since been



       15   deleted from the contract by letter of agreement



       16   effective September 30, 2016.  But the LOA



       17   application was not made retroactive and did not



       18   impact any of the former pilots already dropped from



       19   the seniority list.



       20             This forum is not the place to relitigate



       21   Mr. Meadows' lawsuit or to review those contractual



       22   provisions.  This panel is not the body to interpret



       23   the contract.  For purposes of today, Mr. Meadows'



       24   status with the APA remains MDD.  And, as mentioned,



       25   having been on disability more than 12 months, MDD
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        1   pilots are inactive pilots.



        2             Captain Keith Wilson, as APA president,



        3   issued a presidential interpretation on June 30,



        4   2016, confirming that MDD pilots are inactive



        5   members.  This interpretation is included as Torell



        6   Exhibit 7.  Regardless of this interpretation, APA



        7   has considered Mr. Meadows an inactive member



        8   throughout Captain Torell's tenure as



        9   secretary-treasurer.



       10             That may be enough background to now



       11   briefly outline Captain Torell's arguments which are



       12   also briefly outlined in Torell's Exhibits 2 and 3,



       13   Captain Torell's prior correspondence to the appeal



       14   board.



       15             As mentioned at the beginning of this



       16   hearing, Captain Torell argues that Mr. Meadows does



       17   not have standing to file Article VII charges.  To



       18   quote Arbitrator Valverde, the C&B specifically



       19   states that only a member in good standing can file



       20   a charge against any other member, Article VII.B.1.



       21   Here, the arbitrator has made a preliminary finding



       22   that Meadows, an inactive member, does not enjoy



       23   member in good standing status.  Thus, he



       24   technically does not have the authority to file



       25   charges against a member.
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        1             Although Valverde continued and made his



        2   ruling on several additional grounds, because



        3   Captain Wilson did not argue the standing position,



        4   Captain Torell specifically now argues this position



        5   and asserts Mr. Meadows has no standing to file



        6   Article VII charges.  This concept is not a new



        7   concept and was argued by F.O. Rob Sproc in his own



        8   special appeal board case in 2013 when he argued



        9   that Joe Barkate, an inactive member, was neither in



       10   good or bad standing as an inactive member according



       11   to the C&B and therefore did not enjoy the



       12   privileges associated with being a member in good



       13   standing.  The relevant position of F.O. Sproc's



       14   brief presenting this argument included -- is



       15   included as Torell Exhibit 16.  Arbitrator



       16   Valverde's decisions are included as Torell Exhibits



       17   9 and 10.



       18             For a completely separate and distinct



       19   reason, these charges are not cognizable because



       20   they are not institutional complaints against APA.



       21   Captain Torell recognizes that national officers are



       22   subject to Article VII for personal actions.



       23             However, in this case the charges are



       24   against the institution and APA rather than against



       25   individual action.  For example, Mr. Meadows alleges
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        1   in his charges that as APA secretary-treasurer,



        2   Captain Torell violated the LMRDA.  This is an



        3   institutional charge against the APA.  As another



        4   example, Mr. Meadows has pending litigation or



        5   threatened litigation against APA regarding these



        6   charges.



        7             Additionally, the requested remedy is not



        8   appropriate.  Mr. Meadows asked the appeal board to



        9   direct the secretary-treasurer to issue Meadows and



       10   all MDD pilots APA membership cards, and he asked



       11   that the appeal board direct Captain Torell to amend



       12   APA's proof of claim in the bankruptcy court.  These



       13   requested remedies are beyond the jurisdiction and



       14   authority of the appeal board.  Assuming the appeal



       15   board goes -- gets to the merits of this case, the



       16   board may only decide if APA discipline is



       17   appropriate for any substantiated misdeeds.



       18             I would like to briefly review each of



       19   these charges listed in page 12 of Mr. Meadows'



       20   charges.  As to Charge 1, Captain Torell, acting in



       21   her capacity as secretary-treasurer, referencing



       22   Mr. Meadows' request for a union card to counsel.



       23   She did this because Mr. Meadows had ongoing



       24   litigation against the APA.  Her actions were



       25   appropriate for the situation.  Mr. Meadows' suit
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        1   was dismissed by the trial court.  The case is



        2   currently on appeal.



        3             Of interest, the C&B does specify a time



        4   or frequency -- correction -- does not specify a



        5   time or frequency for issuing ID cards.  It is



        6   important to note that APA subsequently issued



        7   inactive ID cards to all inactive members, including



        8   Mr. Meadows, in December of 2016.  Even if the board



        9   had authority to direct the secretary-treasurer to



       10   issue an ID card, this issue is moot.



       11             As relating to Charges 2, 3, 4, and 5



       12   related to the bankruptcy proof of claim, even if



       13   the board considers these charges cognizable and



       14   appropriate for review by the appeal board, there is



       15   absolutely no evidence that Captain Torell has



       16   willfully abstracted or converted millions of



       17   dollars of association property and assets for her



       18   own use or the use of another, nor is there any



       19   evidence that Captain Torell has misappropriated APA



       20   money or property.



       21             Mr. Meadows' defamatory allegations are



       22   baseless.  Removing his grievance from APA's



       23   bankruptcy proof of claim did not prevent



       24   Mr. Meadows from pursuing those claims against



       25   American Airlines.  In Torell Exhibit 13, Judge Lane
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        1   of the bankruptcy court explains in detail these



        2   claims and their status, none of which were affected



        3   by APA's removal of the grievance from its own proof



        4   of claim.



        5             Removing the grievance from APA's proof of



        6   claim did nothing to enrich Captain Torell or any



        7   other pilot as Mr. Meadows alleges.  Torell



        8   Exhibit 17 explains that any future equity



        9   distribution of pilots will consist of 13.5 percent



       10   of settled disputed claims.  APA does not receive



       11   any percentage of claims not settled or withdrawn.



       12             Further, Captain Torell was acting purely



       13   in her ministerial capacity of secretary-treasurer



       14   in signing the proof of claim.  Such activity and



       15   action is not cognizable under Article VII.  The



       16   decision to move the grievance to the system board



       17   was a decision made by the president under his



       18   authority.  APA C&B Article IV, Section 8 states,



       19   "The president shall conduct the affairs of APA



       20   consistent with the Constitution and Bylaws and with



       21   the policy and directives set by the board of



       22   directors.  The president's actions shall be



       23   presumed valid unless the board of directors elects



       24   to review and disapproves a particular action taken



       25   by the president."
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        1             President Wilson acted within his



        2   authority when he decided not to advance the



        3   grievance.  His action is presumed valid.  After



        4   several individual, separate claims were resolved or



        5   otherwise closed, APA amended its proof of claim.



        6   Captain Torell signed that claim.  She committed no



        7   violation of the C&B in doing so.



        8             As to Charge 3 related to aiding and



        9   abetting denial of Mr. Meadows and others access to



       10   union meetings, there is absolutely no evidence that



       11   Mr. Meadows or any other MDD pilot for that matter



       12   were denied access to union meetings or that their



       13   right to attend was hindered or restricted.



       14   Needless to say, there is no evidence that -- then



       15   that Captain Torell aided or abetted any restriction



       16   of this right.



       17             Finally, the charges related to the



       18   bankruptcy proof of claim were not timely filed.



       19   Even if the board decides the charges related to the



       20   bankruptcy proof of claim might present a cognizable



       21   issue and that Mr. Meadows has standing to bring



       22   Article VII charges, these charges should be



       23   dismissed because these charges were not timely



       24   filed.



       25             Article VII, Section B.2 requires charges
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        1   be filed within one year.  Specifically, the C&B



        2   reads, "Except for charges filed in accordance with



        3   Section A.1 and A.8 of this article, charges must be



        4   filed within one year after the alleged offense."



        5             Mr. Meadows' charges do not allege



        6   offenses under Sections A.1 or A.8.  Of important



        7   note, Mr. Meadows filed his charges on April 14,



        8   2015.  Captain Torell signed the proof of claim on



        9   March 4, 2014.  Mr. Meadows was aware of this proof



       10   of claim in March of 2014.  He objected to the proof



       11   of claim to both Captain Wilson and Captain Torell.



       12   Mr. Meadows' original charges against Captain Torell



       13   are included as Torell Exhibit 3.



       14             Exhibit 4 to Mr. Meadows' original charges



       15   against Captain Torell is a letter dated March 25,



       16   2014, to Captain Wilson protesting removal of



       17   Grievance 12-011 from APA's proof of claim.



       18   Exhibit 6, Meadows' charges, which is also included



       19   as Torell Exhibit 4, is an e-mail to Captain Torell



       20   from Mr. Meadows dated April 1, 2014.  He was aware



       21   of the proof of claim before March 25, 2014, and



       22   failed to file an Article VII until almost 13 months



       23   later on April 14, 2014.



       24             Article VII under the C&B is clear.



       25   Charges must be filed within one year.  Mr. Meadows'
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        1   charges are untimely and must be dismissed.  For all



        2   the above reasons, Mr. Meadows' charges should be



        3   dismissed in their entirety.



        4             Captain Torell would like to introduce the



        5   exhibits contained in the binders.  She has no



        6   witnesses to call and rests her case.  She reserves



        7   her right to file post-hearing briefs in lieu of



        8   closing arguments.  We rest.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we take ten?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  I have a question.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Mr. Thurstin never



       13   identified himself.  Are you a member in good



       14   standing of the APA?



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  I am, but I'm not on trial



       16   here.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  No, but --



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  He's just referencing --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just curious.  You never



       20   introduced yourself, so I just was wondering what



       21   your status was.



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  I'm a member in good



       23   standing.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Are you an attorney?



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  I am not.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Good thing, because you'd be



        2   in contempt of court.  But we'll address that.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Fortunately, we're not in



        4   a courtroom.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, there's several --



        6   there's at least 14 misrepresentations of fact that



        7   are contradicted by record evidence.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you'll have your --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll raise them -- I'll



       10   raise them when I testify.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you'll have your



       12   opportunity.  Can we take ten, please?



       13             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes.



       14                  (Recess from 9:59 to 10:03)



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Mr. Meadows.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You're up.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I'd like to call



       19   Captain Torell as the first witness.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let me make one point



       21   though.  Before we broke, you talked about whether



       22   Mr. Thurstin, Captain Thurstin was a lawyer, and



       23   that's -- just remember where we are, you know?



       24   We're --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I was just asking
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        1   because he didn't introduce himself, and he's --



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Larry, allow me --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  He's knowledgable.  He



        4   sounds like a lawyer.  I'm just curious.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I heard your comments.  I



        6   heard your comments.  My point is that, you know,



        7   the reasoning behind this was to give you your



        8   opportunity.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  And I think given



       11   what we did with Wilson, you know we bent over --



       12   you didn't agree with our decision, but we bent over



       13   backwards to allow you to go as far as you wanted to



       14   go and put in as much as you wanted to put in.  And



       15   you're going to have that same opportunity here, but



       16   there's no reason -- you know, let's try to, you



       17   know, no gloves getting thrown down on the ice.  We



       18   don't have to start throwing, you know, fists or



       19   claiming who's a lawyer or not or whether this is



       20   appropriate for a court of law because that's not



       21   where we are.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So if we could just do



       24   without any of that, that would be helpful.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Understood.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  Thank you.



        2   Mr. Meadows.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  As my first witness



        4   I'd like to call Captain Torell.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You just can do -- do you



        6   want to do it from there?  Are you okay right there?



        7             MR. THURSTIN:  Let's stow all this stuff



        8   here out of the way.



        9                  (Witness sworn by the reporter)



       10                       PAM TORELL,



       11   having been duly sworn, testified as follows:



       12                    DIRECT EXAMINATION



       13   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       14        Q.   Good morning, Captain Torell.



       15        A.   Good morning.



       16        Q.   Could you please state your full name and



       17   address for the record.



       18        A.   Absolutely.  It's Captain Pam Torell,



       19   Allied Pilots Association secretary-treasurer, 14600



       20   Trinity Boulevard, Suite 500, Fort Worth, Texas



       21   76155.



       22        Q.   Okay.  And do you have any impairments



       23   that would prevent you from testifying truthfully



       24   today?



       25        A.   Okay.  Larry, I'm going to make sure I
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        1   hear all your questions correctly.



        2        Q.   Do you have any impairments that would



        3   prevent you from testifying truthfully today?



        4        A.   No, sir.



        5        Q.   Are you on any drugs or medication that



        6   would prevent you from testifying truthfully?



        7        A.   No, sir.



        8        Q.   Okay.  Have you ever been deposed before,



        9   testified under oath before?



       10        A.   Yes, I have.



       11        Q.   In what proceedings?



       12        A.   I was deposed with Kathy Meadows.



       13        Q.   Emery?



       14        A.   Kathy Emery.  What a slip.  Emery.



       15        Q.   Okay.  Just the one time?



       16        A.   Yes, sir.



       17        Q.   Okay.  In your whole life?



       18        A.   Yes.



       19        Q.   Really?



       20        A.   Yes.



       21        Q.   All right.  Okay.  So what did you do



       22   today to prepare for this hearing?



       23        A.   Captain Thurstin and I reviewed the



       24   documents, prepared the exhibits.



       25        Q.   And did you seek the advice of legal

�                                                                 39





        1   counsel prior to coming today?



        2        A.   No, sir.



        3        Q.   Have you consulted with any attorneys



        4   prior to coming today?



        5        A.   No, sir.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to that in respect



        7   that we're getting kind of in the client-attorney --



        8   client -- client-attorney --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  No, we're not.



       10             MS. TORELL:  Attorney-client privilege.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Only the content of



       12   discussions you talk about.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Larry, please.  It



       14   was directed to the --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- to the group.  He



       17   hasn't -- all he's asked is whether you have had any



       18   communications.  He's not specifically asked about



       19   specific communications.



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Correct.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That would be



       22   attorney-client, and I would expect you to say



       23   exactly what you just said if he does that, to



       24   object under attorney-client privilege.



       25             MS. TORELL:  Exactly.  And it would be
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        1   under attorney-client privileges.  I have contact



        2   with APA legal probably on a daily basis.



        3   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        4        Q.   Yeah, but we're only speaking about these



        5   proceedings.  So who prepared your exhibit list



        6   today and your exhibits?



        7        A.   Captain Thurstin.



        8        Q.   He did it entirely on his own without any



        9   assistance from APA legal?



       10        A.   To the best of my knowledge.



       11        Q.   Did he have any assistance from APA legal?



       12        A.   To the best of my knowledge, Captain



       13   Thurstin prepared the exhibits.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, can I -- can I ask



       15   just where this is going?



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Because APA legal has been



       17   advising her and writing documents and letters for



       18   her.  And she's not -- she -- she herself in her



       19   opening statement said she's not -- and I can't



       20   bring charges against her in an official capacity,



       21   yet she's using the resources of the association in



       22   an individual capacity.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that's what your --



       24   so that's what your questions are trying to surmise?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I think there's
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        1   communications between general counsel and in-house



        2   counsel regarding these proceedings, which is



        3   inappropriate, because she's here as an individual,



        4   not as the secretary-treasurer.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm not sure I'd agree



        6   with that, but go ahead.  At least I -- at least I



        7   understand where you're going.  I just wanted to



        8   understand where you're going.  I'm sure I -- I'm



        9   not sure I --



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, let me clarify because



       11   there was a question raised that I said I was



       12   bringing charges again her in her capacity as



       13   secretary-treasurer.  What my statement, charge



       14   statement says is I'm writing to her in her capacity



       15   as secretary-treasurer because it's unusual in this



       16   circumstance because she is the individual getting



       17   charged.  She's also the clerk of court for the APA.



       18   So I was writing to her in her official capacity as



       19   the person who accepts Article VII charges.  She



       20   just happened to be accepting it for herself.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that may be.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  But I just want to clarify.



       23   I never had any intention of charging her as



       24   secretary-treasurer.  I'm charging her for her



       25   individual conduct.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, just -- but just to



        2   be clear, your charges specifically state "requires



        3   the secretary-treasurer."  Charge 2 specifically



        4   states "APA secretary-treasurer."



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I understand, but --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  "Acting in her capacity as



        7   secretary-treasurer," so --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  But she did it as an



        9   individual.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I mean, just, you know,



       11   you've got to stay with the charges that you



       12   brought.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  But she -- under



       14   Article VII I'm charging her as an individual



       15   member.  It doesn't prevent me from charging an



       16   officer of the union as an individual.  And she just



       17   happens to be the secretary-treasurer, and she is



       18   responsible for her actions individually as



       19   secretary-treasurer.  There can't be an immunized



       20   class of elected officials at APA.  They are just as



       21   liable and culpable for individual charges as anyone



       22   else.



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  Part of the charges that



       24   you've brought also contains a significant monetary



       25   judgment against the APA as part of these charges
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        1   you have brought, a possibility of a significant



        2   monetary judgment.  That judgment is -- has to be



        3   considered in some of these proceedings and where



        4   you're going with it in the Utah appellate court at



        5   this time.  So that's why we're kind of concerned



        6   about where you're going with some of the charges or



        7   some of the questioning on this.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, you have the right



        9   to object.  You know, that's your job.  His job is



       10   to try and do the best he can for himself.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  I understand.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Our job is just to make



       13   sure he stays on the charges that he brought and not



       14   expand upon those now.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's my issue.



       17   Everything that you've mentioned up till -- relates



       18   to her position as the secretary-treasurer.  So I



       19   would ask that you confine your questions to that.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Does that sound



       22   reasonable?



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, that's reasonable.



       24   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       25        Q.   So did you get any legal advice from James
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        1   & Hoffman regarding either the membership card issue



        2   or the C&R lockout issue?



        3        A.   Before I answer any of these questions, I



        4   need to verify how I'm answering.



        5        Q.   I'm not asking what advice you got.  I'm



        6   just asking if and when you got it.



        7        A.   I am here as Pam Torell, APA



        8   secretary-treasurer and my roles and duties in that



        9   position as the funds and the records and the



       10   bookkeeping of the association, not as Pam Torell as



       11   a member in good standing.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I under -- I under --



       13   okay.  So I get that.



       14             MS. TORELL:  Are we in agreement?



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think that's what



       16   we just -- I think that's what we just came to.



       17             MS. TORELL:  We did clarify that.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We just clarified --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I'm not leaving my --



       20   I mean, my intent was to charge her individually.



       21   She just happens to be secretary-treasurer.  You



       22   can't decouple the two.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but you've -- you've



       24   already charged her, Larry.  I mean, your --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I know I charged her, and
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        1   I --



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Your Article VII charges



        3   are already here.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm charging as an



        5   individual member in her capacity as



        6   secretary-treasurer.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But that's not what



        8   they -- that's what not --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  What does it say?



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It says, "Torell violated



       11   Article III, Section 4 which requires" --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  That's right.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- "her to be



       14   secretary-treasurer."



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm charging her



       16   individually.  I'm not barred from bringing charges



       17   against an elected official of the union.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let's try this.  Ask your



       19   question again.  Ask it to me.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  The question was, did she



       21   receive any legal advice from James & Hoffman



       22   regarding either the membership card issue or the



       23   C&R lockout issue.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  And if I were the



       25   secretary-treasurer, I would say that that would be
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        1   my job to try and understand what the Constitution



        2   and Bylaws mean.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  I just want a yes or no



        4   answer.  It's a yes or no answer.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, no, I understand.  I'm



        6   just trying to -- I mean, obviously they think



        7   there's something more to that.  I'm trying to get



        8   an answer.  I'm trying to figure out.  So -- and



        9   your objection is?



       10             MS. TORELL:  I am not objecting as



       11   necessarily as much as clarifying.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Is it a yes --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So as a member in good



       15   standing, you'd be unable to pick up the phone and



       16   talk to legal counsel about interpretations of the



       17   C&B.



       18             MS. TORELL:  Thank you.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You don't have that



       20   access.



       21             MS. TORELL:  Thank you, Chairman.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  As the



       23   secretary-treasurer, you certainly have that



       24   opportunity.



       25             MS. TORELL:  Thank you.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So under that notion --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Are any association



        3   resources being expended in your defense in these



        4   proceedings?



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  Say that one



        6   more time.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Are any association



        8   resources being expended in your defense in these



        9   proceedings?



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are any association



       11   resources?



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Being expended.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, we're all on union



       14   leave, Larry.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't mean -- I don't mean



       16   to paddle.  I mean, is Mr. Thurstin getting paid by



       17   APA for union leave today?



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that's the only -- I



       19   mean, she has a right to a fair representation.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  She doesn't have a right to



       21   a paid representation.  She has a right to



       22   representation by a member in good standing.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes, but it doesn't



       24   specifically prevent.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  So my question is, is
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        1   Mr. Thurstin on paid union leave today?



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, wait, wait, wait,



        3   wait.  Hold on.  I want to be perfect -- okay.  Your



        4   position here at APA is representing Pam Torell



        5   today.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  That's correct.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are you on any committees



        8   with the Allied Pilots Association?



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  I'm also on the -- a member



       10   at large for the ad hoc compensation committee.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  As a member of the



       12   ad hoc compensation committee, does that require



       13   union leave?



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  It does.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are you presently on union



       16   leave because of those committee issues?



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  I have been, yes, sir.



       18             MS. TORELL:  But today?



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  How about today?



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Today I'm specifically for



       21   this proceeding.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So today you're



       23   here specifically for this proceeding.  You had --



       24   were you granted union leave specifically for this



       25   proceeding?
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        1             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I don't think there's



        3   anything inappropriate.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Really?  So I'm bringing



        5   individual charges, and the association is spending



        6   resources defending the individual.  Inappropriate.



        7   Whatever.  It's just -- again, it's answered.  Okay.



        8   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        9        Q.   Has Mark Myers or anyone else in APA legal



       10   written any documents or letters for you in these



       11   proceedings or in the Wilson proceedings?  I'll



       12   clarify it.



       13             On February 2nd you sent a letter to



       14   Captain Hepp asking to have these proceedings



       15   dismissed based on the Valverde decision.  Did you



       16   write that letter yourself?



       17        A.   If the letter's signed by me, the letter



       18   was written by me.



       19        Q.   You wrote all the words in that letter?



       20        A.   If the letter is signed by me, it's my



       21   document.



       22        Q.   Did you have any assistance --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, I think the



       24   question is asked and answered.



       25   BY MR. MEADOWS:
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        1        Q.   Did you have any assistance preparing the



        2   letter?



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, okay.  Wait a



        4   second.  Question's asked and answered.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right?  She signed the



        7   letter.  She wrote the letter.



        8   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        9        Q.   In that letter you had attachments.  How



       10   did you learn of the Valverde decision?



       11        A.   It was e-mailed to me.



       12        Q.   Okay.  And you concluded that that was a



       13   binding precedent in the association?



       14        A.   That's speculative.  I'm here for the



       15   factual merits only.



       16        Q.   I'm asking you -- well, you relied upon



       17   it.  You feel like you can dismiss these proceedings



       18   based on Valverde's decision, correct?



       19        A.   I am here for factual information only.



       20        Q.   Do you -- okay.  Did you or did you not



       21   assert that I don't have standing based on



       22   Valverde's decision?



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Stand -- no, no,



       24   no.  No.  Larry, that's up to us.  She is just like



       25   we have granted you --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no, no.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait a second.  No, no,



        3   Larry, no.  We have granted you wide latitude in



        4   putting in whatever you've wanted to put in, and we



        5   have given you that latitude under Wilson and we've



        6   given you that latitude under this.  And by the way,



        7   we asked for those documents seven days in advance.



        8   And I understand you're busy and they didn't do it



        9   either.  So, both sides.  But the bottom line is



       10   we're letting both sides do it.  But we've given



       11   everyone wide latitude on this.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  So they have a



       14   right to make their claim.  It's up to us to make



       15   that decision.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  I got it.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Obviously they put it in



       18   because they decided it's relevant to their case.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  I got it.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But we're the ones that



       21   are going to make the decision.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  I understand, but --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You don't -- I don't want



       24   to know whether she thinks it's relevant.  I mean,



       25   to me just -- I obviously think they think it's
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        1   relevant, or they would not have included it.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Whether it's relevant to



        4   us is what matters.  So, no, I'm going to -- I'm



        5   going to object to that question.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  And I just want to



        7   clarify.  I'm just trying to establish a foundation



        8   because we're going to get into my standing and what



        9   Ms. Torell believes my standing was or wasn't at



       10   various periods in time.  So that's part of it.  But



       11   that's what I'm trying to get at.  I can get to it



       12   later.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, they put it in,



       14   Larry, so obviously they think there must be



       15   something to it.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll get to it later in



       17   another line of questioning.  Okay.



       18   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       19        Q.   All right.  If you could just real briefly



       20   post-high school, could you just give me a



       21   description of your education experience and flight



       22   training experience prior to getting hired at



       23   American Airlines?



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  What relevance does



       25   that have to do with this?
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I'd like to know if she has



        2   any financial training or education or credentials.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  If she has any what?



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Financial training,



        5   education or credentials.  She's secretary-treasurer



        6   of the association.  I'm just curious if she has any



        7   formal training, her education in finance.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's up to you.



        9             But just to be clear, Larry, we've elected



       10   a lot of secretary-treasurers that have no financial



       11   background when they become secretary-treasurer.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I understand, but it goes to



       13   my claim.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I --



       15             MS. TORELL:  In the essence of time, I'm



       16   going to pass.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  You can't pass.



       18             MS. TORELL:  I defer to the chair.



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.



       20   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       21        Q.   Are you a licensed --



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  It's not relevant.



       23   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       24        Q.   Are you a licensed CPA?



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  It's not relevant to
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        1   Article VII.



        2   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        3        Q.   Are you a licensed CPA?  I'm asking the



        4   question of you, Ms. Torell.  Are you a licensed



        5   CPA?



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to this because



        7   it's not a relevant question.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  It's relevant because she's



        9   signing proofs of claims for billions of dollars,



       10   and she needs to have some financial knowledge.  So



       11   my question is, is it on-the-job training, or is it



       12   formal education and experience?  It's relevant.



       13             MR. THURSTIN:  I still object.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, I'm sorry.  I don't



       15   see the relevance.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Fine.  We'll move on.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Given the fact that this



       18   association has elected numerous people that have



       19   had no financial training or -- in various positions



       20   within the union.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So what are the --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Stand by one.



       23                  (Off record from 10:36 to 10:37)



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I'm going to object.  I



       25   am going to object to this line of questioning
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        1   because there's nothing in the Constitution and



        2   Bylaws that places any requirements on this position



        3   in terms of financial background.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Fine.



        5   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        6        Q.   When did you first serve in an official



        7   capacity for APA?  Or briefly describe what jobs or



        8   positions you've held in APA.



        9        A.   Since 1998?



       10        Q.   Since whenever you were hired.



       11        A.   All right.  Since 1998 various committees.



       12   I could provide a list of them, but there are



       13   various committees as in --



       14        Q.   Can you list them off?



       15        A.   Aero Med, Family Awareness, Professional



       16   Standards.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You don't have to --



       18   doesn't have to be comprehensive.



       19        A.   Safety training.  Okay.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think we get the point.



       21             MS. TORELL:  Thank you.  Thank you.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You've done various.



       23   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       24        Q.   When were you elected sect -- thank you



       25   for your service, but when were you elected for the
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        1   secretary-treasurer position?



        2        A.   July 1, 2013.



        3        Q.   So you've got extensive experience in the



        4   APA.



        5        A.   (Witness nods head.)



        6        Q.   And do you have a strong working



        7   knowledge --



        8        A.   It could be your understanding.



        9        Q.   -- of the C&B?



       10        A.   Say again?



       11        Q.   Do you have a strong working knowledge of



       12   the C&B then?



       13        A.   I do my best with the C&B, yes.



       14        Q.   Do you have a strong working knowledge of



       15   the LMRDA?



       16        A.   I do my best with it.  I do not have it



       17   memorized, but I reference it frequently.



       18        Q.   Aren't you bound under federal law to be



       19   obligated to conduct yourself in accordance with the



       20   LMRDA and the C&B?



       21        A.   I believe so.  I'm not sure if that's a



       22   stipulation, but I always try.



       23        Q.   Are you aware of the fiduciary duties that



       24   are attached to your position as APA



       25   secretary-treasurer?
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        1        A.   I believe so.



        2        Q.   And what are they?



        3        A.   My fiduciary responsibilities?



        4        Q.   Yeah.



        5        A.   The responsibility of the books, the



        6   funds, and the records of the association.



        7        Q.   And filing reports?



        8        A.   As --



        9        Q.   Do you sign federal tax returns?



       10        A.   Yeah.  I serve as APA secretary-treasurer



       11   along with an accounting staff.



       12        Q.   So are you responsible for all



       13   representations made on IRS filings that are signed



       14   by you?



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I ask where we're going



       16   with this?  This is kind of a -- IRS is way outside



       17   the scope of Article VII.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can you read the last



       19   question back, please?



       20                  (Requested text was read)



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So, Larry, I guess what



       22   we're doing, what road you're trying to go down is



       23   you're trying to do your best to attach her to the



       24   $5.6 million claim.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  No.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So where are you



        2   going?



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I mean, I think she's



        4   doing -- she's taken certain actions in violation of



        5   the C&B, which she should be well aware of that



        6   they're in violation of numerous federal laws, not



        7   to mention the C&B.  So my question is what makes



        8   her think she can do them.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think she's made



       10   that plain in her side of her opening statement.



       11   Yes?



       12             MS. TORELL:  Yes, sir.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And they're in the



       14   affirmative.



       15             Can you read that question one more time,



       16   please?



       17                  (Requested text was read)



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you're objecting to



       19   it.



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  I'm objecting to that



       21   because it's outside the scope of the charges.



       22   We're way outside the scope of the charges.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  No, we're not.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I mean, it does --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  She just said she's here as
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        1   the secretary-treasurer.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.  Thank you.



        3   He is trying to establish how much involvement Pam



        4   has with the $5.6 million claim against the



        5   bankruptcy.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  Right.  We're concerned



        7   about that from APA's legal standpoint, though, that



        8   that is a claim that is -- we don't want discovery



        9   hearings.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Stand by.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  I object.  You are not



       12   representing APA and APA legal has no role in these



       13   proceedings and you just spilled beans right there.



       14   You have no -- I mean, this is -- really.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Stand by.



       16                  (Off record from 10:41 to 10:43)



       17                  (Mark Myers joins the hearing)



       18             MS. HELLER:  Larry, just wanted to clarify



       19   something.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Sure.



       21             MS. HELLER:  There was a discussion, and



       22   it's just left a little bit unclear as to whether



       23   you are bringing charges against Pam in her



       24   individual capacity or as -- in her capacity as



       25   secretary-treasurer.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, under Article VII I'm



        2   required to bring them against individual members.



        3   She just happens to be the secretary-treasurer.  And



        4   her actions were taken individually and in her role



        5   as secretary-treasurer.  And I think the appeal



        6   board had a manual in 2009 that never got published,



        7   but it basically said part of the new rules were



        8   there's not an immunized class of elected officials.



        9             MS. HELLER:  Correct.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's absolutely right.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  There used to be.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.  And that's since



       13   been changed.  I guess -- I guess where I'm -- to



       14   speak towards Lisa's issue, are you teeing up a



       15   lawsuit against her that you haven't yet brought?



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm coming back to work.



       17   I'll be back to work in three months.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Congratulations.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I'm medically



       20   qualified now.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  So can you go



       22   back three, say three or four questions and just can



       23   you read the questions and responses?



       24             My fear is that now we're starting to



       25   tread into responsibilities of APA.  And so I've
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        1   asked for in-house counsel to be present because he



        2   has an interest in protecting the association in



        3   regard to this Q&A, I think.  And so I just want



        4   your opinion, Mark, as to where -- as to where we



        5   are given the last series of questions we've gotten.



        6             So could you go back three or four



        7   questions, please.



        8                  (Requested text was read)



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I guess -- and you've



       10   objected.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  I've objected.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Because you believe that



       13   is not relevant.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  It's outside of the scope



       15   of the charges, in my opinion.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I just want to be --



       17   before we rule on that, I'm just -- I'm a little



       18   uncomfortable in -- when someone runs for



       19   secretary-treasurer, they don't ask that person



       20   whether they have any financial background



       21   whatsoever.



       22             And I understand Larry's issue of the



       23   bankruptcy claim and having the grievance removed.



       24   I totally get that.  My issue is that whenever you



       25   do union business, you rely on advice from many
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        1   sources, and you just do the best job you can trying



        2   to make the decision given the time crunch that



        3   we're always in and the resources that you have



        4   available.



        5             And I just want to make sure that the



        6   position of secretary-treasurer is not compromised



        7   given the fact that we do have people who walk in



        8   the door with zero experience on many committee



        9   positions and many national officer positions.



       10             Am I off base?  I mean, do you think that



       11   that's -- do I need you here?



       12             MR. MYERS:  Well, if you'd like to have a



       13   conversation off the record, the board and I can



       14   chat.  The question, I guess, is --



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, stand by one.  Can



       16   we have a conversation off the record?



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Before we go off, I just



       18   want to clarify.  The reason Mark's in here now is



       19   because Mr. Thurstin said he's objecting on the



       20   basis of APA legal and the institution.  So I don't



       21   know if he's a pilot --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, no.  Let's be clear.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  That's what he said.  We can



       24   go back and read it.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It doesn't -- Mark is not
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        1   in here because of anything that Jeff said other



        2   than he objects.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, he objected on behalf



        4   of APA legal is what he said.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That -- that -- that is



        6   not --



        7             MR. THURSTIN:  No, I did not say on behalf



        8   of APA legal.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Can we go back into the



       10   record?



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Jeff, please.  Jeff, stop.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look, Mark is here because



       14   I've asked him to be here because I have issues



       15   involving the protection of this institution, and



       16   what are the roles and responsibilities given that



       17   laymen walk off the street and take committee



       18   positions.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And national officers



       21   positions.  That's why he's here.  Not because of



       22   anything that he added other than the fact that he



       23   objected.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Maybe this will help you



       25   guys out.  I'm looking at IRS Form 990, the return

�                                                                 64





        1   of organization exempt from federal income tax dated



        2   2014, signed by Pam Torell on February 8th, 2016.



        3             And in part 3, paragraph 4A, it talks



        4   about the responsibilities of the association.  It



        5   says protection of the individual and collective



        6   rights of the members of the APA in promotion of



        7   their professional interest.  Part 3 of Form 990,



        8   paragraph 4A, states protection of the individual



        9   and collective rights of the members of the APA in



       10   promotion of their professional interest, collective



       11   bargaining and negotiation on behalf of the pilots



       12   of American Airlines, including but not limited to



       13   work agreements, rates of pay, and rules and working



       14   conditions.



       15             So my point is, the association via Pam



       16   Torell is representing to the federal government



       17   that their role, their being for being a nonprofit



       18   organization is protecting the individual and



       19   collective rights of the members of APA, not the



       20   institution.



       21             I'm sick and tired of this crap where all



       22   these decisions are made by Bennett and James &



       23   Hoffman to protect the institution at the expense of



       24   people like me.  This institution doesn't exist for



       25   the purpose of protecting itself.  It exists for the
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        1   purpose of protecting the members.



        2             I'm sorry, Mark.  You work for me and



        3   every other pilot at American Airlines, just like



        4   Bennett and James & Hoffman were supposed to.  And



        5   I'm getting a little pissed off because who gives a



        6   fuck about the APA when the members are getting



        7   screwed over and they're telling the federal



        8   government that their role is to represent the



        9   individual and collective rights of the members, and



       10   that's not happening.  It's not happening here



       11   today.  And I'm sorry.  But it's a pretty sensitive



       12   issue, and I've had this discussion with Mr. Buckley



       13   a couple weeks ago and he made it really clear that



       14   from here on going forward, it's all about the



       15   members, not the institution.  So that's a big



       16   problem.



       17             And it's basically tax fraud, Pam.  You're



       18   lying to the federal government.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I guess what I would



       20   say is that the reason you're here, even though we



       21   have had a president state that you're an inactive



       22   member and we've had an arbitrator, for what that's



       23   worth, and I'm not --



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  No stare decisis value.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- I give it no
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        1   credence -- that state that you're an inactive



        2   member.  It's because we are trying to give you your



        3   opportunity.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I appreciate that.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that we have bent



        6   over backwards to provide you with every opportunity



        7   to make your claims on questionable Constitution and



        8   Bylaws grounds.  This board here has worked hard to



        9   give you that opportunity, as you say, because we



       10   have -- we also believe that it is -- whatever class



       11   of member you are, you have that opportunity.



       12             So I understand you're mad.  I understand



       13   that -- I want you to understand that I think we



       14   have represented ourselves in the protection of your



       15   membership status, which is still in question.  But



       16   we have bent over backwards to try and give you that



       17   opportunity.  So I understand that you're angry, but



       18   I don't think you're giving this institution its



       19   just due with that comment.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I believe you guys --



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I understand that



       22   we'll just have to agree to disagree.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine.  And I don't -- no



       24   slight intended against the board.  The executive



       25   board has been very fair.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You've slighted me many



        2   times, Larry.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but it's not --



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You don't -- you don't



        5   have to --



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  It's just business here.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I get that.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I believe -- but I truly



        9   believe you, despite my accusations about having --



       10   trying to recuse you, have been fair and sincere,



       11   and F.O. Heller and Fletcher have as well.  The



       12   problem I have is, how fair and sincere can you be



       13   to overcome the fact that you're being led and



       14   guided by Steve Hoffman?  That's a problem.  Because



       15   Steve Hoffman, he should have no role in this, and



       16   especially because I'm charging him with



       17   misrepresentation to a federal judge.



       18             So that's the problem.  But I don't -- I



       19   think the board's -- through the constraints of what



       20   they're being told by legal counsel, I think the



       21   board's doing the best they can do, but I think



       22   there's too much interference from the legal



       23   department.  This is supposed to be individual



       24   charges.  And if the institution is exposed and made



       25   liable because one of their officers screwed up, so
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        1   be it.  That's the cost of doing business.  You



        2   can't sit here and try to cover up unlawful acts.



        3   And violations of the C&B are unlawful acts, not to



        4   mention the unlawful violations of the LMRDA and the



        5   IRS code.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, Larry, now I've



        7   gotten you to again have an opportunity to talk



        8   about unlawful acts, which we will decide whether



        9   there is in fact or not lawful or unlawful acts.



       10             As far as the influence on the -- this



       11   board -- and obviously this is inside baseball now,



       12   my apologies -- we have tried to take advice from



       13   many different sources.  I think that's our job.  I



       14   think that our last decision shows that we were fair



       15   and as fair as we possibly could be, not only in



       16   hearing your claim but in deciding your claim.



       17             Now, I obviously understand that you



       18   didn't think it went your way.  I understand that



       19   now you'll have your opportunity to go back to a



       20   Utah court.  All good.  You know, you're doing the



       21   best you can.  I totally get that.  But as I said, I



       22   think this notion that there is some outside



       23   influence to this board is just wrong.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And we'll just have to
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        1   agree to disagree on that.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  For future reference, I



        3   think it would be appropriate if the board had



        4   independent counsel.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that's something



        6   you'll -- hopefully you'll get your job back.



        7   Hopefully you'll be a voting member of this union



        8   and you'll have your opportunities to make those



        9   claims and run for office and so on and so forth and



       10   make that a change.  But all we can do right now is



       11   go under the present Constitution and Bylaws and the



       12   policy manual.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Understood.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's our charge.  So



       15   now, getting back to the point at hand, sorry about



       16   that folks, because I didn't think that should go



       17   unchallenged.



       18             Mark, to get back to you, I don't want



       19   this proceeding -- because you're wrong, Larry.



       20   This is not about APA.  This is about the next



       21   secretary-treasurer.  This is about the next member



       22   who chooses to run for that position.  I don't want



       23   the next person in that seat to be burdened by your



       24   questions and answers as far as what their



       25   responsibilities are in regard to the LMRDA, the
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        1   IRS, and the C&B.  That's a big mouthful for someone



        2   who's just walking in the door to do this job.



        3             And so I think that if Mark -- if I'm



        4   right and Mark Myers thinks that we need to have a



        5   discussion on this off the record, because I don't



        6   want to hinder someone else's ability to take this



        7   job because they're scared away by all of these now



        8   newfound responsibilities that aren't listed in the



        9   Constitution to become the next secretary-treasurer.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  But the Constitution is



       11   under Robert's Rules which in turn are hierarchy



       12   laws.  It falls under the LMRDA.  You can't -- she



       13   fills out LM-2 reports for the LMRDA all the time,



       14   so she's bound.  I mean, the C&B by extension has to



       15   incorporate the LMRDA.  It can't exist in a vacuum.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Am I just going down a



       17   rabbit hole here?



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Thank you, Larry.



       20             Can we go off the record for a bit?



       21                  (Mark Myers leaves the hearing)



       22                  (Recess from 10:57 to 11:25)



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Back on the record.  Okay.



       24   Let's see if we can't break the logjam here.  First



       25   off, from the APA Appeal Board Committee Manual
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        1   dated the fall of 2016, became effective as of



        2   September 15, 2016, if you'll look on page 8.  And



        3   we'll get you a copy of this if you'd like.  It's



        4   leave policy.  "Flight pay loss will be available to



        5   appeal board members in accordance with the APA



        6   policy manual.  Flight pay loss will be available to



        7   principal participants only, i.e., accusers,



        8   accused, and their designated representatives."



        9             So that should answer the question as far



       10   as Jeff.  We provide union leave for pilot



       11   representatives.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  You do.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you want me to read the



       14   sentence again?



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  But that wasn't in effect



       16   for this proceeding.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, this was effective



       18   as of September --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  I know, but this



       20   proceeding's been pending long before that.  So



       21   you're saying this is applying retroactive to this



       22   proceeding?



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No.  I think that's -- had



       24   it been -- so your contention is because you brought



       25   these charges in 2015, we're supposed to be using
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        1   the 2015 appeal board manual?



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Probably, yeah.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Well, okay.  So --



        4   all right.  So that's that.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I think it wasn't addressed



        6   before, correct?  It wasn't -- it didn't specify it



        7   one way or the other.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Under the old?



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, under the old.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think the old one said



       11   you didn't.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  That's what I thought



       13   too.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But -- yeah, and I'm just



       15   trying to clarify --



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- what your -- your issue



       18   as far as --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, he's here and he's



       20   going to go forward and represent her.  I'm not



       21   trying to deprive her of representation.  I'm just



       22   saying I think it's a conflict for the association



       23   to be paying, but I'm not trying to --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, we would have paid



       25   for yours.

�                                                                 73





        1             MR. MEADOWS:  No one told me that.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Actually Keith Wilson



        4   objected at the AAA.  Ed Sicher showed up, my Miami



        5   base rep.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't -- I don't know



        7   about your -- the arbitration.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no, but I'm saying that



        9   he showed up and paid union leave because Dan Carey



       10   authorized it, but Wilson was all tied up in a knot



       11   over it, thought it was inappropriate.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, well.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So, just so you know.



       14   It's not just me making that kind of --



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, I understand.  No, I'm



       16   just trying to clear up the point.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  Now let's talk



       19   about your questions in terms of the IRS and



       20   bringing your charges.  This board is looking at



       21   your charges as they regard the secretary-treasurer



       22   of this association.  That's what your charges say.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think now -- I feel like



       25   now you're trying to open it up as an individual
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        1   claim, so you're adding on to that.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it is an individual



        3   claim.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I would dis -- we are



        5   going -- this board is looking at this.  When she



        6   steps into this building, she is doing the duties of



        7   the secretary-treasurer.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  But I just don't want



        9   to be knocked --



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm not here to argue.



       11   I'm hearing to tell -- I'm here to tell you our



       12   situation, so please.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm asking a question



       14   though.  Can I clarify?



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That the -- yes.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just -- so if you're



       17   saying she's secretary-treasurer, I don't want to be



       18   knocked out of the box saying that these charges are



       19   invalid because she's not an individual.  That's



       20   where that leads me.  I'll acknowledge she's



       21   secretary-treasurer and she committed a lot of these



       22   actions while secretary-treasurer.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, she committed all



       24   these actions as the secretary-treasurer.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but I'm bringing the
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        1   charges against her individually.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But you didn't.  Your



        3   Article VII charges --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I brought -- I brought



        5   against her.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- are her actions as the



        7   secretary-treasurer.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I brought them against Pam



        9   Torell who happens to be the secretary-treasurer.



       10   You can't decouple the two.  Can't be one or the



       11   other.  It's the same thing.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, she's the



       13   secretary-treasurer.  Her actions -- she would not



       14   have done anything within -- the charges that you



       15   brought she would have nothing to do with were she



       16   not the secretary-treasurer of this association.



       17   She wouldn't have been involved in the bankruptcy.



       18   She wouldn't have been involved in the --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Right, right.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- membership card issue.



       21   She wouldn't have been involved with your other



       22   charges involved.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  So are you saying that



       24   because she was secretary-treasurer she's immune



       25   from Article VII charges?
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But I'm saying that we are



        4   looking at her actions --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- as the



        7   secretary-treasurer of this -- as the duties of the



        8   secretary-treasurer --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- of this association.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine, fine.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's number one.  Number



       13   two, our purview is the C&B and the policy manual.



       14   I understand that you have, you know, you're reading



       15   into the record, and I assume that's going to be



       16   part of your evidence, the LMRDA and your IRS



       17   statute that you just read previously, but that's



       18   not the charge of the appeal board.  The appeal



       19   board's charge is the operations of the



       20   institution --



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  I get it.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- as it works under the



       23   C&B and the policy manual.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  What I'm trying to get at,



       25   it's relevant.  She's representing that her -- or
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        1   the APA, their charge is to represent the collective



        2   and individual interests of the members.  Because



        3   it's going to become relevant later when I get to a



        4   member question, you know, where is she beholden, is



        5   she beholden to the institution or the members.  And



        6   that's why I was using that document.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, let's worry about



        8   that membership issue when that comes up.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  I'm almost done.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But my point is, Larry, is



       11   that any other questions involving the LMRDA are



       12   inappropriate.  Any other questions involving IRS



       13   statutes are inappropriate.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, no, I don't --



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Her responsibilities as



       16   far as, you know, as this board, this board is going



       17   to rule on her duties and, you know, and your



       18   charges as it relates to her duties under the



       19   Constitution and Bylaws and the policy manual.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  I understand, but I would



       21   object because under the LMRDA there was a



       22   definition of member in good standing which



       23   contradicts what she and APA has been saying.  And



       24   it can't be both ways.  So it is relevant.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I would say to that,
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        1   when Emery brought the case in Florida -- let me



        2   backtrack.  When we made a decision on the AUP as an



        3   appeal board, our Constitution said that MDD pilots



        4   were excluded from C&R.  That's our charge --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  It didn't say that.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- is to look at the AUP



        7   and how it applies to membership status.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  My membership status has



        9   never been fully addressed by this board yet, and



       10   that's where we get to today.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  The -- your individual



       12   membership status, yes, but as a collective it did.



       13   So we looked specifically at the C&B and the policy



       14   manual.  Now, when Emery brought her case in



       15   Florida, they looked at it under the confines of the



       16   LMRDA.  That's not our charge.  That's why -- when



       17   you go back to Utah and appeal, if you'd like to



       18   depose Ms. Torell in regards to IRS statutes and the



       19   LMRDA, I totally get that.  But that is not the



       20   purview of the appeal board.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  But do you think it's not



       22   relevant if APA's C&B and definitions of certain



       23   status of membership completely contradict the



       24   LMRDA?  You don't think that's relevant.



       25             MS. HELLER:  It's not our position, it's
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        1   not our purview to interpret the LMRDA.  That's a



        2   court of law.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not asking you to



        4   interpret it.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But you are.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm not.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But to rule on it, we have



        8   to.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Well --



       10             MS. HELLER:  We have to apply it.  We have



       11   to --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I do want to get a record at



       13   one point, I'll ask a question, but I am under the



       14   LMRDA.  I'm a member in good standing.  So if the



       15   APA wants to sit here in a little kangaroo world and



       16   say I'm not a member in good standing, they can do



       17   it, but it's just going to be rammed right up their



       18   ass in federal -- I'm sorry -- in federal court.  I



       19   mean, it's just the reality.



       20             But it's just relevant because you can't



       21   sit here and make up rules because you're bound by



       22   the LMRDA as a labor organization.  So you can't say



       23   it's not relevant to this because it is.  Because



       24   I'm a member in good standing under the LMRDA,



       25   there's no way I cannot be a member in good standing
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        1   under the C&B.  And there's no definition in the C&B



        2   of a member in good standing.  There is arbitration



        3   decisions which say a member in good standing is



        4   someone who's paid all their financial obligations



        5   that were owed to the association.



        6             The appeal board, it was mischaracterized



        7   in the opening statement in Sproc.  Sproc argued



        8   that Barkate was not a member.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, stick to



       10   the --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Well --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look, you're going to have



       13   these arguments, but my point is, is that I think



       14   that the Emery case in Florida and the AUP issue, I



       15   think those two are a perfect representation of what



       16   those two bodies are for, the appeal board being one



       17   and the court system being another.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  And I understand.  I'm not



       19   here voluntarily.  I was forced here by a federal



       20   judge at the behest of Steve Hoffman --



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I -- I'm --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  -- for LMRDA charges that



       23   had to be brought under the auspices of the C&B.



       24   So this is where we are, so -- and if I don't



       25   exhaust this, their argument in federal court is
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        1   going to be I didn't exhaust my internal remedy.  So



        2   I have no choice but to go forward and diligently



        3   pursue this to the nth degree.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I -- and, Larry, have



        5   I done anything to stop you from doing that?



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no, no.  I'll -- look,



        7   I'll --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Has this board done



        9   anything to stop you from doing that?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll agree not to --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I would appreciate an



       12   answer yes or no on that.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, I think you guys have.



       14   I'm just going to say, I'd like -- I'll agree not to



       15   ask any questions under the LMRDA and the IRS so



       16   long as we get to the standing issue.  I want to



       17   refer to the definition of good standing in the



       18   LMRDA because it's relevant.  So I think it's



       19   relevant for the board to know that if APA's saying



       20   this is what good standing is and the arbitrators



       21   say this is what good standing is and the LMRDA says



       22   this is what it is, you guys need to know that



       23   because the definition -- it's a definition.  It's



       24   not interpretation.  It's a definition under the



       25   LMRDA, Section 401.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And to be clear, I have



        2   never stopped you from putting anything on the



        3   record.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Just I'll -- I'll ask



        5   permission before I ask a question later.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I will -- and I will



        7   tell you right now that's fine.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  If you want to read the



       10   LMRDA definition of a member in good standing,



       11   that's totally acceptable.  But to talk about, you



       12   know, IRS statutes and her responsibilities under



       13   those IRS statutes, Larry, I think we're just



       14   getting into the --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think we're getting into



       17   the weeds.  And I think you'll -- and I think, as I



       18   said, I think you'll have that opportunity when



       19   you --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine, fine.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- go back to Utah.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine.  Hopefully I'll be



       23   back before we ever get back to Utah.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That would be nice.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  If someone in APA legal
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        1   comes to their senses.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You can fly with me



        3   anytime, Larry.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  You didn't say that last



        5   time.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that's wrong.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm going to go back to



        8   triple 7, so, yeah, you need a little remedial



        9   training.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  The -- well, I'm on the



       11   seven six, so you'll have to take a pay cut.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I thought you were on triple



       13   7.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I was, but I'm not



       15   anymore.  All right.  So back on -- so we've been on



       16   the record this whole time, correct?  So you were



       17   questioning Ms. Torell.  And we're done with IRS



       18   questions and LMRDAs and duties and responsibilities



       19   and --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  I had a couple of



       21   preliminary questions and we'll get right to the



       22   membership issue.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Well, let's see



       24   where we go.



       25   BY MR. MEADOWS:
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        1        Q.   Okay.  Captain Torell, so I'm looking at



        2   your exhibit list, and you have some correspondence



        3   to me.  Have you kept a record of all communications



        4   between myself and you?



        5        A.   Yes, I have, sir.  Yes, sir.



        6        Q.   Have you deleted any of the e-mails?



        7        A.   No, sir.



        8        Q.   No, sir?  Why not?



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, come on, Larry.



       10   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       11        Q.   Do you have -- does APA have a document



       12   retention policy?



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Is it relevant if she says



       14   she's kept everything from you?



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, because maybe she



       16   hasn't.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  Object to the fact she's



       18   already answered the question.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's under oath.  I mean,



       20   if you're going to lie, Larry, at least give her



       21   credit for --



       22   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       23        Q.   Does APA have a document retention policy?



       24        A.   I believe so.  I believe APA legal does,



       25   yes.

�                                                                 85





        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  And again, on the IRS



        2   Form 990 she signed, one of the disclosures that she



        3   made to the IRS is that APA does have a document



        4   disclosure policy.  That's all.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, come on, please.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  It's important.  You know



        7   what?  It's relevant because she's making these



        8   representations to the federal government.  They're



        9   binding here.  I mean, she's representing to the



       10   federal government certain things that she's got to



       11   be bound by it here.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, you're going to



       13   scare off every other person who wants to be a



       14   national officer in this institution because --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Maybe we shouldn't have --



       16   maybe the secretary-treasurer should be a licensed



       17   CPA.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's -- that's not the



       19   purview of --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Fine.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- the appeal board,



       22   nor -- get your job back, get a motion, get elected,



       23   make the changes.



       24   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       25        Q.   To that end, what are the annual revenues
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        1   of APA?



        2        A.   The annual revenues?  We bring in --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  What relevance is



        4   that?  First off, we're a 504, right?  We're



        5   nonprofit.  So are they considered revenues?



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Dues.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  I got off the



        8   rails there.  What's the relevance of -- would you



        9   mind -- do you have a problem answering that?



       10             MS. TORELL:  I don't have a problem



       11   because that is all posted for the membership to



       12   see.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.  That's what I'm



       14   saying, it's all public.



       15             MS. TORELL:  So he can look for himself.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.  That's why --



       17             MS. TORELL:  The record speaks for itself.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just trying to get at



       19   the fact that, okay, look, this -- what is it, 40,



       20   50, 60 million dollars in assets, something like



       21   that.  It varies over time.  It's a lot of money.



       22   It's like a national corporation.  I mean, we have



       23   members, a publicly-traded company, as shareholders,



       24   but it's a big operation, big organization.  In some



       25   respects it would be multinational because we have a
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        1   lot of members that reside outside the country.  And



        2   it seems crazy that we have a secretary-treasurer



        3   that's not qualified or licensed to be handling --



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  -- or managing that sort of



        6   revenue.  No, in a corporate entity, there's no way



        7   someone without any type of credentials would be



        8   able to be in a secretary-treasurer position.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, you've made that



       10   point, and it's a justifiable objection from Captain



       11   Thurstin over there.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Because Pam Torell's --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But the bottom line is,



       14   Larry, again, asked and answered, for gosh sakes.



       15   We have -- there are no responsibilities listed



       16   under the secretary-treasurer.  You obviously



       17   disagree with that.  We get that.  Can we please get



       18   back on point.



       19   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       20        Q.   Okay.  Captain Torell, what are your



       21   primary responsibilities as secretary-treasurer?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think she's asked and



       23   answered that question.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't remember now it's



       25   been so far off track.

�                                                                 88





        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, you can read the



        2   transcript and get us back.



        3   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        4        Q.   Okay.  In your duties as



        5   secretary-treasurer, are you representing the



        6   interests of the association or the members?



        7        A.   I am responsible to the members who



        8   elected me for my second term.



        9        Q.   And all the actions you take, do you take



       10   them on behalf of the institution or the members?



       11        A.   I take them on behalf of the membership



       12   that I represent that elected me on a second term.



       13        Q.   And do you have any conflicts, business



       14   conflicts with the APA?



       15        A.   Absolutely not.  And conflict of interest



       16   forms are signed as soon as we enter the door.



       17        Q.   Don't get offended.  I'm just asking.  I



       18   don't know.



       19        A.   No, absolutely not, sir.



       20        Q.   So you have no business relationship



       21   conflicts with APA?



       22        A.   No, sir.



       23        Q.   Do you have any personal associations with



       24   anybody in APA?



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  I don't
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        1   understand.



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.  What is the



        3   relevance?



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, I don't understand



        5   that either.



        6   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        7        Q.   Do you socialize with any of the officers



        8   of the union outside of the union?



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Come on, Larry.



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Come on, please.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  It's important.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Why?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  It ties her to other people.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And, I mean, I think we



       16   can presume that she's been with -- you know, had



       17   dinner and had conversations and --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  That's not what I meant,



       19   but --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, then please, tell me



       21   what it is you're trying to get at so I can



       22   understand the question.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  We can go to it later.  I'll



       24   just go and -- I'll keep you happy.  I'll go to the



       25   membership questions.  Okay.  So I'll try and keep
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        1   this focused on membership issues for now, and then



        2   we'll move into the Grievance 12-011 issues for



        3   those charges.



        4   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        5        Q.   Okay.  Captain Torell, what type of member



        6   am I at APA?



        7        A.   Since the beginning of my term, you have



        8   been -- I consider and treat you as a MDD inactive



        9   member.



       10        Q.   Since the beginning of your term?  And



       11   when did that -- that started in June of 2013?



       12        A.   Yes.



       13        Q.   Okay.



       14        A.   It's actually July 1.



       15        Q.   And so you don't agree with the directive



       16   issued by Rusty McDaniels during the special BOD



       17   meeting on April 23rd, 2014, that MDD pilots are not



       18   members and not entitled to any rights or



       19   privileges?



       20        A.   I am not familiar with that directive.



       21        Q.   You're not?  Really?  Okay.  I'd like



       22   to -- I think I only have one copy, but I'll give it



       23   to you.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do we have it, Larry?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  It's in the record already
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        1   in the Wilson documents.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but I don't have it.



        3   Can I get a copy so we understand where you're



        4   going?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  It's a copy of the board of



        6   directors minutes for that meeting.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  What year was that?



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  April 23rd, 2014.  I think



        9   it's Exhibit 64 in the Wilson book.



       10             MS. HELLER:  Your request for judicial



       11   notice?



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  It's one of the



       13   exhibits attached in there.  If you go back to



       14   page -- to Exhibit A and B.



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  Can we take a look at it?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you not have a copy?



       17             MS. HELLER:  This is the exhibit book --



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Give me it.  Give it to



       19   me.  Let me just burn some copies so everybody



       20   can --



       21             MS. HELLER:  -- from the Keith Wilson



       22   hearing.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I didn't intend to use



       24   this.  Sorry about that.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So which -- so what do you
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        1   want?  Do you want all of this?



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Just --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All this copied?



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you want -- I mean, all I



        5   really need is that one and that one.  Just the



        6   exhibits.  Just one copy.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  One copy?  All right.  So



        8   you guys don't have copies?



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  We do not.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So one, two, three, four,



       11   five.  Larry, you're getting this back, right?



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I don't need it, but



       13   that's fine.  We can call it LM32, 32 and 33.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  We can go off the



       15   record to get this.



       16                  (Recess from 11:43 to 11:59)



       17   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       18        Q.   All right, Captain Torell, please look at



       19   Exhibit LM32.



       20        A.   Yes, sir.



       21        Q.   Could you identify that document?



       22        A.   This appears to be a partial copy of the



       23   minutes from the April 22 to 24, '14.  Not all pages



       24   are here.  It's not complete.



       25        Q.   Okay.  Wouldn't you agree that this is a
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        1   complete copy of the April 22nd official minutes of



        2   the special board of directors meeting for



        3   April 22nd?



        4        A.   I would -- the document that I would say



        5   is the actual document is the one that is posted on



        6   the website.  I am not going to verify -- agree with



        7   that necessarily.



        8        Q.   You can take my word.  That's what it is.



        9        A.   Okay.



       10        Q.   Please look at page 1.



       11        A.   Yes, sir.



       12        Q.   Is that your signature?



       13        A.   Yes, it is.



       14        Q.   Okay.  Please go to page 3.



       15        A.   Uh-huh.



       16        Q.   Disregard.  Skip to page 4.  Okay.  This



       17   is the minutes for the portion of the meeting on



       18   April 22nd, 2014.  Can you tell me what national



       19   officers were present?



       20        A.   The national officers present --



       21        Q.   Yes.



       22        A.   -- were -- I recall the meeting, this day.



       23   I actually recall April 22nd.  And the national



       24   officers that presided over the meeting was Captain



       25   Keith Wilson, chairman, and First Officer Neil
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        1   Roghair as vice president.  And as is stated in the



        2   roll call, "Since First Officer -- Since



        3   Secretary-Treasurer First Officer Torell was



        4   monitoring the referendum counting process."



        5             And then it's also restated on page 5,



        6   President's Report, President Captain Keith Wilson,



        7   "Secretary-Treasurer First Officer Pam Torell was



        8   monitoring the referendum ballot counting process."



        9   And that's true.



       10        Q.   Okay.  And under Board of Directors, for



       11   DFW, do you agree that Captain McDaniels was



       12   present?



       13        A.   I was not in attendance at this meeting.



       14   I was monitoring the referendum counting process.



       15        Q.   You were not present?



       16        A.   I was in the building.



       17        Q.   Okay.  Can you read --



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  Just --



       19   you were in the building, and what were you doing?



       20             MS. TORELL:  Mon -- there was a referendum



       21   that was -- the membership actually voted upon.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       23             MS. TORELL:  And the ballots were in



       24   the -- the room was back in the old SBC room and the



       25   ballots were being counted.  So as with an election,
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        1   that was my priority.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You were present during



        3   that.



        4             MS. TORELL:  I was present for that whole



        5   referendum counting.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So were you in the meeting



        7   at all during the 22nd?  Were you gone?



        8             MS. TORELL:  Not that I recall.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  All right.



       10   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       11        Q.   All right.  Go ahead and now read me the



       12   paragraph under the heading Roll Call, please.



       13        A.   Repeat it?



       14        Q.   Yeah.  Read it.



       15        A.   The record speaks for itself, Larry.  I



       16   can read it.



       17        Q.   I'm asking you to read it.



       18        A.   "Since Secretary-Treasurer First Officer



       19   Pam Torell was monitoring the referendum counting



       20   process, President Keith Wilson took the roll with



       21   the following national officers, board members,



       22   invited committee members, guests and APA employees



       23   present."



       24        Q.   Okay.  So this document is not accurate



       25   then.  You're saying you -- it says you were present
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        1   as a national officer, but you were not.



        2        A.   I was present in the building, and that's



        3   what the board --



        4        Q.   So you were not present at the meeting?



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think she's established



        6   that, Larry.  Asked and answered.



        7   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        8        Q.   So you signed this document saying that



        9   you were present at the meeting.  Or it says right



       10   there, Pam Torell, secretary-treasurer, present for



       11   roll call.



       12        A.   Larry, roll call is taken one time, and



       13   that's at the beginning of the meeting.



       14        Q.   At 1:00 in the afternoon.



       15        A.   Approximately, but that's yes.  At this



       16   case it was taken at 1300.



       17        Q.   So were you in the room for the roll call?



       18        A.   If I -- I don't recall those exact -- I



       19   don't recall if I was actually in my seat at 1300.



       20        Q.   Well, that's what the document says.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I mean, she's got to



       23   be truthful here.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You're making your point.



       25   BY MR. MEADOWS:
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        1        Q.   Were you or were you not in that meeting



        2   at any point in time?  Do you agree, are these



        3   documents accurate in your opinion?



        4        A.   Yes, these documents are accurate.



        5        Q.   Okay.  If you signed them, they're



        6   accurate.  Okay.  Fine.



        7        A.   Yes, they're accurate.



        8        Q.   Okay.  Who was there representing general



        9   counsel, according to your document?



       10        A.   I would not rely on my memory.  You'd have



       11   to check the document.



       12        Q.   I'm asking you, according to the document



       13   who was there representing --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, just read the



       15   document, who was there, please.



       16   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       17        Q.   Do you agree that general counsel was



       18   represented by Mr. Ed James at the meeting?



       19        A.   According to the document, the minutes



       20   that were posted on the website, if this is the



       21   exact copy of it, it would appear that the general



       22   counsel board support would be Mr. Ed James.



       23        Q.   Well, you signed and affirmed that, didn't



       24   you?



       25        A.   I am referencing this paper with your
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        1   trust that this is an accurate document that was



        2   posted.



        3        Q.   It is from -- this was given to me by APA



        4   legal at the last proceeding, this document, as it



        5   is, no other pages.  So are you saying -- is this



        6   document accurate?



        7        A.   Yes, this document's accurate.



        8        Q.   So since -- during that meeting there was



        9   an e-mail directive issued.  They call it a BOD



       10   directive.  Look at LM33, please.  And do you agree



       11   that this is an e-mail from Rusty McDaniels, DFW BOD



       12   chairman, dated 22/2014 at 3:47 p.m.?



       13        A.   Again, I'm going to have to say, Larry,



       14   the document speaks for itself.



       15        Q.   Okay.  Can you read the text in the



       16   document, please, starting "Per conversation."



       17        A.   Say that again.  I'm sorry.



       18        Q.   Read the text of the document, please.



       19        A.   Read the text?



       20        Q.   Yeah, "Per conversation."  Read that.



       21        A.   "Per conversation -- Per conversation with



       22   the board in the SBOD meeting on 4/22/14 remove MDD



       23   pilot's access to the APA website.  These pilots are



       24   not members of APA, are not on the seniority list



       25   and do not have access to APA benefits.  Captain
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        1   Rusty McDaniels, IT Steering Committee Chairman,



        2   817" --



        3        Q.   All right.  You don't have to read all



        4   that.  Thank you.  Did you receive a copy of that



        5   e-mail?



        6        A.   According to this document, I was copied



        7   on it.



        8        Q.   Okay.  So you have knowledge, personal



        9   knowledge then that the BOD issued a directive that



       10   MDD pilots are not members on April 22nd, 2014,



       11   correct?



       12        A.   I was not part of any discussion that



       13   included --



       14        Q.   I'm asking if you see this letter.  Did



       15   you get this letter on April 22nd saying MDD pilots



       16   are not members?  Yes or no?



       17        A.   I was copied on it.



       18        Q.   Did you read it?



       19        A.   Larry, April -- excuse me.  Mr. Meadows,



       20   April 22nd, 2014, likely, but I do not recall.



       21        Q.   So do you read all your e-mails?



       22        A.   Yes, I do.



       23        Q.   Okay.  So I got to assume you read it



       24   because this is an official e-mail.



       25             So you got this information on April 22nd.
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        1   Whether you were in the room or not, you had formal



        2   notice from a BOD officer that MDD pilots were not



        3   members.  Did that strike you as odd?



        4        A.   Larry, I was not part of this



        5   conversation.



        6        Q.   Does it strike you as odd that a BOD



        7   member --



        8             MR. THURSTIN:  Wait a minute.  I object.



        9             MS. TORELL:  Objection.



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  I object right here



       11   because, Larry, raising your voice and being



       12   argumentative is not helping.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not being argumentative.



       14   I'm asking a question.



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  I'm just saying.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Just shut up and let me



       17   speak.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hey, hey, hey.  Okay.



       19   Let's -- let's -- hey.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  He doesn't object to me.  He



       21   objects to you, number one.  And he's not part of



       22   the conversation.  Direct your objections to the



       23   chair.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, look.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  This is bullshit.  Frankly,
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        1   Chuck, it's bullshit.  She can just answer yes or no



        2   and stop being so evasive, just like you were in the



        3   Emery deposition.  Amateur hour over here, being



        4   trained by attorneys how to avoid questions like an



        5   amateur.  The question is --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look.  When he objects,



        9   that means you're not supposed to talk.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Can he object -- he's



       11   objecting to me though.  He was talking to me.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I can hear him, Larry.



       13   Where he's looking, I don't care.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  The issue is, let's



       16   have a little civility.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  "Shut up" doesn't



       19   help.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  I apologize.  That was not



       21   appropriate.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And do we need five



       23   minutes to calm down a little bit?



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm good.  I'm good.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  How about you guys?
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I would just like answers to



        2   the questions I ask.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but, Larry, her



        4   name's on the e-mail.  Okay?  She said she read the



        5   e-mail.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Can I finish my



        7   chain --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  The -- yes.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let's see where you go.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we be less



       13   argumentative?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, we can be -- I'll be



       15   less argumentative.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I mean, I think if you



       17   want something read into the record, you can do



       18   that.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I'll do it.  Fine.



       20   But then it raises the question they're not going to



       21   vouch to the authenticity.  But I will say all these



       22   documents I handed you were given to me by APA legal



       23   at the last appeal board hearing.  So they're



       24   official documents from APA legal.  They're not my



       25   documents.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, Larry, obviously



        2   it's an e-mail from Rusty.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We treaded through this.



        5   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        6        Q.   Okay.  So did you -- as



        7   secretary-treasurer, did you call Captain McDaniels



        8   after you read that e-mail and tell him that that's



        9   not correct, that MDD pilots are in fact inactive



       10   members?



       11        A.   I do not recall.



       12        Q.   You don't recall?



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She doesn't recall, Larry.



       14   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       15        Q.   So you accepted, you acquiesced to a BOD



       16   directive that MDD pilots are not members?



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to that.  That's



       18   not a binding directive when it comes from a board



       19   member.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, in proceedings --



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And, Larry, we've had the



       22   discussion.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  In proceedings you weren't



       24   privy to --



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  -- they said it was



        2   different in the last proceeding.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  One at a time.  Okay.



        4   This is an e-mail -- we've been through this



        5   testimony.  This is an e-mail from Rusty who was the



        6   chairman of the membership committee who -- with a



        7   discussion.  There's no resolution that I know of.



        8   There -- so let's be clear on what it is.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  It wasn't -- this



       11   wasn't -- this wasn't voted upon.  This is -- this



       12   is an e-mail from a particular chairman of the



       13   committee.  Certainly carries weight.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  It was couched as a



       15   directive in the last proceeding by Mr. McDaniels



       16   himself.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  The --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  They directed Captain Wilson



       19   to enforce the AUP based on that directive.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Then first off explain it



       21   as such --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- instead of leaping so



       24   we can all -- so they can run -- you have to



       25   remember, we were all supposed to have these
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        1   documents seven days ahead.  They're looking at



        2   these for the first time.  You've got to give



        3   them --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  She's seen these documents



        5   before in her deposition testimony.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Maybe -- I don't know



        7   that.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I do, and that's why I'm a



        9   little frustrated because she's playing dumb and



       10   she's --



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  No.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Now, wait a second.  Okay.



       13             MR. THURSTIN:  That's --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Karen, obviously you can't



       15   strike that, I'm going to assume, right?



       16             Larry, come on.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we just --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  However you want to --



       21   however you feel like these -- and your frustration



       22   level, look, we're all frustrated.  Okay?  But



       23   let's -- she's under oath, she's answering the



       24   questions, and --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.
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        1   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        2        Q.   Captain Torell, do you agree with Captain



        3   McDaniels' contention that MDD pilots were not



        4   members of APA at that point in time, in April 2014?



        5        A.   I'd ask you to state the question one more



        6   time.



        7        Q.   Based on Captain McDaniels' e-mail, which



        8   was used for purposes of enforcing the AUP and



        9   locking MDD pilots out of C&R, do you agree with the



       10   statement that MDD pilots were not members of APA on



       11   April 22nd, 2014?



       12        A.   Larry, that's speculation.  I was not --



       13        Q.   Speculation?  I asked a question.



       14        A.   I was not part of this decision.



       15        Q.   Do you agree with that, that statement?



       16   Do you agree, yes or no?



       17        A.   This is --



       18        Q.   Do you agree, yes or no?



       19        A.   -- 2014.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hey, Larry.



       21   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       22        Q.   Well, answer the question.



       23        A.   I don't even --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's trying to answer the



       25   question.  You may just not be getting the answer
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        1   you want.



        2        A.   I'm not sure I even understand what you're



        3   saying.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  Time out,



        5   please.  I am tired of cross-talk.  Look, you guys,



        6   I understand you're trying to answer the question.



        7   Fine.  I get it.



        8             Larry, ask your question, and then give



        9   her the opportunity to answer.  After she says three



       10   words doesn't mean you badger her.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  Ask your question.



       13   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       14        Q.   Captain Torell, do you agree or disagree



       15   with Captain McDaniels' statement that MDD pilots



       16   are not members of APA as of April 22nd, 2014?



       17        A.   MDD pilots are inactive pilots according



       18   to the Constitution and Bylaws.  That's what I



       19   believe.



       20        Q.   As of April 22nd, 2014?



       21        A.   MDD pilots are inactive pilots according



       22   to the Constitution and Bylaws.  Larry, that's what



       23   I believe.



       24        Q.   And you previously testified you believed



       25   that since the inception.
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        1        A.   Since my term started.



        2        Q.   Okay.  So once you received this letter



        3   and the MDD pilots -- you're aware that the MDD



        4   pilots were locked out of C&R because they weren't



        5   members, correct?



        6        A.   In the past?



        7        Q.   No, on April 22nd, 2014.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait, wait, wait.  Which



        9   question are you asking?  Are they not members --



       10   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       11        Q.   On April 22nd, 2014 --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- or are they locked out?



       13   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       14        Q.   -- are you aware that MDD pilots were



       15   locked out of C&R based on the fact that they



       16   weren't members, the AUP was enforced, they were not



       17   members?



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I object?  Is it



       19   possible, Chuck?



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Would you please



       21   read the question back, Karen?



       22                  (Requested text was read)



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you're objecting?



       24             MR. THURSTIN:  I'm objecting because it



       25   was covered in Captain Wilson, and that's his --
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        1   that was his purview as the president on the board



        2   of directors.  It was not under the purview of



        3   Secretary Torell to make that decision.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Because he was not



        6   here and wasn't privy to our last proceeding, the



        7   Wilson charge related to membership cards was carved



        8   out and I was not allowed to ask any questions



        9   related to my membership status at those



       10   proceedings.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You were not allowed to



       12   answer any questions.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  And it was deferred to this



       14   proceeding.  This proceeding is all about membership



       15   and grievance, and I can ask any questions relevant



       16   to my membership.  And I'm asking questions right



       17   now as to what she believed my membership status was



       18   on April 22nd, 2014.



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  I believe she's already



       20   answered that.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  She has.  So the other



       22   question was, did you -- do you agree or disagree



       23   with Captain McDaniels' representation that MDD



       24   pilots were not members.



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  And I object.  I think she
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        1   already answered that as well.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  No, she didn't.



        3             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes, she did.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  What was her answer?  Read



        5   it back for the record, please, for me.



        6                  (Requested text was read)



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Let me -- I'd like to



        8   restate the question.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.



       10   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       11        Q.   Captain Torell, do you agree or disagree



       12   with Captain McDaniels' representation that MDD



       13   pilots were not members as of April 22nd, 2014?



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  I believe that question was



       15   answered when she said MDD pilots are inactive



       16   members according to the policy manual.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  That's not the answer.  It's



       18   a yes or no answer.



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  That's not a -- your



       20   question is a question.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Seriously?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, ask your question.



       23   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       24        Q.   Do you agree or disagree with Captain



       25   McDaniels' statement that MDD pilots were not
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        1   members as of April 22nd, 2014, yes or no?



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  But then she



        3   mentioned -- she stated clearly that they're



        4   inactive members.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I asked the question.  I



        6   asked for a yes or no answer.  Do you agree or



        7   disagree?



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, wait a second.



        9   Larry, wait a second.  First off, you can't even do



       10   that in a court of law.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, you can.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She has a right to comment



       13   on hers, and this is not that.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, she's not answering



       15   the question.  I asked --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She just stated that



       17   they're inactive members.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I ask the panel to direct



       19   her to answer if she agrees or disagrees with that



       20   statement by Captain McDaniels.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Let me ask you



       22   this.  Let's say I think that they're inactive



       23   members.  Okay?  What effectively does that do?



       24   She's still -- her job is to carry out the policy of



       25   the board as stated within the Constitution.
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        1   Whether she agrees with that position or not --



        2   let's say she says she deserves a 10 percent bigger



        3   pay raise in her category of flying.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Let's stop.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, she -- wait, wait,



        6   wait.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll end run this.  This is



        8   bullshit.  Let me just get to the meat of it.



        9   Please look at Tab 1.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Tab where?  Tab 1?



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 1, which is the APA C&B.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  Hang on.



       13             MS. HELLER:  In your exhibit book?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Page 9, section 5, paragraph



       15   F.  Please read the first sentence of paragraph F,



       16   Captain Torell.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  First may I bring a point?



       18   The -- this book is not current.  Is that --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  It was current at the time



       20   of the event.



       21             MR. THURSTIN:  Okay.  That's what I wanted



       22   to bring out.



       23             MS. TORELL:  For the record.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Just like when there's an



       25   incident in an aircraft, you use the manuals and FAA
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        1   regulations that were in place at the time of the



        2   incident.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  They wanted to make sure,



        4   Larry, that's all.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I feel like I'm being



        6   obstructed left and right.  You guys are wasting a



        7   lot of time.  And I'm going to say right now, if I



        8   need another day, we're going to have to come back



        9   for another day because this is taking twice as long



       10   or three times as long as it should take.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, we're here for the



       12   duration.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  I'd like to object to the



       15   fact that Larry consistently makes comments about



       16   Captain Torell and myself in regard to this



       17   proceeding which are not called for.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look, I agree.



       19             I think, Larry, we did this in a much more



       20   civilized manner with Wilson.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Because Wilson was actually



       22   forthcoming and was not evasive at all.  He was very



       23   honest.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm not going to -- Larry,



       25   she's under oath.  And again, that's exactly what
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        1   they're complaining about.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You may not be getting the



        4   answers that you wish, but a decision's going to be



        5   made about your membership status in this



        6   proceeding.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And it's not just going to



        9   be based on the Q&A of her testimony.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  I guess what I'm trying to



       11   avoid is I shouldn't be forced to draw inferences



       12   and tell you that because she says I'm inactive, she



       13   must disagree with Captain McDaniels when she could



       14   just answer that.  But now I'm going to be forced to



       15   draw an inference, and there's not a hard fact in



       16   the record whether she agrees or disagrees.  And it



       17   can't be both ways.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But what my point would be



       19   is that honestly, as a member of the board, your



       20   membership status, I'm not sure it matters what her



       21   opinion, her specific opinion.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  No, it does matter.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's one of many



       24   secretary-treasurers that are going to come through



       25   this building --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Fine.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- who are either --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll get to how it matters.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll get to how it matters.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I would love -- I would



        7   love for that.  That would be fantastic.  In fact,



        8   maybe if you started there and we could go back.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  Please read



       10   section --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Maybe -- maybe we could



       12   get somewhere.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  All right, Captain



       14   Torell, please read paragraph F, the first sentence.



       15             MS. TORELL:  Section --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  But, Larry, a



       17   little more civility.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Sure.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Just all I ask is to be



       21   forthcoming and not as evasive.  She's a very



       22   intelligent woman.  She's not stupid.  She doesn't



       23   have amnesia.  She's already testified she's not



       24   under the influence of any substance or drugs that



       25   would impair her reasoning, so there should be no
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        1   reason as secretary-treasurer that she can't snap to



        2   answers on membership, because that is her job.



        3   That's her primary responsibility is membership and



        4   finance.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, there has to be a



        6   level of civility.  There has to be.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:   Okay?  We do not use



        9   broadswords anymore to make our point.  Okay?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's why we're in this



       12   room.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm going to try to keep the



       14   focus narrow to the documents.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And whether you like her



       16   answers or not, I'm going to take a wild ass guess



       17   that you're going to try -- you're going to



       18   arbitrate this decision anyway, so we're going to be



       19   back here or they're going to be back here anyway



       20   and doing this all over again.  And then it will be



       21   the arbitrator's decision to decide whether she's



       22   being evasive or not.  But you certainly don't need



       23   to lecture this committee --



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- as who she is or what
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        1   she is.  We can hear just as well as you can.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  It's not my intent to



        3   lecture the committee.  Sorry.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, go on.



        5   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        6        Q.   Again, Captain Torell, please read the



        7   first sentence of paragraph F.



        8        A.   Section 5, Membership Status --



        9        Q.   Yes.



       10        A.   -- just for clarification.  Section 5,



       11   Membership Status, F.  "The secretary-treasurer



       12   shall keep an account for all members in good



       13   standing, members in bad standing, non-members,



       14   retired members, inactive members, et cetera."



       15        Q.   Okay.  Now, you've testified that -- well,



       16   let me back up.  So you agree then that you're, as



       17   secretary-treasurer, responsible for having proper



       18   accounting of each type and category of membership,



       19   correct?



       20        A.   Yes.



       21        Q.   And I think you testified that I was an



       22   inactive member in your opinion since you became



       23   secretary-treasurer.



       24        A.   I testified that you are an inactive



       25   member according to the Constitution and Bylaws of
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        1   the APA.



        2        Q.   Okay.  Am I a non-member?



        3        A.   You are an inactive member.



        4        Q.   So then Captain McDaniels' statement was



        5   incorrect.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  You're drawing inference.



        7   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        8        Q.   I'm asking, do you agree --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, come on.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  This is ridiculous.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We can connect -- Larry,



       12   come on.  We're not stupid.  We can connect the



       13   dots.



       14   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       15        Q.   What types of standing are there?  I'm



       16   just saying general membership standing, what types



       17   of standing are there?



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.  Just tell



       19   us what you got.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm asking the question.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I don't -- but I don't



       22   even understand the question.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  It's paragraph F.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We're trying to get to it.



       25             MS. TORELL:  I'm sorry.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Paragraph F.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, Larry, just state



        3   your claim.



        4   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        5        Q.   It says you need to account for members in



        6   good standing and bad standing.  Is there any other



        7   types of standing?



        8        A.   Non-members -- and continue, non-members,



        9   retired members, inactive members, et cetera.



       10        Q.   Those are statuses.  Is there any types



       11   of -- how many types of standing are there?



       12        A.   An active member can be in good standing



       13   or bad standing.



       14        Q.   I'm asking, how many types of standing are



       15   there for members?  It says good and bad.  Is there



       16   something besides good and bad?



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Make -- Larry, what's your



       18   point, please?



       19   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       20        Q.   Well, my question is, is what types of



       21   standing are membership statuses -- no matter what



       22   your status is, there's a standing, correct?  If



       23   you're active or inactive, you can be in good



       24   standing or bad standing, correct?



       25        A.   Say -- Larry, I believe that you're asking

�                                                                120





        1   me to interpret the C&B, and --



        2        Q.   I'm not asking you -- listen.



        3        A.   And there's only one person that can do



        4   that, and that's actually the president of the APA.



        5        Q.   I'm not asking you to interpret it.  I



        6   asked you to read it and do your job.



        7        A.   Okay.  I read it.  I read it for you.



        8        Q.   So according to the C&B, what types of



        9   membership standing are there?  Standing.  What



       10   types?



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to this question.



       12   We've already answered the question.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  Captain Torell as



       15   secretary-treasurer does not interpret the policy



       16   manual.  She --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Joke.



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  -- takes the guidance of



       19   the board of directors and the president of this



       20   union and executes their directives.  That's her



       21   purview.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  Let me -- let



       23   me try to break the logjam.  So I think what you're



       24   trying to say, Larry, is that there are members in



       25   good standing and members in bad standing.  There's
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        1   two standings.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, is there -- is there



        3   another standing is my question.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I -- honestly, you know --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  According to -- according



        6   to --



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm not -- I --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I can ask the question.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We've been spending months



       10   and months, this committee, on this membership



       11   issue.  And I don't know -- is there an inactive



       12   member -- let's say -- so let's -- if you're a



       13   non-member, are you a non-member in good standing or



       14   bad standing?



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Any standing.  You're not a



       16   member.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But it's part of the



       18   paragraph that talks about whether you're a member



       19   in good standing or bad standing.  So now -- so



       20   let's say --



       21             MS. FLETCHER:  It's not an all-inclusive



       22   list though.  It says "et cetera."



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that's true too.



       24             MS. FLETCHER:  So it could include other



       25   things.  And I think they're mixing standing with
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        1   status with types and --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, yeah.  So that's my



        3   question.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So -- so -- but let's --



        5   let's go with that.  So just state your --



        6   without --



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell, to your



        8   knowledge --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, look at me, please.



       10   With less antagonism --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- can you just tell me



       13   the point you're trying to make.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm trying to determine if



       15   there's another type of standing besides good or bad



       16   because it does say et cetera.  So I'm asking



       17   Captain Torell as the secretary-treasurer, as a



       18   membership expert of the association.



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  And I'm objecting to that



       20   because the policy manual is a product of the board



       21   of directors and it's not under her purview.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, okay.  You're



       23   referencing the Constitution and Bylaws.



       24             MS. TORELL:  C&B.



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  C&B, I mean.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah.  No, I'm with you.



        2   I understand.



        3   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        4        Q.   Captain Torell, are you obligated to



        5   adhere to the Constitution and Bylaws as



        6   secretary-treasurer?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  Let's --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  That's a simple question.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but, Larry, I think



       10   what's happened is in fairness -- first off, they're



       11   back on their heels.  Okay?  Because -- and what



       12   I'm --



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Because they're going to get



       14   caught in a lie and they're going to be in contempt



       15   of federal court is why they're back on their heels.



       16   Let's take a break, please.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, we are going to --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Because I'm about ready to



       19   throw stuff and I can't take it.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Good.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  I can't take the



       22   disingenuousness of the association's



       23   secretary-treasurer.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Don't forget I'm on C&R now

�                                                                124





        1   and the membership will be aware.



        2                  (Recess from 12:27 to 12:36)



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So did you talk to Mark?



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes, I went to talk to Mark



        5   to see how much of leeway that Mr. Meadows had in



        6   regards to just kind of yelling at us, so to speak,



        7   because I wanted to make sure that we were giving



        8   him all the latitude that we possibly could in



        9   regards to your statement earlier.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but that still



       11   doesn't allow for incivility, so -- okay.  So -- but



       12   you're -- you are where you are with Mark, right?



       13             MR. THURSTIN:  Yeah.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Is there anything you want



       15   to -- okay.



       16             MR. THURSTIN:  No, we're fine right now.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Larry, I guess I



       18   just have to go back to the notion that we're not



       19   stupid up here.  Okay?  You're asking your



       20   questions.  She's answering the questions.  Her Q&A



       21   certainly has an effect on the interpretation of the



       22   issue.  I won't deny that.  That's important.



       23   Her -- you know, we're well aware of credibility.  I



       24   mean, you know, we're not stupid.  We get it.  You



       25   know, we read the same documents you read and she
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        1   reads, right, and come up with our own notion of how



        2   many statuses there are, how many standings there



        3   are.



        4             You don't need to -- either one of two



        5   things.  You're not going to browbeat her out of an



        6   answer.  Okay?  It's just -- it's not going to



        7   happen.  She's under oath.  She's answering to the



        8   best of her abilities.  You give her -- we give her



        9   credit for answering the questions as she's



       10   answering them.  Okay?  We get it.  All right?



       11             And our rulings are going to be based not



       12   just on testimony but on the documents at hand that



       13   you submit, she submits, that the union has.  So, as



       14   I said, give the board credit that we're capable of



       15   figuring this out.  Okay?



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And if we can stay on that



       18   path, then I think we can get back control of this



       19   and keep moving forward.  Do you understand?



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So, with that, where are



       22   we?



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       24   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       25        Q.   All right, Captain Torell, am I now or
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        1   have I ever been a member in bad standing?



        2        A.   I would have to actually go back to



        3   your -- the Status 1 that we have, I believe it's in



        4   here, just to verify.  I would check that.



        5        Q.   The Status 1?



        6        A.   Well, it's a --



        7        Q.   Is that an APA document?



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait, wait, wait.  Stop.



        9        A.   It's Exhibit 13.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait a second.  Take your



       11   time.



       12             MS. TORELL:  Right.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Answer the question.



       14        A.   Exhibit 15 in our book.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  In all fairness, Pam --



       16             MS. TORELL:  Yeah.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- you know, you haven't



       18   seen all of these.



       19             MS. TORELL:  Right.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I get it.  But do me a



       21   favor.  This is obviously relevant for Larry.  It's



       22   a big -- it's important to him.  Take your time.  If



       23   you need an hour, take an hour.  If you need two



       24   hours, take two hours.  If you need until tomorrow,



       25   take tomorrow and we'll just press on, but -- with
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        1   whatever else we can do, if that's okay with Larry.



        2   If not, we'll wait for the answer.  But --



        3   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        4        Q.   So you can't answer that question?



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm asking.  I just -- can



        7   she not --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm trying to get her to



        9   answer the question, so just relax.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       11        A.   Out of over 14,000 members, I don't want



       12   to speak that you have not been in good standing or



       13   bad standing during my term, so I would like to



       14   accurately reflect -- go to the records and check.



       15   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       16        Q.   Okay.  How about we go to Exhibit 8 of my



       17   book.



       18        A.   Your book.  Got it.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are we trying to go



       20   another path to answer this question?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  I can make this easy



       22   for her to answer because it's in the document.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Very good.  I'm all for



       24   that.



       25   BY MR. MEADOWS:
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        1        Q.   Okay.  Exhibit 8 is the activity profile



        2   dated 8/20/2015 provided by you at the request of



        3   Captain Hepp in the Meadows versus Wilson



        4   proceeding.  Do you recognize that document?



        5        A.   Just for the record, we're looking at



        6   activity profile as of 8/20/2015?



        7        Q.   Correct?



        8        A.   Okay.  Do I recognize this particular



        9   document?



       10        Q.   This type of document.



       11        A.   Yes.  It's an activity profile, yes.



       12        Q.   Can you glance through that and tell me if



       13   it looks like I've ever been in bad standing?



       14        A.   This -- this activity profile is familiar



       15   to me on the first -- the top section, your infor --



       16   your profile.  The actual bottom activity, I am not



       17   familiar with this type of report and this --



       18        Q.   Really?  Because it was provided by you.



       19        A.   I do this --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Look, do you want



       23   to take an hour to figure out whether he's a member



       24   in good standing or bad standing, have ever been?  I



       25   mean, it's just a matter of going over to
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        1   accounting, you know.  I mean --



        2             MS. HELLER:  Is it something you can



        3   determine from your exhibit, Exhibit 15?



        4             MS. TORELL:  I would actually go to our



        5   records that are --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you want to take the



        7   time to do that?



        8             MS. TORELL:  But I have one question --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.



       10             MS. TORELL:  -- I have to ask my



       11   representative.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



       13             MS. HELLER:  Can we clarify something on



       14   this document that we're referring to?  Exhibit 8



       15   that we're looking at says member profile as of



       16   July 23rd, 2015.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.  As you recall, I



       18   asked for this information in the Wilson proceeding.



       19             MS. HELLER:  Correct.  And this was given



       20   to you by Mark Myers.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  You sent me a bunch of



       22   documents, Captain Hepp did, and this was one of the



       23   attached that was sent to me based on my request to



       24   figure out my membership status in terms of



       25   financial obligations.  And this is what was given
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        1   to me.



        2             MS. FLETCHER:  But that came from Mark



        3   Myers.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Mark Myers, yeah.



        5             MS. FLETCHER:  Not from Pam Torell.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it was provided by the



        7   secretary-treasurer's office.



        8             MS. FLETCHER:  Not necessarily.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Because I made a request.



       10             MS. FLETCHER:  Not necessarily.  Mark



       11   Myers --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you remember the big



       13   issue was last year Pam Torell could not be



       14   available for the proceeding when in fact she was in



       15   the building hiding in her office?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.



       17             MS. FLETCHER:  That's not the issue here.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  And she would not let me



       19   inspect the books and records.  So this all stems



       20   from the fact that I've made numerous attempts in



       21   good faith under federal law to inspect my



       22   membership books and records, and she refused to



       23   provide them.  She comes to this meeting today



       24   unprepared without the most basic information.  If



       25   she can't answer what type of member I am,

�                                                                131





        1   something's wrong.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, for God's sakes.



        3             MS. TORELL:  To the chair, please.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, we're trying to --



        5   hold on, please.  All right.  First off, I'm



        6   breaking for lunch.  That's number one.  Number two,



        7   do you think -- do you think we could have an answer



        8   on his membership standing, whether he's in good or



        9   bad standing?



       10             MS. TORELL:  I would like to have one



       11   comment before I answer that question.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       13             MS. TORELL:  I'd like one comment before I



       14   answer that question.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.



       16             MS. TORELL:  Larry, I am here to help you.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Doesn't seem like it.



       18             MS. TORELL:  And I'm using -- I know.  I



       19   know.  I get that.  And this is the same thing with



       20   Kathy Emery.  I'm here to help you and I want this



       21   to work.  I am here to make this process work.



       22   Believe me, I am.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Do we go to lunch and take



       24   extra time and you can --



       25             MS. TORELL:  Yes, but --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  -- tell me if I'm a member



        2   in good standing, what my status is, and if I have



        3   any financial obligations due and owing to the



        4   association, if I've ever been suspended or expelled



        5   from the union?



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think --



        7             MS. TORELL:  My attitude is going to



        8   change if I --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Whoa, whoa, whoa, whoa.



       10   Hold on.  Look, number one --



       11             MS. TORELL:  Why am I consistently --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       13             MS. TORELL:  Why am I consistently



       14   interrupted?



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think I'm



       16   interrupting both sides.



       17             MS. TORELL:  That's fine.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I'm trying to be



       19   equally fair in interrupting because, first off, as



       20   is supposed to happen is the comments are supposed



       21   to be directed to the chair.  Now, neither side is



       22   doing that.



       23             MS. TORELL:  Okay.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You're talking to him.



       25   He's talking to you.  He's talking to him.  He's
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        1   talking to him.  That's not how this process is



        2   supposed to work, so I'm frustrated.



        3             MS. TORELL:  So may I continue?



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes.  And then I --



        5             MS. TORELL:  Directed to the chair.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes, please.



        7             MS. TORELL:  I am here to make this



        8   process work.  I am here to be honest, and I am here



        9   to see a decision under his Article VII charges,



       10   sincerely.  With that, I cannot -- I have a list of



       11   six items that were disrespectful and



       12   unprofessional.  That's not my protocol.  That's not



       13   how I work at this union.  That's not how I serve



       14   the membership.



       15             One more time, and I think I'm not going



       16   to be sitting in this seat.  And I ask that you



       17   respect my decision.  It's -- I want this to happen,



       18   but I -- it needs to be done in a professional



       19   manner.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I would -- I would hope



       21   you'd stay through the -- until the end.  I hope you



       22   feel like you've been treated professionally by this



       23   committee, and -- but if it does come to blows and



       24   you choose -- if you feel like you need to go



       25   permanently, can we expect your rep to stay, or is
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        1   he going also?



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  We'll have to discuss that



        3   over the lunch break.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Because it's a



        5   little hard -- you know, I -- it would be -- these



        6   are public proceedings, and I think whether you stay



        7   or not, you'd be shortchanging yourself given your



        8   service to the membership, which is never easy, to



        9   just have a one-sided conversation.  And I think



       10   you -- as frustrating as the day has been so far, I



       11   think you would be doing yourself a disservice to



       12   not answer, have someone here to answer.



       13             MS. TORELL:  I will take that into



       14   consideration.  I understand.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And --



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  And if that's the case, I



       17   will move forward and move for default judgment, but



       18   that's her choice.  I will -- I will strive to be



       19   more professional.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  I apologize, but I'm getting



       22   very frustrated.  Maybe after lunch she can come



       23   back armed with a little bit of information.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Larry.  Okay.  Now,



       25   as far as your standing, she's going to come back as
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        1   to whether you're in good or bad standing.  She's



        2   answered the status that you're inactive, according



        3   to her.  So you've already answered the status



        4   question.  He's inactive.



        5             MS. TORELL:  Uh-huh.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Then you wanted whether



        7   you've ever missed a dues payment.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  Am I -- am I owing



        9   any financial obligations to the association.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are you in arrears.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, or have I ever been or



       12   am I now.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       14             MS. TORELL:  Ever.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Ever.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Have I ever withdrawn or



       17   expelled.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And have you -- and then



       19   the last question is withdrawn or expelled, which I



       20   assume we can already answer, right?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think under the



       23   Wilson --



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  To my knowledge, no, but --



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You've never been
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        1   expelled.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  No.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you've never resigned.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  No.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I think we answered



        6   that one.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I want to get



        8   confirmation from her as secretary-treasurer.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I mean, come on,



       10   Larry.  I think -- you know --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, Rusty McDaniels said I



       12   wasn't a member for purposes of locking me out of



       13   C&R.  So there's problems here.  The association has



       14   to get their story straight on whether I'm a member.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but again, don't



       16   take -- you are taking -- Rusty is the chairman of



       17   the membership committee.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  But based on his



       19   representation, I'm not a member.  My rights to C&R



       20   were stripped away.  Three months later in federal



       21   court, Steve Hoffman went to the judge and said I am



       22   a member for purposes of stripping away my



       23   grievance.  So what is it?  That's all I want is a



       24   truthful answer.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And, Larry, you've made
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        1   that point in the Wilson arbitration.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  I know.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you're going to submit



        4   on this one either.  But, you know, you're not going



        5   to browbeat anybody into clearing that up.  It's



        6   going to have to be cleared -- and you know it's



        7   going to be cleared up with an arbitrator because



        8   you're going to go to arbitration after this.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  For the record, I guess one



       10   thing I'm going to ask before the conclusion of



       11   these proceedings, I want to physically inspect the



       12   books and records as is my right under the C&B and



       13   the LMRDA before this proceeding's closed at some



       14   point in time today or tomorrow.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Now, you have to be an



       16   active member in good standing for that, if I'm not



       17   mistaken.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  No, a member.  A member.  We



       19   can go -- we can go to Tab 1.  I'll find it.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  Which book are



       21   we in?



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 1, the APA C&B.



       23             MS. FLETCHER:  "A member may inspect his



       24   records or account at any time at his request during



       25   normal business hours."
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  In accordance with federal



        2   law.



        3             MS. FLETCHER:  That is page 15.  I don't



        4   know if I have -- this is effective 12/26 under



        5   secretary-treasurer.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, under my version it's



        7   page 16, paragraph 2, which is on Tab 1.  Tab 1,



        8   page 16, paragraph 2.  Says, "The books and records



        9   of secretary-treasurer shall be" --



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hold on, Larry.  Please



       11   direct me to where you are.  I'm in page 16.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 1, page 16, paragraph 2,



       13   first sentence.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  First off --



       15             MS. HELLER:  You're in the older version.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you're in the 2014 C&B.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I'm in the version



       18   that was current at the time of the incident.



       19             MS. HELLER:  The 8 -- August 2nd, 2014,



       20   and you said page 16?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  "The books and records of



       23   the secretary-treasurer shall be accessible to any



       24   member or group of members in good standing in



       25   accordance with federal law."  Okay.  And what is it
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        1   now you're -- and so --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  I have a right to inspect



        3   the books and records, and I've been deprived of



        4   that right every time I've asked.  And this -- it



        5   says in accordance with federal law.  If you go to



        6   the LMRDA, there's no inactive, active, good



        7   standing, bad standing.  It's member, period.



        8             MS. FLETCHER:  No, that's not true.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, it is.



       10             MS. FLETCHER:  It says member or member in



       11   good standing.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  No, under the LMRDA.



       13             MS. FLETCHER:  It says member or member in



       14   good standing.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  And under the LMRDA, that's



       16   what I was contending earlier.  I'm a member in good



       17   standing under the LMRDA.  When you get the records,



       18   I've paid all my dues and assessments to the



       19   association.  I've never been expelled.  I've never



       20   withdrawn.  And under the LMRDA I'm a member in good



       21   standing.



       22             MS. FLETCHER:  We're not -- we're not --



       23   we're not here to rule on the LMRDA.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  I understand, but I'm saying



       25   the C&B itself is reaching out to federal law
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        1   because what it really is, is the C&B is



        2   regurgitating my right under the LMRDA to look at



        3   the books and records.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So -- okay.  You have your



        5   marching orders.  All right.  What time do you want



        6   to be back?



        7             MS. TORELL:  It's your call.



        8             MS. HELLER:  How long do you need to --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we be off the record



       10   to discuss lunch?



       11                  (Recess from 12:51 to 2:17)



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let's go back on record.



       13   Before we get those questions answered, I assume



       14   you're ready.



       15             MS. TORELL:  Yes.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Let's see if we



       17   can't get back on the rails here.  Couple of things.



       18   Number one, I kept referring to -- this is for you.



       19   I kept referring to Rusty McDaniel as the chairman



       20   of the membership committee.  That's incorrect.  The



       21   reference should have been the chairman of the IT



       22   steering committee.  And that's number one.  So I'd



       23   like to correct that mistake.



       24             If we could try and start out again with



       25   directing your comments to the chair.  And if we get
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        1   back into a tussle with Q&A, maybe you'll ask me the



        2   question and I'll ask her the question and then



        3   she'll respond back.  But we have to figure out a



        4   way that allows people to get through their points



        5   without being interrupted with the next question.



        6             So you keep -- you have brought up, you



        7   know, how it would go in court.  And I think it



        8   would be important to note that, you know, telling



        9   someone to shut up or dropping a couple of F-bombs,



       10   you know, you probably wouldn't be -- the judge



       11   wouldn't be looking at you too kindly either.  So we



       12   all -- let's see if we can just wipe the slate clean



       13   and start fresh, if we can try to do that.



       14             But before -- again, I guess to try and



       15   get us back on the rails, we're talking about the



       16   membership issue.  So, Larry, I have a question or



       17   two for you.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Sure.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You now have your card.



       20   It took you awhile to get it, but you now have your



       21   card.  So that's your -- that's the first charge.



       22   So where are we going?



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I guess she belatedly



       24   issued the card at the eve of the Emery trial



       25   because they knew they were going to lose that
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        1   issue.  It doesn't undo the fact that she didn't



        2   uphold her obligation to issue the card when she was



        3   supposed to two and a half years prior.  And as a



        4   result, we were not able to get into union meetings,



        5   because I have documents that will show that a card



        6   is mandatory for entrance into a union meeting,



        7   which was a change after the -- was never enforced,



        8   but it was changed after the C&R lockout.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, let me ask you this



       10   then.  Have -- you went out in '03.  You became



       11   inactive 12 months later, '04.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I dispute that too, but --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but -- I mean,



       14   forget about what -- okay.  Twelve months later --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Disability.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.  So did you ever



       17   try to attend any union meetings between '04 and



       18   when you, you know, when we went through that



       19   bankruptcy?  I mean, just --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  Way back when, and I



       21   was actually allowed in in '04.  But in -- in 2014



       22   Kathy Emery, she'll testify she appeared at the



       23   Miami meeting and they said she wasn't a member and



       24   they wouldn't recognize her to speak.  And then they



       25   tried -- she got into the meeting, but she wasn't
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        1   supposed to be in there.  She didn't have a



        2   membership card.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, my understanding is



        4   she did speak actually.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  She wasn't properly



        6   recognized.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, she --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  But the bottom line is that



        9   the policy of the union was that membership cards



       10   are mandatory for entrance into BOD and domicile



       11   meetings after the C&R lockout.  I've got my ID card



       12   in my pocket.  It's stuck.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do what?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Won't come out of my pocket.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Is it a special issuance,



       16   or is it --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  I have both.  I have an



       18   active and special.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, which one is --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  The one I have now is



       21   inactive.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  There's a date on the



       23   cards, right?



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  No.  Inactive cards are not



       25   dated.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  What's the date on



        2   the active card?



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Through 2012.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you now have your card.



        5   You weren't allowed into the meeting.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  Could I -- I don't believe



        7   that he ever stipulated that he was not allowed in.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Were you allowed in?  Did



        9   I mischaracterize your comments?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  After the C&R lockout, no, I



       11   was not.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Did you try to get in?



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, I tried to get in a



       14   meeting and I was not allowed, yes.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you tried to get into a



       16   domicile meeting and --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, in the summer of 2014.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Summer of 2014?



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  Can we find out --



       20   December --



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Summer of 2014.  You can



       22   check the sign-in logs.  Summer or fall, somewhere



       23   in there, I don't know.  It was a few months after



       24   the C&R lockout.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  It was what?
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  It was after Kathy tried to



        2   get in.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So Kathy tried to



        4   get in, didn't get in.



        5             MS. HELLER:  She did, but --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, yeah, did get in



        7   and --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  But she wasn't supposed to



        9   be, and Keith Wilson said publicly she was not a



       10   member.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but either way, it's



       12   just -- Larry, it's just like this.  You know, we



       13   haven't decided your membership status, but we're



       14   giving you wide latitude to present your case.  So,



       15   you know, no one's trying to turn people away, and



       16   everybody's trying to give every -- you know, we get



       17   enough raw deals from those assholes across the



       18   street.  We try to not do that to people who have



       19   been associated with APA or this board certainly.  I



       20   think the institution, in my opinion, tries not to



       21   turn people away.



       22             So now you've got -- so the contract's



       23   signed.  You have a membership card.  You're allowed



       24   to attend domicile meetings.  Have you tried to



       25   attend any domicile meetings since you got a card?
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, been to a couple.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Have you been to a couple?



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Been to meet-and-greets and



        4   domicile meetings, yeah, you bet.  Been three times.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I guess what I'm trying



        6   to say is, where -- so where are -- I mean, are we



        7   just trying to extract a pound of flesh or --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  No, not really.  Because, I



        9   mean --



       10             MS. FLETCHER:  Remedy.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       12             MS. FLETCHER:  Remedy.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I mean, are we trying to



       14   come up with a remedy or --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I think she should be -- it



       16   should be a known fact that as secretary-treasurer



       17   she refused to comply with the C&B, which is a big



       18   deal to membership.  Had the membership known that



       19   prior to the election in June of 2016, she likely



       20   would not have been reelected because she ran on the



       21   platform of truth and transparency.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, let's leave -- but



       23   again, that doesn't tell me where we're going.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I guess the harm's --



       25   you can't undo the harm.  The harm has occurred.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  But it doesn't change the



        3   fact that she's guilty of the charge.  I'm not



        4   seeking any fine against her or expulsion from the



        5   union, but I think it should be recorded that she



        6   acted in breach of the C&B.  The membership should



        7   be aware so they can act accordingly at the ballot



        8   box next time.



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  Chuck, may I point out



       10   that --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, just hold on,



       12   please.  Let me digest that for a second.  Because



       13   you obviously dis -- I get the fact that you dispute



       14   that.



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  No, I haven't disputed it.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You put paperwork in that



       17   disputes that.



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  I'm not disputing anything



       19   at this point.  I'm just -- I'm pointing out the



       20   fact that in November, approximately, of 2014



       21   Mr. Meadows filed in the U.S. District Court of Utah



       22   against APA regarding this particular issue.  And at



       23   that time we were waiting for the judgment of that



       24   issue.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  February of 2014.
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        1             MR. THURSTIN:  Pardon me?



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  It was February.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's fine.  We're just



        4   mincing words.  And please direct your comments to



        5   me.  Thank you.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  So there was a concern.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, I understand.  That's



        8   in your opening statement.  I get that.  Like I say,



        9   I'm just -- this obviously has been our contentious



       10   issue, and this is where we seem to be hitting --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  I guess the point --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We're hitting a third



       13   round.  Hang on, please.  I tell you what.  Can



       14   you -- can you give us ten?  I don't mean to -- I



       15   know we just got in, but can you guys, can we



       16   just --



       17                  (Recess from 2:25 to 2:30)



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Back on the record.



       19             So your notion is just get it out there.



       20   And obviously they have --



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  The membership deserves to



       22   know if there was a violation of that magnitude



       23   because, like I say, truthfully, if I had C&R access



       24   in April and May, she would never have been elected



       25   in June, because we would have had --
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's a bit of a --



        2   that's a bit of a --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, we would have made --



        4   we would have campaigned aggressively to not have



        5   her reelected for various reasons based on these



        6   issues.  I think the membership deserve to know.



        7   This stuff's in a black hole.  Most members don't



        8   even know what Article VII is.  They don't even know



        9   what the tab is.  They don't know to go look at



       10   these things.  I didn't know what it was until I was



       11   ordered to do it by the court.  So that's a problem.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  So I think -- not to punish



       14   Pam.  Like I say, I'm not seeking to fire her or



       15   expulsion or anything like that, but I think the



       16   membership needs to know and they can make their own



       17   judgment at the ballot box in the future, if she



       18   runs again.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You had a comment?



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Well, during that time



       21   frame, you know, that the lawsuit was going on,



       22   Captain Torell had talked to her counsel at the time



       23   and was working with her counsel who was working to



       24   try to resolve this issue.  And while the litigation



       25   was going on, his concern was he was exposing the
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        1   APA to the judgment which could have come down from



        2   the Utah court based on what Mr. Meadows had put



        3   down.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  So there was a lot going on



        6   during that time frame.  It's not simply as cut and



        7   dried as Pam just made -- all of a sudden made a



        8   decision she wasn't going to do this.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Never is.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Well --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hang on, please.  Please,



       12   Larry, let's not go down that train again, first



       13   off.  Anything else?



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  No, sir.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  So that being



       16   said --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Can I just interject?  Under



       18   the LMRDA is the union member bill of rights, and



       19   one of them is equal participation in union



       20   activities.  The other one is freedom of speech.



       21   And the third and important one here is protection



       22   of right to sue.



       23             So I'm still a member of the union.  Just



       24   because I'm suing the union shouldn't mean that I



       25   get treated disparately or not communicated with or
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        1   not have actions taken on my behalf as a member.



        2   And that's a problem.  It's an LMRD -- that is an



        3   LMRDA violation, but I want to make it clear that



        4   there's really no valid justification for her not to



        5   acknowledge my request for membership cards or --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, I'm well aware that



        7   you don't believe that there's a valid



        8   justification.  The board will decide whether



        9   there's a valid justification --



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- based on the documents.



       12   So I think again, you know, the process is both



       13   sides come to the board, make their -- make their



       14   claims, put in their -- the documentation, and the



       15   board will decide.  And then you obviously have not



       16   just the recourse of arbitration within the union



       17   rules, but then you'll have the opportunity in a



       18   Utah court.  So it's not like we're -- whichever way



       19   this goes you don't have opportunities.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you had some answers



       22   for us as far as --



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I pass these out?



       24             MS. TORELL:  Yes, please.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you have enough for

�                                                                152





        1   everybody?



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  I have documentation.  I



        3   conducted a fairly exhaustive search during the



        4   break, which I will give to each one of the members.



        5   Member Profile Information one is titled, and the



        6   other -- as of 3/1/2017, and I have a second one as



        7   of 8/20/15.  I don't know why one's in color and



        8   one's in black and white.  I assume that's just how



        9   they were printed.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do we need to put a number



       11   on these to keep it organized?  Your next tabs.



       12             MR. THURSTIN:  I believe it will be -- let



       13   me make sure before I speak out of school here.



       14   Tab 18 for the 2015 document.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So why don't we call this



       16   PT18 so we know it came from you guys.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  Okay.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And that's for the 2015



       19   one?



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Yeah.  And we'll call the



       21   next one 19, PT19.  Is that acceptable?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It is for me.  If it stops



       23   us from calling each other names, I'm all for it.



       24   So what am I looking at?



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  What we're looking at is
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        1   the member profile as researched by the budget



        2   department in APA which gives Mr. Meadows' status as



        3   of the two dates.  And there also is a fairly



        4   lengthy look back on his dues payment on the '15



        5   document all the way back to -- and I believe this



        6   is a new format from the IT department, this blue



        7   and white with his employee number on it.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Which one is that now?  Is



        9   that 18?



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  This is the '15 document.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  2015.  PT18?



       12             MR. THURSTIN:  It's the color one, yeah,



       13   it's the only color one.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  Which gives a significant



       16   amount of information referencing Mr. Meadows.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  And I believe that he's



       19   already received this document in the previous



       20   arbitration with Captain Wilson, I believe.  I



       21   wasn't there, so I can't speak authoritatively.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  I think it's -- it looks



       23   similar to Exhibit 8 in my tab.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So in regards to



       25   the questions Mr. Meadows had, is this -- does this
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        1   answer those questions?



        2             MS. TORELL:  The PT19 is a document that



        3   was actually extracted today from the accounting



        4   department, and I believe it answers his questions.



        5   The back three pages are the dues record.  They go



        6   back to 1998, and of that time all dues were paid,



        7   yes.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So he's never been in



        9   arrears.



       10             MS. TORELL:  Correct.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So does that make



       12   him a member in good standing, bad standing?  Where



       13   are --



       14             MS. TORELL:  That he retains his active --



       15   excuse me, his inactive membership.  He is an



       16   inactive member.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       18             MS. TORELL:  Per the Constitution and



       19   Bylaws.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  How about -- well,



       21   the other question was standing.  We have good



       22   standing and bad standing.  Does it answer that



       23   question?



       24             MS. TORELL:  Constitution and Bylaws does



       25   not define the two.  The Constitution and Bylaws
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        1   does not define good standing and bad standing for



        2   inactive members.  Question -- that was the second



        3   question that was added, right?



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  All right.  So --



        5   okay.  So he's never missed a payment.  He is an



        6   inactive member is his status.  He's neither good



        7   nor bad standing.



        8             MS. TORELL:  There's no description in the



        9   C&B to define that.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  I object to that.  There



       12   actually is a description on bad standing that's



       13   defined.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You'll have your



       15   opportunity, please.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think the other ones we



       18   had, right?  I mean, he's never been -- you've never



       19   been expelled, never resigned, right?  So I think



       20   your questions are -- the questions you asked are



       21   answered.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  No, because she's not



       23   telling me if I'm a member in good standing or bad



       24   standing.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, she answered the

�                                                                156





        1   question.  It's just not to your satisfaction.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So -- okay.  So you say



        4   that the C&B has a definition of bad standing?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  By all means.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  On -- in my book, Tab 1,



        8   page 9, Section 5.B, second sentence, it says --



        9   well, actually the first sentence, "A member in good



       10   standing shall remain in good standing as long as



       11   such member has paid current dues, assessments and



       12   other financial obligations to the association."



       13             So if I understand Captain Torell



       14   correctly, I've never been in arrears.  I have no



       15   dues, assessments, or financial obligations owing to



       16   the association.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Correct.  She stipulated



       18   that.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  And I was in good standing



       20   when I went on disability, so I should remain in



       21   good standing, I would argue.  The second --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think we can all accept



       23   that he was a member in good standing while he was



       24   an active member with the APA?  Is that -- can we



       25   all --
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        1             MS. TORELL:  Yes.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- agree to that?  Okay.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  And then the second part of



        4   it goes, "The Secretary-Treasurer shall transfer a



        5   member from good to bad standing if such member



        6   shall be delinquent in either dues, assessments or



        7   other financial obligations due to the Association."



        8             And Captain Wilson has testified



        9   previously that the only reason a member is



       10   transferred from good to bad standing is for



       11   delinquency and dues.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you have that



       13   paperwork?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  His testimony?  I can get it



       15   for you.  I can pull it up at the next break.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Why don't you.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  I will.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So we have an open



       19   question on standing from the APA.  I'm almost



       20   afraid to ask, but do you guys have a comment on



       21   that, or are we just, you know, we can agree to



       22   disagree and --



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  I think we're going to have



       24   to agree to disagree because the C&B is what we use



       25   as the guidelines that Captain Torell has to go by.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        3             MR. THURSTIN:  And the C&B says there is



        4   no such thing as a good or bad standing for an



        5   inactive member, which Mr. Meadows became sometime



        6   in 2005.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  Could



        8   you please repeat that one more time slowly for me.



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  The C&B does not define



       10   inactive member as good or bad.  The C&B does not.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       12             MR. THURSTIN:  Mr. Meadows became an



       13   inactive member sometime in 2005, which was



       14   approximately 12 months after his medical



       15   disqualification.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  So at that point he was a



       18   member -- he was an inactive member at that point.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  And by the C&B, there is no



       21   good or bad standing at that point.  Previous to



       22   that, we could then, yeah, he was a member in good



       23   standing.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Member in good standing,



       25   an active member in good standing.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I disagree.  They're



        2   mischaracterizing --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm just -- I understand



        4   your argument.  You're going to provide me with



        5   Captain Wilson's testimony.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Right, but I'm just



        7   saying the C&B says --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You've read me the C&B.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  -- a member in good standing



       10   remains in good standing, period.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And we're not going to



       12   decide that issue --



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- at this moment.  I



       15   just -- I'm happy we now understand both sides, and



       16   it'll be up to us to -- to adjudicate that.  But at



       17   least we were able to do that civilly.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Which is certainly a step



       20   in the right direction.



       21             So you guys have anything to add?  Katy,



       22   Lisa?



       23             MS. HELLER:  No.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No?  Katy?  You good,



       25   Katy?  All right.  Where to now?
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Captain Torell, other



        2   than the C&B --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Do me a favor.  Ask



        4   me.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Ask you?



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Other than the C&B,



        8   does the secretary-treasurer for the APA look to any



        9   other precedent or documents for guidance on



       10   membership status?



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Ms. Torell?



       12             MS. TORELL:  I -- the primary document is



       13   the Constitution and Bylaws of the Allied Pilots



       14   Association.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  So I guess what she's



       18   saying, so what -- the decision under Valverde, a



       19   AAA arbitration, is irrelevant.  She doesn't follow



       20   that.  She only follows the C&B?



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, don't -- don't --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's important.  Let



       23   me go where I'm going.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I understand that,



       25   but that's what -- you're going to make a written
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        1   submission as to why that is or is not.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  Let's --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Now --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I can go forward with the



        5   questions.  I'll just keep it straightforward.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I know.  I want to -- give



        7   me a minute.



        8                  (Off record from 2:43 to 2:44)



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Because my understanding



       10   of Valverde was as much as he commented on your



       11   status, he didn't rule on your status.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I think he did.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  To go to page 13 in the



       14   Valverde decision --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  He's saying I'm not a member



       16   in good standing.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, what I -- well, I'm



       18   just referencing the footnote.  Where does it say



       19   that he doesn't reference you as a member in good



       20   standing?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Page 14, second paragraph.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  "According to membership



       23   status provisions of the C&B, a member in good



       24   standing retains that status as long as he or she is



       25   current on dues, assessments.  Dues and assessments
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        1   are paid, are to be paid.  Since Meadows has not



        2   received wages from the employer since 2004, he's



        3   not paying any dues.  The C&B does not provide for



        4   payment of dues in any other manner."  So where are



        5   you, Katy?



        6             MS. FLETCHER:  Right here.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  "However" -- okay.  So I'm



        8   sorry.  The first paragraph, "There is no dispute



        9   that during the time Meadows was an active member,



       10   he was a member in good standing.  However, was --



       11   however, was his good standing affected when he



       12   became an inactive member?  The arbitrator finds



       13   that once he became an inactive member, this also



       14   changed his member in good standing status for the



       15   following reasons."  Okay.  See, on the previous



       16   page I was referencing the footnote.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, go to page 15, the



       18   first paragraph.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, stand by.  On page 13



       20   in the -- because this is what I -- this to me, in



       21   footnote 6 -- you guys up?  Second sentence,



       22   "Further, it appears that the matter of Meadows'



       23   membership status is to be fully addressed in a



       24   subsequent arbitration involving the issue of



       25   membership cards.  Accordingly, the accuser's
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        1   membership status will be addressed only to the



        2   extent necessary to resolve the issues in this



        3   case."



        4             So he didn't necessarily -- he didn't



        5   necessarily reach a conclusion --



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  He did though.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- on your membership



        8   status.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Go to page 15, the first



       10   paragraph.  He does.  He's contradicting himself,



       11   basically leaving the door open for these



       12   proceedings to decide it, but he's already decided



       13   it.  Look at page 15.



       14             MS. FLETCHER:  Starting with where?



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  "Accordingly."  It's in the



       16   first paragraph, the third sentence, "Accordingly."



       17             MS. FLETCHER:  Okay.  Yeah.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So could you -- would you



       19   read that, please?



       20             MS. FLETCHER:  "Accordingly, the



       21   arbitrator finds that when Meadows became an



       22   inactive member, he lost his good standing status



       23   within the Association."



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't dispute that I'm not
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        1   an inactive but an active member besides all this,



        2   so, I mean, this is just the standing issue.  But I



        3   don't concur with the active versus inactive either.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So we're -- if I'm using



        5   Valverde, then it doesn't look good.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So that was my



        7   question.  Does -- Pam Torell has relied on Valverde



        8   in an attempt to dismiss these charges.  Okay?  So I



        9   asked if she's bound by anything outside the C&B.



       10   She said no, she focuses only on the C&B for



       11   membership issues.  Now she's saying she's going to



       12   take an outside arbitration decision from an



       13   arbitration that has no stare decisis value, which



       14   means it has no legal precedent, won't uphold in a



       15   court of law.



       16             So that's the question.  If she's going to



       17   defer to that, then I'm going to defer to the Wolitz



       18   decision in 2005 in Annable versus Wissing which



       19   says a member in good standing is someone who's paid



       20   all their dues and met all their financial



       21   obligations, which is me.



       22             And then the Sproc case, you know, Sproc



       23   argued that Barkate was not a member in good



       24   standing because he was in inactive disability



       25   status.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  He was MDI.  He wasn't



        2   MDD.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  He's MDD, but he's inactive,



        4   disability, so -- and said based on not paying



        5   dues --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But even the C&B breaks



        7   that down into two --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  But the appeal board --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- as does the contract.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  But the appeal board in that



       11   case went on to say that Barkate was in fact a



       12   member in good standing because he met all his



       13   financial obligations and dues at the time they were



       14   owing.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That may be, but first off



       16   he was sitting on the board as opposed to -- they



       17   were -- Rob --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  They concluded he was a



       19   member in good standing is the point.  They



       20   concluded he was a member in good standing.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but it's --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  He's situated exactly like



       23   me.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  As is always, there's more



       25   to it than just the simple yea or nay.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  He's inactive on disability



        2   status not paying dues.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Because he was not -- he



        4   was not on trial at the time.  He was not -- he had



        5   not -- he was not the one facing Article VII



        6   charges.  He was sitting on the board.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  I get that.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And it was a matter of



        9   whether it was appropriate for him to be sitting on



       10   the board.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  But the institution --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's not the issue



       13   that --



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  But the institution made a



       15   decision that this is how we handle -- because good



       16   standing, as Arbitrator Wolitz said, is not defined



       17   in the C&B.  He defined it.  The appeal board in



       18   Sproc adopted that decision.  So they made an



       19   institutional decision this is how we handle people



       20   like Barkate or people like me.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, you are different.



       22   No, you're under a different --



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  How am I different than



       24   Barkate?



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, you're MDD --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Doesn't matter --



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- versus MDI.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  No, the basis is that he's



        4   inactive and not paying dues.  That was the basis,



        5   not MDD versus -- that's semantics.  Those are APA



        6   internal codes that are meaningless.  They're not



        7   even in the C&B.  If you want to talk about codes --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but it's also -- no,



        9   because it's a contractual issue.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  MDD is not in the C&B.  It's



       11   not in the C&B.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, I under -- I know



       13   that.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Those are internal status



       15   codes (unintelligible).



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I understand that



       17   they're internal --



       18             THE REPORTER:  You know what?  Y'all are



       19   going to have to slow down and not talk over each



       20   other.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Sorry.  We're both from



       22   New York.  You'll just have to excuse us.  We'd



       23   never survive at the dinner table if we weren't



       24   talking over one another.



       25             But, Larry, it still falls under a
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        1   different contractual issue.  Okay?  As someone over



        2   five years in the contract, you are in a different



        3   status as Barkate.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, we haven't gotten



        5   there yet.  And I'll prove in their opening



        6   statement that everything they said was false with



        7   respect to -- I am an employee.  I have continuous



        8   credited service from the day I was hired, which was



        9   restored by the pension benefits committee.  I



       10   receive W-2 active employee wages.  I receive active



       11   pilot benefits, medical, dental, life insurance,



       12   pension.  And under the terms of the 2004 pilot



       13   long-term disability plan, which is governed by



       14   letter KK of the C&B, my collectively bargained



       15   welfare benefits define me as a pilot employee under



       16   the terms of the plan.  So to say I'm not an



       17   employee is an absolute lie.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But again, we're back to



       19   the same thing with Wilson again.  Now we're using



       20   an insurance policy to decide what the C&B says.



       21   That's not appropriate.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no, no.  Well, I mean,



       23   what are you guys -- so the C&B -- the C&B cannot



       24   operate exclusive of the collective bargaining



       25   agreement and the federal statutes because it is
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        1   subordinate to, and that's what Valverde ruled in



        2   Sproc, that the C&B cannot preclude the Railway



        3   Labor Act, cannot preclude the LMRDA, cannot



        4   preclude the IRS or any other federal statute.



        5             It's just a fucking Mickey Mouse Club.



        6   I'm sorry.  It's like a Mickey Mouse Club.



        7   Constitution is for the APA, but it can't reign



        8   superior over federal statutes.  It's actually under



        9   Robert's Rules under parliamentary law, you're



       10   required to adhere to the hierarchy of laws under



       11   Robert's Rules.  So these federal laws do govern the



       12   C&B indirectly.  They have to.  And they're linked



       13   to it for the parliamentary law.  And Valverde is a



       14   very extensive ruling.  It's in one of my exhibits.



       15   I can show you.



       16             So my point is, it's not fair to reach



       17   outside of the C&B for purposes of saying I'm not a



       18   member in good standing based on Valverde's



       19   decision.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Which -- which -- if I'm



       21   not putting words in your mouth, you said you



       22   weren't --



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  She was.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- reaching outside the



       25   C&B.

�                                                                170





        1             MR. MEADOWS:  She's looking to the



        2   Valverde decision to dismiss these proceedings



        3   because I'm not in good standing.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, she just gave



        5   testimony that said she uses the Constitution and



        6   Bylaws.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I understand her opening



        9   statement.  I have her opening statement too.  I get



       10   it.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  It leaves me a question.



       12   Does she follow the same Constitution and Bylaws as



       13   Keith Wilson?



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Stand by.  Again, I don't



       15   want to -- we're not -- let's not get off the rails.



       16   I just wanted to point out with Valverde that if



       17   we're using this particular arbitration decision,



       18   then he -- in my opinion, the footnote says he's not



       19   ruling on the issue.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  That's correct.  His



       21   decision speaks to both sides of the issue and it's



       22   wrong.  It's contradictory.  It's unclear.  And I



       23   guess in a case of being unclear, you should --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's what --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  -- favor the moving party,
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        1   meaning me.  It should be -- that's how it's done in



        2   court.  Moving party gets more favorable treatment



        3   in a motion to dismiss.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, Larry, I think we've



        5   given you favorable treatment.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, my point is, I mean,



        7   are you going to focus within the C&B only?  If you



        8   are, Valverde's decision's meaningless.  It means



        9   nothing.



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I object?



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes, you can.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  And it doesn't bind the



       13   association.  It was against me and Keith Wilson,



       14   not against the APA.  So it doesn't change anything



       15   as far as the APA conducts business.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Now I think you're just --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm not.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Now I think you're just --



       19   now you're just mincing words.  And I understand why



       20   you're doing it.  I just don't agree with it.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  I object in respect -- the



       23   reason we're here today is to decide whether or not



       24   there's any kind of disciplinary action as to



       25   whether Pam Torell acted within the Constitution --
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  True.



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  -- and Bylaws of the APA.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes.



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  This is not part of that.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Disagree.  I'm just --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, Larry.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        8             MR. THURSTIN:  In respect that the only



        9   person that can bring that Valverde decision, the



       10   only people that can bring the Valverde decision



       11   into the Constitution and Bylaws is the board of



       12   directors or the president of the APA.  Pam Torell



       13   cannot decide on her own that she should incorporate



       14   the Valverde decision into the C&B.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  But she --



       16             MR. THURSTIN:  She cannot.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hang on.  Anything else?



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  That's it, sir.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I know what you're going



       20   to -- I get it.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  In her letter to you, she



       22   said the Valverde decision.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  In the opening statement,



       24   yes.  I understand.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I guess my question is, is
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        1   she or is she not relying on the Valverde decision



        2   for my standing?



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that was asked and



        4   answered.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You asked is she looking



        7   at anything other than the C&B, and she said --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- no, she was looking at



       10   the C&B.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Okay.  Then the



       12   C&B --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So -- okay.  Next



       14   question.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  So under the C&B, the



       16   accepted policy of the APA has been that members,



       17   inactive members remain in good standing, and it's



       18   been decided by the appeal board institutionally



       19   that Joe Barkate as an inactive disabled member who



       20   had not paid dues remained in good standing.  So



       21   if --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, now, wait a second.



       23   Now, my understanding with Barkate is that was Rob's



       24   arbitra -- Rob took the decision to arbitration and



       25   then complained about Joe.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  No, he complained -- he



        2   complained right out of the gate at the appeal.



        3   He tried to get him excluded at the opening of the



        4   appeal board proceedings.  And they said, no, he's a



        5   member in good standing and we're relying upon the



        6   Wolitz decision.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Then why did Valverde say



        8   that you should have brought it up at the original



        9   hearing?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Who?



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Valverde's opinion.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Valverde is wrong.  He's



       13   ignoring --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But that's what he said.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  He's ignoring -- he's



       16   ignoring Arbitrator Wolitz's decision.  He's wrong.



       17   He's been talking to Steve Hoffman.  Sorry.  I mean,



       18   he really -- he's crooked.  I mean, he really is.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  I have proof of that.  Maybe



       21   we could ask Steve today later.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  So --



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  Can we comment, Chuck?



       24             MS. HELLER:  Sorry.  Just let me respond



       25   to you.  You said if you want to ask Steve.  His
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        1   window of availability is just about to close.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I don't know if I



        3   really want to talk to him, to be honest, because



        4   it'll do me no good.  He has everything to gain by



        5   being able to testify.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So -- okay.  So your



        7   question -- I'm sorry.  You had a comment.



        8             MR. THURSTIN:  Yeah.  In regards to Pam's



        9   ability to reinterpret the C&B, we've already made



       10   that very clear.  The Valverde decision, reason why



       11   we suggested this be dismissed based on the Valverde



       12   decision, because it kind of reinforced what was



       13   already in the policy or in the C&B.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  I disagree because it says a



       15   member in good standing --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.  Jesus.



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  So we're not using them



       20   together.  We're using them as separate entities in



       21   this discussion.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So my question is,



       23   did she or did she not --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hang on, hang on.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  -- reference the Valverde --
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let me think about what



        2   the gentleman said, please.



        3             Can you clear up -- I don't -- I'm in a



        4   fog here.  Why do you say it's a separate --



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  We're saying that Pam can't



        6   change the Constitution and Bylaws.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        8             MR. THURSTIN:  All right?  That's a fact.



        9   The Valverde decision pretty much stated the same



       10   thing that I've stated all along, that an inactive



       11   member does not have a good or bad standing.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  It doesn't say that in the



       13   C&B.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  It just said inactive



       15   member.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Actually it says, from



       17   what we read, he's lost his good standing.



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  Correct.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So --



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Well, you could -- you



       21   could infer that.  You just don't have -- in the



       22   Constitution and Bylaws you do not have a standing.



       23   You're just an inactive member, period.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So -- okay.  So I



       25   guess what I'm hearing is, to try and bring peace in
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        1   our time, is that you -- we didn't have the Valverde



        2   decision two years ago when this issue came up or



        3   back in 2012, and -- so we didn't have that as a



        4   reference.



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  Correct.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  All right.  Where



        7   to now, Larry?



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I mean, they're



        9   totally talking around paragraph 5B.  It doesn't --



       10   it's totally nonsensical what he's saying.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Why -- okay.  Where --



       12   give me a question, Larry.  We have -- Pam's on the



       13   stand.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's still sworn in.



       16   Give me a question.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  If I was in good standing



       18   prior to my date of disability and then became



       19   inactive and stopped paying dues, do I remain in



       20   good standing?



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you remain in good



       22   standing?  I think she's answered that.  I got over



       23   here that she says when she talked about --



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, the question is, the



       25   C&B says a member --
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She said the C&B --



        2   please -- does not define good or bad standing in



        3   regard to inactive member.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  But she acknowledged I was



        5   in good standing, and the C&B says I remain in good



        6   standing.  As long as I don't owe any financial



        7   obligations.  And I'm not owing any financial



        8   obligations.



        9             Here's a question.  Does Pam Torell pay



       10   dues?



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think the answer



       12   to that is -- well, actually, now that you're



       13   secretary-treasurer --



       14             MS. TORELL:  It changed.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       16             MS. TORELL:  It's been changed.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, are you back to paying



       18   dues again?



       19             MS. TORELL:  About two and a half years



       20   ago.  Yes.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you're paying dues.



       22             MS. TORELL:  Yes.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's paying dues.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  As of what date?



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It doesn't matter.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it does, because this



        2   is April 2014, three years ago.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  When did you start



        4   paying dues?



        5             MS. TORELL:  I would have to look it up.



        6   It was --



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Couple years ago?



        8             MS. TORELL:  Probably a couple.  It was --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  So it's 2017,



       10   so we're talking March, February --



       11             MS. TORELL:  Probably '15.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- 2015.  So where are we?



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  My point is to say if I'm



       14   not in good standing, then the national officers



       15   wouldn't be in good standing either under the old



       16   policy.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, because there was --



       18   my understanding is there was a specific exclusion



       19   written in the policy manual that allowed if you



       20   were a -- if you were a --



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  I understand, but they're



       22   trying to say because I don't pay dues that I'm not



       23   a member in good standing, and that's not true.  I'm



       24   not required to pay dues because dues come out of



       25   flight pay loss.  And if the union wanted me to pay
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        1   dues --



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Dues come out of flight



        3   pay.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Flight -- they come out of



        5   flight pay, which I don't get.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  But if the union wanted to,



        8   there's nothing in federal law that bars them from



        9   requiring me to pay a maintenance fee or a due.  UPS



       10   drivers pay it under disability.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do what now?



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  UPS drivers under disability



       13   pay a maintenance fee in dues.  They pay dues.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, non-members pay a



       15   maintenance fee.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  But in federal court APA has



       17   consistently tried to make me and Kathy Emery out to



       18   be like deadbeats, like we're non-dues paying



       19   members.  And we're not non-dues paying members.  We



       20   just aren't required to pay dues anymore.  Keith



       21   Wilson says it's out of the goodness of the



       22   association's heart because we're already getting a



       23   shitty deal anyway as a result of being on



       24   disability.  And the association's trying to give



       25   him the benefit of the doubt.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't think if Keith was



        2   here he'd agree with that.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  That's what he said.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That --



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to this.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, just stand --



        7   you'll have an opportunity.



        8             Like I say, Larry, I can't help but go



        9   back to the fact that we put a lot of time and



       10   effort to give you this opportunity.  I don't see



       11   how that makes us think you're a deadbeat or --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Why does -- why doesn't --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But wait, wait.  Larry,



       14   hold on, please.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just trying to move it



       16   along.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but they have an



       18   opportunity too.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And we're trying to do



       21   this without a lack of civility.  So let's keep the



       22   train on the track.



       23             Please, you had a comment?



       24             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes, sir.  Under Article



       25   III of the Constitution and Bylaws, Section 2.C,
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        1   Inactive Membership.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I'm sorry.  Article



        3   III?



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  Article III, Section 2,



        5   Classes of Membership.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Wait a second.  See, this --



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Well, we're going on



        9   the wrong track here.  My whole question --



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait a second.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  -- is getting hijacked.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, no.  Stop.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I object to the fact that



       14   he's hijacking my line of questioning.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And -- and I am trying --



       16   look, Larry, the line of questioning that was



       17   happening before was not working.  Okay?  People



       18   were getting angry.  People were saying things they



       19   didn't mean, I think.  Giving everybody the benefit



       20   of the doubt.  So I'm trying to figure out a way to



       21   keep this on the track.  And this seems to be



       22   working, but, in fact, we're all learning something



       23   here with this -- with what's transpiring right now.



       24   So allow him the opportunity so maybe we can keep



       25   the train on the track.
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        1             So you were at Article III, Section 2.



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  C, Inactive membership.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Inactive membership.



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  And shall I read it, or do



        5   you want to just --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, please, go ahead.



        7             MR. THURSTIN:  "Inactive membership shall



        8   be assigned to flight deck operating crew members,



        9   including check airmen, who have completed the



       10   probationary period and meet the qualifications set



       11   forth in Article III, Section 1.A, upon application



       12   and approval.  Pilots in the following employment



       13   statuses shall be eligible for inactive membership."



       14             In the paragraph below, number 2, it



       15   clarifies medical or personal leaves of absence.  In



       16   the following written language, it says Inactive



       17   Member.  A member in good standing shall



       18   automatically be transferred to inactive membership



       19   status upon being on leave of absence from the



       20   Company 12 months after the expiration of paid sick



       21   leave or being in the military -- I'm



       22   paraphrasing -- being on active flying status with



       23   AA, pilot owes back dues.



       24             THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry.  Being --



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  Active duty in the armed
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        1   forces, continuous active duty in excess of 60



        2   months.  Larry's status changed because he was out



        3   for more than 12 months.  Has nothing to do with his



        4   dues payments.  It has to do that he was out for



        5   more than 12 months on medical disability per the



        6   C&B.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Well, let's -- on the



        8   premise or the assumption that medical disability is



        9   a leave of absence, which it is not, American



       10   Airlines has testified that disability is not a



       11   leave of absence.  It's a status change.  It used to



       12   be under Supplement F of the retirement plan, when



       13   you notice on the seniority list it's under MDSB.



       14   Sick leave of absence, injuries on duties, leaves of



       15   absence all are -- IDLOA, SLOA, personal leave of



       16   absence, PLOA, military leave, MLOA.  Disability is



       17   not a leave of absence.  And I would contend that



       18   I've been treated as an active member until 2012



       19   until Pam Torell came in office.  I had an active



       20   membership card.  There's documents I'll present



       21   later that --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And what was the date --



       23   what was the date of the last membership card,



       24   active?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Card -- it was issued --
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        1   well, it says valid through September 30 of 2012.



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Signed by Keith.  It's on



        4   Exhibit -- let's see.  It's somewhere in here, this



        5   big exhibit.  I'll find it.  But anyway, I have an



        6   active membership card, it's Exhibit 4, until 2012.



        7             And then there's -- if you look at



        8   document 5, this APA group term life and voluntary



        9   insurance and dismemberment plan effective January



       10   1, 2013, for active members.  If you go to the last



       11   page, in footnote 1 it says, "Disabled members are



       12   considered active until age 65 or retirement."



       13             So for purposes of certain benefit plans,



       14   APA was treating disabled members as active.  And I



       15   argued that we -- it was a mistake that we were on



       16   C&R for almost 15 or 20 years.  We were being



       17   treated as active.  Today, as it stands, I am on C&R



       18   and the APA only provides for active, retired, or



       19   furloughed, and I'm not retired or furloughed, so --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but you're still --



       21   you're still connecting the dots, Larry.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just trying -- I'm just



       23   trying --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You're back on C&R because



       25   Ms. Emery won in a federal court --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm trying to say, this is



        2   an argument --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- not because -- not



        4   because of your, quote, your membership status.  The



        5   judge found it a free speech issue.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no, no.  Judge said that



        7   she needed to be treated as an active member for



        8   purposes of access to C&R.  Based on that, Captain



        9   Carey --



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We'll have to agree to



       11   disagree because I also read it.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Carey put us back



       13   on, but her decision was not a class action.  It



       14   wasn't binding.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And it was also specific



       16   to her, if I don't recall.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, it wasn't binding.



       18   Dan didn't have to put us back onto the C&R.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  So my point is --



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I think there's more to



       22   it than just what that -- the insurance disability.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  There is.  This whole



       24   thing's convoluted.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It is very convoluted.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Because I'm just trying to



        2   say that based on APA's practices, there's argument



        3   to be made that they treated us as active members



        4   for certain reasons for C&R and benefit plans.  They



        5   treated us as active.  And also --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, how do you get



        7   over -- well, hang on a second.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm saying but we're not



        9   inactive because we're not really on a leave of



       10   absence so we're not -- let me just --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  We're not really on a leave



       13   of absence --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  -- okay, number two.  And I



       16   want to make one other comment.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  Well, while



       18   you're thinking of that, Jeff, I'm sorry, you had --



       19   I know you wanted to object.



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes.  The 2012 membership



       21   card Larry received, Mr. Meadows received was an



       22   error.  It was an error due to technical changes



       23   within the APA, and he was not supposed to receive



       24   it.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Because?
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        1             MR. THURSTIN:  Because he was on MDD as an



        2   inactive member.  During that transitionary period



        3   on the Status 1 report, they --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I wasn't MDD though.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hang on, Larry.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  I was still on the seniority



        7   list.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Please.



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  When they changed it over,



       10   the computer read everybody who was -- it changed



       11   status during that period, i.e., to the -- was it



       12   MDD, Pam?



       13             MS. TORELL:  Paid sick leave.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  On paid sick leave, and



       15   they read them as coming back.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  And they sent him in error.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you have paperwork to



       19   that?



       20             MS. TORELL:  Yes.



       21             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Is that part of



       23   your exhibits?



       24             MR. THURSTIN:  I believe it is.  It's in



       25   Tab 15 which shows the changeover portion.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Did they ever notify any of



        2   the MDD members of that error?



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please direct your



        4   comments to the chair, for God's sakes.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm talking to you.  I'm



        6   looking right at you.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I can't think and write at



        8   the same time.



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  The active Status 1



       10   reports, you'll notice a break on page 3.  And



       11   during that time period -- subsequent to that time



       12   period there were cards that were sent out to the



       13   members.



       14             MS. FLETCHER:  That's 2008.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  2008.  Looks like it ends



       16   in '11, '08 to '11?



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  Correct.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Are you guys going to -- is



       20   Captain Torell going to verify the authenticity of



       21   this document?  Because it's been proven --



       22             MS. HELLER:  This is her exhibit.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  It's been proven to be



       24   inaccurate in the equity proceedings.  I was



       25   actually never with an undefined period or on unpaid
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        1   sick leave of absence.  I've been continuously on



        2   MDSB and LTD with no breaks in service.  I've been



        3   continuously on either MDSB or LTD with no breaks in



        4   service since the day I was hired.  And it was in



        5   the Wilson documents in a pension statement because



        6   the pension benefits committee gave me a full



        7   retroactive award.  And it's as if I've never been



        8   on an unpaid sick leave of absence, ever.  I've



        9   always been on a disability, MDSB or LTD status.



       10   And that's --



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  We'll happily verify this



       12   document.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, this document is a



       14   handover from American.  It's not even a real



       15   document.  It's -- APA takes this data from



       16   American's Status 1 reports and makes this report.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  And they were all erroneous



       19   in the equity proceedings.  Almost every one of them



       20   had errors in it.  They're just not accurate



       21   documents.  So I'm going to object to the



       22   authenticity of the document.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but let's be clear.



       24   This is what she's going on, right?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I don't think so.

�                                                                191





        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I mean, when you're trying



        2   to decide who gets a ballot, when you're trying to



        3   decide who gets a willingness to serve.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, if she's going on



        5   these --



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please, one at a



        7   time.  And since I'm the chairman, I get to talk



        8   first.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So, you know, when the



       11   secretary-treasurer is trying to decide, mailing out



       12   ballots to vote for national office of domicile,



       13   willingness to serve, they're using the Status 1



       14   documents.  So, inaccurate or not, that's what she's



       15   using to --



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  And I understand.  My status



       17   is unusual because a deliberate decision was made at



       18   the company level to leave me on the seniority list.



       19   That's why I'm back on disability today because they



       20   terminated my benefits and left me out to dry, but



       21   they did not take me off the seniority list at the



       22   five-year point.  They did not take me off at all



       23   until I made the whistleblower complaint.  But at



       24   that point I had reapplied for disability, which



       25   they said I couldn't do.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, we know all that



        2   stuff.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  But American's records show



        4   me as being on active duty in October of 2011, line



        5   status.  It's right here in the APA's report.  In



        6   LM34, if you look at the AA status, line.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, where are you so I



        8   can follow you?



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  LM34, one of those documents



       10   we copied earlier.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  Is that one of the ones you



       12   passed?



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, that's one of the



       14   ones he passed out.



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  Okay.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So you were on,



       17   okay, status, line, MDD.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  So it goes -- if you read



       19   across, AA status was line.  The AA status date was



       20   9/3/2008.  So, in other words, the company showed me



       21   as being on active duty which is why I was able to



       22   reapply for disability because I was active, because



       23   I never came back to active duty.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  It was a total screwup on
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        1   their part, but it was a legal maneuver.  They were



        2   afraid of a wrongful termination suit, so they left



        3   me on the seniority list as part of their legal --



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we just -- can we



        5   leave the conjecture out and just give me the facts?



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just trying to give some



        7   background because my situation is a little



        8   different.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, you know we're



       10   familiar with your background.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell obviously



       12   isn't, and her representative is not.  And I'm not



       13   faulting him, but he didn't have the benefit of



       14   sitting through these last proceedings, so there's



       15   no continuity for him.  Anyway, I mean, I --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Since he's not ruling on



       17   the issue, I'm not sure that's relevant.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  So if you want, I'll just go



       19   to straightforward questions, but, I mean --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  That would -- let's



       21   try that then.  And we'll see if we can't break new



       22   ground.  I'm sorry.  Hold on.



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  I had one objection.  Larry



       24   kind of made my point for me in the respect that



       25   there was some problems with the data.  But the fact
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        1   that -- that's not in dispute here is that



        2   Mr. Meadows went out on medical in 2004 and became



        3   an inactive member in 2005.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  No.  I remained active until



        5   I went back on the new disability plan.  It's a



        6   whole -- I --



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, again, I think



        8   what I'm hearing is you're quoting American Airlines



        9   status.  You're quoting --



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, that's what matters



       11   here.  The Status 1 reports are driven by American



       12   Airlines.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  The -- but there's also



       14   the Constitution and Bylaws.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  But APA doesn't get to make



       16   up my status.  They have to follow what American



       17   gives them.  What American says is what I am.  APA



       18   doesn't decide what I am.  It's what happened in the



       19   equity.  They decided you shouldn't really get four



       20   silos because you were on disability in 2004.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But that's why you get to



       22   go to an arbitrator and someone gets to be a neutral



       23   and decide.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  I'll just stick



       25   to questions.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let's try -- yeah, let's



        2   see how this goes.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  I'll just go



        4   through the exhibits.  So Tab 1, let's go to page



        5   11, Section 7.B.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you're in the C&B.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.



        8             MS. HELLER:  I'm sorry.  Say it again?



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Page 11.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 1, page 11, Section 7,



       11   paragraph B.



       12             MS. HELLER:  Okay.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, okay.  Membership



       14   right and obligations.



       15   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       16        Q.   So my question is, Captain Torell, she's



       17   already conceded I'm an inactive member, so am I



       18   entitled to all rights, all benefits of active



       19   membership except for privileges of voting, holding



       20   office, and participation in association-sponsored



       21   programs?



       22        A.   I believe you read Section 7.B.



       23        Q.   Yes.



       24        A.   Correct?



       25        Q.   Yeah.
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        1        A.   That's the Constitution and Bylaws we



        2   follow, yes.



        3        Q.   So you agree that I'm entitled to all



        4   rights and privileges and benefits of active



        5   membership?



        6        A.   I believe it says -- it doesn't say rights



        7   and privileges.  It says benefits of active



        8   membership except privileges of voting and holding.



        9   And then you should go on into C.  Do you want me to



       10   go on into C and read that?



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah.  Can -- let me do



       12   it.  Let me read this so we're all on the same page.



       13   Okay?  "Apprentice and inactive members shall enjoy



       14   all the benefits of active membership except the



       15   privileges of voting, holding elected office, and



       16   participation in association sponsored programs



       17   where specific requirements prohibit such



       18   participation."



       19             Now, did you want to go somewhere else



       20   after that?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  So right above that,



       22   paragraph A, it says a member in good standing is



       23   entitled to participate actively in all APA



       24   activities and is entitled to all of the rights and



       25   privileges and benefits of APA membership.
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        1             So it seems like inactive members have to



        2   be in good standing because they're enjoying the



        3   same things as members in good standing.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I think that's



        5   asked and answered though.  She's already -- she's



        6   given her answer --



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- as far as your



        9   standing.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  So --



       11             MS. FLETCHER:  I disagree.  I think we're,



       12   you know, splitting hairs here and looking at words.



       13   B says benefits.  A says rights, privileges, and



       14   benefits.  I don't think that's the same.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  It says benefits except the



       16   privileges of voting.  This thing is written really



       17   badly.  You're right though.  It implies you have



       18   privileges other than voting and holding office.



       19             MS. FLETCHER:  It does.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It implies what?  I'm



       21   sorry.  I missed that.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Paragraph B implies -- it



       23   basically mentions privileges, but it implies you



       24   have the privileges except for voting and holding



       25   office.
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        1             MS. FLETCHER:  But there's also rights.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.  It doesn't say you



        3   have rights, so it doesn't make sense.  Okay.



        4   That's confusing me now.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Thank you, Larry.  Welcome



        6   to the club.  It's nice to have you aboard.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So, Captain Torell,



        8   as an individual member, do you -- are you obligated



        9   to comply with the Constitution and Bylaws?



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.  We've already



       11   answered that.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that's asked and



       13   answered.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  As a secretary-treasurer is



       15   she obligated to comply with the Constitution and



       16   Bylaws?



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that's also asked



       18   and answered.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't think so.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's here doing her job.



       21   She's trying to comply with the rules of the road.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell, can you



       23   please read --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that -- I think



       25   we're just getting back to argument.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  This is important.  It's



        2   going to lead to my next question.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but my point is,



        4   Larry, is I just don't want to get back into an



        5   argumentative state, and I think those are obvious



        6   asked and answered questions.  You've asked them.  I



        7   think -- I think let's call it a rhetorical



        8   question.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I'll leave this to my



       10   next question then.  Okay.  On Tab 1, page 12,



       11   Section 7.E, this is my first part of my question.



       12   "Members of the Association shall accept and



       13   agree" --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hold on, hold on.  I'm not



       15   with you.  Where are you?



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Page 12, Section 7,



       17   paragraph E.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  "Members of the



       19   Association shall accept and agree to abide by the



       20   Constitution and Bylaws of the APA as they are in



       21   force or as they may be amended, changed, or



       22   modified in accordance with the provisions of this



       23   Constitution and Bylaws."



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Correct.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So my question is,



        2   given that, did you comply with Section 4 of the C&B



        3   with respect to MDD pilots?



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  In regards to what?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  MDD pilots.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, but you're asking did



        7   she comply with the C&B, and comply as to what?  Her



        8   membership cards, her --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Issuing membership cards,



       10   Section 4.  Did you comply with your obligation to



       11   issue membership cards?



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think -- again,



       13   I'm sorry.  I mean, again, I'm trying to prevent



       14   what happened earlier.  And I think her point is --



       15   and don't let me put words in your mouth -- is that



       16   because of a lawsuit, she, I'm imagining legal



       17   advice --



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  On the advice of counsel.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- on the advice of



       20   counsel was to withhold membership cards.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  So --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Would that be accurate?



       23             MS. TORELL:  Okay.  I would like to say



       24   that to be fiduciarily responsible with the



       25   membership's money as well as secretary-treasurer, I
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        1   seek legal counsel to do the best with their money



        2   and their dues, and that's what I was told to do.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Obviously.



        4             MS. TORELL:  Thank you.  Appreciate it.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's just part of the



        6   job.



        7             MS. TORELL:  Thank you.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But so --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So my question is,



       10   were you advised by legal counsel to violate the



       11   C&B?



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Now, Larry.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  No, that's the question.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think the question would



       15   be -- I think the question would be were you advised



       16   by counsel --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Not to uphold your



       18   obligation.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- to withhold membership



       20   cards until the lawsuit was answered.  I think -- I



       21   think -- because come on, Larry.  Now you're just --



       22   you're just -- you're throwing a grenade in the



       23   room.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell, did you --



       25   were you advised to not comply with Section 4 of the
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        1   C&B and withhold issuance of special membership



        2   cards to MDD pilots?  That's the question.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So read that again,



        4   please.



        5                  (Requested text was read)



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  How about I -- let me ask



        7   the question.



        8             Were you asked to withhold membership



        9   cards from MDD pilots during the lawsuit?



       10             MS. TORELL:  I followed legal's advice.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Which was?



       12             MS. TORELL:  I would have to go back and



       13   find something in writing, but I know I just took



       14   their advice.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So --



       16             MS. TORELL:  And followed it.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, I understand.  Okay.



       18   So do you have -- I mean, is it an e-mail?  Is it a



       19   conversation?  Is it a -- I mean, my point -- I



       20   guess my point is, Larry's got a justified point.



       21   He sent a letter asking for a membership card,



       22   whatever that happened to be, inactive --



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  On April 4, 2014.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- active, special



       25   membership.  I mean, even in his charge he states
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        1   he's willing to accept either an active membership



        2   card or a special membership card showing his



        3   inactive status.  He's asking for one or the other.



        4   And I think it's a justified question given the



        5   proceedings, you know.  You know, your statement has



        6   been you were given legal advice.



        7             MS. HELLER:  Stop for a second.



        8                  (Off record from 3:22 to 3:23)



        9             MS. HELLER:  I think, if I understand



       10   Captain Torell's statement, in doing her duties she



       11   has followed the direction of counsel.  And as to



       12   what that advice given by counsel was, I think that



       13   may fall under privileged communication.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  Exactly.  That was my next



       15   point.



       16             MS. TORELL:  Attorney-client privilege.



       17   Thank you.



       18             MS. HELLER:  So I think that it is on the



       19   record that you complied with your duties and



       20   followed the advice of counsel in so doing.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       22             MS. HELLER:  I don't think we can ask you



       23   as to what that advice was specifically.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  So --



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  My apologies.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  So given that the first



        2   request for membership cards or when it was disputed



        3   in the time frame of the C&R lockout -- so on or



        4   around April 2014 is when the litigation was



        5   imminent or starting.  I think you testified



        6   earlier, when did you first take office?  Was it



        7   June of 2013?



        8             I'm asking when she first took -- I'm



        9   supposed to ask you.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you remember?  June?



       11             MS. TORELL:  July 1.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  July 2013.



       13   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       14        Q.   Okay.  So when you took office July 2013,



       15   there was no litigation regarding MDD pilots.  So



       16   did you at that point in time uphold your



       17   obligation -- let me restate it.



       18             In your prior testimony you stated that



       19   from the day you took office in June of 2013, you



       20   believed MDD pilots were always inactive.  So at the



       21   time you took office, did you comply with your



       22   obligations under the C&B and issue membership cards



       23   to MDD pilots in June of 2013?



       24        A.   According to the Constitution and Bylaws,



       25   there are no specific dates or times or expiration
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        1   dates on a special membership card.  So, yes, I did



        2   comply.



        3        Q.   Really?  I didn't have a membership card.



        4   I had a membership card when Scott Shankland was in



        5   office and I didn't have one when you came in



        6   office, so why is that?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well -- okay.  So --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Can you explain why --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait a second.  I want to



       10   be clear.  So you had a special membership card with



       11   Scott Shankland.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I had an active card until



       13   September 2012, six months before she came in



       14   office.



       15             MS. HELLER:  So --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I know.  We've got the



       17   objection on that.  Understood.



       18             MS. HELLER:  So from September of 2012



       19   forward, you had no membership card, but she wasn't



       20   in office until July of 2013.  Is that correct?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Correct.



       22             MS. HELLER:  So there was a --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So there's a gap of --



       24             MS. HELLER:  -- ten-month period or so



       25   where you had no membership card prior to her taking

�                                                                206





        1   office?  Is that correct?



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So -- okay.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  So it sounds to me --



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, let me ask you this.



        6   So when did you send your first letter asking for a



        7   membership card?



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm looking at my records



        9   right now.  I have one August 3rd, 2015, I believe,



       10   which is a year after the C&R lockout.  I think



       11   there's one prior, but I can't find it.  That's all



       12   I have.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  So --



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  So I guess my point is --



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, hang on.  So last



       16   active was 2012, is 2012.  And it was what,



       17   August 2012?  Is that what you said?



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  August 3rd, 2015.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, no, no, no, no.  When



       20   you had an active membership card was August --



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  September 30th, 2012.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  September 2012.  And then



       23   Pam took office July 1, 2013.  And then you wrote --



       24   so then you wrote your letter August 3rd, 2015,



       25   asking for a membership card.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I take that back.  That



        2   was a final demand.  The first request for a



        3   membership card was December 4 of 2014.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Where do we have that in



        5   your exhibits?



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 10.



        7             MR. THURSTIN:  It's in our Tab 3,



        8   Exhibit 2.



        9             MS. HELLER:  Oh, wait.  This is which



       10   group of exhibits?



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  My book, Meadows.



       12             MS. HELLER:  The new book?  Not the old



       13   one.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, the new one.  Yeah, we



       15   won't be using the old book.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Tab 3?



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 10.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Tab 10.  All right.  Tab



       19   10 I have -- oh, certified letter December 4.  Okay.



       20   So -- okay.  So now with that, without asking what



       21   advice, when did you -- when was the -- so when was



       22   the lawsuit that triggered the legal advice?



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  I have Document 35 filed on



       24   11/3/14, November '14, in the United States District



       25   Court for the District of Utah, Lawrence Meadows,
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        1   plaintiff, versus Allied Pilots Association.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  What document is that?



        3             MR. THURSTIN:  It is our Tab 12, first



        4   document.



        5             MS. HELLER:  Document 35.  That was



        6   November of 2014.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  11/3/14, yeah.  Okay.  All



        8   right.  So, hey.  Getting a little clarity here.



        9   Okay.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  I believe that, yeah, the



       11   lawsuit only was in reference to the C&R lockout.



       12   It had nothing to do with the membership card



       13   issuance, so that was not disputed at that time.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I'm not going to ask



       15   her --



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I'm saying the LMRDA



       17   claim was only with regards to the C&R lockout, so



       18   there was no pending litigation regarding membership



       19   cards at the time she says she was advised not to



       20   issue them.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I understand.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  This is a --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But obviously you're -- I



       24   don't have -- so obviously we need to reread the



       25   Utah lawsuit now.  But either way, her testimony
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        1   is -- again, don't let me put words in your mouth --



        2   is that because of that litigation, you were advised



        3   not to issue --



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  I don't know if I would say



        5   that, Chuck.  I'd say she consulted with her



        6   attorney.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  All right.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  So basically, based on legal



        9   advice, she failed to comply with the C&B.  Doesn't



       10   matter if it was approved by lawyers.  Steve Hoffman



       11   is not bound by the C&B.  He's not going to be



       12   sitting in here.  She is.  She is the individual



       13   that took the action.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I understand your



       15   claim.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  So where to?



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, let's go to LM35.



       19   It's the loose document that was issued earlier.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So that was



       21   Wilson's testimony?



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Correct.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  And this is the evidentiary



       25   hearing transcript dated 9/27/2016.  Please go to
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        1   page 178 and read line 2 to 6.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  178.  Read line



        3   what?



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I'd like Captain Torell to



        5   read lines 2 to 7 on page 178.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  I don't have a complete



        7   copy of this transcript.  All I have is this



        8   excerpt.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah.



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  It's kind of hard to figure



       11   out what exactly is going on.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll certify for the record



       13   that it's an exact copy of the --



       14             MS. HELLER:  This is Keith Wilson's



       15   testimony.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



       17             MS. HELLER:  And you want Captain



       18   Torell --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



       20             MS. HELLER:  -- to read Keith Wilson's



       21   testimony?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think what I would say



       23   is that this is what post briefs are for.  You



       24   should be asking for a copy of the full transcript.



       25             MR. THURSTIN:  We will.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  I can turn this into a



        3   simple question, if I may.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think give her an



        5   opportunity to read the --



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  She can read it to herself.



        7   I don't have to --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So if you've read it,



        9   please let me know when you're ready for a question.



       10   Just the highlighted is what he's referring to.



       11             MS. TORELL:  I'm ready.



       12   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       13        Q.   Okay.  What's the date of that document?



       14        A.   The top right corner is September 27th,



       15   2016.



       16        Q.   Okay.  So Captain Wilson has testified



       17   under sworn testimony that a disabled pilot's



       18   current in dues and disability is in good standing



       19   prior to disability remains in good standing.



       20             THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry.  Could you say



       21   that again, a disabled pilot who --



       22   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       23        Q.   Okay.  So this is quote from Captain



       24   Wilson.  "Okay.  So if a disabled pilot is current



       25   in his dues and goes disability, so he's on good
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        1   standing prior to going to disability, does he



        2   remain a member in good standing?"  Captain Wilson's



        3   answer, "He's a member in good standing.  He's not



        4   an active member."



        5             So can you explain why Captain Wilson



        6   seems to think that pilots on disability for more



        7   than five years -- do you want to answer the



        8   question?



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I answer it?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  No.  I'm asking the witness.



       11   You're not a witness.



       12             MS. FLETCHER:  I'm quite sure that Captain



       13   Torell cannot answer what Keith Wilson thinks.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  I want her to explain why



       15   she has a different opinion than him.



       16             MS. FLETCHER:  Then ask her that.



       17   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       18        Q.   Captain Torell, I would like to know why,



       19   despite Captain Wilson's sworn testimony that



       20   disabled pilots that were current in dues when they



       21   went on disability remain in good standing, why you



       22   disagree with him.



       23        A.   I would reference Article III of the



       24   member -- of the Constitution and Bylaws,



       25   Membership, Section 2, and continuing on into
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        1   Section -- complete Section 2 and the definition of



        2   inactive.



        3        Q.   So you think Captain Wilson was wrong?



        4        A.   I can't speak for Captain Wilson.



        5        Q.   Well, do you disagree with his statement?



        6        A.   I was not in attendance at this hearing.



        7   I do not have a --



        8        Q.   Let's go to --



        9        A.   -- complete document.



       10        Q.   You don't need it.



       11        A.   I don't feel at this time I can --



       12        Q.   Let's go to the next page, page 198,



       13   please.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, please give



       15   her the opportunity -- if you're going to ask her



       16   the question, please give her the courtesy of



       17   answering.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll go to the next one.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, come on.  Give her



       20   an opportunity to answer the question, please.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       22   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       23        Q.   All right, Captain Torell, next question



       24   on the next page, 198, Captain Wilson was asked,



       25   "Okay.  Since I'm current in dues, you agree I'm a
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        1   member in good standing, then?"  Answer, "Yes."



        2             So do you disagree with Captain Wilson's



        3   testimony that Lawrence Meadows is a member in good



        4   standing?



        5        A.   I am going to go back to my interpretation



        6   and my understanding of your status since I have



        7   been in my term that you are an inactive member.



        8        Q.   Are you authorized to interpret the C&B?



        9        A.   I -- okay.  Then I would reject the word



       10   "interpret."  That was an improper use.  You're



       11   right.  According to the C&B, you are an inactive



       12   member.



       13        Q.   Then why would Captain Wilson say I am an



       14   active member?



       15        A.   I would not -- I'm not able to speak for



       16   Captain Wilson.



       17        Q.   Did Captain Wilson issue an interpretation



       18   on membership status for MDD pilots?



       19        A.   Yes.



       20        Q.   So wouldn't you agree that he -- he's the



       21   authority, and if Captain Wilson says I'm an



       22   inactive member in good standing, that must be my



       23   status?  Are you overriding the --



       24             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to this line of



       25   questioning.  Captain Wilson --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  So I guess my question is,



        2   who is calling the shots here?  Captain Wilson's



        3   issued an interpretation.  He's further clarified



        4   the interpretation in sworn testimony that I'm not



        5   only an inactive member, I'm an inactive member in



        6   good standing.  Do you disagree with that?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So where -- can we just



        8   read his declaration so we can get a clear idea?



        9   What tab is that?



       10             MS. FLETCHER:  It's Tab 7 under --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 12.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Tab 12.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  And if you want to take a



       14   minute to read through that, it's two pages.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let me know when you guys



       16   are ready.



       17             MS. TORELL:  We're ready.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So there seems to be a



       19   conflict between his testimony and his presidential



       20   constitutional interpretation.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  What conflict do you see?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, he mentions in his



       23   testimony that you're a member in good standing.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  He wasn't clear.  He was



       25   clarifying his interpretation in that line of
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        1   questioning.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Does he remain a member --



        3   well, I don't have all of the testimony --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  We can get it.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- so I don't know if it



        6   was a clarification or not.  But the fact is, what I



        7   see, and obviously we can work this through post



        8   brief, he's saying in his testimony a member in good



        9   standing, but in his presidential interpretation he



       10   doesn't member -- he doesn't mention whether you're



       11   in good standing or not in good standing.  He just



       12   mentions that you are an inactive APA member.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  He doesn't, because the C&B



       14   says a member in good standing remains in good



       15   standing.  It was required, but I clarified that.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Again, I think that's -- I



       17   don't know what he was saying.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  But his testimony



       19   speaks for itself.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And you have that and



       21   you've asked that question and it's been answered.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Now I'm going to blow



       23   your mind.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, can you -- before



       25   you do that, can I get ten minutes?  Because I just
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        1   need to -- I need --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



        3                  (Recess from 3:39 to 3:46)



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Back on the record.



        5   Mr. Meadows.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  Let's go to Tab



        7   1, page 5, paragraph B.



        8             MR. THURSTIN:  Paragraph D or --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  B.  Article 2, paragraph B.



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  Article 2?  Okay.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  And this is something I



       12   brought up earlier.  This was actually regurgitated



       13   verbatim in the IRS document.  But one of the prime



       14   objectives of APA is to protect the individual and



       15   collective rights of the members of the APA and to



       16   promote their professional interest including timely



       17   prosecution of individual and collective grievances.



       18             So when you were taking your legal advice



       19   not to issue membership cards, do you believe --



       20             MR. THURSTIN:  I object to that.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  -- that protected the



       22   individual and collective rights of the members?



       23             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.  He's making a



       24   stipulation that -- of what was said in a



       25   confidential conversation between the attorney and
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        1   his client.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not saying what was



        3   said.  I'm saying she's admitted that she's been



        4   advised legally not to issue the cards, that's why



        5   she didn't comply with the C&B.



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  No, she did not.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  So you just did not comply



        8   with the C&B.  Is that your testimony now?



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Wait, wait, wait, wait,



       10   wait.  Let's not travel too far afield here.  Okay.



       11   So --



       12                  (Off record from 3:48 to 3:50)



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  So where are



       14   we going, Larry?  I mean, I think what you're trying



       15   to get Pam to admit is that because of legal advice



       16   she violated the Constitution and Bylaws.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Did she not issue the



       18   membership cards based on legal advice I guess is



       19   the question.  I think she said that.  Did you?  I



       20   could ask the question.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm just -- I'm just



       22   trying to figure out -- is that a violation of



       23   attorney-client privilege?



       24             MS. HELLER:  I think she said --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  She's piercing it by raising
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        1   it.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hang on, hang on.



        3             MS. HELLER:  She said that -- we can't ask



        4   her as to the nature of the legal advice she



        5   received.  She has said that she did receive legal



        6   advice.  And that's -- we can't ask as to the



        7   content of that or -- you can make your inferences.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I have a better way



        9   to ask it.  Captain Torell --



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Did you have a



       11   comment?



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  -- was it your sole --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hold on, hold on.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  One point that Captain



       15   Torell's been on the somewhat stand, so to speak,



       16   for over four hours.  I'd like to know how long



       17   we're going to continue until we make the case.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  You can go seven hours in a



       19   court of law.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but that's not --



       21   come on, Larry.  We're not --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I mean, she's been so



       23   evasive it's really slowed things down.  We lost a



       24   lot of time this morning.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let's -- let's -- she
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        1   knows where you're going.  Okay.  What is she going



        2   to do if she doesn't answer the question until



        3   tomorrow morning?  What are you worried about?



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Are we going to have an



        5   extra day then?



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Maybe.  I'm not thrilled



        7   with the idea, but if that's what it takes, that's



        8   what it takes.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  As long as we get an extra



       10   day if we need it.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we get an extra day?



       12   Can we get Friday?



       13             MS. TORELL:  As I went back, they are in a



       14   board meeting right now, weekly update.  Yes.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Who?



       16             MS. TORELL:  The board.  We have weekly



       17   updates every Wednesday and they are in it right



       18   now, so I am here instead of that.  And from what I



       19   confer as when I was back there, they will have a



       20   voting conference call on Friday.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So that means you can't



       22   delegate that responsibility to someone else and be



       23   here?  When is the conference call?  What time is



       24   the call?



       25             MS. TORELL:  I don't know the dates -- I
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        1   don't know the time yet.  I just know that it's



        2   Friday.  It does involve financial issues.



        3   Otherwise, I could understand delegating that



        4   authority.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, let me -- so can you



        6   get a time?



        7             MS. TORELL:  Yes, I can get a time.  I



        8   will.  As soon as I have it, I will provide that to



        9   you.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So do you think you'll



       11   know this afternoon, or you won't know until



       12   tomorrow?



       13             MS. TORELL:  No, they will know within



       14   probably another 30 minutes.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So would you mind



       16   if we went another 30 minutes and then we'll call it



       17   a day and --



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  Let's see where we're at in



       19   30 minutes.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's 4:20 anyway.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  We're not even through the



       22   membership issue, and we have to get to the



       23   grievance part.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I totally -- Larry, I'm



       25   right there with you, but I'm running out of steam.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I get it.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You know, I'm an old man,



        3   now, Larry, and you've added a few gray hairs.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Not under Part 117.  You can



        5   give me up to 18 hours, I think, or something.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do what?  Three-man crew?



        7   Yeah, but I get breaks.  I haven't gotten any



        8   breaks.  There's no rest seat.  I need a footrest.



        9             MS. HELLER:  Is your preference to end



       10   earlier today rather than continue?



       11             MS. TORELL:  No, I would rather go on



       12   today.



       13             MS. HELLER:  Rather go longer today?



       14             MS. TORELL:  Exactly.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       16             MR. THURSTIN:  We'd rather wrap this up as



       17   quickly as possible.  We'd just like Mr. Meadows to



       18   make his case.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  It's going to be awhile.



       20   We're probably like halfway through the testimony.



       21   So if you want to go faster, I'd like your client to



       22   testify a little bit more --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, come on, Larry.



       24   We're trying to keep this civil, and so far we've



       25   done okay for the last few hours.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  So I'm confused.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But to get back on point,



        3   I think where you're driving is you're trying to get



        4   her to say that she's violated the C&B because she



        5   did not give out membership cards based on a lawsuit



        6   that was brought by you in Utah.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but there's no



        8   provision in the C&B for litigation hold.  And the



        9   litigation hold amounts to a violation of my right



       10   to sue, basically.  It's like a form of retaliation.



       11   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       12        Q.   I guess my question is, do you concede



       13   that Section 4 of the C&B requires you to issue MDD



       14   pilots special membership cards?  Do you --



       15        A.   Say -- go ahead.



       16        Q.   Captain Torell, do you concede that



       17   Section 4 of the C&B requires you to issue MDD



       18   pilots, as inactive members, special membership



       19   cards?



       20        A.   Article III, Section 4 states, as we spoke



       21   before, honorary members, apprentice members,



       22   retired members, and inactive --



       23        Q.   I didn't ask you to read it.  I just asked



       24   you to answer the question.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She's answering the
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        1   question.



        2        A.   I am.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please.



        4        A.   I am sorry.  Honorary members, apprentice



        5   members, retired members, and inactive members shall



        6   receive special membership cards.  I believe that



        7   answers your question?



        8   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        9        Q.   Okay.  And did you issue special



       10   membership cards when you became secretary-treasurer



       11   to inactive members?



       12        A.   There's no stipulation in the Constitution



       13   and Bylaws.



       14        Q.   Just yes or no?



       15        A.   That -- there is no stipulation in the



       16   Constitution and Bylaws, and there is no expiration



       17   date on a special membership card.



       18        Q.   When you were given written request by me



       19   for special membership cards via certified mail and



       20   e-mail, did you issue a membership card to me based



       21   on my written request?



       22        A.   Again, attorney-client privilege.



       23        Q.   No.  This is not attorney-client



       24   privilege.  I'm asking --



       25        A.   Indirectly.
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        1        Q.   No, it's not indirectly.  The question



        2   is --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Don't talk -- okay.  So --



        4   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        5        Q.   Here's the question.  I made two written



        6   requests upon you via certified mail to issue a



        7   special membership card.  Did you or did you not



        8   issue me a membership card based on those requests?



        9        A.   We already answered this question.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Object.  That's not an



       11   answer.  I need to know -- I don't care if she's



       12   told by the lawyers or whatever.  I want to know if



       13   she issued it or not.



       14             MS. FLETCHER:  When did you get your



       15   special membership card?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think you know the



       17   answer to that, Larry.  When did you get your



       18   special membership card?



       19             MS. HELLER:  2016, correct?



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  December 2016 sometime.  The



       21   letter was undated.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So did you get it



       23   prior to that time?



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  No.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Any other MDD pilots you
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        1   know got special membership cards prior to that



        2   time?



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Did you -- did you receive



        4   any requests in the last two years from other MDD



        5   pilots for special membership cards?



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, that's not -- I'm not



        7   asking her.  I'm asking you.  Do you know anybody



        8   who had received any other --



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  I know other pilots that



       10   made written requests and did not receive cards,



       11   yes.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So you're not the



       13   only one.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not the only one.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And did they receive them



       16   in 2016?



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  In 2016, two years after



       18   they asked for them.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So you now have your time



       20   line.  Okay?  We've got the -- we've got your last



       21   active in 2012.  Pam became secretary-treasurer



       22   July 1, 2013.  You wrote your first letter August 3,



       23   2015.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  No.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, I'm sorry, December 4,
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        1   2014.  Excuse me.  And we have a lawsuit in Utah



        2   11/3/2014, and she's claiming attorney-client



        3   involving your question about the issuing of cards.



        4   And now you've gone to one --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just asking her to



        6   acknowledge -- okay.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, it's rote.



        8   Okay?  The dates, the facts that are in place answer



        9   the question.  So what more are you trying to draw?



       10             MS. HELLER:  I think maybe can we



       11   stipulate that you requested it in --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  December 4 of 2014.



       13             MS. HELLER:  -- 2014.  You received it --



       14   you received a special membership card --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Two years later.



       16             MS. HELLER:  -- two years later.



       17   That's --



       18   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       19        Q.   Can you give me an explanation for the



       20   two-year delay?  Captain Torell, can you please give



       21   me an explanation as to why it took you two years to



       22   issue a special membership card based on my request



       23   dated December 4 of 2014?



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You guys can huddle up if



       25   you want.
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        1             MS. TORELL:  Yeah.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It's okay.  That's what



        3   he's there for.



        4                  (Discussion between Ms. Torell and



        5                  Mr. Thurstin)



        6        A.   Okay.  Exactly.  Probably as I've stated



        7   previously, at the advice -- I've had -- obviously



        8   went to general counsel, and that again is



        9   attorney-client privilege.  That's what they told me



       10   how to handle it.



       11   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       12        Q.   Okay.  Do you think, knowing what you know



       13   now, was that decision to delay issuance of



       14   membership card in the best interest of the



       15   association?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  What relevance does that



       17   have on the bearing of charges?



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's one of the



       19   violations of Article VII.  She acted against the



       20   best interest of -- I'll get it right here.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, I understand what



       22   Article VII states.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, we've got to establish



       24   two things.  Her failure to issue membership cards



       25   in compliance with Section 4, was it willful.  She's
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        1   just acknowledged it was because she did not do it



        2   at the advice of counsel.  And number two, the other



        3   thing I want to establish is --



        4             MS. FLETCHER:  That's not willful.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, sure it is.  She made



        6   a deliberate decision not to issue it.



        7             MS. FLETCHER:  On advice of counsel.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  But the C&B doesn't provide



        9   for advice of counsel.



       10             MS. FLETCHER:  Well, that's still not



       11   willful.  Willful would be they said do it and she



       12   said no.  That's willful.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I said do it and she said



       14   no.  I said do it and she said nothing for two



       15   years.  So that's willful.  I'm a member.  She works



       16   for me, not the other way around.



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, she's --



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Noted.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  -- tasked with serving the



       21   membership, not the institution, not Steve Hoffman.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Let's get back --



       23   let's get back on track.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay?  You've --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  So do you believe that your



        2   decision --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, stand by one.  Did



        4   you have anything to add to your objection?



        5             MR. THURSTIN:  My objection was that, you



        6   know, he keeps making the statement he's a member.



        7   He's an inactive member.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I --



        9             MR. THURSTIN:  If we understand that.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Jeff, that's all -- that's



       11   all post --



       12             MR. THURSTIN:  Very good.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that'll all be post



       14   brief.  And, you know, just like, you know, I've



       15   done a couple arbitrations when you feel like you've



       16   said the wrong thing and you wish you'd said it a



       17   little differently, that's what post briefs do.



       18   They explain, as I'm sure Capt -- or Larry Wilson or



       19   Larry --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Larry Wilson.



       21             MR. THURSTIN:  You are tired.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I know.  It's getting to



       23   be a long day for me.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Kathy Meadows.  Kathy



       25   Meadows, my wife.
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        1             MS. TORELL:  Kathy Meadows.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, there you go.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  That would be bad.  Okay.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You said it, not me.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



        6             MS. TORELL:  I said it.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Tab 16.  Let's go to Tab 16,



        8   the fourth page in, paragraph O.



        9             MS. HELLER:  Is this the LMRDA?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.  This is the LMRDA,



       11   29 U.S.C. 401, paragraph O.



       12   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       13        Q.   Captain Torell, can you please read



       14   paragraph O for me.



       15        A.   Paragraph O.  "Quote, Member, quote, or,



       16   quote, member in good standing, end of quote, when



       17   used in reference to a labor organization, includes



       18   any person who has fulfilled the requirements for



       19   membership in such organization and who neither has



       20   voluntarily withdrawn from membership nor has been



       21   expelled or suspended from membership after



       22   appropriate proceedings consistent with lawful



       23   provisions of the Constitution and Bylaws of such



       24   organization."



       25        Q.   Okay.  So my first question is, have I
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        1   fulfilled all the requirements for membership in the



        2   association?



        3        A.   This references a member in good standing,



        4   and you are an inactive member.



        5        Q.   You can't interpret the LMRDA.  I'm sorry.



        6   You can only read between the four corners of that



        7   document.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Again, please allow



        9   me --



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  All right.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- to pretend to be --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's the four corners



       13   of a federal --



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- the chairman while



       15   you're in the room.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm sorry.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's okay.  So where are



       18   we going now, Larry?



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  I object, Captain Hepp.  She



       20   has to confine her testimony to the four corners of



       21   this federal document.  And it's relevant because



       22   it's referenced in the C&B.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So -- well, but



       24   again, Larry, we're not a court of law.  You're



       25   going to write a brief to us --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I want to ask these three --



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- that says that --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  These three specific --



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- the LMRDA makes the



        5   claim that you're a member in good standing based on



        6   this document.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.  My --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I haven't had the



        9   opportunity to read the whole document, so I have no



       10   idea --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  But there's three



       12   requirements, and I just want to know if I meet them



       13   or not.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But wait a second.  First



       15   off, again, these documents should have been



       16   exchanged seven days ahead so everyone had an



       17   opportunity to look at them.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Not required though.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, Larry.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  She didn't give me hers.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And don't get me wrong.



       22   I'm not happy about that either.  This thing would



       23   be going along much faster had we.  So we are where



       24   we are, but again --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll move on.  I --
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- just as we are trying



        2   to be fair to you, we are also fair to Ms. Torell.



        3   And you're asking her to read one paragraph of a



        4   document and then make a judgment without actually



        5   having the opportunity to read the entire document.



        6   And by God, it's the LMRDA.  You know, it would seem



        7   like she could use a little advice, legal advice on



        8   the issue as to whether this stipulates -- where



        9   this stipulates your case.  You know, it's --



       10   there's got to be an element of fairness here.



       11             MS. HELLER:  And I think --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I think --



       13             MS. HELLER:  I think also for the sake of



       14   argument, if the C&B is in violation of the LMRDA,



       15   this is not the forum for it.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, no, it is because the



       17   C&B is specifically -- it refers to the federal



       18   statutes, the right to inspect records and stuff.



       19   It's clearly speaking to the LMRDA.  So the C&B is



       20   citing authority to the LMRDA --



       21             MS. HELLER:  Correct.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  -- for the membership



       23   issues.



       24             MS. HELLER:  But let's say the whole C&B



       25   is in violation of the LMRDA.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  And it is.  For example --



        2             MS. HELLER:  May or may not be.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Just let --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  I just want to make it --



        5             MS. HELLER:  But to play devil's



        6   advocate --



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let Ms. Heller finish her



        8   point.



        9             MS. HELLER:  -- let's say that it is in



       10   violation.  We as the board, that's not our role.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  I got it.



       12             MS. HELLER:  We're ruling within --



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I got it.



       14             MS. HELLER:  -- the C&B.  The federal



       15   courts are the ones who are going to say, hey, the



       16   APA --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  No, I understand.



       18             MS. HELLER:  -- and C&B is completely --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  And honestly, I --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I think -- and I think



       21   the issue --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  But for general counsel's



       23   decision, I would have been in federal court



       24   resolving this.  I'm sorry I have to spare you this.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  The Emery case I think is
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        1   a perfect example of the difference between what



        2   we're asked to do and what the federal courts are



        3   asked to do.  So I think if you're going to ask her



        4   questions on a complicated document as this, you've



        5   got to at least give her the opportunity --



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  We'll go to tomorrow, but



        7   the point -- I want to understand, just --



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So can you guys -- is



        9   it -- can you guys work through this between now



       10   and -- I mean, it's a mouthful.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  I think that in deference



       12   to what Ms. Heller said, is this within the scope of



       13   the board, of the appeal board?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  It's within the scope of the



       15   C&B.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Personally, I mean, that's



       17   one of the things we're going to have to wrestle



       18   with as a board as to -- but, I mean --



       19             MR. THURSTIN:  Pam Torell follows --



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't want to say it



       21   without getting --



       22                  (Off record from 4:07 to 4:08)



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We're all on the same page



       24   here and, yes, Ms. Heller is correct.  This just is



       25   not the forum for an interpretation of the LMRDA.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't have the -- I



        3   don't have the wherewithal to come up, number one.



        4   They don't -- haven't seen the document up until



        5   this point, two, and they should have the



        6   opportunity to work through it to at least get up to



        7   some level of expertise.  You've obviously had ample



        8   opportunity.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just trying to use that



       10   definition, but I guess --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I think, if you'll



       12   allow me to finish, you're going to have your



       13   opportunity when you go back to Utah.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but I shouldn't have



       15   to.  And I guess my point is this.  I'd like just to



       16   make a comment to Captain Torell and to the board.



       17             It's within the power of the APA to fix a



       18   lot of these issues.  I don't know why they want to



       19   go to federal court and be found out that there



       20   can't be such a thing as active or inactive members



       21   and the fact that people like me cannot vote,



       22   because we're members in good standing under the



       23   LMRDA and we're entitled to all rights and



       24   privileges.  And it's going to cost the association



       25   hundreds of thousands and all kinds of resources.
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        1   They already lost their E&O policy.  They already



        2   lost numerous counsel over these issues.



        3             I mean, it's been -- I can't use the word,



        4   but it's been a CF.  It's a total screw job for the



        5   union.  And Keith Wilson testified what a nightmare



        6   it was after C&R lockout trying to effectuate,



        7   implement all the programming changes to lock out a



        8   small group of pilots.  What did they accomplish?



        9   What were they afraid of?  I was going to spill the



       10   beans on their failure with Western Medical?  So



       11   what?  The membership has got to know.



       12             And I'm not here to punish Pam Torell or



       13   make it personal.  I'm just here to get my job back.



       14   And I bear responsibility to all the MDD pilots.



       15   Because of me, everyone was locked out of C&R.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, thanks to Ms. Emery



       17   and Dan Carey, they're back on.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I know, but I'm saying this



       19   not in good standing issue is lingering, and I have



       20   an obligation to fix that.  I'm just trying to



       21   make -- I'm coming back here.  I'm trying to make it



       22   better.



       23             And I think the one takeaway from here,



       24   Pam has the power, Dan has the power, and I've



       25   talked to them about it, they really need to issue a
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        1   proper interpretation because the interpretation



        2   that everyone's relying on now, this Keith Wilson



        3   interpretation, is void and unenforceable on its



        4   face because he's interpreting the CBA in addition



        5   to the C&B which he has no authority for.  So that



        6   whole interpretation has been -- I talked to a labor



        7   attorney.  It's invalid.  Only a system board can



        8   interpret the terms of the CBA.



        9             And there's all this big fallacy that APA



       10   has gone into the record in the Emery litigation how



       11   pilots like me are terminated under Section 11 and



       12   removed from the list.  There's no such thing.  You



       13   simply cease to retain and accrue your relative



       14   seniority as was basically upheld by the testimony



       15   of Scott Hansen and Jim Anderson in the Emery



       16   deposition.



       17             So there's a lot of things that should be



       18   fixed, but it's just -- so I guess it goes back to



       19   my question was, was this all in the best interest



       20   of the association?  I mean, that's my question.



       21   Because it's cost a lot of money and a lot of time



       22   and resources and a lot of frustration, a lot of



       23   pissed off people, and it's just -- I don't know why



       24   we're doing it.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I would -- again,
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        1   look.  Not everything you say is wrong.  When the



        2   board sits and passes -- every time the board sits,



        3   it's a constitutional convention.  You know?  And



        4   that's unusual for our union.  That normally



        5   doesn't -- it's not that way.  Normally you have



        6   particular times of the year or you have particular



        7   years where you can make alterations to a



        8   constitution, but that's not true with our union.



        9   Every time they sit, they can pass whatever



       10   resolution they want to alter the Constitution and



       11   Bylaws.  That's just the rules of the road that we



       12   live by, Larry.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  When problems come up, you



       15   know, people sit around that table who don't have a



       16   lot of experience but are trying to do what they



       17   think is in the best interest of the membership to



       18   fix whatever those problems come up with, just like



       19   now that all the MDD pilots are back on C&R and now



       20   there's an agreement to not have people drop off the



       21   seniority list in five years.  Things generally --



       22   it's like watching glaciers melt.  I mean, it just



       23   happens slowly.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Those are hard fought



       25   issues.  That's the issue I've been fighting for the
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        1   whole time.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But the -- this board,



        3   appeal board isn't -- has to stick within the



        4   confines of what we're given, and we're given the



        5   constitution and the policy manual.  And it's not a



        6   perfect document, I agree.  But that's -- those are



        7   the cards that we're dealt.  And we're just trying



        8   to do the best that we can given the situation we're



        9   in.  And that's just where we are.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So it's not a perfect



       12   document.  Yes, I'd like to -- there are a lot of



       13   people in this building that have been working to



       14   try and get this fixed, but there never seems to be



       15   enough time.  You know, there never seems to be room



       16   on the agenda to talk about constitutional



       17   membership issues and try to fix them.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  But it's costing the



       19   association a lot of money.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  It's costing the association



       22   a lot of money because --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Most definitely.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  How can you not have --



       25   perfectly define what a member in good standing is?
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        1   That's just ridiculous.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, to not comment -- to



        3   not agree or disagree, it's just this is where we



        4   are.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  And unfortunately,



        6   the only way -- you're right -- is if the



        7   association and the BOD, they got more important



        8   shit to worry about, so it's not going to get fixed.



        9   And it's going to take a federal court ruling at a



       10   great expense of time and aggravation.  And I don't



       11   really relish doing it, but I'm going to have to do



       12   it, you know.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I mean, it worked



       14   for Ms. Emery.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, well, the LMRDA is a



       16   very powerful remedy.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I think if you look,



       18   it moved the ball forward.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  And APA is emblematic of



       20   APA's association being in flagrant violation of the



       21   LMRDA across the board on a lot of issues, and it's



       22   bad.  Pam Torell, she's the one filing the LM-2



       23   reports of the LMRDA.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  To keep it at 30,000 feet



       25   instead of casting stones down here --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not casting stones, but



        2   I mean --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- I would just say that,



        4   you know, there's always more fires than there are



        5   firemen.  I mean, you just can't put all the fires



        6   out.  And we're just trying to do -- look, like I



        7   say, Larry, I think we worked hard to give you your



        8   fair day, as stipulated by the judge in Utah and



        9   stipulated by the conscience of this board.  So,



       10   sorry, sorry.  So where are we going?



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I guess I wanted to



       12   ask a question.  Was the decision to delay issuance



       13   of special membership cards in the best interest of



       14   the association in your opinion?



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  It's already answered.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  I say I object.  It's



       18   already answered.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  It's not answered.  I don't



       20   know the answer to that.  What did she say?  It's



       21   not clear to me.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, honestly, I mean,



       23   you may have answered.  Do you want to roll up



       24   again?  Because I'm not sure -- did he ask that



       25   previously?  I got so lost in --
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        1             THE REPORTER:  I don't know.  I'd have to



        2   look.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Would you, please?



        4             THE REPORTER:  This is going to take me



        5   just a bit though.



        6             Question was asked and there was a lot of



        7   colloquy afterwards and I don't see an answer.



        8   There was a lot of colloquy and back and forth and



        9   y'all went into private discussion, and I don't see



       10   an answer.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  What was your question



       12   again, Larry?



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Question was, do you believe



       14   that your decision to delay the issuance of special



       15   membership cards for some two years after my first



       16   written request was in the best interest of the



       17   association?



       18             MS. TORELL:  Larry, all --



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  There is one -- oh, I'm



       20   sorry.  I didn't mean to interrupt.



       21             MS. TORELL:  No.  Were you speaking?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, no.



       23             MS. TORELL:  Okay.  To the chair?  All my



       24   actions and duties as secretary-treasurer are to the



       25   best interest of the membership.  That is what I
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        1   promised them, and that's what I try to do.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not asking generalities.



        3   I'm asking very specifically if she feels like the



        4   decision --



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think that's asked and



        6   answered.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So -- okay.  Do you



        8   know what it cost the association in legal fees for



        9   the Emery and Meadows litigation related to the C&R



       10   lockout and the membership card issue --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  I'm going to --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  -- including the --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm going to have to



       14   object to that.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Why?  It's public knowledge.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, then -- but my point



       17   is, it's not -- it's not relevant to the



       18   proceedings.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  It's relevant to if it was



       20   in the best interest of the association.  I want to



       21   know what was spent and if there was a cost-benefit



       22   analysis done.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But, Larry, I'm going



       24   to -- again, I'm just -- that's like saying when we



       25   go into negotiations, you know, the board goes into
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        1   private caucus and they're trying to decide, you



        2   know, is it better to get language in a hotel



        3   section versus, you know, disability versus -- I



        4   mean, it's -- you do the -- it's --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  I guess was there any



        6   cost-benefit analysis -- Captain Torell, was there



        7   any cost-benefit analysis done in consideration of



        8   the membership card issue, whether to issue it or



        9   not?  Was cost and risk of litigation taken into



       10   account?



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  I object because I think



       12   this has already been answered.  She did the best



       13   she could at the time based on counsel and



       14   everything else.



       15             MS. FLETCHER:  He's asking though.  He's



       16   asking if anybody looked at the cost of this issue.



       17   I think that's different.  She may not know the



       18   answer, but he's asking.  Are you aware of any



       19   cost-benefit analysis that was completed at APA



       20   related to the membership card issue?



       21             MR. THURSTIN:  The only thing I have issue



       22   with it is we don't know what -- because I do



       23   analysis when I'm not screwing around with this



       24   stuff, so to speak.  But we have no idea of what is



       25   coming in regards to litigation, how many appeals
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        1   are going to go on.  You could say, yeah, we did a



        2   cursory analysis, but it would not be anywhere near



        3   close to what the actual cost will be.



        4             MS. FLETCHER:  I think he just wants to



        5   know if anything was done.



        6             MS. TORELL:  I don't know.  I cannot



        7   answer that.  To the best of my knowledge, I don't



        8   know.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, so that brings me to a



       10   question.  I mean, you've already admitted that you



       11   did not comply with C&B on the advice of legal



       12   counsel for purposes of delaying the issuance of



       13   special membership cards.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  He's tired, so I'm going



       15   to object for Jeff.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Really?  Why?



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, because, again,



       18   you're trying to link her --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you think you got good



       20   legal advice on that decision?  I'm not asking what



       21   it was.  Do you think it was good?



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.  I object to



       23   that.



       24             MS. TORELL:  Thank you.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.  I mean --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you know why -- Captain



        2   Torell, do you know why James & Hoffman was fired as



        3   general counsel?



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  That's a relevant question.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- would you please direct



        7   your comments to me --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes, sir.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- because we're getting



       10   back --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay, Mr. Captain Torell.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Thank you.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell, do you know



       14   why James & Hoffman was terminated as general



       15   counsel?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  You do?  Why?



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah.  That's -- I'm



       19   keeping that one to myself.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm actually asking her.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I understand, but it's



       22   conjecture.  You're looking at 20 years.  You know,



       23   you're going back to Slikkerveer, Sovich and Hunter



       24   when they were the president.  And the union, you



       25   know, picked James & Hoffman to be legal counsel.
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        1   And then all of the, you know, think of all the crap



        2   that happened between the time they were hired and



        3   the time they were fired.



        4             I think it's -- I don't think you can sit



        5   there and look at one particular incident and say



        6   this is why they were hired or fired.  It's a



        7   accumulation of, you know, 15 years' worth of



        8   having -- and, Larry, having been personally in a



        9   lot of those fights, I can tell you, it's not just



       10   one issue.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Having been there.  And I



       13   think it's -- again, I just think it's unfair to ask



       14   Pam.  She hasn't been around.  She hasn't seen



       15   enough.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  Well, Captain



       17   Torell --



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's deep water you're



       19   treading in.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Was the E&O insurance



       21   terminated as a result of the litigation related to



       22   Emery and Meadows and the C&R lockout and the



       23   failure to issue membership cards?



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Can you explain to



       25   me what E&O insurance is?
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Errors and omissions



        2   insurance.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It's like directors and



        4   officers insurance --



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Professional liability



        6   insurance.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- kind of thing?



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  What relevance does that



       10   have in --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  A lot.  Because her



       12   decisions clearly couldn't be in the best interest



       13   of the association if it resulted in blowing up the



       14   E&O policy and leave the membership exposed and



       15   vulnerable and uninsured, which it did, because



       16   there's so many claims against the insurance policy



       17   in Emery and Meadows litigation, among other things.



       18   So that's my question.  I mean, these decisions to



       19   not follow the C&B have consequences.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, Larry, make your



       21   statement.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So my question is --



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, no, no.  Larry, you've



       24   got something you want to say.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no.  I --
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Just say it.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  I want to know if that's why



        3   the E&O policy was canceled.  Why was it canceled?



        4   It's public knowledge.  Dan Carey said it was



        5   canceled at the BOD meeting in August of 2015.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Or '16.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So, again, we're back to a



        9   situation where it's public knowledge.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  No, but not as to why it was



       11   canceled, only that it was.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  But again --



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  It was canceled



       14   September 2015, and it was disclosed to the



       15   membership in the BOD minutes in August of 2016.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Here's what I am hearing.



       17   So forget about the -- am I going too far?  Do you



       18   guys want to just answer this or --



       19             MS. TORELL:  I'm fine with what you're --



       20   I'm fine.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Answering it?



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  You know, we're asking Pam



       23   to get ahead of the decision-making process that she



       24   was not decider on.  I don't believe Pam Torell made



       25   a decision on whether or not to get rid of the
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        1   insurance, retain James & Hoffman, get rid of James



        2   & Hoffman.  Those decisions were made above her.  So



        3   I don't understand where the relevance or what he



        4   thinks he's going to get out of this.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, is Captain Torell, is



        6   she or is she not responsible for the financial



        7   affairs of the association?



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But that doesn't mean she



        9   does the hiring and the firing.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  No, it's got to do with she



       11   should act to make sure our E&O insurance is not



       12   terminated as a result of unlawful acts or actions



       13   of the officers of the association.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but you don't



       15   know -- an insurance company never tells you if you



       16   have one more accident I'm going to cancel your car



       17   insurance.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm asking her why.  Yeah,



       19   they do.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Mine doesn't.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  They said that they would



       22   reinsure APA until the Emery and Meadows litigation



       23   were concluded.  That's what they were told.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, then there you go.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  But I want to know what she
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        1   felt because I'm trying to establish if she knew



        2   that she was acting in the best interest of the



        3   association or not.  And clearly she wasn't, but I'm



        4   trying to prove that.  I need to prove that in order



        5   to establish my charge under Article VII.



        6             I basically assert that her decision was



        7   not in the best interest of the association, but I



        8   need her answers to help prove that.  I want to know



        9   what she did and didn't do.  Clearly, it sounds like



       10   she did nothing and just was ignorant to everything



       11   blowing up around her and didn't take any -- well,



       12   she's not testified to the contrary.  She's not



       13   defending herself.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, but again, under her



       15   right or responsibilities, she just writes the



       16   checks.  She doesn't decide the hiring and the



       17   firing.  She doesn't decide the legal matters or



       18   what directions the union goes.  I mean, that's --



       19   those are -- these are board decisions.  These are



       20   president's decisions.



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  When I was on the -- when



       23   I was on the board, these are the things that come



       24   up that are part of strategy and generally --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I guess that's the question.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- unfortunately, come up



        2   in closed session.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  I'll help clarify it.  Did



        4   the board -- who terminated James & Hoffman?  Did



        5   the board terminate James & Hoffman, or was it



        6   officers of the association?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't know.  I know who



        8   did it.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm asking Pam Torell.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry.  Okay.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you know who -- do you



       13   know who terminated James & Hoffman?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  -- do you know who



       15   terminated James & Hoffman?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Was it a board decision,



       17   or was it the president?



       18             MS. TORELL:  It was the president's



       19   decision.



       20   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       21        Q.   And were you consulted?



       22        A.   No.



       23        Q.   You were not consulted?



       24        A.   No.



       25        Q.   And did you have an opinion of the
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        1   decision once you heard about it?



        2        A.   Irrelevant.



        3        Q.   Well, it's relevant if you thought it was



        4   either detrimental and prejudicial to the



        5   association, it's relevant.



        6             Who's tasked with making sure we have



        7   insurance?  Is that your job?  Meaning E&O



        8   insurance.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Boy, you're getting a lot



       10   of leeway because I -- look, look, Larry, I've got



       11   to tell you.  I've known Dan for a lot of years, and



       12   there's been a fire built under getting rid of J&H,



       13   you know, for a long time.  So I got to tell you, to



       14   sit --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I've got as much information



       16   as I could.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  If you want to sit here --



       18   I'm going to tell you right now, if Pam Torell wants



       19   to call me during the arbitration and talk about



       20   animosity between the national off -- the president



       21   and J&H, I'll be happy to testify because there's



       22   always been.  This is like -- you talk about public



       23   knowledge, holy shit.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but she's taken advice



       25   from them.  She's admitted that she didn't comply
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        1   with the C&B because she took the advice of the



        2   flawed general counsel.



        3             MR. THURSTIN:  Object.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't think that's what



        5   she admitted, number one.  And number two, that's



        6   not where we are right now.  Where we are right now



        7   is who decided to cancel -- who decided to fire



        8   James & Hoffman and did it relate to the insurance



        9   issue.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And number one, I don't



       12   think Dan cares about whether it had anything to do



       13   with the insurance issue.  I think Dan wanted new



       14   blood in the legal department.  And so he was -- you



       15   know, we had a conversation before he was elected as



       16   to what -- as to his opinions about James & Hoffman



       17   and it hasn't changed.



       18                  (Talking simultaneously)



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  He was on C&R three years



       20   before saying they should be fired.  That's no



       21   secret.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Exactly.  So I don't



       23   understand.  So where do you think you're going?  I



       24   mean, to sit -- now you're sitting here trying to



       25   pick nits that --
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Because she's taking advice



        2   from these people.  James & Hoffman, for all the



        3   good stuff they've ever done, has led this



        4   association down a primrose path.  And you guys are



        5   going to be paying, writing checks for years to come



        6   unless some of these issues are resolved.  And she's



        7   following their advice to violate the C&B.  So she



        8   needs to be held accountable for that failure to



        9   follow C&B.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Geez Louise.  So what are



       11   we going to do, Larry?  Are we going to file Article



       12   VII charges about every member that has taken advice



       13   from James & Hoffman?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I mean, are we on that



       16   kind of a witch-hunt?



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, the path we're on is



       18   every time that something -- APA does something



       19   wrong and someone goes to sue them, James & Hoffman



       20   go argue to the judge you have to come back here and



       21   file Article VII.  So that's why I'm here today.



       22   I'm not here because I want to be.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I got to tell you --



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  I'd rather be in court.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I get that.  I'd
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        1   rather you be in court.  But you can't -- no, I'm



        2   going to rule these questions out of order because



        3   there's just way too much history between Dan and



        4   James & Hoffman and, you know, what James & Hoffman



        5   has or hasn't done and the conjecture involved and



        6   the facts of what advice they've given this



        7   institution over the years.  And to sit here and say



        8   that this is the particular decision that knocked



        9   them -- got them, you know, got them taken out to



       10   the woodshed and fired, that's just ridiculous.



       11   I've been here too long and seen too much --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just asking.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- shit going on.  And I'm



       14   answering it for you because I can tell you she



       15   hasn't been here long enough to know.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  She's been here for two



       17   terms.  She's seen enough.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And let me tell you, and



       19   you can go a hell of a lot further back in C&R and



       20   read Dan's comments about James & Hoffman that she



       21   probably has no knowledge of.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  So you're making my point.



       23   They're a flawed entity and they're making flawed



       24   decisions.  And there was a lot of acrimony to them,



       25   but yet she chose to blindly follow their advice and
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        1   not follow her obligations under the C&B and the



        2   LMRDA, which she's the one who's going to get sued



        3   in federal court, not Steve Hoffman.  It's fucking



        4   crazy.



        5             MS. HELLER:  But, Larry, they were general



        6   counsel at the time.  What were her options?  She



        7   couldn't go seek --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Her option is to follow the



        9   C&B.  Counsel cannot advise her to break the supreme



       10   law of the union, which is what she admitted to.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And that's what your --



       12   and I understand that's your position.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay?  So that's the point.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I get it.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't care what legal --



       16   lawyers can give you all the advice they want, but



       17   if they advise you to break the law -- because she



       18   was advised not to follow the C&B, the supreme law



       19   of the union, so someone's got to pay the price, and



       20   unfortunately it's the membership.  So what I would



       21   like to come out of this is the membership is aware



       22   that she -- yeah, she's issued membership cards



       23   after they were basically brought to the threshold



       24   of federal court knowing they were going to lose



       25   their ass.
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        1             MR. THURSTIN:  I object.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's a fact.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And I have to say I do



        4   too.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Well, then why



        6   weren't they issued before that?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  That judge spent four days



        9   on a non-monetary claim because it's so egregious



       10   with the LMRDA issue.  And he just couldn't believe



       11   that APA forged ahead and spent all that time and



       12   money, four witnesses and three attorneys for four



       13   days in West Palm Beach for what?  Over no money.



       14   Emery lost the monetary claims all over the stupid



       15   C&R issue which could have been fixed over the



       16   membership card issue.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But again, let's go back



       18   to the impetus.  This was a resolution passed by the



       19   board of directors, not --



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  At the advice of James &



       21   Hoffman.  I mean, they're --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Whoa, whoa, whoa.  No.



       23   I'm going to claim bullshit to that.  I don't -- my



       24   memory, God knows, is not the best in the world, but



       25   I don't think J&H had any input other than the fact
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        1   that the board said this is what we want, how do we



        2   do it.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And they followed -- they



        5   asked -- and I'm not even sure they asked.  I don't



        6   know who wrote the AUP.  I can't remember who wrote



        7   the AUP.  But I got to tell you --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  They enforced it.  But the



        9   point is they enforced it.  They took the position



       10   that we're not members.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It's the position of the



       12   union, Larry.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but Pam Torell sat



       14   there blindly, she sat idly by while --



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Oh, for God's sakes.



       16   Would you quit it with the gosh darn --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  No, she got an e-mail saying



       18   that we're not members of the union for purposes of



       19   locking us out of C&R.  She testified she --



       20                  (Talking simultaneously)



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  -- we were inactive.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And again, Larry, her job



       23   is to follow the direction of the board.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Even if it's unlawful?



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Her job -- well, unlawful,
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        1   that's what court --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  She's --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's what courts --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  She's in charge of counting



        5   the membership status.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And that's what courts are



        7   for.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  But she's in charge



        9   of membership status.  So if she knows that Captain



       10   McDaniels' directive that MDD pilots were



       11   non-members was wrong, why would she not intervene?



       12   It's her duty as the secretary-treasurer.  I can't



       13   -- you know, I'm going to end this questioning



       14   because you won't let me get where I need to be.  I



       15   mean --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, wait a second.



       17   Larry, if you --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  On the membership issue.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  If you want to get --



       20   look, if you want to get off James & Hoffman and get



       21   back on point, I'm all for it.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I feel like I've



       23   been --



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But to sit here and talk



       25   about, you know, why James & Hoffman got fired and
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        1   does she know why James, was she consulted, I



        2   mean --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  I think it's relevant



        4   because she relied --



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  This has been a tempest



        6   that's been going on for 10, 15 years, shit.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but she relied on



        8   advice to the point of violating the C&B.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Spell that in capital



       10   letters, by the way.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I interject something



       12   here?



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  Thank you.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  That's my point.  I mean, I



       16   can't get my questions answered directly.  She's



       17   being evasive.  But the bottom line is she didn't



       18   follow the C&B, and I think that's pretty clear.



       19   And maybe it's because of general counsel's advice,



       20   but that does not excuse her from her obligation



       21   under the C&B.  I'm sorry.  And I have all I need to



       22   make my case.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  And, Larry, if you'll



       24   allow us to be the deciders in that, I would greatly



       25   appreciate it.  You've obviously come to your own
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        1   conclusion, obviously, or you wouldn't be here.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  The record evidence will



        3   prove that case.  The only thing that's hard to



        4   prove is was it in the best interest of the



        5   association or not.  And I want to know what -- I



        6   don't really have her justification why she did



        7   these things.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, as I said, Larry,



        9   every time the board sits, they're a constitutional



       10   body.  And it's the national officers' job to follow



       11   the board of directors' directives.  So --



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  The board of directors'



       13   directives were we were not members, so she



       14   shouldn't have issued membership cards.  That's the



       15   last directive from the BOD, that MDD pilots are



       16   non-members, yet she issued the membership card



       17   contrary to the BOD policy.  Really?  Fact.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So did she do the right



       19   thing, putting out those, even though it was against



       20   the directive of the board?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  I think she had to do it



       22   because they were going to get sanctioned by the



       23   federal court if they didn't.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So she went



       25   beyond -- and I'm not saying this is what you did,
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        1   but I'm just -- just to go to your logical



        2   conclusion, what you're saying is she did in fact



        3   overlook direction of the board and she did in fact



        4   try to do the right thing by issuing membership



        5   cards.  Is that what you're saying?



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Then did she act in



        8   the best interest of the membership when she issued



        9   those membership cards?



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  No.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But she issued them.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  She should have issued them



       13   two years before.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So it's a timing issue.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Of course it is.  For those



       16   two and a half years, I could not go to BOD or



       17   domicile meetings.  I couldn't go in C&R.



       18   Meanwhile, the JCBA was getting negotiated.  My



       19   rights under the ISL were getting blown away.  And



       20   there's no explanation why 11 people just like me



       21   were on the ISL and the other 220 MDD pilots were



       22   not.



       23             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That has nothing to do



       24   with your Article VII charge.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's got -- if I would
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        1   have been able to participate in union activities,



        2   but --



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You think that would have



        4   had some effect on these 11 pilots?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, why were 11 pilots



        6   included in the ISL?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I have no idea.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  That's right.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But I know one thing.



       10   Your ability to go to a domicile meeting --



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  I was treated as --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- is not going to have



       13   any effect on whether those 11 pilots are on the



       14   seniority list.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  But James & Hoffman said I



       16   had no standing and I wasn't a member, they didn't



       17   owe me representational duties.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, now you're jumping



       19   again.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  No, no, no, but this is



       21   because the association is not doing the right thing



       22   via their secretary-treasurer in upholding the C&B



       23   and declaring that we are members and issuing us



       24   membership cards.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but you've just said
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        1   that's a timing issue.  She -- according to what you



        2   just said, she did go beyond the directive of the



        3   board.  She did issue those membership cards.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  At the advice of legal



        5   counsel.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  She just didn't do it two



        7   years earlier.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  She didn't do it out of the



        9   goodness of her heart.  She was advised to do it by



       10   Steve Hoffman.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I think we're going to



       12   have to -- because, again, conjecture on --



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I'll ask a question.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Hang on a second.  Wait a



       15   second.  I'm sorry.  I didn't mean to shut you down.



       16   You had something you wanted to say?



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  Well, I had a couple



       18   questions.  He keeps referring back to Rusty



       19   McDaniels' e-mail.  Pam took no action on that



       20   e-mail.  Even though Rusty McDaniels said that they



       21   were not members, she took no action.  She didn't



       22   lock them out.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  She should have though.  She



       24   sat idly by and let --



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, you've had your
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        1   time.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, go ahead.



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  So I don't see what the



        5   relevance is.  Larry's made numerous responses that



        6   he's been -- he was denied access to the union, and



        7   we have no proof of that.  We challenge him to show



        8   us days, dates, when he was there, who he spoke to



        9   to prove that point that he was actually denied



       10   entrance into a union meeting.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       12             MR. THURSTIN:  We have no -- absolutely



       13   no --



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  And I don't need to prove



       15   that.  All I need to prove is that Pam Torell



       16   violated the C&B.  Okay?



       17             MR. THURSTIN:  Well, you made the



       18   statement.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  This isn't your trial.  This



       20   is mine.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Stand by.  We're



       22   getting back to where we're throwing darts again.



       23   We've actually done pretty good the last couple



       24   hours.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  So here's my --
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        1             MR. THURSTIN:  Wait a minute.  I still



        2   have the floor.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Very good.



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  He made statements that he



        5   had tried to attend.  We're asking for the proof.



        6   Show it to us.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  You have it.



        8             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.  Allow him



        9   to finish.  Come on.  We're doing -- we've been



       10   doing good up until this point.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  That's what we'd like to



       12   see to make sure that that is in fact true.  We're



       13   not disputing it.  And the fact that if he did try



       14   to do it, we would like to know.  We would like to



       15   rectify that situation.  But we would like to know



       16   if it actually did happen.



       17             MS. HELLER:  I have a question.



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes.



       19             MS. HELLER:  The record, I believe, shows



       20   that Keith Wilson -- I believe it was Keith Wilson



       21   issued a directive that members -- that you were



       22   required to show your membership card to enter



       23   meetings.  Is that correct?



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  It's Exhibit 9, yes.



       25             MS. HELLER:  As of 2014 at some point.
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        1   2014, '15?



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  2015.  May of 2015 was the



        3   first time.



        4             MS. HELLER:  Okay.  So that's part of the



        5   record.  And we have also as part of the record that



        6   you had no membership card from when your active



        7   membership card expired in 2012 until you were given



        8   an inactive membership card in 2016?



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, but I'd asked for it



       10   prior to the -- in 2014 I asked for a membership



       11   card, in December 2014 and August 2015 again.  But



       12   in between there is when they changed the mandate.



       13   In Exhibit 9 there's a Miami domicile reminder, and



       14   it says you have to bring your ID.  That was never a



       15   requirement before.  They just let anybody in that



       16   showed up.



       17             MS. HELLER:  Right.  So I guess my



       18   question to you is, what is the relevance --



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Hold on.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  May 24th.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  What now?



       22             MS. FLETCHER:  May 20th what year?



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  2015.



       24             MS. FLETCHER:  Miami domicile?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, for the Miami domicile
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        1   they started having a requirement that they had



        2   someone sitting at the door signing people in which



        3   had never occurred before.  That's the standard



        4   policy now.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That has happened in the



        6   past.



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  It should have been done



        8   that way all these years, but it was just ignored



        9   and it was basically --



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, it's happened in '09,



       11   it happened in '03, it happened in '97.  It



       12   generally happens in the heat of contract



       13   negotiations.  That's kind of what happens.



       14             MS. HELLER:  So you -- I want to -- you



       15   want evidence that he was denied access, and I'm not



       16   sure of the relevance of that evidence if in fact



       17   there is a presidential directive requiring that



       18   that is in the record.  And we know also that he



       19   didn't have a card.  Is that correct?



       20             MS. TORELL:  And when you say presidential



       21   record, we're referring to the Miami domicile



       22   meeting reminder of -- need my glasses -- posted on



       23   July 21?



       24             MR. THURSTIN:  Tab 9.



       25             MS. TORELL:  Tab 9.
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        1             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.  That was the first



        2   time they required a membership card, they enforced



        3   it.



        4             MS. TORELL:  To read that, it says,



        5   "Please RSVP to reserve a meal.  Doors will open at



        6   0930.  Please bring your APA ID."



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  I could print out all these



        8   domicile reminders prior to this.  They never had



        9   the ID requirement in there.  And it was -- it was



       10   designed to not let people in like me.



       11             MS. TORELL:  I can --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I think it was



       13   designed to let people in like the press and --



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, that's probably true.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You know, I'm not going to



       16   deny whether it was or was not, you know, to exclude



       17   MDD pilots, but --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I think it's a good policy,



       19   but the point was we couldn't get into the union



       20   meeting.  I think it's always been a policy



       21   probably, but --



       22             MS. TORELL:  I've been to numerous



       23   domicile meetings, many, especially pretty much all



       24   the Miami, and the ID is not a requirement that does



       25   not let you in the door.  They appreciate you
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        1   bringing the ID because we've used a scanner if it's



        2   available.  But most of the time the scanner doesn't



        3   work, so we look your name up and let you go on in.



        4   I have not seen anyone denied access.  And I don't



        5   believe that was the intent of this e-mail.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you recall --



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I will have to say, like I



        8   said, a lot of times in the heat of contract



        9   negotiations --



       10             MS. TORELL:  True.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- we've asked -- we've



       12   asked -- we've done membership card or we've



       13   excluded -- sometimes we've even excluded wives, I



       14   mean --



       15             MS. TORELL:  I can see that.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- just because it was in



       17   the heat of -- I mean, but whether it's directed



       18   particularly at this issue of MDD, I think it's more



       19   just a general we have information that we don't



       20   want out and the less people -- you're directing it



       21   to a particular audience, and that's the pilots.



       22             MS. FLETCHER:  Was there a directive by



       23   President Wilson that membership cards had to be



       24   shown to enter a union meeting?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't know if there was
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        1   official directive.  There was testimony.  I'll have



        2   to call Emery tonight.  Maybe we can get her



        3   transcript.



        4             MS. HELLER:  That's sort of my question.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Do you know where that is,



        6   what he just said?



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm going to try to get it



        8   from -- I think Emery has some information to that.



        9   She was arguing it more extensively than I was in



       10   federal court.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can you find out what time



       12   the conference call is on Friday?



       13             MS. TORELL:  Yes, absolutely.  Five?



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I'm sorry?



       15             MS. TORELL:  Can we take five?



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Five minutes?  Sure.



       17                  (Recess from 4:42 to 4:49)



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Back on the record?  Okay.



       19   So how much further do we have on the membership



       20   issue, Larry?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  I think given how you've



       22   reined me in in respect for what you don't want me



       23   to ask, I'm done with the membership questions.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So now to --



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Grievance issues.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you want to start that



        3   now or tomorrow?



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are you guys ready for



        5   grievance, or do you want to -- now, is this still



        6   with Torell on the stand?



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  I'll finish that and



        8   I'll probably do my --



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  It's your call.  I mean,



       10   you guys, if you want a break -- and I guess, what,



       11   we'll start maybe -- how's 8:30 tomorrow?  Can we do



       12   that?  Is that all right?



       13             MS. HELLER:  That's fine.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Is that okay, 8:30?



       15             MR. THURSTIN:  The question from us will



       16   be if we start at 8:30, can we finish it tomorrow by



       17   4:00 or do we have to go longer?



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  How long are we going to



       19   go?



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  I don't know.  It depends



       21   how direct the answers are.  I could ask yes or no



       22   questions.  If I get yes or no answers, it'll go



       23   quick.  Today, unlike last time, it seems to have



       24   devolved into the same thing, but I really was just



       25   trying to ask yes or no questions.  But instead
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        1   of -- and I didn't do the big opening, all that



        2   crap.



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let's start.  Can we



        4   start?  Is that all right?  It's up to you because



        5   you guys -- you've been on the stand for --



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  All right.  Here we



        8   go.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you want to go again?



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Charge 2.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  Charge 2.  Okay.



       12   Let's go to Tab 19, please.



       13             MS. TORELL:  18?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  19.



       15             MS. TORELL:  19.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  You guys ready?



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah.  So this is Meadows



       18   grievance, Meadows 332713 grievance, proof of claim.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Where does it say that?



       20             MS. TORELL:  On the e-mail, subject.



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  At the top of 19 on an



       22   e-mail.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.  Yeah, but the second



       24   page.  My first question, I'd like to ask Captain



       25   Torell just to read that message from the fellow
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        1   pilots down through the second highlighted



        2   paragraph.



        3             MS. TORELL:  To the -- mine isn't



        4   highlighted, so first and second paragraph?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, just that's fine.



        6             MS. TORELL:  Okay.  So this would be a



        7   blast from -- a message from the APA



        8   secretary-treasurer, First Officer Scott Shankland,



        9   dated July 5th, 2012.  "Fellow pilots, back in late



       10   May all of you received an official-looking mailer



       11   from American Airlines containing a proof of claim



       12   form.  The proof of claim form should be used to



       13   assert your rights to any debt or other liability



       14   that you feel American owes you that is not being



       15   covered by claims -- by the claims being filed on



       16   behalf of all pilots by union counsel.  APA will be



       17   preparing and submitting any claims for any changes



       18   to or rejections of the contract for any changes or



       19   terminations to pilot pension plans and for all



       20   outstanding and ongoing grievances that APA was



       21   pursuing prior to the bankruptcy.  You do not need



       22   to file your own claim for any of these issues, and



       23   these APA submitted claims should cover the vast



       24   majority of pilots."  Continue?



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  No, that's good.  Okay.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So just to be clear, this



        2   was written by Scott Shankland --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Scott Shankland.



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  -- who then was



        5   secretary-treasurer.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  So my question is, I know



        7   this was written by Scott, but I'm sure you



        8   inherited a lot of the carryover from this, so do



        9   you fully understand the intent of this letter to



       10   the APA basically to protect all pilots' claims



       11   except for individual business and LTD claims,



       12   generally?



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Sorry.  Could you please



       14   repeat that one more time?



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  My question is, I know this



       16   was written by Scott Shankland, but is it Captain



       17   Torell's understanding that APA was in fact -- did



       18   she assume as secretary-treasurer her obligation was



       19   in fact to preserve all pilot claims except for LTD



       20   and personal business claims?



       21             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Her job was to --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, the



       23   secretary-treasurer's job.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right,



       25   secretary-treasurer.  Your stipulation is that
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        1   secretary-treasurer's job is to preserve all claims



        2   in regard to the bankruptcy.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah.  It says unless you



        4   have an unresolved workmen's compensation claim or



        5   disability denial or a business relationship with



        6   AMR outside of being a pilot.  So I'm just asking in



        7   general terms if she understands what APA's doing



        8   here in terms of preservation of pilot claims.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So where does it say that



       10   APA is going to preserve all claims?  It says -- it



       11   looks like you're filling out a proof of claim form.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  It says the APA will be



       13   preparing and submitting claims for any changes to



       14   or rejections of the contract, for any changes or



       15   terminations to pilot pension plans, and for all



       16   outstanding and ongoing grievances.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.  So --



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  Do you agree with that,



       19   Captain Torell?



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I think what you're



       21   asking is, is APA's the collection agency for these



       22   claims.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Does she concede that the



       24   APA secretary-treasurer had an obligation to



       25   preserve proofs of claims for pilots with
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        1   outstanding grievances.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Come here.



        3                  (Off record from 4:55 to 4:56)



        4             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We're just checking on the



        5   accuracy of your question.  All right.  Ask your



        6   question -- I'm sorry.  Can you read his question



        7   again, please?



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just trying -- I'm



        9   trying to establish that Captain Torell is aware of



       10   the obligations of which she inherited, that



       11   Secretary-Treasurer Shankland basically promised



       12   that he would preserve the outstanding grievance



       13   claims of our members in the APA proof of claim and



       14   pretty much cover everything for pilots with the



       15   exception of LTD, workmen's comp, and personal



       16   business claims.



       17             MS. HELLER:  I think the promise to



       18   preserve --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  That's what he said he's



       20   going to do.



       21             MS. HELLER:  -- is a little bit of a leap



       22   that you're making.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm not trying to make a



       24   leap.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I don't see the -- I mean,
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        1   it said "APA will be preparing and submitting."



        2   Okay.  So we're the collection agency.  We'll be



        3   working --



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  So I'm asking Captain Torell



        5   if she understands what Captain Shankland is saying



        6   here.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, I'm not -- again,



        8   I'm trying to figure out what Captain Shankland is



        9   saying.



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  He's saying APA will be



       11   preparing and submitting claims for any pilots --



       12   for any changes to the contract --



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Who are pursuing?



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  -- and it goes on to say



       15   "and ongoing grievances that APA was pursuing prior



       16   to bankruptcy."



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Right.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  So do you concede or concur,



       19   Captain Torell, do you concur that APA agreed to



       20   preserve or file a proof of claim for any ongoing



       21   grievances for individual pilots?



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that's two separate



       23   questions.



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  I thought it was one.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Are they going to file a
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        1   proof of claim and are they going to preserve that



        2   claim.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, it's the same thing.



        4   When you file a proof of claim, you're preserving



        5   the claim.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, my interpretation of



        7   preserve -- so maybe that's the problem.  Maybe I'm



        8   not understanding the definition of preserve,



        9   because --



       10             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, proof of claim



       11   preserves your claim in a bankruptcy estate.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  When someone says I'm



       13   going to preserve your claim, that means I'm going



       14   to go to the -- I'm going to take it to the end.



       15   And, you know, I'm going -- but there were a lot



       16   of -- I mean, you know, there were other things that



       17   dropped off the table.  I'm seeing the preparing and



       18   submitting.  So, like I said, if a pilot has a



       19   claim --



       20   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       21        Q.   Okay.  Captain Torell, do you agree that



       22   Secretary Shankland agreed that APA would file proof



       23   of claim forms for members who had ongoing



       24   grievances prior to bankruptcy?



       25        A.   That they would file -- they would file --
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        1   repeat that one more time?



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Can you reread it back?



        3             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Would you please read the



        4   last question.



        5                  (Requested text was read)



        6        A.   No, I do not agree.



        7   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        8        Q.   You don't.  Really?  Why do you not -- why



        9   do you not agree?



       10             MR. THURSTIN:  Could I -- state the reason



       11   why you think that she should agree.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Because she's the secretary.



       13   She inherited his responsibility.



       14             MR. THURSTIN:  No, I'm not talking about



       15   the document.  Can you tell me why you think in the



       16   document it says that she should agree to this?



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Because Captain Shankland



       18   made a commitment on behalf of the institution to



       19   the members.  And by assuming the role of



       20   secretary-treasurer, Captain Torell in turn



       21   inherited that commitment.  All I wanted was a



       22   simple yes or no answer that she understands what's



       23   in here and agrees with it, because we can't



       24   establish that my grievance was supposed to be



       25   preserved in a proof of claim to begin with if she
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        1   doesn't.



        2             MR. THURSTIN:  What I see in here, if you



        3   decide to file an individual claim, complete the



        4   proof of claim form.



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  No.  Go to the middle of



        6   paragraph, first paragraph.  It says, "APA will be



        7   preparing and submitting any claims for any ongoing



        8   grievances that APA was pursuing prior to



        9   bankruptcy.  You do not need to file your own claim



       10   for any of these issues."



       11             So do you agree that APA had an obligation



       12   to incorporate my personal grievance, number 12-011,



       13   into the APA proof of claim?  It's a really simple



       14   question.  This is why it's going to take an extra



       15   day.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just telling you.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  We'll be here until --



       19   we'll be here until the end, so just --



       20             MS. TORELL:  I retain my answer, no, for



       21   the reason is "dash," in the last state -- part of



       22   the last sentence, "submitted claims should cover



       23   the vast majority of pilots."



       24             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  So you do not need
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        1   to file your own claim for any of the -- and these



        2   APA-submitted should cover the vast majority of



        3   pilots.  Okay.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I'm going to object



        5   because this evasiveness is what's going to delay



        6   these proceedings.  Let's just flip forward one page



        7   to page 1 of that exhibit, please.



        8             And, Captain Torell, can you please read



        9   the subject line, the to and from, and the content



       10   of that e-mail.



       11             MR. THURSTIN:  There's two e-mails.  Which



       12   one?



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  You can start with the



       14   bottom, actually start at the bottom one, please,



       15   and work your way to the top one.  They're in



       16   reverse order.



       17             MS. TORELL:  Okay.  So this is from



       18   Lawrence Meadows sent on Monday, July 9, 2012, at



       19   10:35 p.m. to Chuck Hairston, APA legal, Bennett



       20   Boggess, director of legal; subject, Meadows number



       21   332713 grievance, forward proof of claim form filing



       22   deadline approaching.  "Hello, Charles, I am writing



       23   to seek confirmation that you (APA) is filing proof



       24   of claim on my behalf for my outstanding grievance.



       25   Please advise ASAP.  Sincerely, First Officer Larry
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        1   Meadows."



        2             And the top e-mail says subject regarding



        3   Meadows number 33217 grievance, forward proof of



        4   claim form filing deadline approaching from Chuck



        5   Hairston at Allied Pilots dot org to Lawrence



        6   Meadows.  And I believe that would be also director



        7   of legal Allied Pilots dot org.  Date, Tuesday,



        8   July 10, the following day, 2012, 7:35 am.  "We are



        9   filing a proof of claim for your grievance.  Charles



       10   R. Hairston, staff attorney, Allied Pilots



       11   Association."



       12   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       13        Q.   Okay.  So do you now agree that APA had an



       14   obligation and agreed to file my proof of claim?



       15        A.   I don't -- by looking at these two e-mails



       16   today for the first time, I would not state that



       17   that stipulates them to a --



       18                  (Discussion between Ms. Torell and



       19                  Mr. Thurstin)



       20        A.   Yes, and Jeff made the -- and Captain



       21   Thurstin made the point I wasn't in office at this



       22   time.  But my interpretation at this time does not



       23   form an object -- does not form a stipulation, just



       24   that basically we are filing according to Chuck.



       25        Q.   Seriously?  Okay.
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        1        A.   I don't see that as a --



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Asked and answered,



        3   please, Captain Meadows.



        4             MR. MEADOWS:  Really?  This is a -- this



        5   is what I'm talking about.  You guys can tolerate



        6   this?



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Larry, Larry.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  You're going to tolerate



        9   this is what I'm asking.  I want as much time as I



       10   need.  If it takes four days, I want as much time as



       11   I need.  I'll be patient and calm, but it's going to



       12   take time because she's a difficult witness and



       13   evasive.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  And it's not well taken.



       16   Why don't we break for tomorrow, please, because



       17   this is not -- it's just a waste of my time today.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  You're going to ask these



       19   same questions tomorrow.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I know, but, I mean, I



       21   don't have the patience to sit here with her being



       22   evasive because it's a fact in record that APA filed



       23   my proof of claim.  All I'm trying to establish is



       24   that she understands her predecessor preserved my



       25   proof of claim, agreed to do it, did it.  And in
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        1   turn, as the secretary-treasurer, she inherited the



        2   obligation to shepherd that proof of claim through



        3   the bankruptcy process.



        4             She couldn't just disavow any knowledge of



        5   it because her predecessor did it.  She inherited



        6   that obligation, and I'm just trying to establish so



        7   there's no legal room here that it's very clear what



        8   APA promised to do and what they did for me and that



        9   she's aware of it so I can go forward with my line



       10   of questioning.  This is just trying to set the



       11   table for the next 50 questions.



       12             MS. HELLER:  Can you ask maybe a broader



       13   question as to what her knowledge was as to your



       14   proof of claim or --



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  Captain Torell, is it your



       16   understanding that APA preserved Lawrence Meadows'



       17   grievance, number 12-011, on its initial proof of



       18   claim in the American Airlines bankruptcy



       19   proceedings?



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can you just define for me



       21   preserve?



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Preserve means APA files a



       23   general proof of claim and a list specifically that



       24   individual grievances were preserved in that proof



       25   of claim, and mine was one of them.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  And I guess one of the



        3   questions maybe you could have Captain Torell -- I



        4   would request you order her to produce the initial



        5   proof of claim tomorrow.  It's a lengthy document.



        6   They could print it out in the morning.  But that



        7   would be helpful to have because she's not going



        8   to -- I don't have that one.



        9             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.  Let me



       10   pretend to be the chairman.



       11             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm just saying, so --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I get it, I get it, but --



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  If it helps her



       14   recollection, maybe we should have the legal



       15   department print the proof of claim.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But my point is, Larry,



       17   here's what I know about this topic given this



       18   e-mail.  You wrote an e-mail to Mr. Hairston.  He



       19   responded that they'll be filing a claim.  Doesn't



       20   look like it went through the secretary-treasurer's



       21   office other than the fact --



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Secretary-treasurer signed



       23   the proof of claim.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  But my point is that --



       25   but I don't know that yet.  You haven't produced
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        1   that document yet.  My point is, is that Scott



        2   Shankland sent out a message to the membership



        3   saying that they're preparing and submitting.  Okay?



        4   And then you sent an e-mail to Hairston, and he



        5   responded that he'll be submitting your claim.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.



        7             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  That's what he says, we're



        8   filing a proof of claim.



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.  Here's my



       10   question.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So let's just keep it



       12   simple.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  Captain Torell, do



       14   you understand that you had an obligation to uphold



       15   the promises of Scott Shankland with respect to



       16   preserving individual grievances and proofs of



       17   claim?



       18             MR. THURSTIN:  Objection.



       19             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  By preserving you mean



       20   filing those claims?



       21             MR. MEADOWS:  Filing it on a proof of



       22   claim.  That is preserving it, yes.  All preserving



       23   means is that you're putting it in the record to the



       24   bankruptcy court so that the claim is acknowledged,



       25   noticed to the debtor.  That's all.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So I guess my -- I



        2   guess --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Doesn't mean it's going to



        4   get arbitrated.  All it means is preserved, that



        5   claim is preserved.



        6             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All it means is it's being



        7   followed.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Yes.  And I'm just trying to



        9   get her to acknowledge that simple fact so we can



       10   move forward.  And if she doesn't want to do that,



       11   I'm going to ask --



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, just hang on a



       13   second.  And it falls under the purview of the



       14   secretary-treasurer because?



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  The secretary-treasurer



       16   signs the proof of claim.



       17             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  That initial proof of claim



       19   was signed by Scott Shankland.  So I'm getting



       20   her -- I would like to get her to acknowledge that



       21   even though it was signed by Scott Shankland, she



       22   inherited the responsibility of managing that proof



       23   of claim throughout the bankruptcy proceedings



       24   because it required periodic amendments, and it was



       25   amended thereafter by Captain Torell.
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        1             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, that's something we



        2   have yet to --



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, we're going to get



        4   there, but it's hard for me to --



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  I get it.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  I've got to establish it.



        7   If she's shrugging her shoulders and says she has



        8   nothing to do with it, this was Scott Shankland,



        9   then we've got problems.



       10             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  So this initial -- so --



       11   yes.



       12             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I -- for the sake of



       13   moving things forward, there is a proof of claim



       14   listed in Tab 3, Exhibit 3 of our documentation.



       15             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Where?



       16             MR. THURSTIN:  Tab 3.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  That's the wrong one.



       18   That's the amended proof of claim.  We're talking



       19   about the original proof of claim.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Let him finish, please,



       21   Larry.



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  Let me finish.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, that's -- it's my line



       24   of questioning though.  This is where things are



       25   going sideways.
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        1             MR. THURSTIN:  The amended proof of claim



        2   in this particular instance that we have here was



        3   filed I think about 11 or 12, 13 days too late to be



        4   within the one-year limitation for this proof of



        5   claim on the amendment.



        6             MR. MEADOWS:  What are you talking about?



        7             MR. THURSTIN:  It was not timely.



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  Are you talking about my



        9   charge wasn't timely?  I'm going to object.  What



       10   he's trying to say is I didn't file within a year.



       11   He is wrong.



       12             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, Larry, wait,



       13   please.  Jesus.  God, you're driving me nuts.



       14             MR. MEADOWS:  That's not an answer to my



       15   fucking question.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look, he --



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I can fix this one.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, Larry, stop.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  All right.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.  Pam, do you think



       21   that -- you signed -- you signed the proof of



       22   claims.  Yes?  No?



       23             MS. TORELL:  I signed the proof of claim



       24   from March 4, 2014.



       25             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Did you sign other proofs
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        1   of claims?  I mean, not necessarily for Meadows,



        2   just for anybody, any -- any -- you know, as Scott



        3   talks about, any claims involving pay, contract,



        4   outstanding grievances?  I mean, did you sign or did



        5   Scott handle all of that?



        6             MS. TORELL:  I'd have to go back and



        7   check.  I mean, we're talking about how many years



        8   ago now?



        9             MR. MEADOWS:  To clarify, there's a master



       10   document.



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Please, Larry.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  I'm trying to make it



       13   easy for you.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, so far that hasn't



       15   helped.



       16             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, thank you for



       17   Ms. Torell's testimony, lack thereof.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yeah, but, Larry,



       19   badgering the witness is not going to help.



       20             And so do you see it as your job to sign



       21   those proof of claims?  Was that your responsibility



       22   as the secretary-treasurer?



       23             MS. TORELL:  I have been advised from



       24   counsel that it can be any national officer.  And as



       25   I reviewed the Constitution and Bylaws of the duties
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        1   of the national officers, it's not explicitly stated



        2   in there.



        3             So I'm at a little bit of a -- it can be



        4   any national officer is the bottom line.



        5   BY MR. MEADOWS:



        6        Q.   Okay.  I guess my question is, what



        7   officers can sign a monetary instrument for



        8   $5,000 or more?  And whose signature is required on



        9   every transaction greater than $5,000?



       10        A.   It takes two signatures above 5,000 or



       11   5,000 or greater, and --



       12        Q.   The secretary-treasurer must sign above



       13   5,000.  Is that correct?



       14        A.   Uh-huh.



       15        Q.   Take that as a yes?



       16        A.   Yes.



       17             MR. MEADOWS:  Okay.  So, Captain Hepp,



       18   what I was trying to clarify is there's not multiple



       19   proofs of claim.  Proof of claim is one giant,



       20   massive document that contains all the individual



       21   proofs of claim --



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  -- in an addendum on the



       24   back.  So to my knowledge Scott Shankland signed one



       25   in July of 2012, and I think it was only amended
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        1   once by Pam Torell.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Okay.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  All I'm trying to



        4   establish -- this isn't even my question.  I'm just



        5   trying to establish that she's aware that an



        6   institutional commitment by the



        7   secretary-treasurer's office was made to preserve



        8   the proofs of claim, the legal department



        9   acknowledged it, they did in fact preserve my



       10   grievance in the APA proof of claim.



       11             And what you'll see that we're wasting all



       12   this time, it's going to be so clear that the



       13   grievance was preserved by APA in the bankruptcy



       14   settlement agreement.  But I can't even get past



       15   square one to get her to admit that the



       16   secretary-treasurer's office did in fact have this



       17   obligation and upheld it.



       18             MS. HELLER:  So just to clarify, it was



       19   preserved in the July 2012 Scott Shankland proof of



       20   claim?



       21             MR. THURSTIN:  Yes.



       22             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, there was a bar date.



       23   The bar date I think was July 12th, 2012.  And so



       24   all proofs of claims were filed by that date.



       25             MS. HELLER:  And then the modified one?
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        1   Is that what we would call it --



        2             MR. MEADOWS:  Right.



        3             MS. HELLER:  -- that was done in March of



        4   2014 that Captain Torell said she signed?



        5             MR. MEADOWS:  Correct.



        6             MS. HELLER:  Was it in that?



        7             MR. MEADOWS:  No.  It was excluded.



        8   That's the former grievance.  And that brings me to



        9   a question.  They're using this argument that it



       10   wasn't timely, which --



       11             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Well, let's get to that in



       12   the future.



       13             MR. MEADOWS:  I do have a question.  When



       14   you amended the proof of claim in April -- in



       15   March --



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Can we keep to your



       17   time -- I want to keep to your time line on the



       18   questions.



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  Well, I'm getting derailed



       20   here, and this is what's making it hard.  But I



       21   would like to go to Tab 26.



       22             MR. THURSTIN:  It's the same one.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, this is GCG proof of



       24   claim number 7654080 filed by the Allied Pilots



       25   Association.  And if you go to page 2, do you
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        1   acknowledge that that was signed by you on March 4,



        2   2014, Captain Torell?



        3             The question is, does Captain Torell



        4   acknowledge that that's her signature on that



        5   document?



        6             MR. THURSTIN:  Can I interject for a



        7   moment, object?  Captain Torell at this time -- this



        8   is the document we just looked at a minute ago, same



        9   document, two different places.  Captain Torell



       10   signed this document.  I think she already answered



       11   that.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  She did not answer it.  We



       13   haven't even got to this document.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, please.



       15             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm going home.



       16             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, you can't



       17   interrupt.



       18             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm going home.  This is



       19   ridiculous.



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, you have to let the



       21   man talk.  You couldn't do this in a court of law



       22   either.



       23             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I could.



       24             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  No, you can't.



       25             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, I could.  Well, they
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        1   would never get away with any of the shit they're



        2   pulling right now, ever.  So I'm sorry.  Go ahead.



        3   You guys run it the way you want to run it.



        4             MR. THURSTIN:  Captain or First Officer



        5   Shankland signed the first proof of claim



        6   documentation.  That's not in question that he



        7   signed it.  If you're asking when his proof of claim



        8   was removed, we don't have that information.  We



        9   don't know if it was under Captain Torell's time as



       10   the secretary-treasurer.  All we know is that she



       11   signed the document.  It was not there at that time.



       12             MR. MEADOWS:  I object.  This is totally



       13   waylaying my line of questioning.



       14             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  He asked the question --



       15   Mr. Meadows asked the question is this Pam's



       16   signature on this document, Tab 26.



       17   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       18        Q.   Did you sign that document, Captain



       19   Torell, on March 4th?



       20             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Yes or no?



       21        A.   Yes.



       22   BY MR. MEADOWS:



       23        Q.   Did you file that document on March 4th?



       24   Yes or no?



       25        A.   The actual document was filed by legal.
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        1        Q.   But was it filed after you signed it?



        2        A.   The actual document was filed by legal.



        3        Q.   Okay.  And did you notify any of the



        4   individual pilots whose grievances were removed from



        5   that proof of claim?  Yes or no?



        6        A.   I'm not going to answer that with a yes or



        7   a no.  I would go back and check to see what I had



        8   to do.  I am not going to answer that --



        9        Q.   Did you notify -- well, I can tell you



       10   didn't.  You did not notify --



       11        A.   Larry, you're not going to raise your



       12   voice, or I'm walking out.



       13             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Whoa, whoa, whoa.  All



       14   right.  We're done.  Okay?  We've been doing good so



       15   far, but we can either do ten minutes and come back



       16   or we just call it a day because we can't have this.



       17   Okay?  Again, you guys are cross-talking.  Larry, I



       18   understand --



       19             MR. MEADOWS:  She's not answering the



       20   questions.  I'm asking yes or no questions.  I'm



       21   trying to keep it simple.  I'm trying to uphold my



       22   end, and all I get is these -- I don't get



       23   objections.  He's not entitled to ask questions.



       24   And this whole concept of me going through you is



       25   bullshit.  Let me ask her questions directly, yes or
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        1   no.  Let her answer them.



        2             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Look, Larry.



        3             MR. MEADOWS:  It's not working, Chuck.



        4   I'm sorry.  It's just not.



        5             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  Larry, look.  It's up to



        6   you.  We're here because you wanted to be here.



        7   Now --



        8             MR. MEADOWS:  I'm here because I have to



        9   be here.  And frankly, this was not personal, but at



       10   the end of this proceeding Pam Torell is getting



       11   sued for everything she has in federal court because



       12   she's being nonevasive and uncooperative.



       13             And this could be resolved right here and



       14   now, Pam.  But you know what?  You bought yourself a



       15   lot of trouble.  And you don't even understand



       16   what's coming your way from not just me but many



       17   other members.



       18             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  All right.  We're done for



       19   today.



       20             MR. MEADOWS:  Yeah, that's right.  She's



       21   done.



       22             CHAIRMAN HEPP:  See you at 8:30 in the



       23   morning.



       24                  (Proceedings adjourned at 5:18 p.m.)



       25                          -oOo-
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